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OFFERING CIRCULAR

£254,581 ,000
European Loan Conduit No. 3 plc

(incorporated with limited liability in England and Wales)

Commercial Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due 2009

Application has been made to the UK Listing Authority (the UK Listing Authority™} for the {187.300.000 Class A Commercial .\!arr_::agv
Backed F loating Rate Notes due 2008 (the "Class A Nowes”) the £17.621,000 Class B Commercial Mortgage Bucked Floating Rate Notes due
2000 fhe "Class B Notes™). the £15.275.000 Class € Commercial Mortgage Bavked Floating Rate Notes due Z009 tehe “Class C Nees™) the
£15.911.000 Class D Commercial Mortgage Backed Floating: Rate Notes due 2009 (the “Class [ Notes™ and rhe 1’8.274‘0121().('135.\ E
Commercial Mortgage Backed Fioating Rate Notes due 2009 (the "Class E Nores™ and. together with the Class A Notes. the Class B Nates. tie
Class € Notes and the Class DY Netes. the "Netes™) of Europpan Loan Cenduit No. 3 plc (the “Issuer”) to be admitted to the Official List.
Application has alse been made to the London Stock Exchange pic (the "London Stock Exchange”) for each class of Notes to be admirted to
trading on the London Stock Exchange. Copies of this Offering Circular. which comprise approved listing parziculars with rega_rd to the
Issuer and the issue of the Nares in accordance with the listing:rules made under Part I\ of the Financial Services Act 1986 (the "F5A™ have
been defivered to the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales for registration in accordance with Section 149 of the FSA.

Interest ont the Notes will be pavable quarterly in arrear in pounds sterling on the 25th dav of Janvary. April. July and October in cach year.
subject to adjustment far non-business davs as described hereini (each an “Intevest Pavment Date”). The first Interest Pavment Date will be
25th October. 200D, The interest rate applicable to the Not¢s from time to time will be determined by reference to the London Interbank
Offered Rate ("L IBOR™) for three-momth sterling deposits (of. in the case of the first Incerest Period. the linear interpolation of three and
four-month Sterling deposits) pius a margin which will be different for each class of Notes as set out under "Margin over LIBOR" below.

The Class A Notes. Class 8 Notes. Class C Notes. Class D Notes and Class E Notes are expected on issue 1o be assigned ratings of AdA. AA. A

BBB and BB respectively by Standard & Poors Ratings Services - a division of The MeGraw Hill Companies. Inc. (S&P"). A security rati .,
is not a recommendation tu buy . sell or hold securities and mav be subtect te revision. suspensian or withdrawal ar anv time by the assigni§ ]
rating organisarion : o
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The Notes and interest thereon will not be obligations or respehsibilities of any person other than the [ssuer. 1n particular. the Notes will not
be ohligations vr resporsibilities of. ar be guaranteed by. Morghn Stanlev Dean Witier Bank Limired ("MSDW Bank") or anv associated bodyv
of NISDIV Bank. or of or by the Managers. the Servicer. the Special Servicer. the Cash Manager. the Trustee, the Corporate Services Provider.
the Pavine Agents. the Agemt Bank. the Registrar. the Liquidiny Facilite Provider. the Swap Previder. the Swap Guaranior. the Depository,
the Exchanyge Avent or the Operating Bank (each as defined iherein) or anv compam in the same group of companies as the Managers. the
Serviver, the Speciad Servicer, the Cash Manager. the Trustee. the Corporate Services Provider. the Paving Agents. the Agent Bank. the
Registrar. the Liquidity Facilits Provider. the Swap Providdr. the Swap Guaranter. the Deposicory. the Exchange Agent or the Operating
Bank and none of such persoits accepts anv liabilit whatseever in respect of amyv failure by the Issuer (o make pavment of anyv amount due on
the Notes

The Notes will be fasuved stmuliancousls on the Clasing Date (& defined hergin!. AN Notes will be secured by the same security. subject to the
priorin described herein Nates of each class will rapk pari. passu with and without priorits over ather Nowen of the same class. Prior to
redemption on the Interest Pavment Date falling in July ZOOP (the “Maturity Date'). the Nuees will be subject to mandatory or optional
redemption in certam circumstances. See “Terms and Conditidins of the Nutes - Redemption and Cancellation”,

THE NOTES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933,
AS AMENDED (THE "SECLRITIES ACT"). OR ANY STATE SECURITIES LAW AND UNLESS SO REGISTERED MAY NOT BE
OFFERED OR SOLD WITHIN THE UNITED STATES PR TCQ. OR FOR THE BENEFIT OF. U.8. PERSONS (A5 DEF!NED,‘
REGULATION § UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT) EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN ENEMPTION FROM. OR IN A TRANSACT p
NOT SUBJECT TO. THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND THE APPLICABLE STATE LAWS. -

THE NOTES ARE BEINC OFFERED AND SOLD ONLY TP (4) "QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS (AS DEFINED IN RULE
1444 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT) AND (B) PERSF\’S {OTHER THAN L5, PERSONS) OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES
PLRSUANT TO REGULATION § UNDER THE SECUR|TIES ACT. FOR A DESCRIPTION OF CERTAIN RESTRICTIONS ON
RESALES OR TRANSFERS. SEE "TRANSFER RESTRI{TIUONS" AUCORDINGLY. THE NOTES MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR
SOLD. DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY. AND NEITHER THIS DOCUMENT NOR ANY PART HEREOF NOR ANY OTHER OFFERING
CIRCULAR., PROSPECTL'S. FORM OF APPLICATION. ADVERTISEAIENT. OTHER OFFERING MATERIAL OR OTHER
INFORMATION MAY BE ISSUED. DISTRIBLTED OR PUBLISHED IN ANY JURISDICTION (INCLUDING THE UNITED
KINGDONM}. EXCEPT IN CIRCUMSTANCES THAT WILY RESULT IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS, ORDERS.

RULES AND REGULATIONS. !
|

If anv withholding or deduction for or on account of tax ¥s apd]’irabk to pavments of interest and principal on the Notes, such payments will be
made subject 1o such withholding or deduction without the 1sster being obliged 1o pav am addition:! amounts as a consequence.

The Notes are expected (o settle in book-entry form through lihe- facilities of DTC. Clearsiream. Luxembourg and Evrociear (cach as defined
herein) o or abour 12th Julv. 2000 (the "Chesing Date’) agaihst pavmems therelor in immediately available funds.

See "Risk Factors” for a discussion of certain factors te be considered in connection with an imestmrent in the Notes.

MORGAN STANLE Y DEAN WITTER

RBC DOMINION SECURITIES ARTESIA BC
The date of this Offering Circular is 1 1th July. 2000




IMPORTANT NOTICE

The Notes of each class sold in reliance upon Rule [44A under the Securities Act ("Rule 144A") will
on issue be represented by two global notes in bearer form for each such class of Note (each a "Bule 144A
Global Note" and together the 'Rule 144A Global Notes"). The Notes of each class soid in offshore
transactions in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act ("Reg $") will initiallv be represented by
a global note in bearer form for each such class of Note (each a ‘Reg S Global Note" and together the

"Reg § Global Netes").

The Rule 144A Global Notes and the Reg S Global Notes wiit be deposited with or to the order of The
Chase Manhattan Bank. New York. as book-entry depository (the 'Depository™) pursuant to a depository
agreement among the Issuer, the Depository and the Trustee (the "Depository Agreement”). The_
Depository will for each class of Notes (a) register a certificateless depository interest in respect o_f one of
the Rule 144A Global Notes in the name of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") or its nominee. (b)
register a certificateless depository interest in respect of the other Rule 144A Global Note in the name of
The Chase Manhattan Bank, London (the "Commen Depositary™) as common depositary for the account
of the Euroclear System ("Euroclear") and Clearstream Banking. société anonyme ("Clearstream,
Luxembourg") and (c) issue a certificated depository interest in respect of the Reg S Global Note to the
Common Depositary (each certificateless depository interest and certificated depository interest, a "CDI").
The Depository. acting as agent of the Issuer, will maintain a book-entry system in which it will register
DTC (or a nominee of DTC) as the owner of the certificateless depository interests in respect of the Rule
144A Global Note held by DTC or its nominee and the Common Depositary (or a nominee of the Common
Depositary) as owner of the certificated depository interests and the certificateless depositary interests held
by the Common Depositary. Transfer of all or any portion of the interests in the Rule 144A Global Notes
or the Reg S Global Notes may be made only through the book-entry system maintained by the
Depository. Each of DTC. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg will record the beneficial interests in
the CDIs attributable to the relevant Global Notes ("Book-Entry Interests"). Book-Entry Interests in the
CDIs will be shown on. and transfers thereof will be effected only through. records maintained in book-
entry form by Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg or DTC, and their respective participants. Prior to the
40th day after the Closing Date. beneficial interests in the Reg S Global Notes may be held only through
Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg. No person who owns a Book-Entry Interest will be entitled to
receive a Note in definitive form (a 'Definitive Note") unless Definitive Notes are issued in the limited
circumstances described in "Terms and Conditions of the Notes - Definitive Notes”. Definitive Notes will
be issued in registered form only. See also "Description of the Notes and the Depository Agreement”.

Holders of beneficial interests in the Rule 144A Global Notes who hold such interests direetly with
DTC or through its participants and who wish payments to be made to them in pounds sterling outside
DTC must give advance notice thereof to DTC in accordance with the rules and procedures of DTC prior
to each Interest Payment Date. If such instructions are not given, pounds sterling payments on the Rule
144A Global Notes will be exchanged for dollars by the Exchange Agent (as defined herein) prior to their
receipt by DTC and the affected holders will receive dollars on the relevant Interest Payment Date. See
"Description of the Notes and the Depository Agreement - Payments on Global Notes".

Subject as set out below, the lssuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in this
Offering Circular. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Issuer (which has taken all reasonable
care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Offering Circular is in accordance
with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

The information relating to the Principal Borrowers and the Dutch Borrowers (as defined below) has
been accurately reproduced from information published by such Principal Borrowers and Dutch
Borrowers. So far as the Issuer is aware and/or is able to ascertain from information published by such
Principal Borrowers and Dutch Borrowers, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced
information misleading.

~ No person is or has been authorised in connection with the issue and sale of the Notes to give any
information or to make any representation not contained in this Offering Circular and, if given or made,
such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by or on behalf of
the Issuer, MSDW Bank, the Trustee, the Corporate Services Provider, the Liguidity Facility Provider, the
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Swap Provider, the Swap Guarantor, the Operating Bank. the Paying Agents. thg Agent Ba\_nk. the
Registrar, the Servicer, the Special Servicer, the Cash Manager or the Managers. .Nelther the delivery of
this Offering Circular nor any sale or allotment made in connection with the offering of any of the Notes
shall, under any circumstances, constitute a representation or create any implication that ther? has beep no
change in the information comained herein since the! date hereof or that the information contained herein is
correct as of any time subsequent to its date. r

Other than the approval of this Offering Circular as listing particulars in accordance with the listing
rules made under Part IV of the FSA and the delivery of copies of this Offering Circular 10 the Registrar of
Companies in England and Wales for registration in accordance with Section 149 of the FSA_. no action
has been or will be taken to permit a public offering of the Notes or the distribution of this Offenng
Circular in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. The distribution of this Offering
Circular and the offering of the Notes in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons into whose
possession this Offering Circular (or any part hereof) comes are required by the Issuer and the Managers to
inform themselves about. and to observe, any such testrictions. Neither this Offering Circular nor any part
hereof constitutes an offer of. or an invitation by of on behalf of, the Issuer or the Managers to subscribe
for or purchase any of the Notes and neither this Offering Circular, nor any part hereof, may be used for or
in connection with an offer to, or solicitation by, arly person in any jurisdiction or in any circumstances in
which such offer or solicitation is not authorised dr to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such
offer or solicitation. For a further description of cértain restrictions on offers and sales of the Notes and
distribution of this Offering Circular (or any part hereof) see "Notice to U.S. Investors", "Subscription and
Sale" and "Transfer Restrictions” below, -

NOTICE TO U.S. INVESTORS

Each purchaser of the Notes will be deemed to have made the representations. warranties and
acknowledgements that are described in this Offering Circular under "Transfer Restrictions”.

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and are subject to certain
restrictions on transfer. Prospective purchasers arg hereby notified that the seller of any Note may be
relying on the exemption from the provisions of Section 5 of the Securities Act provided by Rule 144A.
For a description of certain further restrictions on resale or transfer of the Notes, see "Description of the
Notes and the Depository Agreement” and "Transfer Restrictions”.

AVAILABLQ INFORMATION

The Issuer has agreed that. for so long as any bf the Notes are restricted securities within the meaning
of Rule 144(a)(3) under the Securities Act, it willj during any period in which it is not subject to and in
compliance with the reporting requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act. nor exempt from
reporting under the Exchange Act pursuant to Rul 12g3-2(b) thereunder. make available to any holder or
beneficial owner of such restricted securities or to jany prospective purchaser designated by such holder or
beneficial owner of such restricted securities in ofder to permit compliance by such holder or beneficial
owner with Rule 144A in connection with the resale of such restricted securities or any interest therein, in
each case at the request of such holder. benefidial owner or prospective purchaser to the Issuer, the
information specified in. and meeting the requirements of. Rule 144A(dK4) under the Securities Act.

ENFORCEABILITY OF JUDGMENTS

The issuer is a company incorporated with linllited liability in England and Wales. All of the directors
of the Issuer currently reside in England and Wales. As a result, it may not be possible to effect service of
process within the United States upon such persons to enforce against them judgments of courts of the
United States predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the federal or state securities laws of the
United States. There is doubt as to the enforceability in England and Wales, in original actions or in

actions for enforcement of judgments of U.S. courts, of civil liabilities predicated solely upon such
securities laws.




NOTICE TO NEW HAMPSHIRE RESIDENTS

NEITHER THE FACT THAT A REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR AN APPLICATION FOR A
LICENSE HAS BEEN FILED UNDER CHAPTER 421-B OF THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
REVISED STATUTES WITH THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE NOR THE FACT THAT A
SECURITY IS EFFECTIVELY REGISTERED OR A PERSON IS LICENSED IN THE STATE OF‘
NEW HAMPSHIRE CONSTITUTES A FINDING BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE THAT ANY
DOCUMENT FILED UNDER RSA CHAPTER 421-B 1S TRUE. COMPLETE AND NOT
MISLEADING. NEITHER ANY SUCH FACT NOR THE FACT THAT AN ENEMPTION OR
EXCEPTION IS AVAILABLE FOR A SECURITY OR A TRANSACTION MEANS THAT THE
SECRETARY OF STATE HAS PASSED IN ANY WAY UPON THE MERITS OR QUALIFICATIONS
OF. OR RECOMMENDED OR GIVEN APPROVAL TO. ANY PERSON. SECURITY OR
TRANSACTION. IT 1S UNLAWFUL TO MAKE. OR CAUSE TO BE MADE. TO ANY
PROSPECTIVE  PURCHASER. CUSTOMER. OR CLIENT ANY REPRESENTATION
INCONSISTENT WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PARAGRAPH.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain matters contained herein are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the United
States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such statements appear in a number of places in
this Offering Circular. including with respect to assumptions on prepayment and certain other
characteristics of the Loans (as defined below), and reflect significant assumptions and subjective
judgments by the Issuer that may or may not prove to be correct. Such statements may be identified by
reference to a future period or periods and the use of forward-looking terminology such as "may", "will".
could”. "believes”, "expects”. "anticipates”, "continues”. "intends”. "plans" or similar terms. Consequently,
future results may differ from the lssuer's expectations due to 2 variety of factors. including (but not
limited to) the economic environment and changes in governmental regulations. fiscal policy, planning or
tax laws in the UK. Moreover. past financial performance should not be considered a reliable indicator of
future performance and prospective purchasers of the Notes are cautioned that any such statements are not
guarantees of performance and involve risks and uncertainties. many of which are beyond the control of
the Issuer. None of the Managers have attempted to verify any such statements. nor do they make any
representation. express or implied, with respect thereto.

All references in this document to "sterling” or "pounds” or "£" are io the favwfid currency for the time
peing of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland. references 1o "doliars™ or "§" gre 10
the lawfil currency for the rine being of the United States of America and references to "euro” or "Eur"
are 1o the currency introduced at the commencement of the third stage of European econontic and
monetary union pursuant to the Ireary establishing the Ewropean Comnumity. as amended by the Treany
on Ewropean Union, as amended by the Treary of Amsterdam.

In connection with the distribution of the Notes. Morgan Stanlev & Co. Imernational Limited may
over-allot or effect rransactions which stabilise or maintain the market prices of the Notes at levels which
might not otherwise prevail. Such stabilising. if commenced, may be discontinued ar any time.
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SUMMARY

The following information is a summary of the principal features of the issuc of the Nores.  This
summarv should be read in comjunction with, and is qualified in its entireny by reference 10. the nore
detailed information appearing elsewhere in this document. Certain terms used in this summary are dr.jfmcd‘
elsewhere in this document. A list of the pages on which these terms are defined is found in the "Index of
Principal Defined Terms" at the end of this decument.

Transaction Overview

On the Closing Date the Issuer will issue the Notes and with the proceeds will acquire from MSDW Bank a
portfolio of loans together with its beneficial interest in the Secunty Trusts created over the security grante_d
in respect of those loans (together. the ‘Loan and Mortgage Pool"). The Loan and Morgage Pool will
consist of 16 loans (the "Loans") to different borrowers (each a "Borrower") which, as at 19th June 2000
(the "Cut-Off Date"). had an outstanding aggregate principal amount of £234.580.981. There are two
Principal Borrowers. the First Principal Borrowers. namely. Four Seasons Properties (Care Homes) Limited
and Four Seasons Properties (Specialist) Limited. and the Second Principal Borrower. namely Orb (Lexham)
Limited. Details of the Principal Borrowers and the relevant Loans, Mortgages and Related Security are set
out in Appendix 1. Three of the Loans have been made available to three Borrowers incorporated in the
Netherlands and these Loans are denominated in euro. Details of these Loans are set out in Appendix 2.
The purchase price paid by the Issuer will be an amount equal to the outstanding aggregate principal balance
. of the Loans as at the Cut-Off Date. All of the Loans provide for the relevant Borrower to pay a fixed rate of

interest and are governed by English law except the Dutch Loans which are governed by Irish law. Thirteen
of the Loans are denominated in sterling and three of the Loans are denominated in euros. All the Loans are
full recourse obligations of the related Borrowers and are secured by first priority mortgages. sub-mortgages
or standard securities {each a "Mortgage") on residential and commercial properties given by a Borrower or
a mortgagor (each a "Mortgagor"). - The Loans are secured by Mortgages over 110 properties (the
"Properties").

The terms of the credit agreements evidencing the Loans (the "Loan Documentation”) require each of the
Borrowers or Mortgagors to establish an account (each a "Rent Account"} into which rents payable by the
tenants occupving the relevant Property or Properties are 10 be paid. On or shortly after each payment date
under the Loans. the Servicer will transfer from each Rent Account to two accounts, on¢ denominated in
sterling. the other in euro. with AIB Group (UK) plc in the name of the Issuer (the "Transaction Accounts”)
all amounts due to the Issuer under the applicable Loan paid by the Borrowers and credited to the Rent
Accounts. On each interest payment date under the Notes. the Cash Manager will. on the basis of
information provided by the Servicer. identify the source of the funds standing to the credit of the
Transaction Accounts and will. subject to the pavment of obligations of the lssuer having a higher priority
having been paid. apply such funds in payment. inter alia. of principal and interest due on the Notes.

In order to protect the Issuer against interest rate risk arising as a result of the Borrowers paying fixed rate
. interest on the Loans whilst the Issuer is required to pay a floating rate of interest on the Notes, the Issuer

will enter into an interest rate swap transaction with the Swap Provider. whose obligations under such
transaction will be guaranteed by the Swap Guarantor (each as defined below).

In order to protect the Issuer against currency risk arising as a result of the Dutch Loans being denominated
in euro and the relevant Borrowers paying interest and principal in euro whilst the Notes are denominated in
sterling and the Issuer paying interest and principal on the Notes in sterling. the lssuer will enter into a
currency swap transaction with the Swap Provider whose obligations under such transaction will be
guaranteed by the Swap Guarantor.

The Issuer and the Swap Provider have agreed that. upon a downgrade of the Swap Guarantor, they will,
subject to the provisions of the Swap Agreement. enter into a collateral agreement pursuant to which the
Swap Provider may be required to transfer collateral to an account in the name of the Issuer in support of the
obligations of the Swap Provider see "Credit Structure — Swap Guarantor Downgrade Event".

The obligations of the Issuer under the Notes and to other secured parties will be secured pursuant to a deed
of charge and assignment governed by English law. The Issuer will create. inter alia, (a) an assignment by
way of security of the Loans and the Issuer's rights under the Loan Documentation and an assignment by
way of security over the Issuer's beneficial interest in the trust over the Mortgages and the Related Security
(as defined in "The Loans — The Loan Security” section). (b) an assignment by way of security of the Issuer's
rights under certain contracts entered into pursuant to this transaction, (c) an assignment by way. of security
of the Issuer's interests in the Transaction Accounts and certain other accounts in which the Issuer may place
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and hold cash and (d) a floating charge over the w
those assets that are otherwise secured by

There is no intention to accumulate any surpius in

ﬁole of the undertaking and assets of the Issuer tother than
way of al fixed security interest).

the Issuer.




Issuer

Mortgage Originators

Security Trustee

Trustee

Servicer

Special Servicer

The Parties

European Loan Conduit No. 3 plc (the "Issuer’). a pubiic
company incorporated 10 England and Wales with limited

liability under registration number 4021842

Five of the Loans were originated by Morgan Stanlev Dean
Witter Bank Limited ("MSDW Bank"). whose principal offices
are located at 25 Cabot Square. Canary Wharf. London El14 4QA.
and 11 of the Loans were originated by Morgan Stanley Dean
Witter Mortgage Capital Inc. ("MSDWMCI"). whose principal
offices are located at 1583 Broadway, New York. New York
10036, USA. The Loans originated by MSDWMCT and all rights
and obligations of MSDW MCI1 under them were subsequently
novated to MSDW Bank.

Morgan Stanley Mortgage Servicing Limited ("MSMS" or the
"Security Trustee™) holds all the security granted by each
Borrower or Mortgagor on trust (the security trust in respect of
each Borrower or Mortgagor is referred to as a "Security Trust”
and, together, the 'Security Trusts") as security for the Secured
Liabilities (as defined in the relevant Loan Documentation). The
beneficiaries of the Security Trusts were originally MSDW Bank
or MSDWMCIL. MSDWMCI assigned its interests in the Security

Trusts to MSDW Bank upon the novation of the Loans originated
by MSDWMCI to MSDW Bank.

Chase Manhattan Trustees Limited (the 'Trustee”) will act as
trustee for the holders of the Notes pursuant to a trust deed (the
"Trust Deed') to be dated on or prior to the Closing Date
between the Trustee and the Issuer.

Morgan Stanley Mortgage Servicing Limited ("MSMS" or the
"Servicer"). whose principal office 1s located at 25 Cabot Square,
Canary Wharf, London Ei4 4QA. will. pursuant to a servicing
agreement (the "Servicing Agreement") 10 be entered into on or
prior to the Closing Date between MSDW Bank. the Servicer, the
Trustee. the Issuer. the Security Trustee and the Special Servicer
(as referred to below). act as servicer in respect of the Mortgages,
the Loans and the Related Security. The services to be provided
by the Servicer include. without limitation, the collection of
payments of principal and interest under the Loans, the operation
of the agreed enforcement procedures, the transfer of Borrower
Interest Receipts, Borrower Principal Receipts and Prepayment
Fees to the Transaction Accounts and the calculation of the
amount of interest payable by the Borrowers on each Interest
Payment Date. The Servicer will. subject to the terms of the
Servicing Agreement, receive an annual fee payable quarterly in
arrear calculated at the rate of 0.10 per cent. per annum
(exclusive of VAT) on the aggregate outstanding principal
balance of the Loans (other than Specially Serviced Loans in
respect of which the Special Servicer is being paid the Special
Servicer Fee (as defined below)). '

As at the Closing Date, MSMS will act as special servicer
pursuant to the Servicing Agreement, but thereafter any person
may be appointed as Special Servicer in substitution for MSMS
pursuant to the provisions of the Servicing Agreement. The
Special Servicer will only be appointed in relation to any Loan
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Principal Paying Agent, Cash
Manager, Agent Bank and
Exchange Agent

Paying Agent and Operating Bank

Depository and Registrar

Corporate Services Provider

Swap Provider and the Swap
Agreement

Swap Guarantor

where the Interest Cover Percentage of that Loan is equal to or
less thah 110 per cent. If so appointed, the Special Servicer shall
become responsible. save for certain limited exceptions. for
servicirjg and administering the relevant Loan. Morigage and
Related| Security. The Special Servicer will, subject to the terms
of the $ervicing Agreement, receive (i) a fee in respect of each
Specialty Serviced Loan in an amount equal to 0.15 per cent. per
annum {exclusive of VAT) of the principal amount outstanding
under the Specially Serviced Loan (the "Special Servicer Fee"):
and (ii) a liquidation fee in respect of a Specially Serviced Loan
of an amount not exceeding | per cent. (exclusive of VAT) of the
proceeds (net of costs and expenses of sale). if any. arising on the
sale of ‘the Property in respect of such Specially Serviced Loan
(the "Liquidation Fee").

AIB International Financial Services Ltd (in such capacities. the
"Principal Paying Agent”, the 'Cash Manager”, the "Agent
Bank" and the "Exchange Agent”. respectively).

AIB Group (UK) ple (the "Paying Agent" and, together with the
Principal Paying Agent, the "Payving Agents" and the
"Operating Bank". respectively).

The Chjhse Manhattan Bank, New York office (in such capacities,

. the "Depository" and the "Registrar”, respectively).

SFM ¢orporate Services Limited (the "Corporate Services
Provider").

Morgant Stanley Capital Services Inc. ("MISCS" or the "Swap
Provider"), whose principal office is located at 1585 Broadway,
New York. New York 10036. USA. will enter into a swap
agreement in the form of an International Swaps and Derivatives
Association Inc.  ("ISDA™) 1992  Master  Agreement
(Multicrrency-Cross Border) dated on or prior to the Closing
Date (the "Swap Agreement"”} with the [ssuer. in order to protect
the 1ssuter against interest rate and currency risk. The [Issuer and
the Swap Provider will on or prior to the Closing Date. enter into
Swap Confirmations (the "Swap Confirmations”) evidencing the
terms d:f the swap transactions (the "Swap Transactions") t0 be
entered|into pursuant thereto in order to protect the Issuer against
interest| rate risk and currency nisk arising in respect of the Loans.
See further "Credit Structure — The Swap Agreement”. The Issuer
and thg Swap Provider have agreed. upon a downgrade of the
short-t unsecured unsubordinated debt obligations of the
Swap |Guarantor, subject to the provisions of the Swap
Agreement, to enter into a collateral agreement in the forming of
a 1995|ISDA Credit Support Annex (Bilateral Form — Transfer)
or in such other form as may be acceptable to the lssuer (the
“"Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex") pursuant to which
the Swap Provider will make transfers of collateral in support of
its obligations under the Swap Agreement. See further "Credit
Structure — Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex".

Morgan Stanley Dean Witter & Co. ("MSDW” or the "Swap
Guarantor"), whose principal office is located at 1585 Broad-
way, New York, New York 10036, USA, will pursuant to, and
subject' to the terms of, a guarantee in favour of the Issuer (the
"Swap Guarantee") guarantee all of the Swap Provider's obli-
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Liguidity Facility Provider and
Liquidity Facility Agreement

The Loan and Mortgage Pool

gations under the Swap Agreement and the Swap Transactions.

Llovds TSB Bank plc ("LTSB" or the "Liquidity - Facility
Provider’), acting through 1S Corporate and Institutional
Financial Services Division located at St. George's House, 6-8
Eastcheap. London EC3M 1AE. will act as the liquiditg.-'_fac_i!it}'
provider (the Liquidity Facility Provider”) under a hundn_\'
facility agreement (the "Liquidity Facility Agreement”) with 2
maximum aggregate principal amount of £20.000.000 to be datf:d
on or prior to the Closing Date and between the Liquidity Facility
Provider. the Issuer and the Trustee. LTSB is a wholly owned
banking subsidiary of Lloyds TSB Group plc. The Issuer will be
entitled to make drawings under the Liquidity Facility Agreement
from time to time in respect of any shortfall in Borrower Interest
Receipts in an amount equal to the difference between the
Borrower Interest Receipts actually received during a Collection
Period (as defined below) and the amount of interest receipts
scheduled to be paid ("Scheduled Interest Receipts”) on the
Loans outstanding during such Collection Period {an Tnterest
Drawing"), or to make a drawing in respect of any shortfall in
Scheduled Amortisation Funds In an amount equal to the
difference between the Scheduled Amortisation Funds actually
received during a Collection Period and the amount of scheduled
principal payments due and pavable on the Loans outstanding
during such Collection Period. to the extent such shortfall in
principal payments exceeds the sum of the Prepayment
Redemption Funds or Final Redemption Funds received during
such Collection Period ta "Principal Drawing”). In addition, the
Liquidity Facility will be available to fund Revenue Priority
Amounts pavable to a third party other than MSDW Bank which
fall due on a date other than an Interest Payment Date (an
"Expense Drawing"). See further "Credit Structure — Liguidity
Facility".

The Loans

All the Loans are full recourse obligations of the related
Borrowers and are secured by first priority mortgages. sub-
mortgages or standard securities on residential and commercial
properties of which 33 per cent. are on office properties. 31 per
cent. on residential nursing'specialist care homes. 15 per cent on
residential properties and I1 per cent. on retail properties, in each
case by property values (calculated by reference to the relevant
Condition Precedent Valuations). The Loans are secured by
Mortgages over 110 properties which are located in England and
Wales. Scotland. Ireland. Northern Ireland and the Isle of Man,
with a concentration in Central and Greater London (32 per cent.
by property value, calculated by reference to the relevant
Condition Precedent Valuations). All of the Loans were
originated by MSDWMCI or by MSDW Bank, and met in all
material respects the lending criteria applied by MSDWMCI or
by MSDW Bank. as the case may be, in advancing the Loans (the
*Lending Criteria"), subject to such variations or waivers as
would have been acceptable to a reasonably prudent lender of
money secured on residential and commercial property.

The following is a summary of certain characteristics of the Loan
and Mortgage Pool:

minimum Cut-Off Date balance £2.343,750
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Valuations

The Principal Borrowers

The Dutch Loans

Payments on the Loans

|
maxirqum Cut-Off Date balance £84.000.000

averagEF Cut-Off Date balance £15911.311
minimum Mortgage Rate 7.050%
maxin{mn Mortgage Rate 8.65%
weighted average Mortgage Rate 8.18%
minimum Cut-Off Date ICR 1.16x
maximum Cut-Off Date ICR 1.93x
weighted average Cut-Off Date ICR 1.34x
minimum Last Payment Date DSCR 1.04x
maxirréum Last Payment Date DSCR 1.58x
weighfed average Last Payment Date DSCR 1.22x
minimum Cut-Off Date LTV 64.75%
maximum Cut-Off Date LTV 80.00%
weighted average Cut-Off Date LTV 75.94%
minimum Balloon LTV 56.68%
maximum Balloon LTV 76.90%
~ weighted average Balloon LTV 66.52%

See ﬁﬁ'ther “The Loan and Mortgage Pool” below.

In relation to each Loan. prior to making the initial advance.
MSDWMCI or MSDW Bank. as the case may be, obtained an
independent valuation of the Property or Properties charged as
security therefor as a condition precedent to the making of such
advance thereunder to the relevant Borrower (each a "Condition
Precedent Valuation"). All references herein to valuations
(including LTVs and property values) shall be construed as
references to such Condition Precedent Valuations.

The Loans made to two of the Borrowers account for a
substantial proportion of the Loan and Mortgage Pool. The
Principal Borrowers are Four Seasons Properties (Care Homes)
Limitéd and Four Seasons Properties (Specialist) Limited (the
“First| Principal Borrowers”) and Orb (Lexham) Limited (the
"Secopd Principal Borrower” and. together with the First
Principal Borrowers. the Principal Borrowers"). The Loans
made [to the Principal Borrowers account for approximately 33
per cent. and 15 per cent. of the Loan and Mortgage Pool,
respedtively at the Cut-Off Date. Particulars of the Principal
Borrowers and their respective loans are given in "The Principal
Borrowers" and Appendix 1.
[

Three| of the Loans (the "Dutch Loans") have been made to three
Borrowers incorporated in the Netherlands (the "Dutch
Borrgwers"). The Dutch Loans are denominated in euro.
Particulars of the Dutch Loans and the Dutch Borrowers are
giveniin "The Dutch Loans" and Appendix 2.

As atithe Cut-Off Date, no payment had been made under seven
of the Loans; one payment had been made in April 2000 under
seven of the Loans; two payments have been made in January
and April 2000 under two of the Loans. All of the Loans were
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Representations and Warranties

The Loan Security

No Further Advances

Insurance

current as at the Cut-Off Date. The Loans are repavable at their
respective final matunity dates. subject to earlier amortisation, as
provided in each of the Loans. In addition. all of th; Loans h;\‘e
principal repayment obligations arising before their respective
final maturity date and all of the loans are prepayable. in part or
in full. on any scheduled loan payment date. subject to payment
of a Prepavment Fee.

The mortgage sale agreement (the "lortgage Sale Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Issuer will purchase the Loans and the
beneficial interests in the Security Trusts from MSDW Bank.
contains certain warranties given by MSDW Bank in relation to
the Loans and the Mortgages. including warranties in relation to
the Lending Criteria. which are summarised in "The Loans. the
Mortgages and the Related Secunty - Representations and
Warranties”. MSDW Bank will be required to repurchase any
Loans together with the Mortgages and Related Security in
respect of which there has been a matenal breach of warranty and
such breach (if capabie of remedy) has not been remedigd within
the time specified in the Mortgage Sale Agreement.

in all of the Loans, the Borrower or Mortgagor has executed a
debenture over all its assets in favour of the Security Trustee as
security for the Borrower's obligations under the Loan and other
liabilities owing from time to time to the lender (the
"Debentures"). In the case of each such Borrower. the
Debenture executed includes (or provides for the execution of)
Mortgages over the relevant Properties securing the applicable
Loan. Where the Properties are owned by the Mortgagor. the
Mortgagor has executed a separate Debenture. In respect of the
Scottish, Irish. Northern Irish and Isle of Man situated properties
supplemental mortgages or standard securities (as the case may
be} in Scottish. Irish. Northern Irish and Isle of Man form
respectively have been executed. Security for a Loan may also
include the benefit of a subordination agreement under which any
other debt of the relevant Borrower is subordinated to the lender
{a "Subordination Agreement"). a duty of care agreement from
any managing agent of the relevant Property or Properties (a
"Duty of Care Agreement”} and a charge over shares of the
relevant Borrower (a "Share Charge"). The Debentures,
Subordination Agreements. Duty of Care Agreements, Share
Charges and‘or any other security (the beneficial interest in the
trust over which is to be acquired on the Closing Date by the
Issuer) are as referred to herein as the '"Related Security". For a
description of the security arrangements in respect of the
Principal Borrowers see "The Principal Borrowers” and
Appendix 1.

None of the Loans contains an obligation upon MSDW Bank
and, therefore, the Issuer to make any further advance to a
Borrower. The Servicer is not permitted under the Servicing
Agreement to agree to an amendment of the terms of a Loan that
would require the Issuer to make a further advance to a Borrower,

Each Property is either (a) covered by a buildings insurance
policy maintained by the relevant Borrower or another person
with an appropriate insurable interest in the relevant Property or
(b) owned by a Borrower or leased to a tenant which is a Self-
Insured Entity. In the case of (a), MSMS's interest in its capacity
as Security Trustee has been noted or is in the course of being
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Starus and Form

noted] on such policy or its interest is included in the retevant
policyir under a "gencral interesr noted “provision (any such
interebt will be held on trust for the Issuer pursuant to the
Mortdage Sale Agreement). For a more detailed description of
the ijsl;rance arrangements and the risks in reiation thereto. see
“stki Factors — Insurance”.

i

‘The Notes

The £197.300.000 Class A Commercial Mortgage Backed
Floating Rate Notes due 2009 (the "Class A Notes"). the
£17.821.000 Class B Commercial Morgage Backed Floating
Rate ‘Notes due 2009 (the Class B Notes™). the £15.275.000
Class C Commercial Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due
2009 (the "Class C Notes"). the £15911.000 Class D
Commercial Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due 2009 (the
"Class D Notes”) and the £8,274.000 Class E Commercial
Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due 2009 (the Class E
Notes" and. together with the Class A Notes. the Class B Notes.
the Class C Notes and the Class D Notes. the ‘Notes") will be
constituted by the Trust Deed. The Notes of each class will rank
pari passit and rateably without any preference or priority among
themselves.

The Notes will all share the same security. but, in the event of the

- security being enforced, the Class A Notes will rank in priority 10

the Class B Notes, the Class B Notes will rank in priority to the
Class C Notes. the Ciass C Notes will rank in priority to the Class
D Notes and the Class D Notes will rank in priority to the Class E
Notes.

The Notes of each class offered and sold in the United States in
reliance on Rule 144A will initially be represented by two Rule
144A Global Notes in respect of each class. in bearer form. each
of which will be deposited with The Chase Manhattan Bank,
New, York (the 'Depository™). The Depository will register a
centificateless depository interest in respect of one of the Rule
1444 Global Notes for each class of Notes in the name of DTC

of tHe other Rule 144A Global Note in respect of each class of
Notds in the name of the Common Depositary for the account of
Eur«jclear and Clearstream. Luxembourg. The Notes of each

or itj nominee, and a certificateless depository interest in respect .

clasq offered and sold outside the United States to non-U.S.
persbns in reliance on Reg S will initially be represented by a
Reg|S Global Note in respect of such class. in bearer form, which
will |be deposited with the Depository. The Depository will issue
a ceftificated depository interest in respect of the Reg S Global
Noté of each class to the Common Depository for the account of
Eurgclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

Definitive Notes will be issued in registered form only in certain
limited circumstances (see "Terms and Conditions of the Notes —
Definitive Notes" and "Description of the Notes and the
Deplository Agreement”). So long as the Notes are held by the
Deplository in global form, the Depository will be deemed for all
purposes to be the owner of such Notes and shall be entitled to
receive all principal. premium (if any), interest and other amounts
payable in respect of the Notes but shall, for the purposes of
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Limited Recourse

Interest

forming a quorum for meetings. constitute TWo persons.

The Trust Deed contains provisions requiring the Trustee to have

recard to the interests of the holders of the Class A Notes (the
"Class A Noteholders"). the holders of the Class B Notes (the
"Class B Noteholders”). the holders of the Class C Notes (the
“"Class C Noteholders"). the holders of the Class D Notes (the
“Class D Noteholders"). and the holders of the Class E Notes
(the "Class E Noteholders” and. together with the Class A
Noteholders. the Class B Noteholders. the Class C Noteholders
and the Class D Noteholders. the "Noteholders"). but where
there is. in the Trustee's opinion. a conflict between such
interests. the Trustee shall have regard only to the interests of the
imost senior class of Notes then outstanding.

Certain Noteholders are restricted in their ability to pass
Extraordinary Resolutions. See *Terms and Conditions of the
Notes — Condition 3(g) and Condition 12"

The Notes and interest thereon will not be obligations oF
responsibilities of anv person other than the Issuer. In
particular. the Notes will not be obligations or responsibilities of.
or be guaranteed by MSDW Bank or anv associated bodv of
MSDW Bank, or of or by the Managers. the Servicer, the Special
Servicer. the Cash Manager. the Trustee. the Security Trustee,
the Corporate Services Provider. the Paving Agents, the Agent
Bank, the Registrar, the Liquidiry Facilin® Provider, the Swap
Provider, the Swap Guarantor. the Depositor. the Exchange
Agent or the Operating Bank or am company in the same group
of companies as the Managers, the Servicer, the Special Servicer,
the Cash Manager, the Trustee. the Securitv Trustee, the
Corporate Services Provider. the Paving Agents, the Agent Bank,
the Registrar. the Liquidin: Facility Provider. the Swap Provider,
the Swap Guarantor. the Depository. the Exchange Agent or the
Operating Bank and none of such persons accepls any liabiliny
wharsoever in respect of any failure by the Issuer to make
pavmet of any amonnt die on the Notes.

Claims against the Issuer by the holders of the Notes will be
limited to the Issuer Security. The proceeds of realisation of the
lssuer Security may after paying or providing for all prior-
ranking claims be less than the sums due to such holders or
certain of such holders. See "Security for the Notes" below.

Each Note will bear interest on its Principal Amount Qutstanding
(as defined in Condition 6(c)). net of the relevant proportion of
any Principal Shortfall in respect of such class of Notes, from,
and including, the Closing Date. Interest will be payable in
respect of the Notes in pounds sterling quarterly in arrear on the
25th day in January, April. July and October in each year or, if
such day is not a Business Day. the next following Business Day
(unless such Business Day falls in the next succeeding calendar
month. in which event the immediately preceding Business Day)
(each such day being an 'Interest Payment Date"). The first
Interest Payment Date in respect of each class of Notes will be
25th October, 2000,

The _ﬁrst Interest Period will commence on (and include) the
Closing Date and end on (but exclude) the first Interest Payment
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Date. Each subsequent Interest Period applicable to the Notes
will commence on (and include) an Interest Pavment Date and
end on (but exclude) the next succeeding Interest Payment Date.

Interest payments will be made subject to applicable
withholding or deduction for or on account of tax (if any),
without the Issuer being obliged to pay additional amounts in
respect of any such withholding or deduction.

The intérest rate applicable to the Notes from time to time will be
LIBOR for three-month sterling deposits (or. in the case of the
first Interest Period. the linear interpolation of three and four-
month isterling deposits) plus the Relevant Margin.  The
"Relevdnt Margin" in respect of each class of Notes will be:
Class | Relevant Margin

0.40 per cent. per annum

0.55 per cent per annum

1.15 per cent per annum

1.40 per cent. per annum

1.40 per cent per annum

mg oW

Whenever it is necessary to compute an amount of interest in
respectiof any of the Notes for any period. such interest will be
. calculated on the basis of actual days elapsed and a 365-day year.

The hdlders of the Class A Notes will only receive interest
payments after payment by the Issuer of certain costs and
expenses (see "Distributions” below). The Issuer's obligation to
pay interest on the Class B Notes will be subordinated to all
interest payments on the Class A Notes (including accrued and
deferred interest). and all its obligation to pay interest on the
Class € Notes. Class D Notes and Class E Notes will. in each
case. also be subordinated to the Issuer's obligation to pay interest
on any:and all senior-ranking classes of Notes then outstanding in
the same manner.

Failure] by the Issuer to pay interest on the Class A Notes (or the
most senior class of Notes which is still outstanding where one or
more classes of Notes has been redeemed in full) when due will
result In an Event of Default which may result in the Trustee
enforcing the Issuer Security. To the extent that funds available
to the |Issuer on any Interest Payment Date. after paying any
interest then accrued due and pavable on the most senior class of
Notes |then outstanding. are insufficient to pay in full interest
otherwiise due on any one or more classes of more junior-ranking
Notes then outstanding, the shortfall in the amount then due will
not be lpaid but will only be paid. in accordance with the order of
seniority of the affected classes of Notes, and. in the case of the
Ctlass D Notes and the Class E Notes. subject as described in the
next garagraph, on subsequent Interest Payment Dates if and
when permitted by subsequent cash flow which is available after
the Issuer's other higher priority liabilities have been discharged.
Such shortfall will accrue interest at the then rate of interest
applicable to the relevant class of Notes during the time it
remains unpaid. Such shortfall of interest and interest accrued
thereon shall be paid in priority to the current interest due on such
class or classes of Notes on each subsequent Interest Payment
Date, %but only if and to the extent that funds are available
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Principal Final Redemption

Principal Amonnt Outstanding

Mandatory Redemption in Part

Optional Redemption in Full

therefor. To the extent that funds do not become available on
subsequent Interest Payment Dates. then at final maturity or
earlier redemption of the Class B Notes. Class C Notes. Class D
Notes or Class E Notes. as the case may be. the Issuer's
obligation in respect of anv outstanding shortfall and interest
thereon will cease. See further "Terms and Conditions of the
Notes ~ Condition 16ta)".

The Issuer's obligation to pay Interest in respect of the Class D
Notes and the Class E Notes is timited. on each lnterest Payment
Date. to an amount equal to the lesser of (a) the Interest Amount
(as defined in Condition 5(d)) in respect of such class of Notes
for that Interest Payment Date. and (b) the result of () the
Available Interest Receipts in respect of such Interest Payment
Date (including. for avoidance of doubt. the amount available for
drawing by way of an Interest Drawing under the Liquidity
Facility Agreement on such Interest Payment Date) minus (i1} the
sum of all amounts payable out of Available Interest Receipts on
such Interest Payment Date in priority to the payment of interest
on such class of Notes (the amount calculated under this
paragraph (b) in respect of an Interest Payment Date being the
"Adjusted Interest Amount” for such class of Naotes on that
Interest Payment Date). No amount shall be payable by the

~ Issuer in respect of the amount, on any Interest Payment Date. by

which the Interest Amount in respect of the Class D Notes and/or
the Class E Notes, as applicable. exceeds the Adjusted Interest
Amount in respect of such class. the debt that would otherwise be
represented by such shortfall shall be extinguished, and the
affected Noteholders shall have no claim against the Issuer in
respect thereof.

Unless previously redeemed. the Notes will be redeemed at their
Principal Amount Outstanding. net of any Principal Shortfall,
together with accrued interest on the Interest Payment Date
falling in July 2009 (the "Maturity Date").

The Principal Amount Outstanding of a Note on any- date will be
its face amount less the aggregate amount of principal
repayments that have become due and pavable in respect of that
Note since the Closing Date and on or prior to such date, whether
or not paid.

Unless a Note Enforcement Notice has been served. the Notes
will be subject to mandatory redemption in part in the manner
described in "Distributions - Payments out of the Transaction
Accounts prior to Enforcement of the Notes - Available
Principal” below on each Interest Payment Date. The obligations
of the parties under the Swap Agreement will terminate
proportionally as the Notes are redeemed. See further "Terms
and Conditions of the Notes — Condition 6(5)".

The Notes will be subject to redemption in full, but not in part, at
the option of the Issuer in the following circumstances:

(a) if the Issuer satisfies the Trustee that by virtue of a change in
tax law from that in effect on the Closing Date (i) the Issuer
will be obliged to make any withholding or deduction from
payments in respect of the Notes or (ii) any amount payable
by the Borrowers in relation to any of the Loans is reduced or
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Ratings

I
i

cea$es to be receivable (whether or not actually received):

(b) if the aggregate Principal Amount Outstanding of all the
Notbs then outstanding. net of all Principal Shortfalls. is less
thaﬂ 10 per cent. of the initial Principal Amount Outstanding
of aill the Notes issued on the Closing Date: or

{c) if a! Tax Event occurs under the Swap Agreement and (i) the
Swap Provider is unable to transfer its rights and obligations
thereunder to another branch. office. affiliate or suitably
rated third party to cure the Tax Event, and (ii) the Issuer is
unable to find a replacement swap provider (the Issuer being
obliged to use its best efforts to find a replacement swap

provider),

provided further that in each case the Issuer has centified to the
Trustee :that it will have sufficient funds available to it on such
Interest ‘Payment Date to discharge all of its liabilities in respect
of the Notes and any amounts required under the Deed of Charge
and Assignment to be paid in priority to. or pari passu with. the
Notes an such Interest Payment Date, all in accordance with
"Distributions — Payments out of the Transaction Accounts Prior
to Enforcement of the Notes" below. See further "Terms and
Conditions of the Notes — Conditions 6/c). 6(d) and &/e)".

lf a shortfall in the amount owing in respect of interest on the

Class D Notes or the Class E Notes or principal of the Notes
of any ¢lass exists on the Maturity Date or on the date of any
earlier redemption in full of the Notes of any class, after
payment on the Maturity Date or such earlier date of
redemption of all other claims ranking in priority to the
Notes or the relevant class of Notes, and the Issuer Security
has not! become enforceable as at the Maturity Date or such
earlier date of redemption. the liability of the Issuer to make
any payment in respect of such shortfall shall cease and all
claims m respect of such shortfall shall be extinguished.

The Nofes are. upon issue. expected to be rated by the Rating
Agencylas follows:

Class  Expected Rating

A AAA
B AA
C A

D BBB
E BB

A securiity rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securities and may be subject to revision, suspension or
withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.

The ratings of the Notes are dependent upon, among other things,
the shoft term unsecured. unsubordinated debt ratings of the
Liqmdlry Facility Provider and the Swap Guarantor,
Consequently, a downgrade, withdrawal or qualification of any
such rating by the Rating Agency may have an adverse effect on
the ratings of the Notes.
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Sales Restrictions

Listing and Trading

Settlement

Governing Law

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the
United States Secunties A<t of 1933. as amended (the
"Securities Act"). or any stale securities law and unless so
registered mayv not be offered or sold within the United States or
to. or for the benefit of. U.S. persons (as defined in Regulation S
under the Securities Act) except pursuant 1o an exemption from.
or in a transaction not subject to. the registration requirements of
the Securities Act and the applicable state laws. Accordingly. the
Notes are being offered and sold only to (A) "Qualified
Institutional Buvers” (as defined 1n Rule 144A under the
Securities Act} and {B) persons (other than L.S. persons) outside
the United States pursuant to Regulation S under the Securities
Act. For a description of certain restrictions on resales or
transfers see "Transfer Restrictions”.

Application has been made to the UK Listing Authority for the
Notes to be admitted to the Official List. Application has also
been made to the London Stock Exchange for the Notes to be
admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange.

DTC. Clearstream. Luxembourg and Euroclear.

The Notes and the Trust Deed will be governed by English law.

Available Funds and their Priority of Application

Funds paid info the Transaction
Accounts

The payment of principal and interest by Borrowers under the
Loans wilt provide the principal source of funds for the lssuer to
make repayments of principal and payments of interest in respect
of the Notes.

On each payment date under the Loans teach 2 '"Loan Payment
Date"). the Servicer is required to transfer from each Bomrower's
Rent Account to the applicable Transaction Account all payments
made by such Borrower in respect of interest. principal and fees
and other amounts due under the Loans. Amounts standing to the
credit of the Transaction Accounts from time to ime are referable
1o the following sources:

(a) "Borrower Interest Receipts”. comprising all payments of
interest. fees (other than Prepayment Fees). breakage costs.
expenses. commissions and other sums paid by Borrowers in
respect of the Loans, the Mortgages or the Related Security
{other than any payment in respect of principal) inctuding
recoveries in respect of such amounts on enforcement of a
Loan. a Mortgage or Related Secunty:

(b) "Scheduled Amortisation”. comprising all principal received
or recovered in respect of the Loans, Mortgages and Related
Security other than Prepayments and Final Repayments;

(c) "Prepayments”,  comprising  all  principal  payments
{excluding any Prepayment Fees) received as a-result of any
prepayment in part or in full prior to final maturity of the
relevant Loan including any prepayment which results from
Principal Recoveries.

(d) "Final Repavments", comprising all principal payments
received as a result of the repayment in full of 2 Loan upon
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Payments out of the Swap Collateral
Cash Acconnt and the Swap Collateral
Custody Account prior to Enforcement
of the Notes

Payments out of the Transaction
Accounts prior to Enforcement of the
Notes

{a} Priority Amounts

its final maturity date including any repayment which results
from Principal Recoveries: and
|

(e) "Prdpavment Fees". comprising all fees and costs {except for
breakage costs) received as a result of any prepayment
desdribed in paragraph (c) above. including any such fees
arising from a prepayment which results from Principal
Recoveries. together with any breakage costs received from
the .Swap Provider as a result of any such prepayment
(together, the 'Prepayment Fees"). Prepayment Fees shall
not :be included in the calculation of Borrower Interest
Receipts at any time. Prepayment Fees received during any
Collection Period (collectively. the 'Prepayment Amount”
in respect of that Collection Period) shall be paid to MSDW
Bank (or, in the event that the right to the Prepayment Fees
has been assigned to a third party, to the person then entitled
to the Prepayment Fees) on the immediately following
Interest Payment Date as a component of the Deferred
Consideration then payable.

If the Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex is entered into and
the Swap Collateral Cash Account and the Swap Collateral
Custody Account opened. the Cash Manager will pay to the Swap
Providet amounts equal to any amounts of interest on the credit
balance! of the Swap Collateral Cash Account and/or amounts
equivalent to distributions received on securities held in the Swap
Collateral Custody Account as well as any other payments
required to be made by the Issuer in accordance with the terms of
the Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex in priority to any
other payment obligations of the Issuer.

The Cafsh Manager mav make the following payments out of the
accounth of the Issuer in priority to all other amounts required to
be paid by the Issuer:

(i) out| of Borrower Interest Receipts. and where Borrower
Intgrest Receipts are insufficient out of Borrower Principal
Regeipts (as defined below). sums due to third parties (other
thah the Servicer. the Special Servicer, the Liquidity Facility
Provider, the Swap Provider. MSDW Bank, the Cash
Manager, the Corporate Services Provider. the Principal
Paying Agent, the Paying Agent, the Agent Bank, the
Ex¢change Agent, the Depository or the Operating Bank)
including the Issuer's liability. if any. to corporation tax
and/or value added tax, on a date other than an Interest
Payment Date under obligations incurred in the course of the
Issper's business, including costs, expenses, fees and
indemnity claims due and payable to any receiver appointed
by ior on behalf of the Security Trustee in respect of a Loan, a
Mortgage or its Related Security,

{ii) out of Borrower Interest Receipts when due any amount of
interest payable by the Issuer to MSDW Bank pursuant to the
Mortgage Sale Agreement (such amounts, together with any
ammounts described in item (i), being "Revenue Priority
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(b) Available Interest Receipts

Amounts"); and

(iii} out of Borrower Principal Receipts when due anyv. amount of
principal payable by the lssuer to MSDW Bank pursuant to
the Mortgage Sale Agreement ("Principal  Priority

Amounts”).

Revenue Priority Amounts and or Principal Priority Amounts
payable to MSDW Bank are either (A) amounts that accrued
under the Loans prior to the C losing Date. which do not belong to
the Issuer: and or (B} where there has been a breach of warranty
under a Loan and MSDW Bank has consequently repurchased the
relevant Loan, any monegys subsequentiy received by the Issuer in
respect of that Loan which do not belong to the Issuer.

On each Interest Payment Date prior to the service of a Note
Enforcement Notice. (i) all sterling Borrower Interest Receipts
transferred by the Servicer into the sterling Transaction Account
during the Collection Period ended immediately before such
Interest Pavment Date. net of any Bomrower Interest Receipts
applied during such Collection Period in payment of any of the
amounts referred to in "Priority Amounts” above: (i) any
pavments received by the fssuer under the Swap Transactions or
the Swap Guarantee other than those relating to principal
payments on the three Dutch Loans and other than any amounts
received by the Issuer by way of collateral pursuant to the Swap
Agreement Credit Support Annex: (iii) an amount equal to the
Liguidation Fee. if any. payable on such Interest Payment Date:
(iv} the proceeds of any Interest Drawing made under the
Liquidity Facility Agreement in respect of such Interest Payment
Date: and (v) in the case of the first Interest Pavment Date only.
and for the purposes of repayment of principal on the Class E
Notes only pursuant to paragraph (viii) below. £19 (being the
amount by which the aggregate Principal Amount Outstanding on
the Notes on the Closing Date exceeds the aggregate principal
amount outstanding on the Loans as at the Cut-Off Date), (such
amounts being. collectively. the "Available Interest Receipts”.
in respect of such Interest Payment Date. and as determined by
the Cash Manager on the basis of. infer afia. information
provided by the Servicer) will be applied in the following order
of priority (in each case. only if and to the extent that the
pavments and provisions of a higher priority have been made in
full). all as more fully set out in the Deed of Charge and
Asstgnment:

(i) in payment or discharge by or towards any amounts due and
payable by the Issuer on such Interest Payment Date to (A)
the Trustee. the Security Trustee and any receiver appointed
under a Loan. a Mongage or its Related Security, pari
passit; then (B) the Paying Agents and the Agent Bank
under the Agency Agreement: then (C) until the date on
which the aggregate Principal Amount Outstanding, net of
Principal Shortfalls, of the Notes as at such interest Payment
Date. and after providing for all amounts to be applied in
redemption of the Notes or any class thereof on such Interest
Payment Date. is less than 10 per cent. of the aggregate
Principal Amount Outstanding of the Notes on the Closing
Date to the Servicer and/or any substitute servicer in respect
of the Servicing Fee under the Servicing Agreement; and to
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(ii}

(i)

{iv)

(v)

the Special Servicer. pari pass. in respect of the Special
Servicing Fee and any Liquidation Fee. if any. then payable:
then (D) the Cash Manager under the Cash Managemem
Agreement: then (E) the Corporate Services Provider under
the. Issuer Corporate Services Agreement. then (F) the
Operating Bank under the Cash Management Agreement.
then (G) amounts due to the Depository under the
Depository Agreement: then (H) the Exchange Agent under
the, Exchange Rate Agency Agreement: then () the Swap
Pravider under the Swap Agreement in respect of fees, costs
and expenses including. without limitation. breakage costs:
and then (J) the Liquidity Facility Provider under the
Liquidity Facility Agreement in respect of any drawings
(other than any principal amount of any Principal Drawings)
made by the Issuer under the Liquidity Facility Agreement
and the commitment fee (except to the extent that the
commitment fee has been increased pursuant to the
imposition of increased costs on the Liquidity Facility
Provider). and any Mandatory Costs (as defined in the
Master Definitions Agreement) up to a maximum aggregate
amount of 0.125 per cent. per annum as provided in the
Liquidity Facility Agreement:

in ipayment or discharge to or towards sums due to third
patties (other than any third party described in item (i) of
“Priority Amounts" above) under obligations incurred in the
course of the Issuer's business. including provision for any
such obligations expected to come due in the following
Interest Period and the payment of the issuer's liability (if
any) to value added tax and to corporation tax:

{A) in payment or discharge to or towards interest due and,
to.the extent that Available Interest Receipts are received in
respect of interest due on the Loans in a Collection Period
occurring prior to the Interest Payment Date. other than the
Collection Period ended immediately prior to the Interest
Pgyment Date. interest overdue (and any interest due on
such overdue interest) on the Class A Notes and (B)
payment or discharge of any Deferred Consideration
payable to MSDW Bank or the person or persons otherwise
entitled thereto. to the extent payable out of excess
Abailable Interest Receipts (see "The Loans. The Mortgages
arld The Related Security — Acquisition — Mortgage Sale
Apreement”).

in[ payment or discharge to or towards interest due and. to
the extent that Available Interest Receipts are received in
pect of interest due on the Loans in a Collection Period
curring prior to the Interest Payment Date, other than the
Collection Period ended immediately prior to the Interest
Payment Date. interest overdue (and any interest due on
such overdue interest) on the Class B Notes;

irf payment or discharge to or towards interest due and, to
tHe extent that Available Interest Receipts are received in
rgspect of interest due on the Loans in a Collection Period
otcurring prior to the Interest Payment Date, other than the
Clollection Period ended immediately prior to the Interest
Payment Date, interest overdue (and any interest due on
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{c} Available Principal

such overdue interest) on the Class C Notes:

(vi) in payment or discharge to or towards interest due and. to the
extent that Available Interest Receipts are received in respect
of interest due on the Loans in a Collection Period occurmng

prior to the Interest Pavment Date. other than the Collection .

Period ended immediately prior to the Interest Pavment Date.
interest overdue (and any interest due on such overdue
interest) on the Class D Notes:

(vii)in payment or discharge to or towards interest due and. to the
extent that Available Interest Receipts are received 1in
respect of interest due on the Loans in a Collection Period
occurring prior to the Interest Payment Date other than that
period immediately prior to the Interest Payment Date.
interest overdue (and any interest due on such overdue
interest) on the Class E Notes:

(viii)in redemption in part of the Class E Notes in an amount
equal to the sum of (1) the lower of (a) the excess of
Available Interest Receipts over the Priority Revenue
Payments (as defined in Condition 6(h)) then pavable, and
(b) the amount equal to (i) the product of (x) 0.375 per cent
and (y) the aggregate Principal Amount Qutstanding of the
Notes as at the Closing Date minus (ii) the aggregate
principal amount of the Class E Notes redeemed on any
preceding Interest Payment Date pursuant to the Class E
mandatory partial redemption provisions set out in
Condition 6(#) plus (2) in the case of the first Interest
Pavment Date only. £19

(ix) to or towards any amounts in respect of any Mandatory
Costs due to the Liquiditv Facility Provider under the
Liquidity Facility in excess of those amounts referred to
under item (i)(J) above and any additional amounts payable
to the Liquidity Facility Provider in respect of withholding
taxes or increased costs as a result of a change in law or
regulation. including. without limitation. any increase in the
commitment fee pavable to the Liquidity Facility Provider
as a result of the imposition of increased costs;

(x) if. on such Interest Pavment Date. the aggregate Principal
Amount Outstanding (net of any Principal Shortfalls under
the Notes and after providing for all amounts to be applied
in redemption of the Notes or any class thereof on such
Interest Paymemt Date) is less than 10 per cent. of the
aggregate Principal Amount Outstanding of the Notes on the
Closing Date to or towards payment of the Servicing Fee;
and

(xi) any surplus to the Issuer.

On each Calculation Date, the Cash Manager shall calculate, on
the basis of information provided to it by the Servicer, and on the
basis of the amounts that will be payable under the currency swap
transactions (the 'Currency Swap Transactions”) on the next
Interest Payment Date in respect of principal on the Dutch Loans,
the Available Scheduled Amortisation Funds, Available
Prepayment Redemption Funds and Available Final Redemption
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Funds in respect of the Collection Period then ended. For these
purposes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

"ScLeduled Amortisation Funds” on any Calculation Date
medns the amount which is the aggregate of all principal
recdl\ ed or recovered by or on behalf of the Issuer in respect
of the Loans andror the Morgages andor the Related
Security. other than any Prepayvment Redemption Funds or
Final Redemption Funds (each as defined below) during the
Collection Period then ended. all insurance proceeds relating
to principal received by or on behalf of the lIssuer during
such Collection Period other than those required to be paid to
the relevant Borrower or used to reinstate the relevant
Pro erty and purchase moneys paid to the Issuer (other than
in fespect of accrued interest) on repurchase or purchase of
any| Loans and Morgages pursuant to the terms of the
Mortgage Sale Agreement during such the Collection Period.
and "Available Scheduled Amortisation Funds" means. in
respect of any Calculation Date. the Scheduled Amortisation
Funds in respect of the Collection Period then ended. the
aggregate principal amount available for drawing under the
Liguidity Facility Agreement in respect of principal
instalments due under the Loans during the Coliection Period
ended on such Calculation Date and unpaid (to the extent
such shortfall exceeds Prepayment Redemption Funds and
Final Redemption Funds received during such Collection
Period). less the aggregate amount of Scheduled
Amortisation Funds applied by the Issuer in respect of any
Priﬁcipal Priority Amounts and Revenue Priority Amounts
during that Collection Pertod:

"Prepayment Redemption Funds" means the aggregate net
amount of principal payments received or recovered by or on
behialf of the Issuer in respect of the Loans and/or Mortgages
in any Collection Period as a result of any prepayment in part
or in full made by such Borrowers pursuant to the terms of
the: relevant Loan including any prepayment which results
from Principal Recoveries, and "Available Prepayment
Redemption Funds" means. in respect of any Calculation
Date. the Prepavinent Redemption Funds received or
recpvered by or on behalf of the Issuer during the Collection
Perjod then ended less the aggregate amount of Prepayment
Redemption Funds applied by the Issuer in respect of any
Principal Priority Amounts and Revenue Priority Amounts
du$ng that Collection Period: and

"FiLal Redemption Funds" means the aggregate net amount
of principal payments received or recovered by or on behalf
of the Issuer in respect of the Loans and/or the Mortgages in
any Collection Period as a result of the repayment in full of
the| relevant Loan upon its scheduled final maturity date
1nckud1ng any repayment which results from Principal
Red:ovenes and “Available Final Redemption Funds™”
me!ms in respect of any Calculation Date, the Final
Redemptlon Funds received by or on behalf of the Issuer
dumng the Collection Period then ended less the aggregate
ambunt of Final Redemption Funds applied by the Issuer in
“t)ect of Principal Pricrity Amounts and Revenue Priority
Amounts during that Collection Period and any amount to be
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transferred to Available Interest Receipts on the Interest
Pavment Date immediately following such Calculanion Date
for the purposes of paving Liquidation Fees. if any. pavable
on that Interest Payment Date.

but in each case. oniy to the extent that such monevs have not
been taken into account in the calculation of Available Scheduled
Amortisation Funds. Available Prepayment Funds or Available
Final Redemption Funds. as applicable. on any preceding
Calculation Date.  The Scheduled Amortisation Funds. the
Prepavment Redemption Funds and the Final Redemption Funds
are collectively referred to as "Borrower Principal Receipts”.
The Available Scheduled Amortisation Funds. Available
Prepayment Redemption Funds and Available Final Redemption
Funds calculated on each Calculation Date are collectively
referred to as the "Available Principal” for the purposes of the
Interest Payment Date immediately following such Calculation
Date.

On each Interest Payment Date. Available Principal will be
applied in the following order of priority (in each case only if and
to the extent that the payments and provisions of a higher priority
have been made in full). all as more fully set out in the Deed of

Charge and Assignment:

(i) first. in repaying or paying any amounts due or overdue
under each Loan individually in respect of. and in the
following order of priority: (A) any payments of breakage
costs payable by the Issuer in respect of any Swap
Transaction associated with that Loan and then (B) Principal
Drawings. excluding interest due and unpaid thereon. under
the Liquidity Facility Agreement:

{ii) secondly. in repaving principal on the Class A Notes until
all the Class A Notes have been redeemed in fuil and then in
paying any amounts outstanding in respect of the A
Principal Shortfall Ledger:

(iii) thirdly. in repaying principal on the Class B Notes until all
the Class B Notes have been redeemed in full and then in
paving any amounts outstanding in respect of the B
Principal Shortfall Ledger:

(iv) fourthly. in repaying principal on the Class C Notes until all
the Class C Notes have been redeemed in full and then in
paying any amounts outstanding in respect of the C
Principal Shortfall Ledger:

(v) fifthly, in repaying principal on the Class D Notes until all
of the Class D Notes have been redeemed in full and then in
paying any amounts outstanding in respect of the D
Principal Shortfall Ledger: and

(vi) sixthly. in repaying principal on the Class E Notes until all
of the Class E Notes have been redeemed in full and then in
paying any amounts outstanding in respect of the E
Principal Shortfall Ledger; and
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Payments paid out of the Transaction
Accounts Post-Enforcement of the

Notes

(vii) seventhly. in paying that component of the Deferred
Consideration. if any. that comprises any excess Available
Prihcipal. See "The Loans. The Mortgages and The Related
Sefurity — Acquisition — Morigage Sale Agreement”.

See "Tems and Conditions of the Notes — Condition 6rb)".

The Issher will not be required to accumulate surplus assets as
security| for any future pavments of interest or principal on the
Notes. | Any temporary liquidity surpluses in the Transaction
Accounts shall be invested in Eligible Investments.

The 1sskter Security wiil become enforceable upon the Trusiee
giving # Note Enforcement Notice. Following enforcement of
the Issukr Security. the Trustee will be required to apply all funds
received or recovered by it in accordance with the order of
priority! described under "Credit Structure — Post-Enforcement
Priority of Payments".

Security for the Notes

The obligations of the Issuer under the Notes and to each of the
Trustee, the Security Trustee. the Corporate Services Provider.
the Sefvicer. the Special Servicer. the Cash Manager, the
Liquidity Facility Provider. the Swap Provider. the Paying
_Agents] the Agent Bank. the Operating Bank. the Depository, the
ExchanEe Agent and MSDW Bank (all of such entities being,
collectively. the "Secured Parties”) will be secured by and
pursuarit to a deed of charge and assignment (the "Deed of
Chargé and Assignment”) governed by English law to be
entered into on the Closing Date.

The lssuer will create. inter alia. the following security under the
Deed of Charge and Assignment (the "Issuer Security").
|

(i} anjassignment by way of security over the Loans and the
Issher's rights under the Loan Documentation and an
asfignment by way of security over its beneficial interest in
thd Security Trusts created over the Morigages and the
Related Security;

(ii) an|assignment by way of security over the Related Security
not otherwise assigned by way of security under (i) above;

(iii} an|assignment by way of security of the Issuer's rights under,
in}('r alia, the Mortgage Sale Agreement, the Servicing

Agreement, the Issuer Corporate Services Agreement, the
Cdsh Management Agreement. the Agency Agreement, the
Liquidity Facility Agreement. the Swap Agreement {subject
to|netting and set-off provisions contained therein), the Swap
Guarantee, the Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex (if
a when executed). the Depository Agreement, the
Exchange Rate Agency Agreement and the Master
Definitions Agreement:

t
(iv) an assignment by way of security of the Issuer’s interests in
thé Transaction Accounts. the Swap Collateral Cash Account
(if and when opened). the Swap Collateral Custody Account,
anid any other bank account in which the Issuer may place
and hold its cash resources, and of the funds from time to
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time standing to the credit of such accounts: and

(v} a floating charge governed by English faw over the whole of
the undertaking and assets of the lIssucr (other than am
property or assets of the Issuer subject to the fixed charges
set out in paragraphs (i) to (v} above but extending over all
Scottish assets).

Upon enforcement of the lssuer Security. the amounts payable to

the Secured Parties will rank in priority to payments of interest or

principal on the Class A Notes. except for amounts owed to

MSDW Bank under the Mongage Sale Agreement and in the

case of the Special Servicer and the Liquidity Facility Provider.

any amounts due to them as described in items (vi) and (v,

respectively of "Credit Structure — Post-Enforcement Priority of

Payments”". Upon enforcement of the Issuer Security, all

amounts owing to the Class B Noteholders will rank after all

payments on the Class A Notes. All amounts owing to the

Class C Noteholders will rank after all payments on the Class

B Notes. All amounts owing to the Class D Noteholders will

rank after all payments on the Class C Notes. All amounts

owing to the Class E Noteholders will rank after all payments
on the Class D Neotes,

If the net proceeds of realisation of, or enforcement with
respect to, the lssuer Security are not sufficient to make all
pavments due in respect of the Notes, the other assets (if any)
of the Issuer will not be available for payment of any
shortfall arising therefrom (which shall be borne in
accordance with the provisions of the Deed of Charge and
Assignment). All claims in respect of such shertfall, after
realisation of or enforcement with respect to all of the Issuer
Security. shall be extinguished and the Trustee, the
Noteholders and the Secured Parties shall have no further
claim against the Issuer in respect of such unpaid amounts.
Each Noteholder. by subscribing for or purchasing Notes. is
deemed to accept and acknowledge that it is fully aware that,
except as set out above. (i) in the event of an enforcement of
the Issuer Security, its right to obtain payment of interest and
repayment of principal on the Notes in full is limited to
recourse against the assets of the Issuer comprised in the
Issuer Security, (ii) the Issuer will have duly and entirely
fulfilled its repayment obligation by making available to the
Noteholder its relevant proportion of the proceeds of
realisation of, or enforcement with respect to, the Issuer
Security in accordance with the Deed of Charge and
Assignment, and all claims in respect of such shortfall shall
be extinguished. and (iii) if a shortfall in the amount owing in
respect of interest on the Class D Notes or the Class E Notes
or principal of the Notes of any class exists on the Maturity
Date or on the date of any earlier redemption in full of the
Notes of any class, after payment on the Maturity Date or
such earlier date of redemption of all other claims ranking in
priority to the Notes or the relevant class of Notes, and the
Issuer Security has not become enforceable as at the Maturity
Date or such earlier date of redemption, the liability of the
Issuer to make any pavment in respect of such shortfall shall
cease and all claims in respect of such shortfall shall be
extinguished.
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|
RISK| FACTORS

The following is a summary of certain issues i@f which prespective Noreholders St’!ﬂ{n‘ld h.e aware. hut it
is not intended to be exhaustive and prospective Noteholders should also read the deta:_le.d information set
oul elsewhere in this document. Some of the fssues set oul in this section are mitigated by certain
representations and warranties which MSDW Bank will provide in the Morigage .‘.Fale Agreement in
relation 10 the Loans, the Mortgages. the Properties and other associated matiers (see further "The Loans.
the Morigages and the Related Securin’ - Represeénarions and Warranties").
Liability under the Notes
The Notes and interest thereon will not be obligations or responsibilities of any person other than the
|ssuer. In particular. the Notes will not be oblightions or responsibilities of. or be guaranteed.by MSPW
Bank or any associated body of MSDW Bank. orjof or by the Managers. the Servicer. the Special Servicer.
the Cash Manager. the Trustee. the Security Trustee, the Corporate Services Provider, the Paying Agents,
the Agent Bank. the Registrar. the Liquidity Facility Provider. the Swap Provider. the Swap Guarantor. fhe
Depository. the Exchange Agent or the Operating Bank or any company in the same group of companies
as the Managers. the Servicer. the Special Servicer, the Cash Manager. the Trustee. the Security Trustee,
the Corporate Services Provider, the Paying Agents, the Agent Bank. the Registrar. the Liquidity Facility
Provider. the Swap Provider, the Swap CGuarantor. the Depository. the Exchange Agent of the Operating
Bank and none of such persons accepts any liability whatsoever in respect of any failure by the Issuer to
make pavment of any amount due on the Notes.
[
Limited recourse ?
On enforcement of the security for the Notes. the Trustee and the Noteholders will only have recourse
1o the Loans. the Mortgages and the Related Seclurity and the remaining Issuer Security. In the event that
the proceeds of such enforcement are insufficierit (after payment of all other claims ranking in priority to
or pari passu with amounts due under the Notes), then the Issuer's obligation to pay such amounts will
cease and the Noteholders will have no further claim against the Issuer in respect of such unpaid amounts.
Enforcement of the Deed of Charge and Assignment is the only remedy available for the purpose of
recovering amounts owed in respect of the Notes.

The Issuer and the Trustee will have no rediourse to MSDW Bank save as provided in the Mortgage
Sale Agreement (see further "The Loans, the Mortgages and the Related Security - Representations and
Warranties™ ). i

|
The Issuer’s ability to meet its obligations undler the Notes — default by Borrowers

The ability of the Issuer to meet its obligations under the Notes will be dependent on the receipt by it
of funds from the Borrowers under the Loans. the Mortgages. the Related Security and. where applicable.
payments under the Swap Agreement. If. on default by the Borrowers and following the exercise by the
Servicer and Special Servicer of all available femedies in respect of the Loans. the Mortgages and the
Related Security, the Issuer does not receive the full amount due from those Borrowers. then Noteholders
(or the holders of certain classes of Notes) may teceive by way of principal repayment an amount less than
the face value of their Notes and the Issuer may be unable to pay in full interest due on the Notes.

Each Loan contains provisions requiring the relevant Borrower to make a substantial repayment of
principal on the final maturity date of the relevant Loan. The Borrower's ability to repay on final maturity
may be dependent upon its ability to refinance its Loan or to sell the Property financed by that Loan.
Neither the Issuer nor MSDW Bank is under arfly obligation to provide any such refinancing and there can
be no assurance that a Borrower would be able to refinance its Loan or sell its Property.

Failure by a Borrower to refinance the relevant Loan at final maturity may result in the relevant
Borrower defaulting on such Loan. In the event of such a default. the Noteholders, or the holders of
certain classes of Notes, may receive by way of principal repayment an amount tess than the face value of
their Notes and the Issuer may be unable to paylin full interest due on the Notes.

i
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The Issuer's ability to meet its obligations under the Notes - the Properties

The Loans are secured by Mortgages OVEr various income-producing commercial or residential
properties. and repavment of each Loan and the payment of interest on each Loan is r_vpicail}' depcnde_m on
the abilitv of the applicable property produce cash flow. However. the income-producing capacity of
the Properties may be adversely affected by a large number of factors. Some of these factors relate 10 the
Property itself. such as: (i) the age. design and construction quality of the Property: (il) perceptions
regarding the safety. convenience and attractiveness of the Property: (iii) the proximity and attractiveness
ofbcompeting properties: (iv) the adequacy of the Property's management and mainenance: (V) increases in
operating expenses: (Vi) an increase in the capital expenditures needed to maimain the Property or make
improvements: (vii) a decline in the financial condition of a major tenant: (Viii} an increase in vacaney
rates: (ix) a decline in rental rates as leases ar¢ renewed or entered into with new 1enants: (x) the length ot

tenant leases: and (xi) the creditworthiness of tenants.

Other factors are more general in nature. such as: (i) national. regional or local economic conditions
(including plant closures. industry slowdowns and unemployment rates): (i} local property conditions
from time to time (such as an oversupply or under supply of retail space or office space). (iil) demographic
factors: {iv) consumer confidence: (v) consumer tastes and preferences: (vi) retrospective changes in
building codes or other regulatory changes: (vii) changes in governmental regulations. fiscal policy.
planning zoning or tax laws: {viii) potential environmental legislation or liabilities or other legal liabilities:
(ix) the availability of refinancing: and (x) changes in interest rate levels or vields required by investors in
income-producing residential and commercial properties.

In particular. a decline in the property market or in the financial condition of a major tenant will tend
to have a more immediate effect on the net operating income of properties with short-term revenue sources
and may lead to higher rates of delinquency or defaults.

Any one or more of the above described factors could operate to have an adverse effect on the income
derived from. or able to be generated by, a particular property. which could in tum cause the relevant
Borrower in respect of such Property to default on its Loan.

First Principal Borrowers
As set out in Appendix 1

In relation to the Loans to the First Principal Borrowers investors should note in particular the
following 1ssues:

Structire

All of the properties charged as security for the loans to these borrowers are let on 25 year leases to
one of four associated operating companies ("Operating Companies™) who operate the nursing/ residential
care home business from the property. The Operating Companies are dependent upon such business to
generate income with which to pay rent to these Borrowers. which rent is used to make interest and
amortisation payments due under the Loans. The ability of the Operating Companies to generate such
income may be influenced by some or all of the following factors.

Public Sector Funding

A sourcelof the income of the Operating Companies is derived from state-funded sources, principally
Local Authorities. Such Authorities have cash-limited budgets which affects the scope of services they can
offer.

Demography

D'emand‘for long term care is expected to decline slightly between 2001 and 2004 as a result of the
drop in the birth rate which coincided with the First World War.
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Capacity and Demand

Private care home capacity increased at a higher rate than demand during the first four vears after
community care reforms were introduced in 1993.iAs a result. industry average occupancy rates decreased.
In the last two years. private care home capacity has dropped and occupancy rates have stabilised.

Government Policy

The recent Government White Paper “Modernising Social Services” states that national care standards
will be developed. The proposed new physical standards are unlikely to have an adverse impact on the
business of the Operating companies as they arel proposed to be set at a level below that at which the
Operating Companies currently operate. :

Employment Costs

The introduction of the national minimum wiage has increased costs to the independent nursing and
residential home sector. The Operating Companies consider the impact of this minimal. however.

Sraff

The care home industry currently faces challenges in recruiting and retaining qualified staff as a result
of the shortage of nurses. This is being counteredito some extent by government initiatives to increase the
number of voung people entering nursing training|and to encourage trained nurses who have left nursing to
retum and also by the recruitment of nurses froin abroad. The likelihood of pay increases for qualified
nursing staff increasing by a rate significantly above inflation has been reduced by the recent pay increases
awarded to NHS staff. which have already had a c!onsequential effect on nursing home pay rates.

Strategy

The Operating Companies operate both latge and small homes throughout the United Kingdom
{except Wales) and the Isle of Man. The majority of these are general residential care homes. but some
offer more specialised care. The effect of one or more of the above factors occurring in one particular area
or region is reduced by the geographical spread of the properties (though there is a concentration of risk
with the three specialist care homes that are in the same geographical area). and the ability of the Operating
Companies to apply additional or surplus income deriving from one property to reduce a shortfall from
another. i

The Issuer's ability to meet its obligations undér the Notes - the tenants

A Borrower's ability to make its payments ynder a Loan may also be dependent on payments being
made by the tenamts of the relevant Property. ere the Borrower or Mortgagor landlord is in default of
its obligations under a tenancy a right of set-off could be exercised against the Borrower or Mortgagor
landlord by a tenant of the Property in respect of| its rental obligations. The terms of many of the Leases,
however. specifically exclude such tenants right of set-off. In respect of a multi-tenanted Property, a
Borrower or Mortgagor landlord would normally] be obliged to provide services in respect of the Property
irrespective of whether certain parts of the Property are unlet. The Borrower or Mortgagor landlord, in
such circumstances. would have to meet any shprtfall in recovering the costs of the services or risk the
tenants exercising any right of set-off. Tenants'|rights of set-off and similar equities. which accrue until
such time as the Issuer or the Trustee takes possession following enforcement, will also be binding on the
Issuer and the Trustee as mortgagees (the term "mortgagee” includes a heritable creditor in Scotland
throughout this document) following the Clc»singl ate.

In order to ensure that it receives rent paymdnts from the tenants, MSDW Bank (references to MSDW
Bank should be taken to include reference tol MSDWMCI in relation to those Loans originated by
MSDWMCI) has structured the Loans so thaf rent payments are made, either directly or through a
managing agent account or other account into Rent Accounts charged to the Security Trustee for MSDW
Bank and controlled by MSMS (in its capacity:as Security Trustee). Each Borrower or Mortgagor has
agreed not to countermand or vary the instructions as to rent payments. In the case of Loans in respect of
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which no Managing Agent has been appointed. tenants have been notified that payments are to be made

into an account charged to the Security Trustee for MSDW Bank. However. for business reasons. where 3
Managing Agent is appointed tenants are not advised of the existence of the Rent Accounts. and MSDW
Bank relies upon the Managing Agent to collect rents and ensure that they are credited to the Rent

Accounts.

Following the Closing Date. in relation to those Loans where tenants are not required to mak; rent
pavmemns dirgctiy into Rent Accounts (i.e. those where 2 Managing Agent collects t_he rent and pays 1t 1nto
the Rent Accounts). there may be a risk of a Borrower or Mortgagor. in breach of its Loan and Mortgage.
chareing or assigning the rents 1o a third party. Under English. Scots and Northern Irish law. the night to
rece;\-‘ebrem payments passes lo a morigagee (including the Security Trustee and the Trustee) on
enforcement of the mortgage without the need for any express assignment. and therefore the claim of the
Securitv Trustee or the Trustee under its Mortgage would. as a matter of legal priority. defeat any claim by
a subse'quem chargee or assignee of the rent. There would. however. be no claim against a tenant who had
responded to mnotice of the wrongful assignment by paving rent to a third party in ignorance of the
Morigage. Under Isle of Man law. it would be necessary to appoint a receiver.

With regard to the Irish Properties. the Irish Mortgages in and of themselves do not effect an
assignment of the rents until notice of the assignment is served on the tenani. However. notices of
assiunments have been served on all the tenants of the Irish Properties.

The purchase of the Loans and of the beneficial interests in the Security Trusts created over the
Mortgages and Related Security has been structured in an attempt to address any risk to the rent payments
as outlined above by ensuring that payvments of rent will continue to be made into the Rent Accounts. On
the Closing Date. the Issuer's beneficial interests in the Security Trusts (which includes its interest in the
Rent Accounts) will be assigned by way of security to the Trustee. See "The Structure of the Accounts”.

The charges over the Rent Accounts are expressed to be fixed charges. However. under English, Isle
of Man and Irish law. whether or not a charge over book debts. such as the Rent Accounts. 1s-fixed or
floating will depend on the circumstances of the case. and it is possible that such charges will take effect
only as floating charges. The Rent Accounts have been structured with a view to ensuring that the Security
Trustee will have control over the operation of these accounts. thereby increasing the likelihood that the
charge will take effect as a fixed charge. Following the purchase by the Issuer of the Loans. the Mortgages
and the Related Security on the Closing Date. the Security Trustee will be entitled to withdraw amounts
from each Rent Account to meet the interest. principal and other amounts due to the Issuer from the
relevant Borrower on each Loan Payment Date.

The terms of the tenancies might affect the realisable value of the Properties on enforcement. Each
Loan provides that no lease may be granted or assigned to the Borrower thereunder (or an affiliate of the
Borrower) without MSMS's consent. In respect of the English Properties. granting or assigning a lease to
any other entity is otherwise unsestricted to the extent permitted by Section 99 of the Law of Property Act
1925 (broadly. this section allows the grant of leases at market rent for terms of up to 50 years) and so long
as such lease is granted on normal commercial terms. In the case of Irish and Northern Irish Properties
there is an absolute restriction on assignment of leases of the Irish Properties and the Northern Irish
Properties. In accordance with the provisions of the Deeds of Conditional Bond and Security in relation to
the Isle of Man Properties. the granting or assigning of a lease of a Property situated in the Isle of Man by a
Borrower or Mortgagor to any other entity is subject 10 obtaining the consent of MSMS. The Isle of Man
operating leases were based on the English operating leases and the same provisions therefore apply. but
Section 99 of the Law of Property Act 1925 does not apply. In accordance with the provisions of the
standard securities over the Scottish Properties. the granting or assigning of a lease of a Property situate in
Scotland by a Borrower to any other entity is subject to obtaining the consent of MSDW Bank.

In the case of leasehold Properties located in England and Wales which are sublet (by a Borrower),
there is also a risk of the rents being diverted to a superior landlord by a notice under Section 6 of the Law
of Distress Amendment Act 1908 if the relevant Borrower or Mortgagor fails to pay its rent under the
relevant headlease. In similar circumstances, in the case of leasehold properties located in' Northemn
Ireland which are sublet, the rent (or a part of it) may be diverted to the superior landlord by a notice
served by the superior landlord under Section 20 of the Landlord and Tenant Law Amendment Act
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d) 1860 while in Scotland a superior landlord has in these circumstances the right at common law to
(Trelan he rents in the hands of the sub-tenants and thereafter make court application to have the rents made
he superiof landlord. It may also be diverted voluntarily by the sub-tenant in accordance with

over, tz t2| of that Act. 0 per cent. of the Scottish Properties, 15.9 per cent. of the properties' situated in

Seail:nd and Wales and 30.5 per cent. of the Northern Irish Properties by property valu; are in each case
;E;Eehold properties. The remainder of the Properties are freehold properties (or the Scottish equivalent).

Any one or more of the factors described above could operate t0 have an adverse effect on the amoqnt

e derived from a Property or the income capable of being generated from that Property. which

se the relevant Borrower in respedt of such Property 1o default on its Loan.

of incom
could in turm cau

Risks relating 0 loan concentration

in relation to any pool of loans. loan losses will be more severe: (i) if the pool is comprised of a small
pumber of loans. each with a relatively large principal amount: or (i) if t_he _losses relate to loans that
account for a disproportionately large percentage: of the pool's aggregaie principal balance. A_s'there are
only 16 underlying Loans. losses on any Loan may have a substantial ac!verse gffgct on the ability of the
[ssuer to make payments under the Notes. The Loans made to the First Principal Bm_'rowers and the
gecond Principal Borrower account for approximately 33 per cent. and 15 per cent. respectively. the Loans
made to the First. Second and Third Dutch Borrowers account for approximately 8 per cent.. 4 per cent.
and 7 per cent. respectively in each case calculated by reference to the principal balance‘of the Loan a‘md
Mortgage Pool as of the Cut-Off Date. Details of the Principal Borrowers are set out 1n "The Principal

Borrowers" and in Appendix 1.

In addition. concentrations of Loans in geographic areas may increase the risk that adverse economic
or other developments or a natural disaster aﬁect‘ing a particular region could increase the frequency and
severity of losses on loans secured by such Propehies. Details of the location of the various Properties are
set out in "The Loan and Mortgage Pool™. :

payments made net of Principal Shortfalls in certain circumstances

in the event that the Notes are redeemed in the circumstances contemplated by Condition 6{a).
Condition 6/c). Condition &d) or Condition &e), then the amount repaid in respect of each such class of
the Notes will be net of any Principal Shortfall then attributable to that class of Notes. The relevant
Noteholders will have no claim against the Issuer in respect of any such Principal Shortfall. See "Terms
and Conditions of the Notes". 5

Prepayment Risk ‘ !

A high prepayment rate in respect of the Loans may result in a reduction in interest receipts on the
Loans by the Issuer and. thus. a shortfall in the| monies available to be applied by the Issuer in making
payments of interest on the Notes. The prepayment risk. to the extent that prepayments are made by the
Borrowers voluntarily and otherwise than consequent on a default and the enforcement of the Mortgages,
will be borne initially by the holders of the Class E Notes and. upon the reduction to zero of the Principal
Amount Outstanding {less Principal Shortfalls) of the Class E Notes. by the holders of the Class D Notes.
On each Interest Payment Date, the maximum pmount of interest then due and payable on the Class D
Notes or Class E Notes. as applicable, will be limited to the amount equal to the lesser of (a) the Interest
Amount (as defined in Condition 5(d)) in respgct of such class of Notes. and (b) the Adjusted Interest
Amount for such class of Notes on such Intdrest Payment Date. The debt that would otherwise be
represented by the amount by which. on any Intgrest Payment Date, the Interest Amount in respect of the
Class D Notes or the Class E Notes, as applicablg, exceeds the Adjusted Interest Amount in respect of such
class. shall be extinguished on such Interest Payment Date. and the affected Noteholders shall have no
claim against the lssuer in respect thereof. No drawing may be made under the Liquidity Facility
Agreement in respect of any shortfall in interest receipts arising as a consequence of voluntary
prepayments made on the Loans. 5
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Breach of warranty in relation to the Loans. the Meortgages and the Related Security

Except as described under "The Loans. the Mortgages and the Rel.atet.i Security - Acquisition”. penhcr
the Tssuer nor the Trustee has undertaken or will undertake any investigations. searches or other actions as
1o a Borrower's or Mortgagor's status. and each will rely instead solely on the warranties given by MSDW
Bank in respect of such matters in the Mortgage Sale Agreement (se¢ further "The Loans. the Mortgagcs"
and the Related Security - Representations and Warranties”). The sole remedy against MSDW’ Bank of
each of the Issuer and the Trustee in respect of any breach of warranty relating to the Loans and the
Morteages if the breach is material (and is not remedied) shall be to require MSDW Bank to repurchase
anv relevant Loan. Mortgage and its Related Security provided that this shall not limit any other remedies
available to the Issuer and or the Trustee if MSDW Bank fails to repurchase a Loan. Mortgage and its
Related Security when obliged to do so.

Pavments under Loans

At least one payment of interest has been made by Borrowers under five of the Loans. The first
interest pavment date for the Dutch Loans will be 18th July 2000 and there will be no principal repayment
until July 2002. No payment has been made under seven of the Loans: one payment has been made under
seven of the Loans; two payments have been made under two of the Loans. All of the Loans are curent as
of the Cut-Off Date. The Issuer cannot (and does not) guarantee or warrant ful] and timely payvment by the
Borrowers of any sums.

Insurance
Except in those circumstances where the tenant of a Property is a Setf-Insured Entity. MSMS's interest
(in its capacity as Security Trustee) has been noted on each buildings insurance policy maintained tn

respect of each Property or is in the course of being noted or is otherwise included by the relevant insurers
under a "general interest noted” provision in the relevant buildings insurance policy. '

A "Self-Insured Entity" means an entity:

() which is a department. agency or organisation of. or which Is supported by. H.M. Government
or the Government of the Republic of Ireland: or

{ii) the long-term unsecured. unsubordinated. unguaranteed debt of which is rated AA or higher
by S&P: or
(iik) in respect of which S&P have confirmed in writing that permitting such entity to self-insure

will not cause the ratings of the Notes to be downgraded. withdrawn or qualified thereby.

Noting a party's interest on a policy does not entitle that party to a share in the proceeds. although it is
generally the practice for insurers in the United Kingdom to notify the party whose interest is noted if the
policy lapses. MSDW Bank currently maintains a contingency insurance policy covering. inter alia, the
failure by a Borrower's or Mortgagor's landlord or tenant to insure) in relation to the Loans and the
Mortgages. The buildings insurance policies may not. in each case. refer to successors in title of MSDW
Bank.

On the Closing Date. the Issuer will acquire MSDW Bank's beneficial interests in the Security Trusts
(which include its interests in the buildings insurance policies), and the Issuer's beneficial interests in the
Security Trusts will form part of the Issuer Security charged 1o the Trustee for the benefit. inter alia, of
Noteholders under the Deed of Charge and Assignment. The Servicer will serve notice of the.assignment
under the Deed of Charge and Assignment on each insurer within fifteen business days of the Closing
Date. However. for the reasons described above. the ability of the Security Trustee and/or the Trustee to
make a claim under the relevant buildings insurance policies is not certain.
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privity of contract

The Landiord and Tenant (Covenants} Act 1995 (the 'Covenants Act”) provides that. in relation 10
eases of property n England and Wales granted qﬁer Ist January. 1996‘(c_nher than Ie_ascis granted -after
that date pursuant to agreements for lease entered into before that date) ("New Tenancies”) if an original
renant under such a lease assigns that lease (having obtamer:l al‘l'necessar_v consents (including consent of
the landlord if required by the lease)). that originali tenant's liability to the landlord. under the terms of the
jease. ceases. The Covenants Act provides that arfangements can be entered into wl:nereb_\' on assignment
of a lease of residential or commercial property. the original tenant can be requ_lred to enter into an
nauthorised guarantee™ of the assignee's obligation?} to the landlord. Such an a_u{honsed guarantee relates
only to the obligations under the lease of the priginal ass_ign_ee of the original tenant anfl not any
sub'sequent assignees of the original assignee. The same principles apply to an original assignee if it
assigns the lease. -

Manv of the existing leases in respect of the Pioperties as at the Closing Date were entered into before
1st Januz;ry. 1996 or pursuant to agreements for léase in existence before st January. 1996. Therefore.
pecause the Covenants Act has no retrospective effect. the original tenant of a lease of any such Property in
England or Wales will remain liable under thesé leases notwithstanding any‘subsequent assignments.
subject to any express releases of the tenant's covenant on assignment. In such circumstances the first and
everv subsequent assignee would normally covenant with his predecessor to pay the rent and observe the
covenants in the lease and would give an appropriate indemnity in respect of those liabilities to his
predecessor in title. thus creating a "chain of indemnin™.

In the case of a lease of any property in Scotland (a "Scottish Property"). where the original tenant
assigns such lease. that tenant's liability to the landlord will cease. subject 10 any express contractual
agreement to the contrary. None of the leases in respect of the Scottish Properties contains such an express

contractual agreement to the contrary. ;

In the case of a lease of any property located in Northern Ireland (a "Northern Irish Property™) or the
Republic of Ireland (an 'Irish Property) which requires landlord's consent to assignment. the outgoing
tenant (be it the original tenant or any subsequent assignee) is released from all liability to the landlord
when the landlord gives his consent in the form required by Section 16 of the Landlord and Tenant Law
Amendment Act (Ireland) 1860. Such consent is normally obtained as a matter of standard practice upon
the assignment of any lease. Where such consent is not obtained. whether because the lease does not
require consent or otherwise. the original tenant and his successors remain liable to the landlord throughout
the term of the lease.

in the case of the leases of either of the Isle of Man situated properties the original tenant remains fully
liable to the landlord throughout the original term of the lease imrespective of assignment. unless
specifically released by the landiord. There is no Isle of Man equivalent to the Covenants Act.

There can be no assurance that any assigneelof a lease of premises within a Property will be of a
similar credit quality to the original tenant, or that gny subsequent assignees (who in the context of a New
Tenancy will not be covered by the original tenént's authorised guarantee) will be of a similar credit
quality.

Rights available to holders of Notes of different ¢lasses

In performing its duties as trustee for the Ngteholders, the Trustee will not be entitled to consider
solely the interests of the Class A Noteholders but will need to have regard to the interests of all of the
Noteholders. Where, however, there is a conflict between the interests of the holders of one class of Notes
and the holders of another class of Notes. the Trustee will only have regard to interests of the holders of the
Notes which rank in priority in the event of the sechrity held by the Trustee being enforced.

Ratings of Notes

The ratings assigned to the Notes by the Ratihg Agency are based on the Loans, the Mortgages, the
Related Security and the Properties and other relevant structural features of the transaction, including, inter
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alia. the short term unsecured. unguaranteed and unsubordinated debt ratings of the quu@r_\' Facility
Provider and the Swap Guaranior. and refiect only the views of the Rating Agency. The ratungs Flddress
the likelihood of full and timely payment t0 the Noteholders of all payments of interest on the Notes on
each Interest Payment Date and the full and timely payment of principal on a date that is not later Fhan the
Interest Payment Date falling in July 2009. There is no assurance that anv such ratngs will continue for
any period' of time or that they will not be reviewed. revised. suspen_ded or_\\'iyhdrawr_l entirely by the
Rating Agency as a result of changes in oOf unavailability of informanon of if. 1n the judgement of the
Ratin‘é Agency. circumstances so warrant. A downgrade. withdrawal or qualification of any of the ratings

mentioned above may impact upon the ratings of the Notes.

Aovencies other than the Rating Agency could seek to rate the Notes and if such "unsolicited ratipgs"
are lower than the comparable ratings assigned to the Notes by the Rating Agency. those shadow ratings
could have an adverse effect on the value of the Notes. For the avoidance of doubt and unless the context
otherwise requires. any references to "ratings” or "rating” in this Offering Circular are to ratings assigned
by the specified Rating Agency only.

Absence of secondary market: limited liquidity

Application has been made to the UK Listing Authority for the Notes to be admitted to the Official
List. and to the London Stock Exchange for the Notes to be admitted to trading on the London Stock
Exchange. There can be no assurance that a secondary market in the Notes will develop ¢r. if it does
develop. that it will provide Noteholders with liquidity of investment. or that it will continue for the life of
the Notes. In addition. the market value of certain of the Notes may fluctuate with changes in prevailing
rates of interest. Consequently. any sale of Notes by Noteholders in any secondary market which may
develop may be at a discount to the original purchase price of those Notes.

Availability of Liquidity Facility

Pursuant to the terms of the Liquidity Facility Agreement. the Liquidity Facility Provider will provide
a2 committed facility for drawings to be made in the circumstances described in "Credit Structure —
Liquidity Facility”. The facility will however. be subject to a maximum aggregate principal amount of
£70.000.000 which will in certain specified circumstances be reduced. The Liquidity Facility is not
available to meet shortfalls in Final Redemption Funds or Prepayment Redemption Funds or o fund any
Revenue Priority Amount payable 10 MSDW Bank or any Principal Priority Amount. 1t is also not
available to meet any shortfall in Borrower Interest Receipts arising as a result of voluntary prepayments
of the Loans made by the Borrowers.

Appointment of Substitute Servicer

The Trustee must appoint a Substitute Servicer prior to Or cOntemporaneous with a termination of the
appoiniment of the Servicer under the Servicing Agreement. See "Servicing". There is no guarantee that a
substitute servicer could be found who would be willing to service the Issuer’s assets (including the Loans,
the Mortgages and the Related Security) at a commercially reasonable fee. or at all, on the terms of the
Servicing Agreement (even though this agreement provides for the fees pavable to a substitute servicer (0
be consistent with those payable generally at that time for the provision of residential and commercial
mortgage administration services). In any event, the ability of such substitute servicer to perform such
services fully would depend on the information and records then available to it. Such substitute servicer
would not become bound by MSDW Bank's obligations under the Mortgage Sale Agreement. The fees
and expenses of a substitute servicer performing services in this way would be payable in priority to
payment of interest under the Class A Notes.

Risks relating to conflicts of interest

Conflicts of interest may arise between the Issuer and MSMS because MSMS or one of its affiliates
intends to continue actively to acquire, develop. finance and dispose of real estate-related assets in the
ordinary course of their business. During the course of their business activities, those affiliates may acquire
or sell properties. or finance loans secured by properties, which are in the same markets as the Properties.
In such cases. the interests of those affiliates may differ from. and compete with, the interests of the Issuer,
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and decisions made with respect to those assets may ad‘versgly affect thg value .of the Propenies and
therefore the ability to make payments under the Noptes. leew!se. the Special Servicer or afﬁllate‘s of the
gpecial Servicer may acquire, develop, operate, f}nanqe or d}Sposu: of re_al estate-related assets in the
ordinary course of their business so causing similar t;:onﬂu:ts of interest to arise.

The Special Servicer is given considerable discretion in determining how and _in what manner to
roceed and what action should be taken in relatior] 1o a Specially Serviced Loan and its rel_ateq Mortgage
and Related Security. The Special Servicer may, a} any time. hold any or all of the most junior ;lass pf
Notes outstanding from time to time, and the holdefs of that class may have interests which conflict with
the interests of the holders of the other Notes. g

Mortgagee in possession liability |

The Security Trustee or the Trustee (if the Tristee has taken enforcement action against the Issuer)
may be deemed to be a mortgagee in possession xf the Securi_ty Trustee or the Trustee physically enters
into possession of a Property or performs an act of control or influence which may amount to possession.
such as submitting a demand direct to tenants requiring them to pay rents to the Security Trustee or the
Trustee. The enforcement procedures contained in the Mortgages contemplate that. following a default.
notice would be served on the tenants of a Property requiring all further rents to be paid directly to the
{ssuer: this could result in the Security Trustee (or the Trustee if it has taken enforcement action against the
|ssuer} becoming a mortgagee in posSSession.

A mortgagee in possession has an obligation to account for the income obtained from the relevant
Property and in the case of tenanted property will be liable to a tenant for any mis-management of the
relevant property. A mortgagee in possession may also incur liabilities to third parties in nuisance and
negligence and. under certain statutes (including environmental legislation), can incur the liabilities of a

property owner.

The Trustee has the absolute discretion, at any time, to serve a written notice on the Servicer (or the
Special Servicer) requiring the Servicer (or the Special Servicer) to obtain the Trustee's prior written
consent before taking any action which would be likely to lead to the Security Trustee or the Trustee
becoming a mortgagee in possession in respect of a Property. In a case where it is necessary to initiate
enforcement procedures against a Borrower, the Servicer is likely to appoint a receiver to collect the rental
income on behalf of the Issuer which should have the effect of reducing the risk that either the Issuer or the
Trustee is deemed to be a mortgagee in possession.

Environmental risks :
l
If any environmental liability were to exist in|respect of any Property or Borrower or Mortgagor,
neither the Security Trustee nor the Trustee shéuld incur responsibility for such liability prior to
enforcement of the relevant Loan. Mortgage and Rélated Security. unless it could be established that the
Security Trustee or the Trustee (or the Servicer or The Special Servicer on behalf of the Security Trustee
and/or the Trustee) had entered into possession of the Property or could be said to be in control of the
Property. After enforcement. the Security Trusiep or the Trustee, if deemed to be a mortgagee in
possession. or a receiver appointed on behalf of [the Security Trustee or the Trustee. could become
responsible for environmental liabilities in respect of| a Property.

If an environmental liability arises in relation to|any Property and is not remedied, or is not capable of
being remedied, this may result in an inability to sell the Property or a reduction in the price obtained for
the Property resulting in a sale at a loss.

Legal Title |

All of the Properties. (except those in the Isle of Man), comprise registered land. In relation to certain
loans. the Borrower or relevant Mortgagor is not yet registered as legal proprietor of a Property (following
its acquisition of that Property) and consequently the Security Trustee is not yet registered as proprietor (or
m Scotland heritable creditor) of the legal mortgagei or standard security granted to it by the Borrower or
Mortgagor over that Property. MSDW Bank have iconfirmed, following consultation with their external
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aware of any reason why in such instances the Borrower or Mortgagor in
d as legal proprietor of the Property or why the Security Trustee should not
2 the mortgage or standard secunty over the

legal advisers. that they are not
question should not be registere r :
be registered as proprietor (or in Scotland. heritable creditor) of

Property.

In each case the relevant transfer or transfers oF conveyance Or CONVEYances have been duly §tamped
and appropriate application has been made (or in relation to Properties in Englan_d will be made .\mhm the
appropriate priority period following execution of a transfer) to H.M. Land Registry or (as appl.lcabl._e) the
Registers of Scotland or the Irish Land Registry or the Deeds Register of the Isle of Man for registration of
transfer of the title and the relevant mortgage or standard security. MSDW Bank holds funds sufficient to
pay the fees or has received solicitors' undertakings to pay the fees in relation to all necessary H.M. Land
Registry. Registers of Scotland and Irish Land Registry or the Deeds Registrv of the Isle of Man t}_le
apﬁlicagions that have not already been paid. It is expected that all applications will be complete within six

months of the date of this Offering Circular.

Due Diligence

The only due diligence that has been undertaken in relation to the Loans and the Properties is referred
to below (see "The Loans. the Mortgages and the Related Security”) and was undertaken in the context of
and at the time of the origination of each particular loan by either MSDWMCTI or. as the case may be.
MSDW Bank. Additional priority Land Registry or Registers of Scotland searches will be undertaken in
respect of the English. Scottish, Irish and Northern Irish properties by selicitors to MSDW Bank (for the
benefit of MSDW Bank in the context of the warranties that are being given) but. other than this. none of
the due diligence previously undertaken will be verified or updated prior to the sale of the Loans and
Related Security to the Issuer. The Tssuer will rely solely on the Representations and Warranties of
MSDW Bank contained in the Mortgage Sale Agreement referred to below.

Forfeiture on Insolvency

Part of one Property comprising a garage servicing the Property is held under a lease where the
Jandlord has the right to forfeit on insolvency of the tenant. In the circumstances. however. relief from any
such forfeiture would almost certainly be granted to a Mortgagee.

Receivers

Pursuant to the Servicing Agreement, the Servicer {and. where relevant. the Special Servicer) is
required to take all reasonable steps to recover amounts due from Borrowers. and to comply with the
procedures for enforcement of Loans. Mortgages and Related Security current from time to time. See
"Servicing”. The principal remedies available following a default under a Loan. Mortgage or its Related
Security. as contemplated by the Servicer's enforcement procedures, are the appointment of a receiver over
the relevant Property or over all of the assets of a corporate Borrower and‘or entering into possession of
the relevant Property. The Servicer has confirmed to the Issuer that its usual procedure for residential or
commercial property would invoive the appointment of a receiver. A receiver would invariably require an
indemnity to meet his costs and expenses (notwithstanding his statutory indemnity under the Insolvency
Act 1986) as a condition of his appointment or continued appointment. Such an indemnity would rank
ahead of payments on the Notes.

The Servicer's usual practice in England and Wales would be to appoint a "Law of Property Act”
receiver ("LPA Receiver") rather than an administrative receiver. Such a receiver is so called because his
powers derive not only from the fixed charge under which he has been appointed but aiso from the Law of
Property Act 1925. An LPA Receiver is deemed by law to be the agent of the entity providing security
until the commencement of liquidation proceedings against such entity and so. for as long as the receiver
acts within his powers. he will only incur liability on behalf of the entity providing security. If, however,
the Security Trustee, the Trustee, the Servicer or the Special Servicer on behalf of the Security, Trustee
and/or the Trustee. unduly directs or interferes with and influences the receiver's actions, a court may
decide that the receiver is the Security Trustee's or the Trustee's agent and that the Security Trustee or the
Trustee. as the case may be, should be responsible for the receiver's acts.
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The Law of Property Act 19235 does not apply in Ireland. Northern Ireland. the Isle of Man or Scotland
and, therefore, "Law of Property Act" receivership goes not exist in those jurisdictions.

In Ireland, a receiver is appointed under the Conveyancing Acts. 1881 and 19.1 1. The agency laws
relating to such receiver are broadly analogous to those in England and Wales as outlined above.

In Northern Ireland. the Convevancing and Law of Property Act 1881 contains equivalent provisions
relating to property receivers and a receiver can ble appointed in respect of property iq Northern Ireland
without the appointment of an administrative receiver or the lender entering into possession of the r.ele\'anl
property. Following the appointment of a property receiver, the agency laws relating 1o that receiver are
broadly analogous to those in England and Wales as outlined above.

In Scotland, the Servicer would appoint the receiver pursuant to 2 floating charge contained in the
relevant Related Security. The appointment of a receiver in this context is intended to provide the Security
Trustee with remedies which are in addition to existing Scottish statutory rights of enforcement in respect
of the Scottish Mortgages (see also "The Loans, the Mortgages and the Related Security. Scottish
Mortgages” below). The receiver would conduct himself in a manner broadly analogous to an
administrative receiver appointed under a debenture granted by a company incorporated in England and
Wales in relation to property situated in England and Wales.

In the Isle of Man. a mortgagee would not normally take possession but would either appoint a
Receiver under contractual powers or enforce the security through the courts by a process culminating in
the sale of the Property by a court official by auction without reserve.

The Trustee has absolute discretion to serve a 'written notice on the Servicer (or the Special Servicer)
requiring the Servicer (or the Special Servicer, as the case may be) from the date of the notice to obtain the
Trustee's prior written consent before agreeing to any indemnity from the Security Trustee and/or the
Trustee in favour of a receiver appointed in respect of a Property.

The Law of Property Act 1925 does not apply to the Isle of Man and there is no equivalent legislation.
A receiver could be appointed under the contractual powers contained in the Mortgages of the Isle of Man
situated properties and, again, subject to those contractual powers. would conduct himself in a manner
broadly analogous to an administrative receiver appointed under a debenture granted by a company
incorporated in England and Wales in respect of English or Welsh situated property.

Preferred creditors under Irish law

The Irish Revenue Commissioners may attach any debt due to an Irish tax resident individual from
another person in order to discharge any liabilities|of that individual in respect of outstanding tax whether
the liabilities are due on his/her own account or as| an agent or trustee. The scope of this right of the Irish
Revenue Commissioners has not yet been considered by the Irish courts but it may override the rights of
holders of security (whether fixed or floating) over|the debt in question.

In relation to the disposal of assets of an Irish tax resident individual which are subject to security, a
person entitled to the benefit of the security may Be liable for tax in relation to any capital gains made by
the company on a disposal of those assets on exercjse of the security.

t
United States Tax Characterisation of the Note{

Although all of the Notes are denominated a$ debt, there is a significant possibility that the Class E
Notes (and to a lesser extent, a more senior clas§ of Notes) may be treated as equity for United States
federal income tax purposes. Such a characterisation could have certain adverse tax consequences to
United States investors who hold such Notes. | See "United States Taxation - Possible Alternative
Characterisation of the Notes".



Withholding tax under the Notes

In the event any withholding or deduction for or on account of taxes is imposed on or is otherwise
applicable to pavments of interest or principal on the Notes to Noteholders the Issuer is not obliged to
gross-up or otherwise compensate Noteholders for the lesser amounts the Noteholders will receive as a

result of such withholding or deduction.

Introduction of the euro

If at any time there is a change of currency in the United Kingdom such that the Bank of England
recognises a different currency or currency unit or more than one CurTency Or Currency unit as the lawful
currency of the United Kingdom. then references in. and obligations arising under. the Notes outstanding
at the time of such change and which are expressed in sterling shall be translated into. and any amount
pavable shall be paid in, the currency or currency unit of the United Kingdom. and in the manner
designated by the Principal Paying Agent. Any such translation shall be at the official rate of exchange
recognised for that purpose by the Bank of England.

Where such a change in currency occurs. the Notes and the Conditions will be amended in the manner
agreed between the Issuer and the Trustee so as to reflect that change and. so far as practicable, to place the
Issuer. the Trustee and the Noteholders in the same position as if no change in currency occurred. Such
amendments are to include. without limitation, changes required to reflect any modification to business
day or other conventions arising in connection with a change in currency. All such amendments. will be
binding on the Noteholders. Notification of the amendments will be made in accordance with Condition 5.

Change of law

The structure of the issue of the Notes and the ratings which are to be assigned to them are based on
English law. Irish law, Northern Irish law. Scots law. Isle of Man law and New York law in effect as at the
date of this document. No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible change to English law.
Irish law. Northern Irish law, Scots law. Isle of Man law or New York law or administrative practice after
the date of this document. nor can any assurance be given as to whether any such change could adversely
affect the ability of the Issuer to make payments under the Notes.

Hedging risks

The Loans bear interest at a fixed rate while each class of the Notes bears interest at a rate based on
three month LIBOR plus a margin (see Condition 5) and under the Dutch Loans, payments are o be made
in euro while payments will be made in respect of the Notes in sterling. In order to address interest rate
risk or the currency risk, the Issuer will enter into the Swap Transactions pursuant to the Swap Agreement.
However. there can be no assurance that the Swap Transactions will adequately address unforeseen
hedging risks. Moreover. in certain circumstances the Swap Agreement may be terminated. In addition,
Noteholders may suffer a loss if, as a result of a default by a Borrower under a Loan. one or more of the
Swap Transactions is terminated and the Issuer is. as a result of such termination. required to pay to the
Swap Provider amounts due as a result of that early termination. Any such amounts pavable on an early
termination rank senior to any payments to be made to the Noteholders before enforcement of the Issuer
Security and, in certain cases, after enforcement of the Issuer Security. See "Credit Structure - Post-
Enforcement Priority of Payments”.

For a more detailed description of the Swap Agreement see "Credit Structure - The Swap Agreement”,
below.
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THE ISSUER

The Issuer. European Loan Conduit No. 3 ple. ;'was incorporated in Englgnd and Wales on 21st June.
2000 (registered number 4021842) as a public company with limited liability under the Companies Act
1985. The registered office of the Issuer is at Blackwell House. Guildhall Yard. London EC2V SAE. The

Issuer has no subsidiaries.

1. Principal Activities

The principal objects of the Issuer are set out 1n its Memorandum of Association and are. infer alia. to
invest in mortgage loans secured on commercial or other properties in the Bnitish Isles or elsewhere, 10
manage and administer mortgage loan portfolios. to issue securities in pavment or part payment for anv
real or personal property purchased. to borrow. raise and secure the payment of money by the creation and
issue of bonds. debentures. notes or other securities and to charge or grant security over the Issuer's
property or assets to secure its obligations.

The Issuer has not engaged. since its incorporation, in any activities other than those incidental to its
incorporation and registration as a public limited company under the Companies Act 1985, the
authorisation of the issue of the Notes and of the other documents and matters referred to or contemplated

in this Offering Circular and matters which are incidental or ancillary to the foregoing.

The lIssuer will covenant to observe certain restrictions on its activities which are detailed in Condition
4(A) of the Notes and in the Trust Deed.

2. Directors and Secretary

The directors of the Issuer and their respective business addresses and other principal activities are:

Name Business Principal
Address activities
SFM Directors Limited Blackwell House. Guildhall Yard. Provision of directors to special
London EC2V:5AE purpose companies

Provision of directors to special
purpose companies

Blackweli Ho@se. Guildhall Yard.
London ECZV; 5AE

SFM Directors (No.2) Limited

The company secretary of the Issuer is SFM Cbrporate Services Limited. a company incorporated in
England and Wales. whose business address is Blackwell House. Guildhall Yard. London EC2V 5AE.
The directors of SEM Directors Limited, SFM Corporate Services Limited and SFM Directors (No. 2 )
Limited are Jonathan Eden Keighley and James (Gamer Smith Macdonald, whose business addresses are
Blackwel] House. Guildhall Yard, London EC2V SAE. and who perform no other principal activities
outside the group where those are significant with frespect to the group.

3. Capitalisation and Indebtedness Statementi

The capitalisation and indebtedness of the ls%uer as at the date of this Offering Circular, adjusted to
take account of the issue of the Notes, is as follows:

Share Capital E
Authorised Issued Share Value of ' Shares Shares Paid Up
Share Capital Capital each Share Fully Quarter Share Capital
£ £ £ ' Paid Up Paid Up £
100,000 50,000 1 2 49,998 12,501.50
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49.999 of the issued share capital (1 share of which is fully paid) in the Issuer is held by European Loan
Conduit Holdings Limited, a company incorpora

ted in England and Wales on 20th June 2000 {registered
number 4021014} having its registered office at Blackwell House. Guildhall Yard. London ECZV 5AE.

The remaining one share (which is fully paid) in the lssuer and the total issued share capital of European
Loan Conduit Holdings Limited (being 1 share £1 of which is fully paid) is held by SFM Corporate
Services Limited as trustee of the European Loan Conduit Securitisation Trust pursuant 10 2 charitable
declaration of trust to be dated the Closing Date.

Loan Capital

Class A Commercial Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due 2009, £197.300.000
Class B Commercial Mortgage Backed Fioating Rate Notes due 2009 .....oooviiiiinins £17.821.000
Class C Commercial Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due 2009 ..o £15.275.000
Class D) Commercial Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due 2009 ..o £13,911.000
Class E Commercial Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due 2009 .....cocovrrimririnieene: £8.274.000

£254,581.000

Total L0an CAPItAL. ... vureurescmrsssrmscesesiimsss st

Except as set out above, the Issuer has no outstanding loan capital. borrowings. indebtedness or
contingent liabilities and the Issuer has not created any mortgages or charges nor has it given any
guarantees as at the date hereof.

4. Accountant's Report

The following is the text of a report. extracted without material adjustment. received by the directors
of the Issuer from KPMG Audit Plc. who have been appointed as auditors and reporting accountants to the
Issuer. The balance sheet contained in the report does not comprise the Issuer's statutory accounts. No
statutory accounts have been prepared or delivered to the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales
since the Issuer's incorporation. The [ssuer's accounting reference date will be 30th June and the first
statutory accounts will be drawn up to 30th June, 2001.

KPMG Audit Plc

The Directors

European Loan Conduit No. 3 plc
Blackwell House

Guildhall Yard

[ondon

EC2V 5AE

The Directors

Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited
Trading as Morgan Stanley Dean Witter

25 Cabot Square

Canary Wharf

London E14 4QA
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| 1th July 2600

Dear Sirs

European Loan Conduit No.3 plc (the "Compan;y") -
Multi-class commercial mortgage backed floating rate notes due 2009 (the "Notes™)

Basis of preparation

The financial information set out in paragraphs |1 and 2 is based on the financial statements of the
Company for the period 21st June 2000 o 11 July 2000 prepared on the basis described in note 2.1. 10
which no adjustments were considered necessary.

Responsibility
The financial statements referred to above are the responsibility of the directors of the Company.

The Company is responsible for the contents of thE Offering Circular dated 11th July 2000 in which this
report is included. !

It is our responsibility to compile the financial éinformaticm set out in our report from the financial
statements, to form an opinion on the financial infofmation and to report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our work in accordance with the Statements of Investment Circular Reporting Standards
issued by the Auditing Practices Board. Qur work included an assessment of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disciosures in the financial information. It also included an assessment of significant
estimates and judgements made by those respomsible for the preparation of the financial statements
underlying the financial information and whether ‘the accounting policies are appropriate to the entity’s
circumstances. consistently applied and adequately :disclosed.

We planned and performed our work so as to dbtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with shifficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
financial information is free from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error.

Opinion

In our opinion. the financial information gives. for the purposes of the Offering Circular. a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the date stated.

1 Balance sheet

Balance sheet as at | 1n" July 2000
£

Current assets

Cash at bank and in hand 1250150

Capital reserves

Calied up equity share capital 1250150

|
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2

2.1

bt
[ 1]

o]
L

2.4

Notes

Accounting policies

The financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention and in
accordance with accounting standards currently applicable in the UK.

Trading activity

The Company has not traded during the period from incorporation on 21st June 2000 to 1ith July

2000. nor did it receive any income, incur any expenses or pay any dividends. Nor did 1t employ
any person{s). Consequently. no profit and loss account has been prepared.

Share capital
The Company was incorporated on 21st June 2000.

On incorporation the authorised share capital of the Company was £100.000 divided into 100.000
ordinary shares of £1 each.

On 21 June 2000. 49.998 ordinary shares of £1 each were issued to European Loan Conduit
Holdings Limited and partially called up for cash consideration of £12.499.50. | share of £1 was
issued fully paid to European Loan Conduit Holdings Limited on 21 June 2000 and 1 share of £1
issued fully paid to SFM Corporate Service Limited on 21 June 2000,

KPMG Audit Plc were appointed as auditors on 5thJuly 2000.

Yours faithfully

KPMG Audit Ple
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THE PARTIES

Morgan Staniev Dean Witter Bank Limited

Morgan Stanley Dean Witter Bank Limited ("MSDW Bank") is a whol_ly owr?ed subsidiary of Morgan
Gtanley Dean Witter & Co ("MSDW"). MSDW iBank is active in retail lendnpg th‘rough the Morgan
stanley Dean Witter credit card as well as wholesale loan origination and securitisation In the UK ar.1d
Europe. MSDW Bank is incorporated in England and Wales (registered number 3722571) and has its
registered office at 25 Cabot Square. London E14 4QA.

Morgan Stanley Dean Witter Mortgage Capital i:nc.

Morgan Stanley Dean Witter Mortgage Capital Inc. ("MSDWMCI") is a subsidiary of Morgan
Stanley Dean Witter & Co. ("MSDW") and was formed as a New York corporation to originate and
acquire loans secured by mortgages on commercial and multifamily real estate. Each of the MSDWMCI
loans was originated by one of the participants in the MSDWMCI commercial mortgage loan conduit
programme o was originated directly by MSDWMCIL The principal offices of MSDWMCT are located at
1585 Broadway. New York, New York 10036. j

I
Servicer, Special Servicer and Security Trustee '

Morgan Stanley Mortgage Servicing Limited ("MSMS") is a specialist loan servicing business and a
subsidiary of MSDW. operating mainly in the United Kingdom and Ireland. MSMS is incorporated in
England and Wales (registered number 341 1668) and has its registered office at 25 Cabot Square, Canary
Wharf. London E14 4QA. - 3

Swap Provider

Morgan Stanley Capital Services Inc. ("MSCS") is a Delaware corporation. which conducts forward
payment business. including interest rate swaps. currency swaps and interest rate guarantees with
institutional clients. The office of MSCS is located at 1585 Broadway. New York. New York 10036.

Swap Guarantor

MSDW is a pre-eminent globa! financial services firm that maintains leading market positions in each
of its three primary businesses: securities, asset mzjmagement and credit services. MSDW combines global
strength in investment banking (including in relation 1o the origination of underwritten public offerings and
mergers and acquisitions advice) and institutional tales and trading. with strength in providing investment
and global asset management products and servTces and, primarily through its Discover Card brand,

consumer credit products. MSDW is incorporated 1n Delaware.

MSCS is a wholly-owned unregulated subsidiary of MSDW. MSCS's obligations under the Swap
Agreement benefit from an unconditional, irrevocable guaraniee of MSDW under the Swap Guarantee. If
MSCS ceases to be the Swap Provider, MSDW will cease to be the Swap Guarantor. The long term,
unsecured, unsubordinated debt obligations of MSDW are rated "AA-" by S&P. The consolidated
accounts of MSDW are available on request. i

Liquidity Facility Provider
Lioyds TSB Bank pic ("LTSB" or the "Liquidity Facility Provider"), acting through its Corporate
and Institutional Financial Services Division locatéd at St. George's House, 6-8 Eastcheap, London EC3M

1AE. will act as the Liquidity Facility Provider undler the Liquidity Facility Agreement and is regulated by
the Personal Investment Authority and IMRO.
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Trustee

Chase Manhattan Trustees Limited is a company incorporated in England and Wales and has its

registered office at Trinity Tower, 9 Thomas More Street, London EIW 1YT. It will be appomnted as

Trustee pursuant to the Trust Deed to represent the interests of the Noteholders. The Trustee will hold. for

the benefit of. inter alios, the Noteholders, the security granted by the Issuer pursuant to the Deed of
Charge and Assignment.

Operating Bank and Paying Agent

AIB Group (UK) plc is a public limited company, whose principal office is at 12 Old Jewry. London
EC2R 8DP. In its capacity as the Operating Bank. it will act as operating bank pursuant 1o the Cash
Management Agreement in relation to the Transaction Accounts, Swap Collateral Cash Account and Swap
Collateral Custody Account (each as defined below). It wili be appointed as Paying Agent under the

Agency Agreement.
Principal Paying Agent, Cash Manager, Agent Bank and Exchange Agent

AIB International Financial Services Ltd whose principal office is at P.O. Box 2751, AIB Intemational
Centre. 1LF.S.C.. Dublin 1. It will be appointed as Principal Paying Agent and Agent Bank under the
Agency Agreement, as Cash Manager under the Cash Management Agreement and as Exchange Agent
under the Exchange Rate Agency Agreement.

Depository and Registrar

The Chase Manhattan Bank. New York office. has its principal office at 15th Floor. 450 West 33rd
Street. New York. New York 10001. It will be appointed as Depository under the Depositary Agreement
and Registrar under the Agency Agreement.

Corporate Services Provider

SFM Corporate Services Limited has its registered office at Blackwell House, Guildhatl Yard, London
EC2V SAE.




THE PRINCIPAL BORROWERS

The following loans each count for more than 10 percent of the Loan and Mongage Pool (calculated

by reference to the principal balance of the Loans and Mortgage Pool as of the Cut-Off Date):

the loan made to the First Princip‘fﬁ Borrowers, Four Seasons Properties (Care Homes)
Limited (of £65.600,000) and Four Seasons Properties (Specialist) Limited {of £18.400,000):

and

{a)

(b) the loan made to the Second Principal Borrower. Orb (Lexham) Limited.

Details of the Principal Borrowers and the rcldfevant Loans. Mortgages and Related Security (which are
available from and are based solely on information made available by the Principal Borrowers and/or from
the terms of the Loans. Mortgages and Related Sequrity) are set out in Appendix 1.

THE DUTCH LOANS

Three of the Loans (the "Dutch Loans") have been made available to three Borrowers incorporated in
the Netherlands (the "Dutch Borrowers"). The Dutch Borrowers represent 18 per cent. of the Loan and
Mortgage Pool. Each of the Dutch Loans is denbminated in euro. Each of the Dutch Borrowers has, in
turn. lent all (subject to rounding) of the monies: borrowed under the Dutch Loans to certain individuals
rrading in partnership who own and invest in property situate in Ireland (the Irish Borrowers). Details of
the Dutch Loans and the Loans made by the Dutch Borrowers to the Irish Borrowers are set out in

Appendix 2.
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THE LOANS, THE MORTGAGES AND THE RELATED SECURITY

1. Origination of the Loans

The loan and mortgage pool consists of 16 Loans (with the Loans to the First Principal Borrowers
being treated as one) secured over residential and commercial properties as described below {the 'Loan
and Mortgage Pool”). The decision to advance a loan (subject to obtaining satisfactory legal due
diligence) is based on compliance with MSDW Bank's lending criteria as described below {the '"Lending
Criteria"). All of the Loans. Mortgages and Related Security contained in the Loan and Mortgage Pool
were originated by MSDWMCI (and subsequently novated to MSDW’ Bark) or MSDW Bank between
April, 1999 and June. 2000. There is no right on the part of the Issuer to substitute Loans in the Loan and
Mortgage Pool. However. certain Borrowers have the right to substitute a limited number of Properties
with other properties in accordance with the terms set out in the relevant Loan and Mortgage
documentation. See "Disposal and Substitution of Properties”. below.

The Lending Criteria and procedures adopted by MSDWMCT (in relation to those Loans novated to
MSDW Bank) and the Lending Criteria and procedures adopted by MSDW Bank are identical. For the
purpose of this section reference is made to MSDW Bank only. However, references to MSDW' Bank
should be taken to include reference to MSDWMCT (in relation to those {oans originated by MSDWMCI).

2. lLending Criteria
(A} Lending Philosophy

MSDW Bank's credit policy is to underwrite commercial and residential property loans based on an
analvsis of the contractual cashflows, occupational tenant covenants and lease terms and the overall quality
of the real estate. Risk is assessed by stressing the cashflows derived from underlying tenants and the risks
associated with refinancing the amount due upon maturity of the loan. The plans and strategy for the
relevant Property. as well as the property investment experience and expertise of the relevant Borrower's
sponsors. are also factors to be taken into consideration.

(B) Types of Borrower/Mortgagor

Borrowers 'Mortgagors are all special purpose companies sponsored by experienced property investors.
A Borrower’Mortgagor may be incorporated and‘or resident in the United Kingdom or in an overseas
jurisdiction. Typical terms of the facilities made available to Borrowers are described in "Terms -of the
Loans" below.

All of the Borrowers/Mortgagors were incorporated for the purposes of acquiring the Property owned
by them or. in the case of the Dutch Borrowers. the security interest in the Properties owned by the Irish
Borrowers. In three cases. the Borrower/Mortgagors also acquired other properties which have since been
sold. In all cases MSDW Bank is satisfied that the Borrower’Mongagor has no material assets or liabilities
save in relation to the Property for which the relative Loan is security.

(C) Security

MSDW Bank's principal security will be a first ranking charge by way of legal mortgage or sub-
mortgage over freehold or fong leasehold land and buildings (or a first-ranking standard security over
heritable or long leasehold property in Scotland) which are the subject matter of the relevant Loan, and a
floating charge over the Borrower's other assets. all held by the Security Trustee for MSDW Bank. The
typical security created by Borrowers is described in "Terms of the Debenture” below.

(D) Advance Level

) MS‘DW Bank nonnall_y advances new loans having a principal amount of between £0.5 million and
£500 million and to a maximum of 85 per cent. of the valuation of the underlying properties.
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(E) Purpose of the Loan

The purpose of the loan will normally be to assist in the acquisition or re-financing of residential and
commercial real estate. '

(F) Repayment Terms

The term of the loan may be between one and 30 years, although the majority of loans originated by
MSDW Bank have a term of between five and tén vears. Loans may be interest only or have defined
principal repayment schedules. The principal repayment schedule is structured to take account Qf the
cashflow pattern of the leases in effect at the date of commencement of the loan and the anticipated
realisable value of the security at its maturity.

(G) Enforcement

MSDW Bank's enforcement policy is to seek lp secure cashflow from security as quickly as is prudent
in the event that an event of default under a monga}ge has occurred.

3. Legal Due Diligence

Following the approval in principle of a lc;an facility certain legal due diligence procedures are
followed before a loan is advanced. Details of these procedures are set out below.

(A) General Information

MSDW Bank's external English legal advisérs in relation to the origination of Loans relating to
Property situated in England and Wales are Messrs. Denton Wilde Sapte ("Denton Wilde Sapte").
Denton Wilde Sapte initially obtain (and, where reasonably possible, check) general information relating to
a proposed facility including details of a Borrower's shareholders; any borrowings that it has entered into;
the accounts to be operated in connection with the proposed facility: any managing agents appointed (or t0
be appointed) in connection with the collection of rents and/or management of the Property; and insurance
of the Property. '

(B} Property Title Investigation

An important part of the legal due diligen¢e process is to verify that the prospective Borrower/
Mortgagor has or, if the Property is being purch#sed, will have. good title to the Property to be charged,
free from any encumbrances or other matters which would be considered to be of a material adverse
nature. The process of title verification is slight|y different depending upon whether a report on title is
prepared and issued in favour of MSDW Bahk by the Borrower's solicitors or whether the title
investigation is undertaken by Denton Wilde SaptT and a report is issued by them.

(a) Report on title prepared by Borrower’s solicitors:

If a report is prepared by the Borrower's soli¢itors, Denton Wilde Sapte will check the identity of the
solicitors and satisfy themselves on behalf of MSDW Bank that they are of sufficient standing and
competence to deliver a report on title in respect of the relevant Property.

Denton Wilde Sapte review the draft form of peport to ensure that it covers all relevant matters (i.e. the
matters that Denton Wilde Sapte would expect fo cover in a report - see "Report on title from Denton
Wilde Sapte” below). Once the draft report Has been issued, they will raise requisitions in case of
omissions, ambiguities or material disclosures in the report and satisfy themselves in relation to any issues
arising from the report.

Denton Wilde Sapte then prepare a summary report for MSDW Bank, confirming (if appropriate)
approval of the form and content of the report on! title and highlighting any matters contained in the report
which Denton Wilde Sapte consider should be drawn to the attention of MSDW Bank and its valuers.




(b) Report on title from Denton Wilde Sapte

Denton Wilde Sapte undertake the usual investigation of title in relatior? to the relgvant Properny which
will include reviewing copies of title documents and Land Registry emines tincluding any lease unFler
which the property is held). All the usual Land Registry. local authority and any othex; appmprnate
searches will be undertaken and preliminary enquiries will be raised of the Borrower's sohcu.ors. Where
the property is being acquired by the Borrower. a review of the replie§ of enqgiries raised by tl}e
Borrower's solicitors will be undertaken. The terms of all leases and tenancies affecting the Propeljt_v \I'.'all
be reviewed and the basic terms (including. inter alia. details of rent reviews and tenants’ determination
rights) will be included in the report.

Where a Borrower is in the course of acquiring a Property that is to be charged then the purchase
contract and the form of transfer of the relevant Property will be reviewed and approved.

The report that Denton Wilde Sapte prepare will highlight any matenal or unusual matters but
otherwise confirm (if correct} that. in their opinion. the prospective Borrower has (or would have on
completion of any purchase and necessary registration) good title to the Property. The report will not
normally cover matters relating to the structure or construction of the relevant Property, specific
environmental surveys or enquiries. or any credit checks on the borrower or occupational tenants.

Denton Wilde Sapte ensure that the valuers providing the valuation of a Property have a copy of the
report. and they cross check and verify basic details relating to the Property (namely tenure and term and
rents for any occupational tenancies) set out in any valuation received by them.

Whether a report on title is prepared by the Borrower's solicitors or by Denton Wilde Sapte. in refation
to Properties located in Northern Ireland. the Isle of Man. Ireland or Scotland. MSDW Bank appeints
lawvers in the relevant jurisdictions to undertake a due diligence process analogous to that which Denton
Wilde Sapte undertakes in relation to Properties located in England and Wales.

(C} Capacity of Borrower/Morigagor

In relation to any Borrower or Mortgagor incorporated in England and Wales. Denton Wilde Sapte
satisfy themselves that the relevant company is validly incorporated. has sufficient power and capacity to
enter into the proposed transaction. whether it is subject to any existing mortgages or charges. whether it is
the subject of any insolvency proceedings, and generally that any formalities required to enter into the
proposed transaction with MSDW Bank have been (or would be by completion) completed. '

In retation to any Borrower or Mortgagor incorporated outside England and Wales, lawyers competent
m the junisdiction where the company is incorporated (and also. if different. the jurisdiction where the
relevant Property is situated) are appointed to undertake a similar process to that undertaken by Denton
Wilde Sapte. The foreign lawyers are required to deliver an appropriate legal opinion confirming, inter
alia. that the choice of English law or in the case of the Dutch Loans. Irish law to govern the
documentation will be recognised and upheld.

(D} Reliance on Legal Due Diligence

The legal due diligence referred to above is in each case addressed to MSDW Bank: it will not be
updated prior to the sale of the Loans and Related Security to the Issuer, nor will it be re-addressed either
to the Issuer or the Trustee. The Issuer will instead rely solely on the Representations and Warranties of
MSDW Bank contained in the Mortgage Sale Agreement (see "Acquisition - Mortgage Sale Agreement”
below) and will assign its rights under that agreement to the Trustee. :

4. Drawdown and Post-Completion Formalities
Denton Wilde Sapte ensure that all necessary English registration formalities and the service of notices
are dealt with at drawdown or, as appropriate. within any applicable priority or other time periods

following drawdown. In relation to other jurisdictions, appropriate undertakings are obtained from the
relevant lawyers to attend to such matters in the same manner.
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1 - . .
unconditional undertaking from the Borrower'sMortgagor's solicitors to effect the registrations and
an N

forward the relevant charge certificate when the registration has been completed !and. in the meantime. to’
pold the deeds to the order of Denton Wilde Sdpte on !aehalf of the Security Truslti'?']. Wh.ere an_\.
Bormwgf's,'Mongagor's Solicitors ask to retain any: occupational _Ieases n orde‘r‘to deal with fja:« 1o day

ent matters, they are permitted to do so subject to providing an unconditional undertaking to hold

managem - ! ; :
them to Denton Wilde Sapte's order and to deliver them on demand.

|
In relation to registrations at H.M. Land Registrl;. Denton Wilde Sapte either undertake these or obtain

In relation 10 Properties located in Northern l:reland. the Isle of Man. Ireland or Scotlan_d. MSDW
Bank appoints lawvers in the relevant jurisdictions to undertake a process analogous 1o that which Denton
wilde Sapte undertakes in relation to Properties located in England and Wales.

5. Information on the Loans and the Mortgages

The typical loan and security package in telation to a loan comprises a credit agreement. a
Jdebentureis) from the Borrower/Montgagor comparly (incorporating a first legal charge or sub-charge over
the relevant property: first fixed charge over the "Rent Account” and other accounts: and fixed and ﬂoaltmg
charges over all the Borrower's/Mortgagor's assets)! and a charge over the shares in the Borrower (waived

in certain cases).

If the Borrower is indebted to any other entity. a subordination agreement will be required. Where
managing agents are employed. a duty of care undertaking in favour of the Secunty Trustee is obtained
from them trelating to rent collection and property management).

The standard form security documentation is described in more detail under "Terms of the Debenture”
and "Related Security” below. 1

The Loans all have original maturities of between two and seven vears. No Loan is scheduled to be
repaid later than 18th July. 2007.

All of the Loans are secured by one or more first fixed charges by way of legal mortgage (or
equivalent in jurisdictions outside England and Wales) over freehold or long leasehold commercial or
residential property. All of the Loans. when originated. met the Lending Criteria in all material respects
save for certain variations or waivers of the criteria as would have been acceptable to a reasonably prudent
lender. and MSDW Bank will provide a warranty to this effect on the Closing Date.

Interest is pavable in relation to all of the L ans is at a fixed rate and accrues daily and is payable
quarterly in arrear. The interest rate is notified 1o [the relevant Borrower by MSDW Bank prior to making
the Loan. Voluntary prepavment in full or in part of the Loans is onlv permitted on a scheduled loan
pavment date or. except in the case of the Dutch Loans. subject to the payment of a Prepayment Fee, and
of any breakage cost on not less than 30 days’ prio notice to MSDW Bank.

All Property is let to third party tenants. Ce}nain matters conceming the tenancies could affect the
value of a Property: these are part of the normal|risks of lending on the security of let property and are
referred to at "Risk Factors - The Issuer's ability to meet its obligations under the Notes - the tenants”.

6. Terms of the Loans :
|

Each of the Loans is documented in a facility}:greement {the "Credit Agreement”) which is governed
by English or Irish law. The Credit Agreement ¢ontains the types of representations and warranties and
undertakings on the part of the Borrower that a reasonably prudent lender would usually require. MSDW
Bank is entitled to assign to the Issuer any of its rights under the Credit Agreement without restriction.

A summary of the principal terms of the standard form Credit Agreement is set out below. Material
amendments to the standard form are not generally accepted unless they are necessary to reflect the terms
and conditions of the particular loan. '
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(A) Loan Amount and Drawdown and Further Advances

The maximum amount of a loan is caiculated by reference to the lower of a pre-agreed percentage
(usually between 70 per cent. and 80 per cent.) of the value of the Property to be charged t the Security
Trustee for MSDW Bank as security (calculated by reference to the relevant Condition Precedent

Valuation).

None of the Loans places an obligation on MSDW Bank. and therefore. the Issuer io make any further
advance to a Borrower and. following the sale to the Issuer of the Loans and transfer of the beneficial
interests in the Security Trusts over the Mortgages and the Related Security. the Servicer will not be
permitted under the terms of the Servicing Agreement to make any further advances to Borrowers on

behalf of the Issuer.
(B) Conditions Precedent

The Conditions Precedent to a drawdown will vary depending upon the terms of the facility and nature
of the security to be created. However, certain documents (duly executed) are normally required in all
cases such as the Borrower's statutes of incorporation and appropriate board minutes; a Valuation in
respect of the Property being financed (and as appropriate structural surveys and-or environmental réports):
evidence of insurance cover in respect of the Property: a report on title in respect of the Property: security
documents (including those documents referred to above): all appropriate UK and other tax clearan¢es and
relevant legal opinions: and notices in connection with the assignment of rental income and charging of

bank accounts.
(C) Interest and Amortisation Paymeitts/Repayments

Interest is paid quarterly in arrear on the designated Interest Payment Dates and amortisation payments
are also made on Interest Payment Dates in accordance with a pre-determined Schedule.

A Borrower typically has the right to pre-pay the whole or any part of its Loan upon notice (usually
thirty days) being given, subject to payment of any breakage cost and to payment of the then applicable
prepayvment fee.

On each Interest Payment Date. moneys are debited from the Rent Account to discharge any :interest
and’or principal pavments due under the Credit Agreement. Subject to there being no Event of Default and
the Interest Cover Percentages being at or above a prescribed level (usually 125 per cent. but 115 per cent,
for two of the Dutch Loans and 120 per cent. for one of the Dutch Loans of the interest payable pursuant to
the relevant Credit Agreement in respect of the relevant period(s)). any surplus moneys standing to the
credit of the Rent Account on the relevant Interest Payment Date are paid to the relevant Borrower.

(D) Rent Account

Rental Income from a Property is paid into a Rent Account which is charged in favour of MSDW
Bank. See "Risk Factors", "The Issuer's ability to meet its obligations under the Notes — the tenants”.

(E) Representations and Warranties

The "standard" representations and warranties given by a Borrower typically include a representation
to the usual effect that the Borrower is validly incorporated and has the power. capacity and authority 1o
OWN its assets. to carry on its business and enter into the loan and security documentation.

The Borrower also warrants that no Event of Default or potential Event of Default under the Credit
Agreement and Security Documents will occur as a result of the loan being made and that it is not in
d_e_faul't under any other document to an extent which would be material: that there is no current material
litigation or other legal proceedings against the Borrower; and that the information supplied to MSDW
Bank (and any valuers) is true, complete and accurate.
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(F) Undertakings

The Borrower gives various undertakings which take effect so long as any amount is outstanding
under the relevant Loan.

The undertakings relate. inter alia, to the provi?;.ion of financial informa}ion on an ongoing basis: an
obligation to supply MSDW Bank with details of ishareholder documentation: .absence of any. material
Jitigation: any potential Event of Default: not to permit or allow any charge to arise over any of its assets
and not (without MSDW Bank's consent) to sell. trahsfer. lease or otherwise dispose of all or a substantial
part of its assets. -

The Borrower undertakes to insure all rele\'ani Properties in the full reinstatement value (on terms
acceptable to MSDW Bank) and within 10 days after each Interest Payment Date. to supply a certificate
setting out certain rental and tenancy information relating to each Property.

With regard to Interest Cover Percentages the Borrower undertakes that so long as they remain less
than a certain designated figure (usually 125 per cent.. but for three of the Loans. 115 per cent. and for one
of the Loans 120 per cent.. of the interest payable pursuant to the relevant Credit Agreement in respect of
the relevant period(s)) not to declare any dividend, issue further shares, repay any principal or pay interest
on any other borrowings or repay or redeem any share capital. The Borrower undertakes in any event to
ensure that the Interest Cover Percentages always exceed a certain prescribed figure (usually 110 per cent.)
of the interest pavable pursuant to the relevant Credit Agreement in respect of the relevant period(s).

(G) Events of Default

The Credit Agreement contains usual Events of Default entitling MSDW Bank to terminate the Loan
andior enforce its security. typically including non-payment of amounts due: breach of the Borrower's
other obligations under the Credit Agreement and Becurity Documents: misrepresentation; and the usual
acts of insolvency.

In relation to non-payment and breaches of other obligations grace periods are sometimes agreed but
in no instance for periods longer than 2 days or 7 days respectively. For the Dutch Loans. creditors’ orders
can stay in place for up to 14 days.

7. Terms of the Debenture

The standard form of Debenture secures all objigations of the Borrower to MSDW Bank pursuant to
the Credit Agreement and is drafted on a security tryist basis. so that the Security Trustee holds the security
created pursuant to the Debenture on trust for MBDW Bank. The company providing the security is
referred to below as the "Chargor”.

{4) Creation of Security

The standard form Debenture grants a first ranking charge or sub-charge by way of legal mortgage
over the Property and an equitable charge over any other property. plant and machinery. It grants a first
fixed charge over the Rent Account and any other dccount opened in connection with the Facility over the

benefit of any insurance policy relating to the Progerty: over book and other debts and over the goodwill

and uncalled capital of the Chargor. ,
It grants security over rights in respect of any’]agreemcm to purchase the property: a charge over the
benefit of any hedging arrangements (subject to netting and set-off provisions contained therein); and a
general floating charge over all other assets.

(B} Represenrtations and Warranties

The Chargor typically makes the usual representations and warranties (on the date the Debenture is
enter'ed. into, the date of any drawdown notice and on each Interest Payment Date) including to the effect
that it is the legal and beneficial owner of the Property; that there is no breach of any matter that might
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perty: nor any facility or right required for the necessary use and
enjoyment of the Property that is liable to be terminated: and that the Property is in good and substantial
repair and complies with all provisions of any applicable environmental law.

materially affect the value of the Pro

The representations and warranties referred to above are qualified (to the extent applicable) by the
report on title in relation to the relevant Property.

(C) Undertakings

The Chargor typically undertakes. inter alia. not to permit or allow any charge or gncumbrance to arise
over the Property or sell or dispose of any asset charged as security (save for assets charged by way pf
floating security only. and disposed in the ordinary course of business): that it will keep the Property In
good and substantial repair and that it will comply with obligations contained m any leases or covenants

and a!l statutes and obligations affecting the Property.
D) Enforceability

The security created by the Debenture is expressed {in the usual manner) to be enforceable
immediately upon its execution, but this is qualified by the provisions of the Credit Agreement which
provides that the Debenture may only be enforced once an Event of Default has occurred. The charge
confers upon the Security Trustee and any Receiver appointed by it a wide range of powers in connection
with the sale or disposal of the property and its management. and each of them is granted a power of
attorney on behalf of the Chargor in connection with the enforcement of its security.

8. Scottish, Irish, Northern Irish and Isie of Man Mortgages
r4) Scottish Mortgages

One of the Loans is partially secured over Scottish Properties by way of first-ranking standard security
(the "Scottish Mortgages"). which is the only means of creating a fixed charge or security over hgritable
or long leasehold property in Scotland. In relation to the Scottish Mortgages. references herein to a
"mortgage"”. a "mortgagor” and a "mortgagee” (or the "legal owner" of a Mortgage) are to be read as
references to such a standard security. the grantor thereof and the heritable creditor thereunder
respectively.

A statutory set of "Standard Conditions” is automatically imported into all standard securities,
including the Scottish Morigages. However. the majority of these Standard Conditions may be varied by
agreement between the parties. The Standard Conditions as varied will therefore form part of the mortgage
conditions relating to any Scottish Mortgage.

The main provisions of the Standard Conditions which cannot be varied by agreement relate to
enforcement. Generally, where a breach by a borrower entities the lender to enforce the security an
appropriate statutory notice must first be served. First. the lender may serve a "calling-up notice” requiring
repavment. in which case the borrower has two months to comply with the notice and in default the lender
may enforce its rights under the standard security by sale. entry into possession or the other remedies
provided by statute. A court application for possession is only necessary if the borrower fails to vacate the
property. Alternatively, in the case of remediable breaches. the lender may serve a "notice of default”, in
which case the borrower has only one month in which to comply with the notice. but also has the right to
object to the notice by court application within 14 days of the date of service. In addition, the lender may
in certain circumstances make a direct application to the court without the requirement of a preliminary
notice. The appropriate steps for enforcement therefore depend on the circumstances of each case. and the
Servicer (where appropriate. at the direction of the Trustee) will in practice proceed with the remedy most
likelv to be effective in enforcing or protecting the security.

52




(B) Irish Mortgages

| : .
The Dutch Loans are secured or partially secusity over lIrish Properties by way of first-ranking charges
and sub charge. :

A charge confers rights on the chargee in reppect of the property pursuant to the provisions of the
Registration of Title Act 1964. |

The provisions of the Conveyancing Acts 1881 and 1911 apply to charges. l_.J'pon breach of a charge.
the lender is entitled to apply to the High Court of Ireland for an order for possession of the property and 1o

appoint a TeCeIVer.

Charges are granted by the chargor "as beneficial owner” and "registered owner" (or "person entitled
10 be registered as owner”) and not "with full title guarantee” as in the English mortgages. However, the
covenants implied are essentially the same.

Charges and sub-charges are registrable in the Land Registry of Ireland. Priority is establis!xeq .by
reference to the order in which charges have been registered (subject to any agreement on priotities
between secured creditors). i

(C) Northern Irish Morigages

Certain of the Loans are secured or partially secured over Northern Irish Properties either by way of
first-ranking mortgage and sub-mortgage ot by way of first-ranking charge and sub-charge.

A mortgage under Northern Irish law represents a demise of the property by the mortgagor to the
mortgagee for a term of years, subject to the equity of redemption. If the title to the property is freehold,
the term is ten thousand years; if the title to the property is leasehold. the term is the unexpired term of the
Jease. A charge confers rights on the chargee in respect of the property pursuant 1o the provisions of the
Land Registration Act (Northern Ireland) 1970 ("1970 Act") (as amended).

The provisions of the Conveyancing Acts 1881 and 1911 apply to morigages and charges. Upon
breach of a mortgage or charge. the lender is entitled to apply to the High Court of Northern Ireland for an
order for possession of the property and to appoint a receiver.

Mortgages are granted by the mortgagor "as beneficial owner" and not "with full title guarantee” as in
the English mortgages. However. the covenants implied are essentially the same.

Mortgages and sub-mortgages are registrabl¢ in the Registry of Deeds. Belfast. Charges and sub-
charges are registrable in the Land Registry of Northern Ireland. Priority is established by reference to the
order in which mortgages or charges have been ri'gistered {subject to any agreement on priorities between
secured creditors). '

(D) Isle of Man Mortgages l

Cne of the Loans is partially secured over 1sl¢ of Man situated properties by way of first-ranking legal
montgages in Isle of Man form ("Conditional Bomhs and Security").

These comprise (1) a promise to repay and (,i'-!) a conveyance of the mortgaged property "in security”
whilst liabilities of the Bomower remain outstdnding. Once there are no outstanding liabilities the
mortgage is cancelled by deed executed by the lerider. Re-conveyance is not required.

In the event of breach, in addition to the exercise of such powers (for example, appointing a receiver)
as the mortgage itself may contain and confer on the lender, the lender may sue the borrower upon the
promise to repay. Any judgment obtained is put in the hands of a Court Official (the "Coroner”) who
"arrests” the morigaged property and sells it by public auction without reserve.
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Conditional Bonds and Security are recordable in the Isle of Man Registry of Dee;ls and priority s
established by the time of delivery of the deed for recording. All such delivery for recording must be made

personally and cannot be effected by post.

9. The Related Security

In addition 1o the Debenture. the Borrowers enter into and grant various further related security as
referred to above (see "Information on the Loans and Mortgages” above)

The charge over shares in the Borrower (the 'Share Charge ") creates a first fixed charge over all
shares legally or beneficially owned by the Mortgagor in the Borrower and all associated rights.

The Chargor gives the usual representations as to. inter alia, its incorporation and authoriy to enter
into the Share Charge and also undertakes in the usual manner. inter alia. not to charge further. sell.

transfer or otherwise dispose of the shares.

All borrowing obligations of the Borrower to a party other than MSDW Bank (the 'Subordinated
Lender") are fully subordinated to ali amounts due to MSDW Bank under the Credit Agreement. The
Borrower undertakes, inter alia. not to secure any part of the Subordinated Liabilities and not to repay all
or any part of the Subordinated Liabilities. This is usually qualified to the extent that surplus monies
released to the Borrower can be used to make such payments. The Subordinated Lender gives the usual
undertakings including in particular that it will not take any steps leading to the administration. winding up

or dissolution of the Borrower. -

Managing agents of property, pursuant to a duty of care agreement undertake to collect the Rental
Income and to pay the net amount into the Rent Account {without set-off or counterclaim) when received
and to notify MSDW Bank of any material breach or default on the part of a tenant or occupier of the
Property. or any damage to the Property.

10. Acquisition
Mortgage Sale Agreement
Consideration

Pursuant to the Mortgage Sale Agreement. MSDW Bank will agree to sell and the lssuer will agree to
purchase the Loans. and MSDW Bank will assign to the lssuer its beneficial interests in the Security Trusts
created over the Mortgages and Related Security on the Closing Date. The initial purchase consideration
in respect of the Loans and the beneficial interests in the Security Trusts will be £254.580,981, a sum
equivalent to the outstanding principal amount of the Loans on the Cut-Otf Date. which will be paid on the
Closing Date. On each Interest Payment Date prior to enforcement of the Issuer Security. the Issuer will
pay to MSDW Bank (or to the person or persons then entitled thereto or any component thereof) an
amount by way of deferred consideration for the purchase of the Loans. Mortgages and their Related
Security (the "Deferred Consideration”). if any. which is caiculated in respect of the Collection Period
ended on the Calculation Date immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date and which is equal to (a)
the Prepayment Amount received during that Collection Period, plus (b) the Available Interest Receipts
less an amount equal to the sum of the payments scheduled to be paid on such Interest Payment Date
pursuant to items (i) through (x) set out in "Summary — Available Funds and their Priority of Application —
Payments out of the Transaction Accounts prior to Enforcement of the Notes - Available Interest Receipts”
above. other than any amounts payable on such Interest Payment Date in respect of Interest Drawings and
interest on Interest Drawings and Principal Drawings made by the Issuer under the Liquidity Facility
Agreement (and save that, for the purposes of this determination. the amount of Deferred Consideration
calculated to be payable out of the Available Interest Receipts pari passy with Class A Notes will not be
taken into account). plus (¢) the Available Principal less an amount equal to the sum of all payments
scheduled to be paid pursuant to items (i) through (vi) as set out in "Summary — Available Funds and their
Priority of Application — Payments out of the Transaction Accounts prior to Enforcement of the Notes -
Available Principal” less (d) an amount equal to 0.01 per cent. of the Borrower Interest Receipts
transferred by the Servicer into the Transaction Accounts during that Collection Period provided that the
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resulting amount shall not be less than nil. Follq)wing enf_orcernem of the Issuer Security.. no Def‘erred
Consideration will be payable out of Available Interest Receipts. although Prepayment Fees. if any, will be
pavable to MSDW Bank or the person or perél.ons then enptled thereto. For avoidance of doubt.
Prepayment Fees payable upon the sale of a Property following eqforcgment of the relfite_(i Loan and
Mortgage shall be applied as Prepayment Fees énlv upon satisfaction 1n full of the. principal z?moum
outstanding under such Loan and all interest accrued due and payz_ible themgn. The right to receive the
Deferred Consideration or any component of the Deferred Consideration 1s assignable. subject to the
assignee agreeing to be bound by the terms of the Deed of Charge and Assignment.

Registration and Legal Title ‘

Within 15 Business Days of the Closing Dafte. written notice will be given to each Borrower and
Mortgagor of the transfer of the Loans to the Issuet and written notice will be given to the Security Trustee
of the assignment of MSDW Bank's beneficial interests in the Security Trusts to the Issuer and the Issuer's
assignment by way of security of such beneficial intterest.

Represemarians and Warranties

Neither the Issuer nor the Trustee has made (or will make) any of the enquiries. searches or
investigations which a prudent purchaser of the rélevant security would normally make in relation to the
Loans. Mortgages or Related Security purchased on the Closing Date In addition, neither the Issuer nor
the Trustee has made or will make any enquity. search or investigation at any time in relation to
compliance by MSDW Bank. the Servicer or any other person with the Lending Criteria or procedures or
their adequacy or in relation to the provisions of the Mortgage Sale Agreement. the Servicing Agreement
or the Deed of Charge and Assignment or in relation to any applicable laws or the execution. legality.
validity. perfection. adequacy or enforceability of any Loan. Mortgage or the Related Security purchased
on the Closing Date. :

In relation to all of the foregoing matters ¢oncerning the Loans. the Mortgages and the Related
Security and the circumstances in which advances were made to Borrowers prior to their purchase by the
Issuer. both the Issuer and the Trustee will rely entirely on the warranties to be given by MSDW Bank to
the Issuer and the Trustee which are contained in the Mortgage Sale Agreement.

If there is an unremedied material breach of anv representation andior warranty in relation to any
Loan. Mortgage or Related Security, MSDW Bank will be obliged to repurchase such Loan and to accept a
reassignment of its beneficial interest in the related Mortgage and the Related Security from the Issuer for
an aggregate amount equal to the outstanding principal amount under the relevant Loan together with
accrued interest and costs up to. but excluding. the date of the repurchase. The Issuer will have no other
remedy in respect of such a breach unless MSDW!Bank fails to purchase the relevant Loan, and to accept &
reassignment of its beneficial interest in the re]ate!d Mortgage and the Related Security in accordance with
the Mortgage Sale Agreement. [

The representations and warranties referred| to will include. without limitation, statements to the
following effect: l

(a) each Property constitutes investment property let predominantly for office. industrial. retail,
warehouse, residential, nursing honies. specialist care facilities. or car parking use and is
either freehold. heritable or leasehold:

(bh) in relation to each Mortgage (other than a Scottish Mortgage or an Irish Morigage), the
Mortgagor had. as at the date of thatl Mortgage. a good and marketable title to the fee simple
absolute in possession or a term of years absolute in the relevant Property and (i) is the legal
and beneficial owner of the relevant ;Property or {ii) where fegal and beneficial interests in the
Property are split, is the legal owner bf the Property and holds the beneficial interest on trust;

(c) in relation to each English Properfy and each Northem Irish Property, title to which is
registered, the title has been registered at H.M. Land Registry or the Land Registry of
Northern ireland (as applicable) with title absolute in the case of frechold property or absolute
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(e}

(f)

(i)

or good leasehold title (where the freehold title has been deduced) in the case of leasehold
property or. where registration at H.M. Land Registry or the Land Registry of Northemn
Ireland (as applicable) 1s pending. an application for registration with such title has been
delivered to H.M. Land Registry or the Land Registnv of Northern Ireland (as applicable)
within (in relation 1o the English Properties only) the priority period conferred by an official
search conducted against the relevant title at H.M. Land Registry before completion of the
purchase of the Property and in relation to each of the Properties situated m the Isle of Man
the deeds constituting the title have been recorded in the Deeds Registry of the Isle of Man:

each English Property and each Notthern Irish Property and each Property situated in the Isle
of Man was. as at the date of the relevant Mortgage. held by the Mortgagor free (save for the
Mortgage and its Related Security and save for any encumbrance which (i) is postponed 0
and ranks in priority behind the refevant Mortgage by virtue of a deed of priority or
postponement which. in the case of tegistered land, has been registered. or is in the course of
registration. at H.M. Land Registry or the Land Registry of Northemn Ireland (as applicable) or
(i} as created. ranked in point of priority behind the Mortgage) from any encumbrance which
would materially adversely affect such title or the value for mortgage purposes set out in the
valuation teferred to in paragraph (j) below (including any encumbrance contained in the
Jeases relevant to such Properties).

in relation to each Irish Mortgage. the Irish Morgagor had as at the date of that Morgage.
good and marketable freehold or long leasehold title in the reievant Irish Property and if the
irish Property is registered the title has been registered or is in the course of registration with
absolute freehold title or with absolute or good leasehold title and each Irish Property was. as
at the date of that Irish Mortgage. held by the Irish Mortgagor free (save for the Irish
Mortgage and its Related Security and save for any encumbrance which was taken into
account at the time the Loan was made) from any encumbrance which would materially and
adversely affect such title or the value for mortgage purposes set out in the valuation referred
1o in paragraph (j} below (including any encumbrances contained in the leases relevant to such
Properties).

in relation to each Scottish Mortgage. the Mortgagor had. as at the date of that Scottish
Mortgage. a valid and marketable prescriptive heritable or long lease title 1o the relevant
Property duly registered or in the course of registration (without exclusion of indemnity) in
the Land Register of Scotland or recorded or in the course of recording in the General
Register of Sasines (together. the "Registers of Scotland™) and each Scottish Property was. as
a1 the date of the relevant Scottish Mortgage. held by the Mortgagor free {save for the Scottish
Mortgage and its Related Security and save for any encumbrance which either (i) is postponed
to and ranks in priority behind the Scomish Mortgage by virtue of a ranking agreement
registered or recorded or in the course registration or recording in the Registers of Scotland or
{ii) as created. ranked in point of priority behind the Scotish Mortgage) from any
encumbrance which would materially and adversely affect such title or the value for mortgage
purposes set out in the valuation referred to in paragraph (j) below (including any
encumbrance contained in the leases relevant o such Scotush Properties):

in relation to each Isle of Man Property, the Mongagor had as at the date of the Mortgage
good and marketable freehold title to the relevant Isle of Man property.

in relation to any Mortgage where registration or recording is pending at H.M. Land Registry
or the Registers of Scotland or the Land Registry of Northern lreland or the Land Registry of
Ireland or the Deeds Registry of the Isle of Man (as applicable), the Security Trustee for
MSDW Bank took or is taking all reasonable steps to perfect its title to the Mortgage and has
an absolute right to be registered or recorded as proprietor or registered owner of the
Mortgage as first mortgagee or first chargee or first-ranking heritable creditor of the interest in
the relevant Property which is subject to that Mortgage:

in relation to each Loan, prior to making the initial advance. the Property charged as security
therefor was valued for MSDW Bank or MSDWMCI, as the case may be, by a qualified
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survevor or valuer and the principal amount advanced under the relevant Loan did not at the
date of the Loan exceed a certain propdrtion of the amount of each valuation (as set out in the
relevant Condition Precedent Valuatipn), the highest such proportion in the Loan and
Mortgage Pool being 80 per cent of the relevant valuation:

(A) each Loan constitutes a valid and |binding obligation of. and is enforceable against. the
relevant Borrower: (B) subject only. in the case of Morgages required 1o be registered or
recorded at H.M. Land Registry. the Registers of Scotland or the Land Registry of Northem
jreland or the Land Registry of Irelind or the Deeds Registry of the Isle of Man (as
applicable). to such registration or recording. each Mortgage is a valid and subsisting first
charge by way of legal mortgage or standard security on the Property to which such Morgage
relates. (C) subject as set out in (B) above (and except in relation to the Scottish Mortgages).
the Security Trustee for MSDW Bank has a good title to each Mortgage at law and all things
necessary to complete the relevant Security Trustee's title to each Morigage have been duly
done at the appropriate time or are in the process of being done. (D) subject as set out in (B)
above. in the case of each Scottish Moftgage. a Security Trustee for MSDW Bank has a valid
title to each such Mortgage and all!things necessary to complete the relevant Security
Trustee's title as heritable creditor théreunder (including an application for registration or
recording in the Registers of Scotland) have been duly done at the appropriate time or are in
the process of being done without undue delay. (E) the relevant Security Trustee is the legal
and MSDW Bank is the beneficial owner of each Mortgage. free and clear of all
encumbrances. overriding interests (other than those to which the Property is subject), claims
and equities and there were at the time of completion of the relevant Mortgage no adverse
entries of encumbrances or applications for adverse entries of encumbrances against any title
at H.M. Land Registry or the Registers of Scotland or the Land Registry of Northern Ireland
or the Land Registry of Ireland (as applicable) to any relevant Property which would rank in
priority to the relevant Security Trustee's or MSDW Bank's interests therein: and (F) MSDW
Bank is the legal and beneficial owner of each Loan free and clear of all incumbrances claims
and equities.

prior to the date of each Loan and Mortgage. the nature of. and amount secured by, the
relevant Loan and Mortgage and the circumstances of that Borrower and Mortgagor satisfied
in all material respects MSDW Bank's Lending Criteria so far as applicable subject to such
variations or waivers as would. as at trat date. have been acceptable to a reasonably prudent
lender of money secured on residential iand commercial property:

prior 1o completion of the relevant Lodn and Mortgage. a report on title or certificate of title
(addressed to MSDW Bank or MSDWMCL. as the case may be.) in relation to the relevant
Property was obtained which initially{or after further investigation disciosed nothing which
would cause a reasonably prudent lefider of money secured on residential and commercial
property to decline to proceed with the|advance on its agreed terms:

MSDW Bank is not aware of any matdrial default. material breach or material violation under
a Loan or Mortgage which has not been remedied. cured or waived (but only in a case where a
reasonably prudent lender of money secured on residential and commercial property would
grant such a waiver) or of any outstanding material default. material breach or material
violation by a Borrower or a Mortgagor under any Loan or Mongage, as the case may be, or
of any outstanding event which with the giving of notice or lapse of any grace period would
constitute such a default, breach or violation;

pursuant to the terms of each Loan. ng Borrower is entitled to exercise any right of set-off or
counterclaim against MSDW Bank in fespect of any amount that is payable under the Loans;

MSDW Bank has not received writtén notice of any default, forfeiture or irritancy of any
occupational leases between a Mortgagor landlord and a tenant in relation to the Properties or
of the insolvency of any tenant which would render the relevant Property unacceptable as
security for the advances accrued by the relevant Mortgage of that Property in the context of
the Lending Criteria; and ;
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(q)

(r)

{s)

(t

as at the Closing Date. to the best of MSDW’ Bank's knowledge:

(i) each Property is covered by a Buiidings Insurance Policv maintained by the
Mortgagor or another person with an interest in the relevant Property in an amount
which is equal to or greater than the amount which a qualified survevor or valuer
engaged by MSDW Bank estimated to be equal 10 such Property's reinstatement
value at the time of the original advance and MSDW Bank's interest has been noted
or is in the course of being noted on each policy or otherwise included by the insurers
under a "general interest noted” provision in the relevant policy: or

(in) the relevant tenant of the Property is a Self-Insured Enury.

MSDW Bank (or MSDWMCT in relation to that loans originated by it) have underiaken ail
due diligence that a prudent commercial lender would undertake to establish and confirm that
each of the Borrowers and Mortgagors has not engaged since its formation or incorporation in
any activity other than those incidental 1o its formation or incorporation entering into the
relevant Loan and relevant Mortgage and Related Security and has not had since its
incorporation nor does it have as at the Closing Date any material liability or assets other than
the relevant Loan and relevant Properties providing security for such Loan.

In relation to all Loans. Mortgages and Related Security originated by MSDWMCI or
confirmations relating to MSDWMCTI contained in the Mortgage Sale Agreement MSDW
Bank has received as at the date of completion of the novation of such loans to MSDW Bank
warranties in the same terms from MSDWMCI as are set out above and contained in the
Mortgage Sale Agreement.

In the Credit Agreements between MSDWMCI and the First Principal Borrowers each dated
14th April 2000, the First Principal Borrowers have covenanted that they shall comply with
all laws and regulations applicable to the conduct of their business including. as appropriate:

(a) in the case of a Property located in England and Wales, the Registered Homes Act
1984

(b) in the case of a Property located in Scotland. the Nursing Homes Registration
{Scotland) Act 1938 or the Social Work (Scotland) Act 1968 (as applicable):

{c) in the case of a Property located in Northern Ireland. the Registered Homes (Northern)
Ireland) Order 1992: and

(d) in the case of a Property located in the Isle of Man. the Nursing and Residential Homes
Act 1988.

No warranties will be given in relation to any Related Security given by any Borrower. Therefore,
except to the limited extent of the aforementioned warranty. there can be no assurance that there will be
anv Related Security for a Loan or, if there is. that such Related Security will be of any value in connection
with the enforcement of any Loan or will realise any moneys which can be applied in satisfaction of any
amounts outstanding from any Borrower under the relevant Loan.

The Mortgage Sale Agreement contains a warranty from MSDW Bank to the Issuer and the Trustee to
the effect that the information in this Offering Circular with regard to the Loans, the Mortgages, the
Related Security, the Properties and the buildings insurance policies which is material in the' context of the
issue f'md the offering of the Notes. is true and accurate 1n all material respects and is not misleading in any
material respect. Only the Issuer and the Trustee may rely upon this warranty from MSDW Bank.




11. Disposal and Substitution of Properties
pisposal of Properties

Under the terms of the Loans, the relevant Bbrrower is permitted to dispose of Prope_rties charged
rovided that the disposal does not trigger an evert of default under the Loan and that various tests are

satisfied, as follows:

i in some Loans (mainly those where thére is more than one Property) the Borrower is entitled
to dispose of a Property if the net disposal proceeds of such Property are 115 per cent, or more
of the principal amount initially advanced by MSDW Bank in respect of that Property. If
there is a shortfall. the Borrower will only be permitted to sell the Propenty if an amount equal
to such shortfall is deposited with MSDW Bank:

(ii) in some Loans (mainly those with a single Property} disposals are only permitted with MSDW
Bank's consent, although such consent shall be deemed to be given if the net disposals
proceeds are sufficient to prepay the Loan and related expenses in full;

(i1} the Borrower shall ensure that the net {ﬂisposal proceeds of any Property are immediately paid
into a blocked sales account under which MSDW Bank has sole signing rights: and

(iv) MSDW Bank may authorise a withdrawal under the blocked sales account to make the
necessary prepayment under the Loan following the sale of the Property.

Under the terms of some of the Loans, where disposals are permitted and the net sale proceeds are paid
into a blocked sales account. the Borrower is permitted to request withdrawals of the amounts in the
blocked sales account to purchase additional or substitute properties or to undertake capital expenditure,
subject to there being:

n no subsisting default under the Loan: and
(i) a certain interest cover percentage being maintained under the Loan.

Further details of the substitution provisions ai:plicable to the First Principal Borrowers are set out in
Appendix 1. |

Substitution of Properties i
The Borrower will require the consent of MISDW Bank to substitute a Property. The necessary
consent may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed where the aggregate value of those Properties
already released together with the value of the Property to be released (in each case caiculated by reference
to the relevant Condition Precedent Valuation) if below a certain percentage of the relevant Condition
Precedent Valuation (which in most Loans is 15 p{:r cent.) provided that, inter alia:
!
() the additional Property is similar in nfature and quality in all material respects to the Property
being released: and [

(i) the net rental income from the additional Property and the remaining properties is sufficient to
enable the Borrower to meet its obligations under the Loan.

Any substitution above this percentage level|is subject 1o the consent of MSDW Bank (in its sole
discretion) and the approval of the Rating Agency.
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inter alig. a satisfactory report and valuation being
atisfactory first ranking legal mortgages or standard securities in favour of

Any substitution of a property is subject 10.

prepared and the granting of s
the Security Trustee for MSDW Bank {and in favour of the Security Trustee holding the same on trust tor

the Issuer. whose beneficial interest will be charged to the Trustee. following the Closing Dat¢).
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THE STRUCTURE 'OF THE ACCOUNTS

1. The Rent Accounts

In accordance with the terms of each of the Credit Agreements. each of the Borrowers is required to
establish or procure that there is established an account (a 'Rent Accoun_t") into which the rents payab!e
by the tenants occupying the relevant Property or Eroperties are to pe paid. Each such Rent Acqount is
expressed to be subject to a first fixed charge in favour of the Security Trustee on trust for MSDW Bank.
The beneficial interests of MSDW Bank in such trusts will be assigned by MSDW Bank to the Issuer as
part of the Related Security when the beneficial inte;re.-SI in the Related Security in relation to a Borrower is
assigned. The Borrowers are required to make payments in arrear in respect of their Loans by one of the
following methods: :

(a) Where a managing agent has been appointed on behalf of a Borrower (each. a 'Managing
Agent"). the Managing Agent will collect all rent. service charges and VAT from tenants and
promptly pay these {net of any ground rent. service charges and VAT) into a Rent Account in
the name of the Borrower or Mortgagdr. Each Borrower has agreed to ensure or to procure
that any Managing Agent of a Property ensures that all net rental income is paid into the Rent
Account, and the Issuer will have the benefit of a duty of care agreement from the Managing
Agent under the terms of which the Managing Agent agrees to collect rent and to notify the
Issuer of any tenant breach of covenant. any damage to the Property or the termination of its
own appointment. 5

(b) Where no Managing Agent has beeni appointed on behalf of a Borrower. tenants will be
required to pay rent directly to the Bortower's Rent Account.

ic) In the case of two of the Loans, rents payable by tenants occupying the relevant Properties are
paid initially into a separate "collection” account which is not specifically charged. The
Borrowers in the case of these Loans must transfer from this account into the Rent Account at
Jeast five Business Days prior to each Repayment Date sufficient to discharge the interest and
any amortisation due as of such date. ‘Each such Borrower has also deposited into a separate
account charged in favour of the Security Trustee. (a "Cash Collateral Account”), as
additional security. a sum equal to the aggregate of the maximum interest and amortisation
pavable by such Borrower as of any Loan Payment Date.

In each case. MSMS is and. following the sale ¢f the Loans and assignment of the beneficial interest in
the Security Trusts created over the Mortgages and Related Security to the Issuer. will remain the sole
signatory on each Borrower's Rent Account. Under the Credit Agreements, MSMS. on behalf of the Issuer,
will be entitled to withdraw on each Loan Payment|Date all amounts due to the Issuer under the applicable
Loan before other payments are released to the Borrower from the applicable Rent Account, Under the
Servicing Agreement. the Servicer is required. follawing the Closing Date. to notify each of the Borrowers
that MSDW Bank has assigned the relevant Loan ¢ | the Issuer.

The charges over the Rent Accounts and the dash Collateral Accounts described above are expressed
to be fixed charges but may take effect as floating charges. See "Risk Factors”.
|

2. Borrower Blecked Accounts E

In some cases. the Borrower is required to njaintain a further blocked account into which specific
pavments are to be made and may only be released either to prepay the Loan or as otherwise agreed by
MSDW Bank. In particular, where a Borrower is dllowed to dispose of a Property. net sales proceeds may
be required to be paid into such an account.
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3. The Issuer's Accounts
The Transaction Accounts

Pursuant to the Cash Management Agreement. the Operating Bank will open and maintain two
accounts in the name of the Issuer. one denominated 1n sterling. the other in euro. into which the Servicer
will transfer all amounts of principal and interest paid by the Borrowers. and the Cash Manager will make

all payments required to be made under the Cash Management Agreement ("Transaction Accounts ).
The Swap Collateral Cash Account and the Swap Collateral Custody Account

If the Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex is entered into. cash amounts received by the Issuer
pursuant to the Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex will be paid into an interest bearing account in the
name of the lssuer with the Operating Bank (the "Swap Collateral Cash Account”) and securities
received by the Issuer pursuant to the Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex will be deposited into a
custody account (the "Swap Collateral Custody Account”) with the Operating Bank. From time to ume,
subject to the conditions to be specified in the Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex. the Swap Provider
will make transfers of collateral to the Issuer in support of its obligations under the Swap Agreement and
the Issuer will be obliged to return such collateral in accordance with the terms of the Swap Agreement

Credit Support Annex.

The Swap Collateral Cash Account. the Swap Collateral Custody Account and the Transaction
Accounts are together referred to as the "Issuer's Accounts”.

The Standby-Account

Any Stand-by Drawing which the Issuer may require from the Liguidity Facility Provider {see "Credit
Structure - Liguidity Facility”. ) shall be credited to an account in the name of the Issuer (the 'Stand-by
Account”) with the Liquidity Facility Provider or. if the Liquidity Facility Provider ceases to have the
Requisite Rating. the Operating Bank or. if the Operating Bank ceases 10 have the Requisite Rating. a bank
which has the Requisite Rating.
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THE LOAN AND'MORTGAGE POOL

The aggregate of the principal balances withiné the Loan and Mortgage Pool. as at the Cut-Off Date,
was £254.580,981. All of the Loans are current as of the Cut-Off Date.

i The Loans had, at origination. a weighted average maturity of _ap_proximately 26 quarters
‘approximately 6.6 years). The Loans bear interest; quarter.ly on the current principal balance 'outstandulg
‘ (the "Current Principal Balance”). Each Loan may consist gf one or more tranches (each a 'l‘rapche )
which may differ in terms of interest rate characteristics. principal repayment profile and maturity. in

addition. each Loan may be secured by a first fixed charge on more than one Property.

The following pages contain certain tables setting out statistics relating to the Loan and Mortgage
pool. The defined terms set forth in and the assumptions behind the tables are as follows:

{a) “Cut-Off Date” means the date as at which the information is provided. being 19th June,
2000. 1
(b} "Mortgage Rate" means the contractial rate of interest that the Borrower is requited to pay

under the relevant Loan.

’ {c) "Remaining Term to Maturity" megns the number of quarterly periods remaining to the
maturity date of the Loan as of the Cut-Off Date.

{d) "Last Pavment DSCR" means the Debt Service Coverage Ratio ("DSCR") calculated as at
origination by reference to the last loan interest and principal payment date before the final
payment of the balloon principal at the maturity date {rather than at the Cut-Off Date or any
other date). This is because most of the Loans in the Loan and Mortgage Pool will not start to
amortise within the first year and will btart to amortise on different dates.

(e} "Cut-Off Date LTV " means the loan t:o value ratio of the Loan as of the Cut-Off Date and the
relevant Property value as set out in the relevant Condition Precedent Valuation.

() "Balloon LTV " means the loan to value ratio of the Loan determined by using the value of
the relevant Property as set out in:the relevant Condition Precedent Valuation and the
projected principal amount of the Lgan outstanding as at the maturity date. The balloon
payments are expected to be paid on the maturity date.

. Because the calculation of the Last Payment DSCR is based on the amount of rent expected on the
] final payment date. it is important to take into dccount the method by which the rental cashflows are
modelled. The assumptions on which the rental cashflows model is based are the following:
]
[
{a) For each lease agreement, the contracfual rent from the tenant is received by the Borrower up
to either the maturity date or the break| option date. where one is present.

(b} When the lease agreement involves a contractual rent increase. such contractual rent increase
is taken into account.

(c) The rent received from tenants is net d¢f both ground rent and irrecoverable property expenses.

{d) At either the maturity date or the break option date, where a break option is present in the
lease agreement. it is assumed that the tenant leaves/exercises the break option and the space
vacates. ;

(e} The time assumed to re-let a vacant sgace is six months for most of the Loans.

(f It is also assummed that the space is re-let for a term of five years and for a rent equal to the

previous contractual rent (no increase in the rent has been assumed).
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When a space is originally vacant. it is assumed that such space remains always vacant.

(gl

th) For the Dutch Loans denominated in euro. the exchange rate used i the following tables 15 1
euro = £0.6321 as at 19th june. 2000.
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Cut-Off Date Loan-to-Value Ratios
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Cut-Off Date Interest Coverage Ratios
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Region
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Amortisation Schedule

Pavment Dave of Motes Scheduled Amartisation Funds due under Loans

)

18- Jul-(H} NS00
18-Or-tiy ESFRLY]
18-Jan-01 4100
18- apr-il ERINEEY]
BN EH Ry
[ENsEATH RV
Is-Jan-u2 ALY
IE-Apr-i2 oA
PR-Jul02 ey
18-Gut-02 3nd
18-I2n-03 Snd
iR Apr-03 Bhd
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SERVICING

[ntroduction

Pursuant to the Servicing Agreement. each of the Issuer. the Security Trustee and the Trgstee wgli appoint
MSMS as the Servicer and the Special Servicer to be its agent 10 provide Fenain services in relation t0 the
Loans and the Security Trusts comprising the Moftgages and Related Security. Each of the Servicer ;md the
Special Servicer has agreed with the Issuer. the! Secnnry_Trqstee anq the Trustee that in per'formmg the
services 1o be performed under the Servicing Agreement it will exercise the same level of Tc,klll. care all1d
diligence that it would apply if it were administeﬁng_moﬂgages over residential and cor'nme.rcml property 1
respect of which it is the mortgagee and that it will comply with any _reasona.ble dyrecnons. orde-rs and
instructions which the Issuer. the Security Trustee or the Trustee may from time to time give to the Servicer or
the Special Servicer. as the case may be. in accordance with the provisions of the Servicing Agreement.

Each of the Servicer and the Special Servicer i5 required to adhere to the above standards without regard to
anv fees or other compensation 10 which it is entifled. any relationship it may have with any borrower or any
other party to the transaction. the different payment priorities among the Notes or the ownership of any Note
by the Servicer or Special Servicer or any affiliate thereof. Each of the Servicer and the Special Servicer may
become the owner or otherwise hold an interest in the Notes with the same rights as each would have if it were
not the Servicer or Special Servicer. as the case miy be. Any such interest of the Servicer or Special Servicer
in the Notes will not be taken into account by any person when evaluating whether actions of the Servicer or
Special Servicer were consistent with above standards.

pavments from Borrowers

Pursuant to the Servicing Agreement. the Set%vicer is required to calculate from time to time the various
amounts which are to be paid out of the Rent Accounts. On each Calculation Date and otherwise as required
by the Issuer and the Trustee from time to time, the Servicer will calculate. with respect to the Collection

Period then ended:

(@) Borrower Interest Receipts:
(b) Borrower Principal Receipts: and |
{c) the Prepavment Amount.

and will determine which portions of Bomower Principal Receipts in the Rent Accounts consist of
Scheduled Amortisation Funds. Prepayment Redemption Funds and Final Redemption Funds. The Servicer
will. from time to time. determine all Revenue Priority Amounts and all Principal Priority Amounts required to
be paid by the Issuer.

As part of its duties to provide services under the Servicing Agreement. the Servicer is required to transfer
pavments from the various Rent Accounts into Ithe Transaction Accounts whereupon such moneys will be
applied by the Cash Manager in accordance wit the Cash Management Agreement and the Deed of Charge
and Assignment. See "Cash Management".

Annual Review Procedure

The Servicer is required 1o undertake an ahnual review in respect of each Borrower and its Loan in
accordance with its servicing procedures (the "MSMS Servicing Procedures”). The Servicer is authorised to
conduct this review process more frequently if the Servicer, acting as a reasonably prudent lender of money
secured on residential and commercial property, has cause for concern as to the ability of the Borrower to meet
its financial obligations under its Loan. Such'a review may include an inspection of Properties and will
include consideration of the quality of the cash flow arising from the Properties and a compliance check of all
of the Borrower's covenants under the relevant Loan. The Special Servicer has agreed to assist the Servicer by
providing such information as it may have which may be needed by the Servicer for the carrying out of any
such review and available to the Special Servicer.




Quarterly Arrears Report

The Servicer has agreed to deliver to the Issuer. the Trustee. the Special Se:jvicer. the C as_'.h Mapagq ar}d
the Rating Agency. within 10 Business Days after the end of each Interest Period. a report in which it will
notify the Issuer. the Trustee. the Special Servicer. the Cash Manager and the Rating Agency of any LF)ans
then known by the Servicer to be in arrears or in respect of which the Borrower or th‘e Mortgagor 15 knom} by
the Servicer to be in breach of any other term of its Loan. Mortgage or Related Secupry. The Special Servicer
has agreed to assist the Servicer by providing such information as it may have‘ which may be needed by the
Servicer for the production of any such report and available to the Spe'cml Ser\jcer. A summary of each such
report produced (or. if more than one. the most recent report} will be 1nc!ud.ed in the quarterly imvestor repoit
available to Noteholders on request from the Trustee. Such report will include, among other things. the

following:

{a) a calculation of all collections in respect of the Ioans including Borrower Interest Receipts.
Borrower Principal Receipts and resales 1o MSDW Bank pursuant to the Mortgage Sale
Agreement.

{b) a listing of those Loans that were 1-90 days in arrears. 91-180 days in arrears and over 180 days
in arrears:

{c) a listing of those Loans in respect of which enforcement had begun at the end of the most recently

ended Collection Period. including the individual Loan and total arrears balances. the number of
such Loans 1-3 months in arrears, 4-6 months in arrears and more than 6 months in arrears:

(d) details of Loans in which enforcement procedures were completed and the amounts written-off;

{e) details of Loans in which the applicable Borrower or Mortgagor or Mortgagors are known by the
Servicer to be in breach of any term of their Loan or Mortgage likely to prejudice the value of the
relevant Loan or Mortgage: and

(f) details of Loans previously written-off on which recoveries were made during the most recently
ended Collection Period.

Arrears and Default Procedures

The Servicer will initially be responsible for the supervision and monitoring of payments falling due in
respect of all Loans. Each of the Servicer and the Special Servicer is required to use all reasonable endeavours
10 recover amounts due from defaulting Borrowers. Each of the Servicer and the Special Servicer has agreed,
in relation to any default under or in connection with a Loan. Mortgage and its Related Security. to comply
with the procedures for enforcement of Loans, Mortgages and Related Security of the Servicer or the Special
Servicer. as the case may be. current from time to time (the "Enforcement Procedures") or, to the extent that
the Enforcement Procedures are not applicable having regard 1o the nature of the default in question. to take
such action. and to exercise such discretion in respect of such default. as would a reasonably prudent lender of
money secured on residential and commercial property. Such procedures for enforcement include the giving
of instructions to the Security Trustee as to how to enforce the security held by the Security Trustee pursuant
to the Security Trusts.

MSMS has agreed with the Issuer. the Security Trustee and the Trustee to act initially as Special
Servicer (the ‘Special Servicer”) in respect of any Loan which becomes a Specially Serviced Loan. A
"Specially Serviced Loan" is a Loan in respect of which the Interest Cover Percentage (being the proportion
(expressed as a percentage) which the net rental income payable to or for the benefit of the Borrower
thereunder over a period of three months in connection with the Property or Properties the subject of that Loan
bears to the amount of interest payable on such Loan in respect of the same period) is equal to or less than 110
per cent. Notwithstanding the appointment of the Special Servicer in respect of a Specially Serviced Loan, the
Servicer wili continue to have certain limited responsibilities relating to Loan Administration in respect of the
Specially Serviced Loan, but shall not be liable for the actions of the Special Servicer. For twelve of the
Loans, if the Interest Cover Percentage of a Loan is equal to or less than 125 per cent. but greater than 110 per
cent., for three of the Loans if the Interest Cover Percentage is equal to or less than 115 per cent.,-but greater
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10 per cent. and for one of the Loans if the Interest Cover Percentage is equal to or less th_an 120 per
cent. but greater than 110 per cent. then the Servicer shall promptly give notice theregf 10 th_e Spe_c:al Servicer
and shall consult with the Special Servicer in relation to the future servicing Or eXercise of rights in respect of

that Loan. Mortgage and’or Related Security.

than 1

Upon the instructions of the Issuer. the Trustee. the Servicer or. as the case may be.‘the Special Se'1-v.|cer
(where appointed in respect of a Specially Serviced Loan). the Security Trustee shall. subjgct to the provisions
of the relevant Mortgage and the document constituting the Security Trust. appoint a recever apd if it doe‘s 50
s authorised by the Issuer. Trustee. Servicer or. as the case may be. Special Servicer to agree with the recetver
a strategy for best preserving the Issuer’s rights and securing any available money from the rele\_'ant Pfoperty.
which mav in certain circumstances involve the receiver managing the relevant Propf:rty {including the
handling of pavments of rent} for a period of time! and/or seeking to sell the Property to a third party.

If a Property is sold pursuant to the implementation of the Enforcement Procedures. the net proceeds of
sale (after payment of the costs and expenses of the sale) will. together with any amount payable on any related
insurance contracts. be applied against the sums owing from the Borrower to the extent necessary to repay and
discharge the Loan. 5

fnsurance

The Servicer will. on behalf of the Trustee. the Security Trustee and the Issuer. administer the
arrangements for insurance in respect of. or in connection with, the Loans, the Mortgages and the Related
Securitv. The Servicer will establish and maintain procedures to ensure that all buildings insurance policies
are renewed on a timely basis.

Upon receipt of notice that any policy of buildings insurance has lapsed or that any Property is otherwise
not insured against fire and other perils (including subsidence) under a comprehensive buildings insurance
policy or similar policy in accordance with the terms of each Loan, the Servicer or the Special Servicer (i.n
respect of a Specially Serviced Loan) is required. at the cost of the Issuer. to ammange such insurance, except n
respect of any Borrower or tenant who is a Self-Insured Entitv. Under the terms of the Loans. each Borrower
will be required to reimburse the Issuer for such costs of insurance. See also "Risk Factors - Insurance”.

Delegation by the Servicer and the Special Sel?vicer

Each of the Servicer and the Special Servider may. in certain circumstances. without the consent of the
Issuer. the Security Trustee or the Trustee, sib-contract or delegate its obligations under the Servicing
Agreement. Notwithstanding any sub-contractirjg or delegation of the performance of any of its obligations
under the Servicing Agreement. the Servicer or the Special Servicer. as the case may be, shall not be re]easecl.
or discharged from any liability thereunder and shall remain responsible for the performance of its obligations
under the Servicing Agreement by any sub-contractor or delegate.

Servicing Fee ;

Pursuant to the Servicing Agreement. the Isguer will pay to the Servicer (or the person then entitled to the
Servicing Fee) on each Interest Payment Date|the Servicing Fee at the rate of 0.10 per cent. per annum
texclusive of VAT) of the aggregate outstanding principal balance of the Loans (other than Specially Serviced
Loans in respect of which the Special Servicer is being paid the Special Servicing Fee) at the beginning of the
Collection Period to which that Interest Paymjent Date relates. The Servicing Fee, or any part of such
Servicing Fee, is assignable by the Servicer, subject to the assignee agreeing to be bound by the terms of the
Deed of Charge and Assignment. Following any termination of MSMS's appointment as Servicer, the
Servicing Fee will be paid to any substitute servicer appointed: provided that in respect of a termination by the
Servicer the Servicing Fee may be payable at a H:igher rate agreed in writing by the Trustee (but which does not
exceed the rate then commonly charged by providers of loan servicing services secured on residential or
commercial properties) to any substitute servicet.

Both before enforcement of the Notes and tk;&ereafter (subject to certain exceptions), the Issuer will pay the
Servicing Fee to the Servicer and will reimburse the Servicer for all costs and expenses incurred by the
Servicer in the enforcement of a Loan, Mortgage and its Related Security (including any substitute servicer).
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Prior to an enforcement of the Issuer Security. the Servicing Fee is pavable in priority to payvments on the
Notes until the Interest Pavment Date on which the aggregate Principal Amount Outstanding. net of Principal
Shortfalls. of the Notes. after providing for all amounts to be applied in redemption of the Notes or any class
thereof on such Interest Pavment Date, is less than 10 per cent. of the aggregate Principal Amount Qutstanding
of the Notes on the date of issuance thereof. On each Interest Payment Date following the lntgrgst Pa_vmm_u
Date referred to in the previous sentence and prior to enforcement of the Issuer Securiry. the Sernvicing lfee will
be subordinated to the amounts pavable on the Notes. Following enforcement of the lIssuer Security. the
Servicing Fee will be payable in prioritv to pavments on the Notes. This order of priority has been agreed with
a view to procuring the continuing performance by the Servicer of its duties in relation to the Issuer. the
Security Trustee. the Trustee. the Loans, the Mortgages. the Related Security and the Notes. See "Credit

Structure™.
Special Servicer Fee and Liquidation Fee

Pursuant to the Servicing Agreement, if the Special Servicer is appointed in respect of a Loan that is
designated as a Specially Serviced Loan. the Issuer shall pay to the Special Servicer a fee (2 "Special
Servicing Fee") equal 1o 0.15 per cent. per annum (exclusive of VAT) of the outstanding principal amount of
the borrowing by the Borrower under that Specially Serviced Loan. for a period commencing on the date such
Loan is designated as a Specially Serviced Loan and ending on the date the Property the subject of such Loan
is sold on enforcement or the date on which the Interest Cover Percentage in respect of such Loan has been
maintained at or above 110 per cent. for a period of three consecutive months. as applicable. The Special
Servicing Fee shall accrue on a daily basis over such period and shall be pavable on each Interest Payment
Dare commencing with the Interest Pavment Date following the date on which such period begins and ending
on the Imerest Pavment Date following the end of such period. No Servicing Fee shall be payable in respect of
any Specially Serviced Loan in respect of which the Special Servicing Fee is payable. In addition to the
Special Servicing Fee. the Special Servicer shall be entitled to a fee (a ‘Liquidation Fee") in respect of a
Specially Serviced Loan equal to up to 1 per cent. (exclusive of VAT) of the proceeds (net of costs and
expenscs of sale). if any. arising on the sale of the Property securing such Specially Serviced Loan. The
Liquidation Fee shall be negotiated (subject to a maximum fee of 1 per cent. of net proceeds. as descnbed
above) and agreed by the Conuolling Party and the Special Servicer in respect of each relevant Specially
Serviced Loan. and notified to the Trustee and the Servicer in writing. and shall be payable out of Final
Redemption Funds allocated to Available Interest Receipts on the Interest Payment Date immediately
following the receipt of such net proceeds. provided that no amount shall be pavable to the Special Servicer in
respect of a Liquidation Fee if and to the extent that. on such Interest Payment Date. a Principal Shortfall
would be allocable to any class of Notes, other than the most junior ¢lass of Notes outstanding immediately
prior to such Interest Payment Date. by reason of the deduction of the Liquidation Fee from the net proceeds of
sale.

Termination of Appointment of Servicer or Special Servicer

The appointment of the Servicer or the Special Servicer under the Servicing Agreement may be terminated
by the Trustee following a termination event. by voluntary termination or by automatic termination.

The Trustee may terminate the Servicer's or Special Servicer's appointment under the Servicing
Agreement upon the occurrence of a termination event in respect of that entity, including. inter alia. a default
m the payment on the due date of any pavment to be made by it under the Servicing Agreement, or, in certain
circumstances, a default in performance of any of its other material covenants or obligations under the
Servicing Agreement. or in the event that an order is made or an effective resolution passed for its winding up
or it becomes insolvent. On the termination of the appointment of the Servicer or. as the case may be, the
Special Servicer by the Trustee, the Trustee may. subject to certain conditions. appoint a substitute servicer or,
as the case may be. substitute special servicer. If the appointment of the Special Servicer is tenminated in
respect of any Loan {(otherwise than by reason of that Loan ceasing to be a Specially Serviced Loan) and a
successor is not appointed in accordance with the Servicing Agreement. the Servicer will assume the duties
and obligations of the Special Servicer in respect of that Loan,

_ _ln addition. upon any reduction to zero of the aggregate Principal Amount Outstanding under the most
junior c!ass of Notes outstanding at any time (whether by reason of the allocation of Principal: Shortfalls,
redemption of such Notes or otherwise), the holders of the next most junior class of Notes then outstanding
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shall be entitled. by an Extraordinary Resolution’ passed by the Controtling Pgny (as deﬁned in.C ondition
4(O)). to require the Trustee 10 terminate the appointment of the person then acting as Special Servicer and to
appoint a successor thereto acceptable to the Contrblling Party.

Each of the Servicer and the Special Servicér may terminaie its appointment upon not less than tIilree
months' notice to each of the Issuer. the Security Trustee. the Trustee and th; Servicer or the Speqlal SEI’\']CFT
(whichever is not purporting to give notice) provided that a qualified substitute servicer or s?u!asntute special
servicer. as the case may be. shall have been appointed and agreed to be boupd by the Servicing Agreement
and the Deed of Charge and Assignment, such appointment to be effect‘n'e not later Fhan the date of
termination. and provided further that the Rating Agency has provided written confirmation that the then
applicable ratings of the Notes will not be dowpgraded. wnthdra“n. or qualified as a result'thereof unless
othenwise agreed by an extraordinary resolution of separate class meetings of each class of the Noteholders.

On termination of its appointment, the Servicer or the Special Servicer. as the case may be. shall forthwith
deliver to the Trustee or as it shall direct all documents. information, computer stored data and moneys held by
it in relation to its appointment as Servicer or the Special Servicer. as the case may be. and shall take suph
further action as the Trustee may reasonably direct to enable the services of the Servicer or the Special
Servicer. as the case may be. to be performed by a:substitute thereof.

The Servicing Agreement will terminate automatically at such time as neither the Issuer nor the Security
Trustee nor the Trustee has any further interest in any of the Loans or the Mortgages or. if later, upon
discharge of ali of the liabilities of the 1ssuer to the Secured Parties.

Receivers

Pursuant to the Servicing Agreement. the Trustee. the Security Trustee and the Issuer have authorised the
Servicer and the Special Servicer, as necessary, to give a receiver appointed pursuant to a Mortgage or its
Related Security an indemnity on their behalf provided that the indemnity is required by the receiver as a
condition of its appointment or continued appdintment and reasonable endeavours to appoint a suitably
qualified and experienced receiver without the provision of such an indemnity have been taken by the Security
Trustee {or the entity giving instructions to the Security Trustee) and provided further that the terms of any
indemnity would be acceptable to a reasonably prident lender of money secured on residential and commercial
property.

The Servicer or the Special Servicer. as the case may be. and the Security Trustee will use its best
endeavours to ensure that the receiver appointed in respect of any Loan. Mongage and/or Related Security
shall sell any such assets as soon as possible after such receiver's appointment.

General

In addition to the duties described above. the Servicer is required under the Servicing Agreement to
perform duties customary for a servicer of mortgage loans such as retaining or arranging for the retention of
L oan and Mortgage deeds and other documents in| safe custody and software licensing and sub-licensing.

The Servicer or the Special Servicer (in respe¢ct of a Specially Serviced Loan) on behalf of the Issuer, the
Security Trustee and the Trustee may agree to any request by a Borrower to vary or to amend certain terms of
the relevant mortgage conditions, subject to any such variation or amendment satisfying certain conditions set
out in the Servicing Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing. neither the| Servicer nor the Special Servicer will be liable for any
obligation of a Borrower or a Mortgagor under any Loan, Mortgage or any Related Security, have any liability
to any third party for the obligations of the Issuer or the Trustee under the Notes or any of the documents listed
under paragraph 10 of "General Information” (th¢ "Relevant Documents”) or have any liability to the Issuer,
the Trustee, the Noteholders or any other person for any failure by the Issuer to make any payment due by it
under the Notes or any of the Relevant Documnents unless such failure by the Issuer results from a failure by
the Servicer or the Special Servicer, as the case may be, to perform its obligations under the Servicing
Agreement. '
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¢ as to whether 10 exercise its option to redeem the Notes pursuant

The Servicer may also advise the Issue
to Condition 6(d).
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CASH MANAGEMENT

Cash Manager

Pursuant to an agreement to be entered into ion or prior to the Closing Date berween the' Issuer. the
Gervicer, the Special Servicer. the Trustee, the Cash Manager. the Operating .Bank and MSD“ Bapk (zhe
nCash Management Agreement"), each of the Issiier and the Trustee will appoint AlIB lptemauonal Financial
Services Ltd (in this capacity. the Cash Manager”) to be its agent [0 provide certain cash management
services in relation 1o the Issuer's Transaction Accounts. as ar¢ more particularly described below. The C a_sh
Manager will undertake with the Issuer and the Trustee that in performing the services to_be perfqrmed and in
exercising its discretion under the Cash Management Agreement. the Cash Manager will exercise thg same
jevel of skill. care and diligence as it would apply if it were the beneficial owner of the moneys to which the
services relate and that it will comply with any directions. orders and instructions which the Issuer or the
Trustee may from time to time give to the Cash Manager in accordance with the provisions of the Cash
Management Agreement.

Operating Bank and Issuer’s Accounts

Pursuant to the Cash Management Agreement. AIB Group (UK) plc (in this capacity. the Operating
Bank") will open and maintain the Transaction Accounts. if the Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex is
entered into the Swap Collateral Cash Account. p Stand-by Account and. if required. the Swap Collateral
Custody Account in the name of the Issuer. The Operating Bank has agreed to comply with any direction of
the Cash Manager. the Issuer or the Trustee to effect payments from the Transaction Accounts. the Stand-by
Account or the Swap Collateral Cash Account if such direction is made in accordance with the mandate
governing the applicable account.

Calculation of Amounts and Payvments

Under the Servicing Agreement, the Servicer and the Special Servicer are required to transfer all Borrower
Interest Receipts. Borrower Principal Receipts and Prepavment Fees from the Rent Accounts (or. if relevant,
the Cash Collateral Account) into the Transaction Accounts: all payments required to be made by the Issuer to
the Swap Provider under the Swap Agreement will be deducted from the Transaction Accounts. In addition,
all pavments made by the Swap Provider andior the Swap Guaramior. other than those contemplated by the
Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex, and all drawings under the Liquidity Facility will be paid into the
Transaction Accounts. See "Servicing” and "Credit Structure - The Swap Agreement". Once such funds have
been credited to the Transaction Accounts. the Cash Manager is required to apply such funds in accordance
with the Deed of Charge and Assignment and the T.ash Management Agreement. as described below.

On each Calculation Date (being the second bisiness day prior to the relevant Interest Payment Date). the
Cash Manager is required to determine, from information provided by the Servicer, the various amounts
required to pay interest and principal due on the Nbptes on the forthcoming Interest Pavment Date and all other
amounts then payable by the Issuer. and the amounts available to make such payments. In addition, the Cash
Manager will calcuiate the Principal Amount Outstanding. the Principal Shortfall and the Poo! Factor (each as
defined in Condition 6(f)) for each class of Notes for the Interest Period commencing on such forthcoming
Interest Payment Date and the amount of each MNote Principal Payment due on the next following Interest
Payment Date. in each case pursuant to Condition (/).

!

On each Calculation Date, the Cash Manager will determine the amounts that will be payable under the

Currency Swap Transactions on the next Interest Fayment Date in respect of the Dutch Loans.
l

On each Interest Payment Date, the Cash Mail\ager will determine and pay on behalf of the Issuer, out of
the Available Interest Receipts and Available Principal determined by the Cash Manager to be available for
such purposes as described above, each of the payments required to be paid pursuant to and in the priority set
forth in the Deed of Charge and Assignment. Injaddition, the Cash Manager will, from time to time, pay on
behalf of the Issuer all Revenue Priority Amounts and all Principal Priority Amounts required to be paid by the
Issuer, as determined by the Servicer. :
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The Cash Manager will make all payments required to carry out an optional redemption of Notes pursuant
to Condition 6(c). Condition é(d) or Condition 6{e). in each case according to the provisions of the relevam

Condition. See further "Terms and Conditions of the Notes™.

In the event that the Cash Manager determines. on any Calculation Date. that there is_ a shortfall in
Scheduled Interest Receipts or Scheduled Amortisation Funds in respect of the Collection Period then ended.
or if certain Revenue Priority Amounts which fall due on a date other than an Interest Paym_em Da_te and
cannot be met by the application of other funds available for the purpose. the Cash Manager'ls reqmredi to
submit a notice of drawdown under the Liquidity Facility Agreement. If the Cash Manager fails to submit a
notice of drawdown when it is required to do so. then either the Issuer or. if the Issuer fails to do so. the

Trustee may submit the relevant notice of drawdown.
Ledgers
The Cash Manager shall maintain the following ledgers:
(a) the Revenue Ledger;
. {b) the Principal Shortfall Ledger. which shall consist of the following sub-ledgers:
(1) the A Principal Shortfall Ledger;
(i) the B Principal Shortfall Ledger:
(iiy  the C Principal Shortfall Ledger:
{1v) the D Principal Shortfall Ledger: and
(v) the E Principal Shortfall Ledger:

(¢} the Principal Ledger.

(d) the Liquidity Ledger: and

(e) the Prepavments Ledger.

The Cash Manager shall from time to time in accordance with the pavments made:

(a) credit the Revenue ledger with all Borrower Interest Receipts transferred and credited to the
Transaction Accounts and debit the Revenue Ledger with all pavments made out of Borrower
Interest Receipts;

{b) debit the Principal Shortfall Ledger with any Principal Losses. For adiscussion of the operation
of the Principal Shorifall Ledger and each sub-ledger thereof. see further "Credit Structure -
Principal Shortfall Ledgers™: '

(c) credit the Principal Ledger with all Borrower Principal Receipts transferred and credited to the
Transaction Accounts and debit the Principal Ledger with all payments made out of Available
Scheduled Amortisation Amounts, Available Prepayment Redemption Amounts and Available
Final Redemption Amounts;

(d) credit the Liquidity Ledger with any transfer made pursuant to item (i)J) or item (ix) in
"Summary - Available Funds and their Priority of Application - Payments out of the Transaction
Accounts prior to Enforcement of the Notes - (b) Available Interest Receipts”, or item (i)(B) in
"Summary — Available Funds and their Priority of Application - Payments out of the Transaction

Accounts prior to Enforcement of the Notes - (¢} Available Principal” and debit the Liquidity
Ledger with all drawings under the Liquidity Facility; and
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i (e credit the Prepayments Ledger with a]léPrepayment Fees and debit the Prepavment Ledger with
all pavments made out of Prepayment Fees.

Cash Manager Quarterly Report

Pursuant to the Cash Management Agreement. the Cash Manager has agreed to deliver to"thle Issuer, the

Trustee, the Servicer and the Rating Agency a report (the 'Casl! Mana.ger Quarterly Rep_ort ) in respect ?f

i each Calculation Date in which it will notify the recipients of. inter alia. _all amounts received in the Issuer's
Transaction Accounts and pavments made with respect thereto and all entries made in the relevant ledgers.

pelegation by the Cash Manager

The Cash Manager may. in certain circumstances. without the consent of the Issuer or the Trustee. sub-
contract or delegate its obligations under the Cash Management Agreement. Notwithstanding any sub-
contracting or delegation of the performance of any of its obligations under the Cash Management Agreemer?t.
the Cash Manager shall not be released or discharged from any liability thereunder and shall remamn
responsible for the performance of its obligations under the Cash Management Agreement by any sub-

contractor or delegate.

Fees

Pursuant to the Cash Management Agreement, ;the Issuer will pay to the Cash Manager on each Interest
pavment Date a cash management fee as agreed between the Cash Manager and the Issuer and will reimburse
the Cash Manager for all costs and expenses properly incurred by the Cash Manager in the performance of the
Cash Management Services. Any successor cash manager will receive remuneration on the same basis.

Both before enforcement of the Notes and thereafter (subject to certain exceptions). the Issuer will pay the
cash management fee to the Cash Manager and the operating bank fee to the Operating Bank and will
reimburse the Cash Manager for its costs and expenses. all in priority to payments due on the Class A Notes.
This order of priority has been agreed with a view to procuring the continuing performance by each-of the
Cash Manager and the Operating Bank of its duties in relation to the Issuer. the Trustee, the Loans. the
Mortgages. the Related Security and the Notes.

Termination of Appointment of the Cash Manager

The appointment of AIB International Financial Services Ltd as Cash Manager under the Cash
Management Agreement may be terminated by viftue of its resignation or its removal by the Issuer or the
Trustee. The Issuer or the Trustee may terminate Fhe Cash Manager's appointment upon not less than three . ,
months' written notice or immediately upon the odcurrence of a termination event. including. inter alia, {i) a
failure by the Cash Manager to make when due a pgyment required to be made by the Cash Manager on behalf
of the lssuer. or (ii) a default in the performance of any of its other duties under the Cash Management
Agreement which continues unremedied for ten Bysiness Days. or (iii) a petition is presented or an effective
resolution passed for its winding up or the appointment of an administrator. examiner or similar official. On
the termination of the Cash Manager by the Trustde. the Trustee may. subject to certain conditions. appoint a
successor cash manager. |

The Cash Manager may resign as Cash Manager upon not less than six months' written notice of
resignation to each of the Issuer, the Servicer, the $pecial Servicer. MSDW Bank. the Operating Bank and the
Trustee provided that a suitably qualified successor|Cash Manager shall have been appointed.

Termination of Appointment of the Operating Bank

The Cash Management Agreement requires! that the Operating Bank be. except in certain limited
circumstances. a bank which is an Authorised Entity. If AIB Group (UK) plc ceases to be an Authorised
Entity (as defined below), the Operating Bank will igive written notice of such event to the Issuer, the Servicer,
the Special Servicer. the Cash Manager and the Trustee and will, within a reasonable time after having
obtained the prior written consent of the Issuer, the Servicer. the Special Servicer and the Trustee and subject
to establishing substantially similar arrangementsg to those contained in the Cash Management Agreement,
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procure the transfer of the Transaction Accounts and each other account held by the Issuer with the Operating
Bank to another bank which is an Authorised Entity. If at the time when a transfer of such account or accounts
would otherwise have to be made. there is no other bank which is an Authorised Entity or if no Authorised

Entity agrees to such a transfer. the accounts need not be transferred until such time as there is a bank which is
an Authorised Entity or an Authorised Entity which so agrees. as the case may be. :

An "Authorised Entity” is an entity the short-term unsecured. unguaranteed and unsubordinated debt
obligations of which are rated A-1+ by the Rating Agency or. if at the relevant uime there is no such entity. any
entitv approved in writing by the Trustee.

If. other than in the circumstances specified above. the Cash Manager wishes the bank or branch at which
any account of the Issuer is maintained to be changed. the Cash Manager shall obtain the prior written consent
of the Issuer and the Trustee. and the transfer of such account shall be subject to the same directions and

arrangements as are provided for above.
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CREDIT STRUCTURE

The composition of the Loans and the Mortgages and the structure of the transaction and the other
arrangements for the protection of the Noteholders. 1 the light of the risks involved. have been_revlewed by
the Rating Agency. The ratings assigned by the Rating Agency 10 each class of Notes are set out 1n "Summary
. The Notes - Ratings”. A security rating 1s not a r;commendation to buy. sell or hold_ securities and may be
subject to revision. suspension or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating organisation. The ratings of
the Notes are dependent upon. among other things. the short-term unsecured. unguaranteed. unsubordinated
debt ratings of the Liquidity Facility Provider and the long term unsecured. unsubordinated debt rating of the
Swap Guarantor. Consequently. a downgrade. withdrawal or qualification of either such ratings may have an
adverse effect on the ratings of the Notes. f

The principal risks associated with the Notes and the manner in which they are addressed in the structure
are set out below. Atention is also drawn to the sektion of this Offering Circular entitled "Risk Facrors” for a
description of the principal risks in respect of the Loans. Mortgages and Related Security.

1. Liquidity, Credit and Basis Risk
The Issuer is subject to:

(a) the risk of delay arising between the réceipt of payments due from Borrowers and the scheduled
Interest Pavment Dates. This risk is addressed in respect of the Notes through drawings under the
Liquidity Facility to cover certain thind party expenses. Borrower Interest Receipts and certain
amounts in respect of Scheduled Amortisation Funds and by the liquidity support provided to
classes of Notes by those classes of Notes (if any) ranking beneath that class:

(b} the risk of default in payment and the failure by the Security Trustee. the Servicer or the Special
Servicer. on behalf of the Issuer. to realise or to recover sufficient funds under the enforcement
procedures in respect of the relevant Loan. Mortgage and Related Security in order to discharge
alt amounts due and owing by the relevant Borrower under a Loan. This risk is addressed in
respect of the Notes by the credit support provided to classes of Notes by those classes of Notes
(if any) ranking beneath that class:

ic) the risk of the interest rates payable by the Borrowers on the Loans being less than that required
by the Issuer in order to meet its commitments under the Notes and its other obligations. This risk
is addressed by the Interest Rate Swap Transactions (see "The Swap Agreement” below), and by
drawings under the Liquidity Facility to cover certain third party expenses and Borrower Interest

, Receipts: and ;
(d) the risk of movements in foreign exchinge rates in relation to the Dutch Loans, each of which is
denominated in euro, and the Notes which are pavable in sterling. This risk is addressed by the
Currency Swap Transactions and drawﬂngs under the Liquidity Facility to cover certain third party
expenses and shortfalls in Borrower Interest Receipts and Scheduled Amortisation Funds. See

"The Swap Agreement”, below. l

2. Liabilities under the Notes

The Notes and interest thereon will not be obligations or responsibilities of any person other than the
Issuer. In particular, the Notes will not be obligatidns or responsibilities of. or be guaranteed by MSDW Bank
or any associated body of MSDW Bank. or of or by the Managers, the Servicer, the Special Servicer, the Cash
Manager, the Trustee. the Corporate Services Provider, the Paying Agents. the Agent Bank, the Registrar, the
Liquidity Facility Provider, the Swap Provider. the Swap Guarantor. the Depository, the Exchange Agent or
the Operating Bank or any company in the same group of companies as those parties listed above and none of

such persons accepts any liability whatsoever in respect of any failure by the Issuer to make payment of any
amount due on the Notes. ‘

On each Interest Payment Date, payments of interest on the Class B Notes, the Class C Notes, the Class D
Notes and the Class E Notes, respectively, will b¢ due and payable only if and to the extent that there are
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sufficient funds available to the Issuer to pay interest on the Class A Notes and other liabilities of the Issuer

ranking in priority to interest pavments on the Class B Notes. the Cliass C Notes. the Class D Notes and }he
Class E Notes respectively. as provided in "Summary - Distributions - Payments out of the Transu‘ctlon
Accounts prior to Enforcement of the Notes - Available Interest Recelpts". and which have been paid or
provided for in full. To the extent that there are insufficient funds available to the _lssuer on any Interest
Payment Date to pay in full interest otherwise due on any one¢ Or mMore classes of Junlorfranklng: Notes then
outstanding. after making the payments and provisions ranking 1n priority to the relevant interest payment. as
the case may be. such interest will not then be due and pavable but subject. in the case of the Class D Notes
and the C lass E Notes. to the following paragraph. will become due and payable. together with accrued ime_rest
thercon. on subsequent Interest Payment Dates and any such unpaid mterest and interest accrued thereon since
the orieinat due date thereof shatl be paid in priority to the current interest due on such class or classes of
Notes on each subsequent Interest Payment Date. but only if and to the extent that funds are available therefqr.
To the extent that funds do not become available on subsequent Interest Payment Dates then. at final matunty
or earlier redemption of the Class D Notes or the Class E Notes. as the case may be. the Issuer's obligation in
respect of any outstanding shortfall and interest thereon will cease.

The lssuer's obligation to pay interest in respect of each of the Class D Notes and the Class E Notes s
limited. on each Interest Payment Date. to an amount equal to the lesser of (a) the Interest Amount (as defined
in Condition 3(d)) in respect of such class of Notes for that Interest Payment Date. and (b) the result of (i) the
Available Interest Receipts in respect of such Interest Pavment Date (including. for avoidance of doubt. the
amount available for drawing by way of an Interest Drawing under the Liquidity Facility Agreement on such
interest Pavment Date}. minus (i1} the sum of all amounts pavable out of Available Interest Receipts on such
Interest Pavment Date in priority 10 the payment of interest on such class of Notes (the amount calculated
under (b) in respect of an Interest Payment Date being the "Adjusted Interest Amount” for such class of
Notes on that Interest Pavment Date). No amount shail be pavable by the Issuer in respect of the amount. on
anyv Interest Pavment Date. by which the Interest Amount in respect of the Class D Notes and‘or the Class E
Notes. as applicable. exceeds the Adjusted Interest Amount in respect of such class. the debt that would
otherwise be represented by such shortfall shall be extinguished. and the affected Noteholders shall have no
claim against the Issuer in respect thereof.

The Class B Notes. the Class C Notes. the Class D Notes and the Class E Notes will provide credit support
for the Class A Notes. Funds which are available in respect of pavments of principal on the Notes as described
in the definitions of Available Scheduled Amortisation Funds. Available Prepayment Redemption Funds and
Available Final Redemption Funds in Condition 6(6) will be applied first. in respect of each Loan individually,
in paving any amounts due or overdue in respect of breakage costs and payments under the Currency Swap
Transactions attributable to principal payments under the Dutch Loans and then any outstanding Principal
Drawings under the Liquidity Facility Agreement and secondliy. in paving principal on the C Jass A Notes until
all the Class A Notes have been redeemed in full and only then will pavments of principal on the Class B
Notes. Class C Notes. Class D Notes and the Class E Notes become pavable, as provided in "Summary -
Distributions — Pavments out of the Transaction Accounts prior to Enforcement of the Notes — Available
Principal”. However. if on any Interest Payment Date the Available Interest Receipts calcutated in respect of
the Collection Period ended on the Calculation Date immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date
exceeds the Priority Revenue Payments (as defined in Condition 6(h) of the Notes) payable on such Interest
Pavment Date. then the Class E Notes outstanding on such Interest Pavment Date shall be subject to mandatory
redemption in part in an amount equal to the lower of (a) the excess of such Available Interest Receipts over
such Priority Revenue Payments then payable. and (b) the amount equal to (i) the product of (x) 0.375 per cent.
and (y) the Principal Amount Qutstanding of the Notes as at the date of issuance thereof minus (ii) the
aggregate amount of the Class E Notes redeemed on any preceding Interest Payment Date using excess
Available Interest Receipts. An additional amount of £19 shall be applied in redemption of the Class E Notes
on the first Interest Payment Date. representing the amount by which the aggregate Principal Amount
Outstanding of the Notes on the Closing Date exceeds the aggregate principal amount of the Loans as of the
Cut-Off Date.

3. Post-Enforcement Priority of Payments
The Issuer Security will become enforceable upon the Trustee giving a Note Enforcement Notice.

Following enforcement of the Issuer Security. the Trustee will be required to apply all funds received or
recovered by it in accordance with the following order of priority (in each case. only if and to the extent that
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the pavments and provisions of a higher priority ha\}e been made in full). all as more fully set out in the Deed
of Charge and Assignment: ;

¥

(i)

(iti)

{iv)

{v)

{(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

in or towards satisfaction of any amounks due and pavable by the Issuer to (a) the Trustee and any
receiver. pari passu and pro rata. appoiibted in respect of the Deed of Charge and Assignment apd
any amounts due and payable to any redeiver appointed under a Loan and:or a Mortgage andor its
Related Security: then (b) 10 the Swap [Provider in respect of amounts due or overdue to it under
the Swap Agreement or. if entered into] the Swap Agreememt Credit Support Annex: then (¢} pari
passu and pro rata. the Paying Agents] the Exchange Agent and the Agent Bank in respect of
amounts properly paid by such persons to the Noteholders and not paid by the Issuer under the
Agency Agreement or the Exchange Rate Agency Agreement: then (d) the Servicer in respect of
the Servicing Fee (or any other person then entitled thereto) and pari passu and pro rata the
Special Servicer in respect of any Spetial Servicing Fees: then (e) the Cash Manager under the
Cash Management Agreement; then [(f) the Corporate Services Provider under the Issuer
Corporate Services Agreement: then (2) amounts due to the Depository under the Depository
Agreement: then (h) the Operating Bank under the Cash Management Agreement: and then (i) the
Liquidity Facility Provider under the Liquidity Facility Agreement in respect of Principal
Drawings. Interest Drawings (each as! defined below) and the commitment fee (except to the
extent that the commitment fee has be¢n increased pursuant to the imposition of increased costs
on the Liquidity Facility Provider); and any Mandatory Costs. up to a maximum aggregate
amount of 0.125 per cent. per annum. due or overdue to the Liquidity Facility Provider under the
Liquidity Facility Agreement;

in or towards payment of (a) interest due or overdue (and all interest due on such overdue
interest) on the Class A Notes: and after pavments of all such sums (b} in or towards payment of
all amounts of principal due or overdue on the Class A Notes and all other amounts due in respect
of the Class A Notes until the outstanding principal balance of the Class A Notes is reduced to
Zero:

in or towards pavment of (a) interest due or overdue (and all interest due on such overdue interest)
on the Class B Notes: and after payments of all such sums (b) all amounts of principal due or
overdue on the Class B Notes and all other amounts due in respect of the Class B Notes until the
outstanding principal balance of the Class B Notes is reduced to zero:

in or towards pavment of (a) interest due or overdue (and all interest due on such overdue interest)
on the Class C Notes: and after paymeénts of all such sums (b) all amounts of principal due or
overdue on the Class C Notes and all oiher amounts due in respect of the Class C Notes until the
outstanding principal balance of the Class C Notes is reduced to zero:
i
i or towards payment of (a) interest due or overdue (and all interest due on such overdue interest)
on the Class D Notes: and after pavments of all such sums (b) all amounts of principal due or
overdue on the Class D Notes and all other amounts due in respect of the Class D Notes until the
outstanding principal balance of the Class D Notes is reduced to zero:

in or towards payment of any amounts|due and pavable by the Issuer to the Special Servicer in
respect of any Liquidation Fee:

in or towards payment of (a) interest dug or overdue (and all interest due on such overdue interest)
on the Class E Notes: and after payments of all such sums (b} all amounts of principal due or
overdue on the Class E Notes and all other amounts due in respect of the Class E Notes until the
outstanding principal balance of the Cla:tss E Notes is reduced to zero:;

any amounts in respect of any Mandatdpry Costs due to the Liquidity Facility Provider under the
Liquidity Facility Agreement in excess! of those amounts referred to under item (iXi) above and
any additional amounts payable to the Liquidity Facility Provider in respect of withholding taxes
or increased costs as a result of a change in law or regulation, including, without limitation, any
increase in the commitment fee payable to the Liquidity Facility Provider as a result of the
imposition of increased costs: |
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(ix)  in or towards satisfaction of all amounts then owed or owing to MSDW Bank under the Montgage
Sale Agreement on any account whatsoever: and

(x) any surplus to the Issuer or other persons entitled thereto.

All Prepayment Fees shall be paid to MSDW Bank or the person or persons then entitled thereto. Lpon
enforcement of the Issuer Security, the Trustee will have recourse only to the rights of the lIssuer 10 the Loans,
the Mortgages and the Related Secunty and al! other assets constituting the Issuer Securit)'. Other than (a) as
provided in the Mortgage Sale Agreement for material breach of warranty in relation to the Loans. the
Morteages and. in certain limited circumstances. the Related Security (as to which. see further "The Loans. the
Morteages and the Related Security - Representations and Warranties™) and breach of other provisions
specijﬁeud therein. and (b) in relation to the Servicing Agreement and the Subscription Agreement for breach of
the obligations of MSMS or MSDW Bank set out therein. the Issuer and-or the Trusiee will have no recourse

10 MSMS or MSDW Bank.

The terms on which the Issuer Security will be held will provide that. upon enforcement. certain pavments
{including all amounts payable to any receiver and the Trustee. all amounts due to the Servicer or any other
person in respect of the Servicing Fee and to the Special Servicer in respect of the Special Servicing Fee and
Liquidation Fees, the Cash Manager. the Operating Bank. the Depository. all payments due to the Swap
Provider under the Swap Transactions and all payments due to the Liquidity Facility Provider under the
Liquidity Facility (other than in respect of amounts specified at item (viii) above} will be made in priority to
pavments in respect of interest and principal on the Class A Notes. Upon enforcement of the lssuer Security,
all payments on the Class A Notes will rank ahead of all amounts owing to the Class B Notgholders. Al
amounts owing to the Class B Noteholders will rank ahead of all amounts owing to the Class C: Noteholders.
All amoumts owing to the Class C Noteholders will rank ahead of all amounts owing to ‘the Class D
Noteholders. All amounts owing to the Class D Noteholders will rank ahead of all amounts owing to the Class

E Noteholders.

If the net proceeds of realisation of. or enforcement with respect to. the Issuer Security are not sufficient to
make all pavments due in respect of the Notes. the other assets (if any) of the Issuer. other than any surplus
arising on the realisation of or enforcement with respect to any remaining security. will not be available for
payment of any shortfall arising therefrom (which shall be borne in accordance with the terms of the Deed of
Charge and Assignment). Al claims in respect of such shortfall. after realisation of or enforcement with
respect to all of the Issuer Secunity. shall be extinguished and the Trustee. the Noteholders and the Secured
Parties shall have no further claim against the Issuer in respect of such unpaid amounts. Each Noteholder. by
subscribing for or purchasing Notes. is deemed to accept and acknowledge that it is fully aware that, save as
aforesaid. (i) upon enforcement of the Issuer Security, its right to obtain repavment in full is limited to the
Issuer Security. and (ii) the Issuer has duly and entirely fulfilled its repayment obligation by making available
to the Noteholder its relevant part of the proceeds of realisation or enforcement with respect to the [ssuer
Security in accordance with the Deed of Charge and Assignment and all claims in respect of such shortfall
shall be extinguished.

4. Liquidity Facility

On the Closing Date. the Issuer will enter into the Liquidity Facility Agreement with the Liquidity Facility
Provider and the Trustee, whereby the Liguidity Facility Provider will provide the Liquidity Facility which
will permit drawings to be made by the [ssuer of up to an aggregate amount of £20.000,000. However, where
all the Class A Notes have been redeemed in full pursuant to Condition 6(6). the maximum aggregate amount
that may be drawn under the Liquidity Facility shall be reduced to £10.000.000. If the Loan to the Second
Principal Borrower or the Loan to the First Principal Borrowers is repaid in full. the maximum aggregate
amount that may be drawn down under the Liquidity Facility shall be reduced to £15.000.000 or £10,000,000,
respectively. If both the Loan to the Second Principal Borrower and the Loan to the First Principal Borrowers
are repaid in full, the maximum aggregate amount that may be drawn down under the Liquidity Facility shall
be reduced to £5.000.000. If the aggregate principal balance of the Loans is less than £5.000.000, the
maximum aggregate amount that may be drawn under the Liquidity Facility shall be reduced to the amount
equal to the aggregate principal balance outstanding under the Loans from time to time.
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The Cash Manager, or failing the Cash Manager. the Issuer or. failing whom. the Trustee. will be required
1o make a drawing to meet any shortfall in: 2

(a) Borrower Interest Receipts — in an amgunt equal to the difference between the Borrower Interest
Receipts actually received and the amount of Scheduled Interest Receipts due and pavable by the
Borrowers under the Loans during any Follection Period (an "Interest Drawing”): and-or

[

(b) Scheduled Amortisation Funds - in ani amount equal to the difference between the Scheduled
Amortisation Funds actually received and the amount of scheduled principal pavments due and
pavable on the Loans during any Collecjtion Period. to the exient such shortfall exceeds the sum of
the Prepayment Redemption Funds and Final Redemption Funds received during such Collection
Period (a "Principal Drawing"); and/dr

(c) the amount of funds available to the lssiler to pay Revenue Priority Amounts to a third party other
than MSDW Bank {an "Expenses Draw;wing").

The Liquidity Facility will not be available to ﬁmd shortfalls in the amount of Final Redemption Funds
and will not be available to fund any shortfall in: Borrower Interest Receipts arising as a consequence of
voluntary prepayments of the Loans by the Borrowers.

Interest Drawings and Principal Drawings will be repayable on the Interest Pavment Date following the
Interest Pavment Date in respect of which such drawdown was made. and Expenses Drawings (which may be
requested on any Business Day) will be repayable on the Interest Payment Date following the date of
drawdown thereof. in each case in accordance with the relevant order of priorities described in "Summary -
Payments out of the Transaction Accounts prior to Enforcement of the Notes”. In the event that such drawings
are not repaid on the relevant Interest Payment Date described above. the amount outstanding under the
Liguidity Facility will be deemed to be repaid (but c}nly for the purposes of the Liquidity Facility) and redrawn
on such Interest Payment Date in an amount equal té all amounts outstanding. This procedure will be repeated
on each subsequent Interest Payment Date until all amounts outstanding are paid and/or repaid.

The Liquidity Facility Agreement will provide that if at any time the rating of the short-term. unsecured.
unsubordinated and unguaranteed debt obligations of the Liquidity Facility Provider falls below the Requisite
Rating. or the Liquidity Provider refuses to extend 'the commitment period of the Liquidity Facility, then the
Issuer will require the Liquidity Facility Provider to pay into a designated bank account of the Issuer (the
"Stand-by Account”) maintained with an appropriately rated bank an amount (a 'Stand-by Drawing™ equal
to its undrawn commitment under the Liquidity Facility Agreement. In the event that the Cash Manager makes
a Stand-by Drawing. the Cash Manager shall. pridr to the expenditure of the proceeds of such drawing as
described above. invest such funds in Eligible Invesiments.

"Eligible Investments" means (i) sterling denpminated government securities or (ii} sterling demand or
time deposits. certificates of deposit and short-term debt obligations (including commercial paper). provided
that in all cases such investments will mature at least one business day prior to the next Interest Payment Date
and the short-term unsecured. unguaranteed and unsubordinated debt obligations of the issuing or guaranteeing
entity or the entity with which the demand or time deposits are made (being a bank or licensed EU credit
institution) are rated Al+ by the Rating Agency or dre otherwise acceptable to the Rating Agency.

Amounts standing to the credit of the Stand-hy Account will be available to the Issuer for drawing in
respect of an Interest Drawing, a Principal Drawing or an Expenses Drawing, as described above, and
otherwise in the circumstances provided in the Liqujdity Facility Agreement.

All payments due to the Liquidity Facility Prowider under the Liquidity Facility (other than in respect of
any amounts due thereunder which are described in item (ix) of "Summary - Distributions - Payments out of
Transaction Accounts prior to Enforcement of the Notes - Available Interest Receipts™) will rank in point of
priority ahead of payments of interest and principal lon the Class A Notes.
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5. Principal Shortfall Ledgers

A principal shortfall ledger {the "Principal Shortfall Ledger") will be opened in the books of the Issuer
and maintained by the Cash Manager. which includes a sub-ledger in relation to each class of Notes {in
accordance with the provisions of the Cash Management Agreement and the Deed of Charge and Assignment),
to record shortfalls in the amount of Scheduled Amortisation Funds and Final Redemption Funds received
following the enforcement of a Loan. The Principal Shortfall Ledger comprises five sub-ledgers {one¢ sub-
fedger in respect of each class of Notes) to which (a) there will be debited an amount equal to the aggregate of
all amounts of principal which are not recovered and-or are written off on completion of the enforcement
procedures in respect of any Loan. Mortgage and or Related Security as well as any related costs including
swap breakage costs and any costs in connection with the Liquidity Facility Agreement (a "Principal Loss")
and (b) there will be credited (i) all amounts subsequently recovered in respect of a Loan. Mortgage and its
Related Security. less amounts recovered in respect of buildings insurance which are pavable to third parties
under the terms of that Loan ("Principal Receveries") and (ii) the amount from time to time by which the
aggregate principal amount ouistanding of the Loans exceeds the aggregate Principal Amount Outstanding of
the Notes ("Excess”). until the balance of such sub-ledger is reduced to zero. "Principal Shortfall" is the
amount by which aggregate Principal Losses exceed aggregate Principal Recoveries and Excess.

A Principal Shortfall will be applied first against the E Principal Shortfall Ledger until the Principal
Shortfall is equal to the Principal Amount Outstanding of the Class E Notes. and thereafter to the D Principal
Shortfall Ledger until the Principal Shortfall is equal to the Principal Amount Qutstanding of the Class D
Notes. and thereafter to the C Principal Shortfall Ledger until the Principal Shortfall is equal to the Principal
Amount Outstanding of the Class C Notes. and thereafter to the B Principal Shortfall Ledger until the Principal
Shortfall is equal to the Principal Amount Outstanding of the Class B Notes and thereafter to the A Principal
Shortfall Ledger until the Principal Shortfall is equal to the Principal Amount Outstanding of the Class A
Notes. The Principal Amount Outstanding from time to time in respect of any class of the Notes will be
calculated. in certain circumstances. net of any Principal Shortfall in respect of such class. See Condition §
and Condition 6 of the Notes. Interest will accrue on the debit balance of the relevant Shortfall Ledger at the
Relevant Margin for the applicable class of Notes in-the same manner as the Notes outstanding of such class,
but will only be pavable in accordance with Condition 16{«} or upon enforcement of the Notes.

6. The Swap Agreement

On or before the Closing Date. the Issuer will enter into the Swap Agreement with the Swap Provider and
the Swap Transactions pursuant thereto (each as described below). The obligations of the Swap Provider
under the Swap Agreement will be guaranteed by the Swap Guarantor. Upon the occurrence of an Event of
Default (as defined therein) with respect to MSCS under the Swap Agreement. it will assign its rights under
the Swap Agreement to MSDW who wiil take on the obligations of the Swap Provider.

The Issuer will enter into the Swap Transactions. pursuant to the Swap Agreement. with the Swap
Provider in order to protect itself against interest rate risk and currency risk anstng in respect ofi the Loans.
The Swap Transactions to be entered into are:

{1} interest rate swap transactions (the "Interest Rate Swap Transactiens”} in order to protect the
[ssuer against interest rate risk arising in respect of the Loans; and

(i) the currency swap transactions (the 'Currency Swap Transactions") in order to protect the
Issuer against currency risk arising as a result of pavments of interest and principal on the Dutch
Loans being denominated in euro and payments of interest and principal on the Notes being
denominated in sterling.

Under the terms of the Interest Rate Swap Transactions. the Issuer will pay to the Swap Provider on each
Interest Payment Date an amount equal to the excess (if any) of an amount determined by reference to the
fixed rate payments pavable by the Borrowers during the relevant Collection Period ("X") over an amount
determined by reference to three-month sterling LIBOR ("Y") and the Swap Provider will pay to the Issuer an
amount equal to the excess (if any) of Y over X.
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Under the terms of the Currency Swap Trangactions. the lssuer will pay te the Swar Provider on the
Closing Date the outstanding aggregate principal balzmce of the Dutch Loans and on each Interest Paymem
Date a euro payment equal to the amounts pavable by each Borrower under each of the Dutch Loans and in
return will receive from the Swap Provider. on the Closing Date and on each such Interest Pavment Date. a
sterling pavment equal to the amount paid by thel Issuer ar a rate of exchange determined on or before the
Closing Date and determined by reference to the Egro. Sterling Exchange Rate on the Cut-off Date.

The Swap Transactions may be terminated in accordance with cenain termination events and events of
default, some of which are more particularly descri_bed below.

Subject 10 the following. the Swap Provider and the Swap Guarantor are obliged only to make payments
under the Swap Transactions to the extent that the lssuer makes the corresponding payments thereunder.
Furthermore. a failure by the Issuer to make timelv payment of amounts due from it under the Swap
Transactions will constitute a default thereunder and entitle the Swap Provider to terminate the Swap
Transactions save that failure by the Issuer to make when due the final pavment under the Currency Swap
Transactions where such failure is due to the failufe by any one of the Borrowers of the Dutch Loans to make
the final payment thereunder shall not constitute! a default by the Issuer nor entitle the Swap Provider to
rerminate the Currency Swap Transactions but shall result in a deferral of the Issuer's obligation to make such

payment until the Maturity Date. | |

The Swap Provider will be obliged to make payments under the Swap Agreement without any withholding
or deduction of taxes unless required by law. If:any such withholding or deduction is required by law. the
Swap Provider will be required to pay such additional amount as is necessary 1o ensure that the net amount
actually received by the Issuer will equal the full amount the lssuer would have received had no such
withholding or deduction been required or. if su¢h withholding or deduction is a withholding or deduction
which will or would be or become the subject of any tax credit. allowance. set-off. repayment or refund to the
Swap Provider. to use all reasonable endeavours to reach agreement 1o mitigate the incidence of tax on the
Issuer. The Issuer is similarly obliged to make payments under the Swap Agreement without any withholding
or deduction of taxes unless required by law and is similarly obliged to pay additional amounts or use
reasonable endeavours to reach agreement to mijtigate the incidence of tax on the Swap Provider. Such
additional amounts will be pavable in priority to athounts payable on the Notes.

The Swap Agreement will provide. however. that if due to action taken by a relevant taxing authority or
brought in a court of competent jurisdiction or anly change in tax law either the lssuer or the Swap Provider
will. or there is a substantial likelihood that it \\iil], on the next Interest Payment Date. be required to pay
additional amoumts in respect of tax under the Swap Agreement or will. or there is a substantial likelihood that
it will. receive pavment from the other party from|which an amount is required to be deducted or withheld for
or on account of tax (a 'Tax Event"), Swap Provider will use its reasonable cfforts to transfer its rights and .
obligations to another of its offices, branches or gffiliates or a suitably rated third party to avoid the relevant '
Tax Event. If no such transfer can be effected,|the Swap Agreement and the Swap Transactions may be
terminated. If the Swap Agreement is terminated gnd the Issuer is unable to find a replacement swap provider,
the Issuer may redeem all of the Notes in full. Su¢h redemption shall be made by the Issuer to the extent of an
amount equal to the then aggregate Principal Amo{int Outstanding of each class of Notes then outstanding plus
interest accrued and unpaid thereon but net of any Principal Shortfall. See "Terms and Conditions of the Notes
- Condition 6te)". The Swap Agreement will coptain certain other limited termination events and events of
default which will entitle either party to terminate ’it.

The Swap Provider may. at its own discretion and at its own expense, novate its rights and obligations
under the Swap Agreement (including the Swap Transactions) to any third party provided the Rating Agency
has provided written confirmation that such|third party's (or its guarantor's) long-term unsecured,
unsubordinated debt obligations are such that the then applicable ratings of the Notes will not be downgraded,
withdrawn or qualified and provided further that siich third party agrees to be bound by. inter alia, the terms of
the Deed of Charge and Assignment, on substantially the same terms as the Swap Provider.
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7. Swap Guarantor Downgrade Event

(a) If the rating of the short-term unsecured. unsubordinated debt obligations qf the Swap Guarantor falls
below "A-1+" by the Rating Agency at any time. then the Swap Provider shall comply with the
requirements set out in the Swap Agreement which may require the executiqn of the Swap Agreement
Credit Support Annex and the delivery of collateral to the Security Trustee {which collateral may be in the
form of cash or securities) in respect of its obligations under the Currency Swap Transactions in an
amount or of a value determined in accordance with the most recent applicable swap collateral guidelines
pubiished by the Rating Agency.

(b) If the rating of the short-term unsecured. unsubordinated debt obligations of the Swap Guarantor falls
below "A-1" by the Rating Agency at any tme. then the Swap Provider shall comply with the
requirements set out in the Swap Agreement which may require the execution of the Sw:}p Agreement
Credit Support Annex. if it has not already been executed. and the delivery to the Security Trustee of
collateral {which collateral may be in the form of cash or securities) in respect of its obligations under the
Interest Rate Swap Transactions in an amount or value determined in accordance with the most recent
applicable swap collateral guidelines published by the Rating Agency.

8. Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex to be entered into upon Swap Guarantor Downgrade

If at any time the Swap Provider is required to provide collateral in respect of anyv of its obligations under
the Swap Agreement, the Issuer and the Swap Provider will enter into a collateral agreement in the form of a
1995 ISDA Credit Support Annex (Bilateral Form - Transfer) or in such other form as may be acceptable to
the Issuer (the "Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex"). The Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex will
provide that. from time to time, subject 10 the conditions specified in the Swap Agreement Credit Suppon
Annex. the Swap Provider will make transfers of collateral to the lssuer in support of its obligations under the
Swap Agreement and the lssuer will be obliged to retun such collateral in accordance with the terms of the
Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex. References in this Offering Circular to the Swap Agreement Credit
Support Annex shall be deemed to be a reference to such agreement as and when entered into between the
Issucr and the Swap Provider.

Collateral amounts that may be required to be posted by the Swap Provider pursuant to the Swap
Agreement Credit Support Annex may be delivered in the form of cash or securities. Cash amounts will be
paid into the Swap Collateral Cash Account and securities will be transferred to the Issuer's Swap Collateral
Custody Account. References in this Offering Circular to the Swap Collateral Cash Account and to the Swap
Collateral Custody Account and to payments from such accounts shall be deemed to be a reference to and to0
payments from such accounts as and when opened by the Issuer.

If the Swap Collateral Cash Account and the Swap Collateral Custody Account are opened, amounts equal
to any amounts of interest on the credit balance of the Swap Collateral Cash Account. or equivalent to
distributions received on securities held in the Swap Collateral Custody Account. are required to be paid to the
Swap Provider in accordance with the terms of the Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex and the Deed of
Charge and Assignment in priority to any other payment obligations of the Issuer, other than to the Trustee and
for a receiver following the enforcement of the Notes. The obligation of the Issuer in respect of any return of
securities posted as collateral pursuant to the Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex is to return:"equivalent
securities”.

9. Swap Guarantee

The Swap Provider's obligations under the Swap Transactions are guaranteed pursuant to, and subject to
the terms of. the Swap Guarantee provided by the Swap Guarantor. In the event that MSCS ceases (other than

by virtue of its own default or it is replaced by a suitably rated third party) to be the Swap Provider, MSDW
shall cease to be the Swap Guarantor.
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ESTIMATED AVERAGE LIVES OF THE NOTES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The average lives of the Notes cannot be predicted as the actual rate at which Loans will be repaid or
prepaid and 2 number of other relevant factors are unknown.

Calculations of possible average lives of the Notes can be made based on certain assumptions. For
example, based on the assumptions that:

{a) no Loans are sold by the Issuer:
{b) no Loans default. prepay or are enforced and no loss arises: and
{c) the Swap Agreement will not be terminated.

then the approximate average lives of the Notes, at various assumed rates of prepayvment for the Loans.
would be as follows:

Average Life of Average Life of Average Life of Average Life of Average Life of

Class A Notes Class B Notes Class C Notes Class D Notes Class E Notes
{vears) (vears) (vears) (vears) (vears)
3.67 7.04 7.04 7.04 6.28

Assumptions (a), (b) and (c) relate to circumstances which are not predictable.

The average lives of the Notes are subject to factors largely outside the control of the Issuer and
consequently no assurance can be given that the estimates above will prove in any way to be realistic and they
must therefore be viewed with considerable caution. '
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DESCRIPTION OF THE NOTES% AND THE DEPOSITORY AGREEMENT

General

Each class of Notes will be represented by a Reg $ Global Note and two Rule 144A Global Notgs in
bearer form (all such Global Notes being herein réferred to as the "Global Notes"). The Global Notes will be
deposited with or to the order of The Chase Manhanan Bank. New York as Depository pursuant to the terms of
the Depository Agreement. The Depository will (i) register a centificateless depository nterest In respect of
one of the Rule 144A Global Notes for each class of Notes in the name of DTC or its nominee. (11) register a
certificateless depository interest in respect of the other Rule 144A Global Note for each class of Notes in the
name of The Chase Manhattan Bank. London, as common depositary (the '‘Common Depositary"™) for the
account of Euroclear and Clearstream. Luxembourg. and (iii} issue a certificated depository interest in respect
of each Reg S Global Note to the Common Depositary. All of the certificated and centificateless depository
interests (the "CDIs") shall represent a 100 per cent. interest in the underlying Global Note relating thereto,
The Depository. acting as agent of the Issuer, will maintain a book-entry system in which it will register DTC
or its nominee as the owner of the certificateless depository interests referred to in (i) above and the Common
Depositary or a nominee of the Common Depositary as owner of the certificated depository interests and the
certificateless depositary interests referred to in (ii! and (iii} above.

|
Upon confirmation by the Common Depositary that the Depository has custody of the Reg S Global Notes -

and the Rule 144A Global Notes to be held| by the Common Depositary. Euroclear or Clearsyream,
Luxembourg. as the case may be, will record Hook-Ermy Interests representing beneficial interests in the
relevant CDIs attributable to the Reg S Global Notes and the Rule 144A Global Notes relating thereto.

Upon confirmation by DTC that the Depositoty has custody of the Rule 144A Global Notes to be held by
or on behalf of DTC or its nominee and upon acceptance by DTC of the CDIs pursuant to the DTC Letter of
Representations (the "Letter of Representations®) sent by the Depository and the Issuer to DTC. DTC will
record Book-Entry Interests representing beneficial interests in the relevant CDIs attributable to the Rule 144A
Global Notes relating thereto. '

For the avoidance of doubt. all references in this section to a 'Book-Entry Interest" in a Global Note
shall be construed as a reference to a Book-Entry Interest in the CDI attributable to such Global Note.

Book-Entry Interests in respect of Global Notes will be recorded in original denominations of £50.000 and
integral multiples of £1.000 in excess thereof. Ownership of Book-Entry Interests in respect of Global Notes
will be limited to persons that have accoupts with Euroclear. Clearstream. Luxembourg or DTC
("participants") or persons that hold interests in the Book-Emry Interests through participants {"indirect
participants”). including, as applicable, banks. brokers. dealers and trust companies that clear through or
maintain a custodial relationship with Eurocleiar. Clearstream, Luxembourg or DTC. either directly or
indirectly. Indirect participants shall also include! persons that hold beneficial interests through such indirect
participants. Book-Entry Interests will not be jheld in definitive form. Instead. Euroclear, Clearstream,
Luxembourg and DTC, as applicable. will credit the participants' accounts with the respective Book-Entry
Interests beneficially owned by such participants on each of their respective book-entry registration and
transfer systems. The accounts to be credited shall be designated by Morgan Stanley & Co. Intemnational
Limited. Ownership of Book-Entry Interests willl be shown on. and transfers of Book-Entry Interests or the
interests therein will be effected only through. re¢ords maintained by Euroclear. Clearstream, Luxembourg or
DTC (with respect 1o the interests of their participants) and on the records of participants or indirect
participants (with respect 1o the interests of their participants). The laws of some jurisdictions or other
applicable rules may require that certain purchasprs of securities take physical delivery of such securities in
definitive form. The foregoing limitations may therefore impair the ability of persons within such jurisdiction
or otherwise subject 10 the laws thereof to own, transfer or pledge Book-Entry Interests.

So long as the Depository or its nominee is! the holder of the Global Notes underlying the Book-Entry
Interests, the Depository or such nominee, as the! case may be, will be considered the sole Noteholder for all
purposes under the Trust Deed. Except as set forth below under "Issuance of Definitive Notes", participants or
indirect participants will not be entitled to have Notes registered in their names. will not receive or be entitled
to receive physical delivery of Notes in definitive bearer or registered form and will not be considered the
holders thereof under the Trust Deed. Accordingly, each person holding a Book-Entry Interest must rely on the
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rules and procedures of the Depository and Euroclear. Clearstream. Luxembourg or DTC. as the case may b;
and indirect participants must rely on the procedures of the participant or indirect p_a.nicipams th_rough wh:«_:h
such person owns its interest in the relevant Book-Entry Interests to exercise any rights and obligations of a
holder of Notes under the Trust Deed (see "Action in Respect of the Global Notes and the Book-Entry

Interests” below).

Unlike legal owners or holders of the Notes. holders of the Book-Entry Interests will not have the right
under the Trust Deed to act upon solicitations by the Issuer of consents or requests by the Issuer for waivers or
other actions from Noteholders. Instead. a holder of Book-Entry Interests will be permutted to act onlky to the
extent it has received appropriate proxies to do so from DTC. Euroclear or Clearstream. Luxembourg (as the
case may be) and. if applicable, their participants. There can be no assurance that procedures implemented for
the granting of such proxies will be sufficient 1o enable holders of Book-Entrv Interests to vote on any
requested actions on a timely basis. Similarly, upon the occurrence of an Event of Default (as defined in
Condition 10) under the Notes. holders of Book-Entry Interests will be restricted to acting through DTC.
Euroclear. Clearstream. Luxembourg and the Depository unless and until Definitive Notes are issued in
accordance with the Terms and Conditions. There can be no assurance that the procedures to be implemented
by DTC. Euroclear. Clearstream. Luxembourg and the Depository under such circumstances will be adequate
to ensure the timely exercise of remedies under the Trust Deed.

The CDIs issued in representation of the Reg S Global Notes and the Rule 144A Global Notes held by the
Common Depositary may not be transferred except as a whole by the Common Depositary to a successor of
the Common Depositary or its nominee. The CDIs issued in representation of the Rule 1HA Global Notes
held by or on behalf of DTC may not be transferred except as a whole by DTC to a nominee of DTC or by a
nominee of DTC to DTC or another nominee of DTC or by DTC or any such nominee to a successor of DTC

or a nominee of such successor.

Purchasers of Book-Entry Interests in a Global Note pursuant to Rule 144A will hold Book-Entry Interests
in the Rule 143A Global Note relating thereto. Investors may hold their Book-Entry Interests in respect of a
Rule 144A Global Note directly through (i) DTC if they are participants in such system, or indirectly through
organisations which are participants in such system; Euroclear and Clearstream. Luxembourg are such
participants. or {ii) Euroclear and Clearstream. Luxembourg. if they are account holders in such systems. or
indirectly through organisations which are account holders in such systems. All Book-Entry Interests in the
Rule 144A Global Notes held by or on behalf of DTC will be subject to the procedures and requirements of
DTC and all Book-Entry Interests in the Rule 144A Global Notes held by the Common Depositary will be
subject to the procedures and requirements of Euroclear and Clearstream. Luxembourg. :

Purchasers of Book-Entry Interests in a Global Note pursuant to Reg S will hold Book-Entry Interests in
the Reg S Global Note relating thereto. Investors may hold their Book-Entry Interests in respect of a Reg S
Global Note directly through Euroclear or Clearstream. Luxembourg (in accordance with the provisions set
forth under "Transfer and Transfer Restrictions" below). if they are account holders in such systems. or
indirectly through organisations which are account holders in such systems. Afier the expiration of the Note
Distribution Compliance Period (as defined under "Transfer and Transfer Restrictions” below) but not: earlier,
investors may also hold such Book-Entry Interests through organisations. other than Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg. that are participants in the DTC system. Euroclear and Clearstream. Luxembourg will hold
Book-Entry Interests in each Reg S Global Note on behalf of their account holders through securities accounts
in the respective account holders' names on Euroclear's and Clearstream. Luxembourg's respective book-entry
registration and transfer systems.

Although DTC. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have agreed to certain procedures to facilitate
transfer of Book-Entry Interests among participants of DTC and account holders of Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg. they are under no obligation to perform or continue to perform such procedures, and such
procedures may be discontinued at any time. None of the Issuer, the Trustee or any of their respective agents
will ha_ve any responsibility for the performance by DTC. Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or their
respective participants or account holders of their respective obligations under the rules and procedures
governing their operations.
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Payments on Global Notes [

Payment of principal of and interest on the Global Notes will be made to ‘the Deposi_tor_v as the ho[der
thereof. All such amounts will. subject as provided below. be pavable by a paying agent. 1n Pounfjs _ster!mg‘
Upon receipt of any payment of principal of or interest on a Global Note. the De_positor_v will distribute alj
such payments to (in the case of the Reg S Giobal Notes and Rule 144A Global Notes held by the Common
Depositary) the nominee for the Common Depositary and (in the case of the Rple_ 1444 G?nbal Notes hgld by
or on behalf of DTC) the nominee for DTC. All such payments will be distributed without deduction or
withholding for any taxes. duties. assessments o;r other governmental charges of whatever nature except as
may be required by law. If any such deduction of withholding is required to be made. then neither the Issuet
nor any other person will be obliged to pay additional amounts in respect thereof.

In accordance with the rules and procedires for the time being of Euroclear or. as the case may be,
Clearstream. Luxembourg, after receipt of any pavment from the Depository to the Common Depositary. the
respective systems will prompily credit their panjcipants' accounts with payments in amounts proportionate to
their respective ownership of Book-Entry Interests as shown in the records of Euroclear or of Clearstream,
Luxembourg. In the case of DTC. upon receipt oﬁ any payment from the Depository. DTC will promptly credit
its participants’ accounts with payments in amounts proportionate 10 their respective ownership of Book-Entry
Interests as shown on the records of DTC. The Issuer expects that payments by participants to owners of (o
interests in Book-Entry Interests held through s ch participants or indirect participants will be governed by
standing customer instructions and customary practices, as is now the case with the securities held for the
accounts of customers in bearer form or registdred in “street name”. and will be the responsibility of such
participants or indirect participants. None of the Issuer, the Trustee or any other agent of the Issuer or the
Trustee will have any responsibility or liability fbor any aspect of the records relating to or payments made on
account of a participant's ownership of Book-Entry Interests or for maintaining. supervising or reviewing any
records relating to a participant's ownership of Book-Entry Interests.

DTC is unable to accept payments denominated in pounds sterling in respect of the Global Notes,
Accordingly. holders of beneficial interests in Riile 144A Global Notes held through DTC who wish payments
to be made 1o them outside DTC must. in accordance with the Depository Agreement. notify DTC not less than
15 days prior to each Interest Payment Date (i} that thev wish to be paid in pounds sterling and (ii) of the
relevant bank account details into which such pounds sterling payments are to be made.

If such instructions are not received by DTC. the Exchange Agent will. pursuant to the Exchange Rate
Agency Agreement. exchange the relevant pounds sterling amounts for which it has not received contrary

instructions from the Depository {acting on the instructions of DTC) into dollars at the highest exchange rate

offered for such pounds sterling by three recognised foreign exchange dealers (which may include the
Exchange Agent) in New York City chosen b$’ the Exchange Agent and approved by the Issuer. and the . ‘
relevant Noteholders will receive the dollar equivalent of such pounds sterling payment converted at such '
exchange rate. In the event that bid quotations for exchange rates are unavailable, the Exchange Agent shall,

upon notifying the Issuer. cease to have any further responsibility with respect to such payments. In addition,

in certain cases. the appointment of the Exchange Agent may be terminated without a successor being
appointed. In such cases, Noteholders may experfence delays in obtaining payment.

Information Regarding DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream. Luxembourg
DTC. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembmllrg have informed the Issuer as follows:

DTC is a limited-purpose trust company[organised under the New York Banking Law, a "banking
organisation” within the meaning of the New Ybrk Banking Law. a member of the Federal Reserve System, a
"clearing corporation” within the meaning of ithe New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing
agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of section 17A of the Exchange Act. DTC was created to hold
securities of its participants and to facilitate the ffclearance and settlement of transactions among its participants
in such securities through electronic book-entry changes in accounts of the participants, thereby eliminating
the need for physical movement of securities certificates. DTC participants inciude securities brokers and

dea'lers. banks. trust companies. clearing corpotations and certain other organisations, some of whom (and/or
their representatives) own DTC.
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Clearstream. Luxembourg and Euroclear each hold securities for their customers and facilitaie the

earance and settlement of securities transactions by electronic book-entry transfer between their respective

account holders. Clearstream. Luxembourg and Euroclear provide various Services including safekeepmg.

administration. clearance and settiement of internationally tradt_ed securitigs and -s.ecunnes. len_dmg .andl
porrowing. Clearstream. Luxembourg and Euroclear also deal _\\'uh domestic securities markets in severa
countries through established depository and custodial relationships. C Ieaystream_. Luxembourg ar'ld‘ Eurc?ciear.
pave established an electronic bridge between their two systems across which their respective participants maj
settle trades with each other.

Clearstream. Luxembourg and Euroclear customers are world-wide financial institutions. including
underwriters. securities brokers and dealers. banks. trust companies and clearing corporations. Indlrectl access
to Clearstrearl. Luxembourg and Euroclear 15 available to other institutions that clear through or maintain

custodial relationship with an account holder of either system.

The lssuer understands that under existing industry practices. if either the Issuer or Trustee requests any
action of owners of Book-Entry Interests or if an owner of a Book-Entry Interest desires to give instructions or
take any action that a holder is entitled to give or take under the Trust Deed. Eurociear. Clearstream.
Luxembourg or DTC. as the case may be. would authorise the participants owning the relevant Book+Entry
Interests to give instructions or take such action. and such participants would authorise indirect participants to
give or take such action or would otherwise act upon the instructions of such indirect participants.

Redemption

In the event that any Global Note {or portion thereof) is redeemed. the Depository will deliver all amounts
received by it in respect of the redemption of such Global Note to the nominee of the Common Depositary (in
the case of a Reg S Global Note and the Rule 144A Global Note held by Euroclear and Clearstream.
Luxemboura) and to the nominee of DTC (in the case of a Rule 144A Global Note held by DTC or its
nominee) and. upon final payment. surrender such Global Note to or to the order of a Paving Agent for
cancellation. The redemption price pavable in connection with the redemption of Book-Entry Interests will be
equal to the amount received by the Depository in connection with the redemption of the Global Nete {or
portion thereot) relating thereto. For any redemptions of a Global Note in part. selection of the Book-Entry
Interests relating thereto to be redeemed will be made by Euroclear. Clearstream. Luxembourg or DTC. as the
case mav be. on a pro rata basis (or on such other basis as Euroclear. Clearstream. Luxembourg or DTC deems
fair and appropriate) provided that only Book-Entry Interests in the original principal amount of £30.000 (and
integral multiples of £1.000 in excess thereof) or integral multiples of such original principal amount shall be
redeemed. Upon anv redemption in part. the Depository will cause the relevant Paving Agent to mark down or
to cause to be marked down the schedule to such Global Note by the principal amount so redeemed.

Transfer and Transfer Restrictions

All transfers of Book-Entry Interests will be recorded in accordance with the book-entry systems
maintained by Euroclear. Clearstream. Luxembourg or DTC. as applicable. pursuant to customary procedures
established by each respective system and its participants. See "General” above.

Each Rule 144A Global Note will bear a legend substantially identical to that appearing in paragraph (3)
under "Transfer Restrictions”. and no Rule 143A Global Note nor any Book-Entry interest in such Rule 144A
Global Note may be transferred except in compliance with the transfer restrictions set forth in such legend. A
Book-Entry Interest in a Rule 144A Global Note of one class may be transferred to a person who takes
delivery in the form of a Book-Entry Interest in the Reg S Global Note of the same class. whether before or
after the expiration of the Note Distribution Compliance Period, only upon receipt by the Depositdry of a
written certification from the transferor (in the form provided in the Depository Agreement) 1o the effect that
such transfer is being made in accordance with Rule 903 or Rule 904 of Reg S or Rule 144 under the Securities
Act (if available) and that. if such transfer occurs prior to the expiration of the Note Distribution Compliance

Period. the interest transferred will be held immediately thereafter through Euroclear or Clearstream.
Luxembourg.

Each Reg S Global Note will bear a legend substantially identical to that appearing in paragraph (5) under
"Transfer Restrictions”. Until and including the 40th day after the later of the commencement of the ¢ffering
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of the Notes and the closing date for the offering of the Notes (the "Note Distribution Compliance Period"),
Book-Entry Interests in a Reg S Global Nbte may be held only through Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg. unless transfer and delivery is made through a Rule 144A Global Note of the same class. Prior
to the expiration of the Note Distribution Compijance Period. a Book-Entrv Interest in a Reg S Globgf Note of
one class may be transferred to a person who fakes delivery in the form of a Book-Entry Interest in a Rule
144A Global Note of the same class only upon receipt by the Depository of written certification from the
transferor (in the form provided in the Depositofy Agreement) to the effect that such transfer is being made to
a person whom the transferor reasonably beli¢ves is purchasing for its own account or for an account or
accounts as to which it exercises sole investmenk discretion and that such person and such account or accounts
is a qualified instirational buyer within the medning of Rule 144A. in each case in a transaction meeting the
requirements of Rule 144A and in accordance with any applicable securities laws of any state of the United
States or any other jurisdiction. '

Any Book-Entry Interest in a Reg S Globgl Note of one class that is transferred to a person who takes
delivery in the form of a Book-Entry Interest in b Rule 144A Global Note of the same class will. upon transfer,
cease to be represented by a Book-Entry Interest in such Reg S Global Note and will become represented by a
Book-Entry Interest in such Rule 144A Global Note and, accordingly, will thereafter be subject to all transfer
restrictions and other procedures applicable to Book-Entry Interests in a Rule 144A Global Note for as long as

r

it remains such a Book-Entry Interest. Any Book-Entry Interest in a Rule 144A Global Note of one class that i:. ‘

transferred to a person who takes delivery in thei form of a Book-Entry Interest in the Reg S Global Note of th
same class will. upon transfer. cease to be represented by a Book-Entry Interest in such Rule 144A Global
Note and will become represented by a Book-Entry Interest in such Reg S Global Note and, accordingly, will
thereafter be subject to all transfer restrictions/and other procedures applicable to Book-Entry Interests in a
Reg S Global Note as long as it remains such a Book-Entry Interest.

Issuance of Definitive Notes

Holders of Book-Entry Interests in a Global Note will be entitled to receive Definitive Notes representing
Notes of the relevant class in registered form inlexchange for their respective holdings of Book-Entry Interests
only if: i

(h (in the case of CDIs in Reg S Global Notes and Rule 144A Global Notes held by the Common
Depositary) either Euroclear or Clgarstream. Luxembourg is closed for business for a continuous
period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday. statutory or otherwise) or announces an
intention permanently to cease business and no altemative clearing system satisfactory to the
Trustee is available; or i

|

(i) {in the case of CDIs in Rule 144A |Global Notes held by or on behalf of DTC) DTC has notifi
the Issuer that it is at any time unwilling or unable to continue as the holder with respect to the
CDIs. or is at any time unwilling| or unable to continue as. or ceases to be, a clearing agency
registered under the Exchange Act,and a successor to DTC registered as a clearing agency under
the Exchange Act is not appointed by the Issuer within 90 days of such notification: or

(i) the Depository is at any time un'i\'il!ing or unable to continue as Depository and a successor
Depository previously approved by the Trustee in writing is not appointed by the Issuer within 90
days; or |

{iv) the owner of a Book-Entry [nterel;t requests such exchange in writing delivered through either
DTC. Euroclear or Clearstream. L*xembourg to the Issuer. following an Event of Default under
the Notes: or |

I

(v) as a result of any amendment to, of change in, the laws or regulations of the United Kingdom or
any other jurisdiction (or of any ipolitical sub-division thereof or of any authority therein or
thereof having power 1o tax) or:in the interpretation by a revenue authority or a court or
administration of such laws or regulations which becomes effective on or after the Closing Date,
the Issuer or any Paying Agent is or will be required to make any deduction or withholding from
?ny payment in respect of the Notes which would not be required were the Notes in definitive
orm.
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Anv Definitive Notes issued in exchange for Book-Entry Interests in a Global Note will be registered by
the Reg.istrar in such name or names as the Depository shall mstruct tl}e Registrar based on the instructions of
Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg (in the case of Reg S Global Notes and Rule 144A Globai Notes held
bv the Common Depositary) or DTC (in the case of Rule 144A Glo_bal Notes_held by and on behalf of DTC). It
is expected that such instructions will be based upon directlops received by Euroclear. Clearstream.
Luxembourg or DTC from their participants with respect to ownership of the relevant Book-Entry Interests. In
no event will Definitive Notes be issued in bearer form.

HOLDERS SHOULD BE AWARE THAT. UNDER CURRENT UK. TAX LAW, FOLLOWING '!'HE
ISSUANCE TO A HOLDER OF REGISTERED DEFINITIVE NOTES. PAYMENT OF INTEREST WILL
BE SUBJECT TO U.K. WITHHOLDING TAX (CURRENTLY AT THE RATE OF 20 PER CENT.).
SUBJECT TO THE TERMS OF ANY APPLICABLE DOUBLE TAX TREATY (OR OTHER AVAILABLE
RELIEFS). SEE FURTHER "UNITED KINGDOM TAXATION". IN SUCH CIRCUMSTANCES NEITHER
THE ISSUER NOR ANY OTHER PERSON WILL BE OBLIGED TO PAY ADDITIONAL AMOUNTS

WITH RESPECT TO ANY DEFINITIVE NOTE (OR GLOBAL NOTE).
Action in Respect of the Global Notes and the Book-Entry Interests

Not later than 10 days after receipt by the Depository of any notices in respect of the Global Notes or any
notice of solicitation of consents or requests for a waiver or other action by the holder of the Global Netes or
holders of Book-Entry Interests. the Depository will deliver 10 Euroclear. Clearstream. Luxembourg and DTC
a notice containing (a) such information as is contained in such notice. (b) a statement that at the close of
business on a specified record date Euroclear. Clearstream, Luxembourg and DTC will be entitled to instruct
the Depository as to the consent. waiver or gther action. if any. pertaining to the Book-Entry Interests or the
Global Notes and {c) a statement as to the manner in which such instructions may be given. Upon the written
request of Euroclear, Clearstream. Luxembourg and DTC. as applicable. the Depository shall endeavour
insofar as practicable to take such action regarding the requested consent. waiver or other action in respect of
the Book-Entry Interests or the Global Notes in accordance with any instructions set forth in such request.
Euroclear. Clearstream. Luxembourg or DTC are expected to follow the procedures described under "General"
above with respect to soliciting instructions from their respective participants. The Depository will not exercise
any discretion in the granting of consents or waivers or the taking of any other action in respect of the Book-
Entrv Interests or the Global Notes.

Reports

The Depository will immediately. and in no event later than 10 days from receipt, send to Euroclear,
Clearstream. Luxembourg and DTC a copy of any notices. reports and other communications received in
relation to the Issuer. the Global Notes or the Book-Entry Interests. All notices regarding the Global Notes will
be sent to Euroclear. Clearstream. Luxembourg, DTC and the Depository. In addition (so long as the Notes are
admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange and the rules of the London Stock Exchange shall so
require}. notices regarding the Notes will be published in a leading newspaper having a general circulation in
London. which is expected to be the Financial Times and (for so long as the Notes are admitted to the Official
List and the rules of the UK Listing Authority require) notices regarding the Notes will be notified to the
Company Announcement Office.

Action by Depository

Subject to certain limitations, upon the occurrence of an Event of Default with respect to the Notes whilst
represented by Global Notes the Depository will notify the holders thereof and, if requested in writing by
DTC. Euroclear or Clearstream. Luxembourg. as applicable. (acting on the instructions of their respective
participants in accordance with their respective procedures) the Depository will take any such action as shall
be requested by them. subject to, if required by the Depository, such reasonable security or indemnity from the
participants against the costs, expenses and liabilities that the Depository might properly incur in compliance
with such request.
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Charges of Depository and Indemnity ,
I

The Issuer has agreed to pay all charges _;of the Depository under the Depository Agreement. The lIssuer
has also agreed to indemnify the Depository! against cerain liabilities incurred by it under the Depository

Agreement.

Amendment and Termination

The Depository Agreement may be amehded by agreement among the lIssuer. the Depository and the
Trustee and without the consent of the holders of Book-Entry Interests (i) to cure any inconsistency. omission,
defect or ambiguity in such Agreement: (i) t0 add to the covenants and agreements of the Depository or the
Issuer: {iii) to effect the assignment of the Depository's rights and duties to a qualified successor: (iv) to
comply with the Securities Act, the Exchange'Act or the U.S. Investment Company Act of 1940. as amended;
or (v} to modify. alter. amend or supplement the Depository Agreement in any other manner that is not adverse

10 the holders of Book-Entry Interests. Except as set forth above. no amendment that adversely affects the
holders of the Book-Entry Interests may be made to the Depository Agreement without the consent of the

holders of the Book-Entry Interests. ;

Upon the issuance of Definitive Notes, thé Depository Agreement will terminate. ‘
; t
Resignation or Removal of Depository

The Depository may at any time resign as' Depository upon 90 days’ written notice delivered to each of the
Issuer and the Trustee. The Issuer may remove the Depository at any time upon 90 days' written notice. No
removal of the Depository and no appointment of a successor Depository shall become effective until (i) the
acceptance of appointment by a successor Depiository or (ii) the issuance of Definitive Notes.

Obligation of Depository
4
The Depositorv will only be liable 10 erform such duties as are expressly set out in the Depository
Agreement. The Depository Agreement contains provisions relieving the Depository from liability and
permitting it to refrain from acting in cerfain circumstances. The Depository Agreement also contains
provisions permitting any entity into which; the Depository is merged or converted or with which it is
consolidated or any successor in business to tﬁe Depository to become the successor depository.

.J.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES

The following are the terms and conditions of the Notes in the form (subject to amendment) in which they
will be set out in the Trust Deed.

The £197.300.000 Class A Commercial Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due 2009 {the 'Class A
Notes"). the £17.821.000 Class B Commercial Morigage Backed Floating Rate Notes due 2009 (the "Class B
Notes"). the £15.275.000 Class C Commercial Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due 2009 {the "Class C
Notes” ). the £15.911.000 Class D Commercial Morigage Backed Floating Rate Notes due 2009 {the "Class D
Notes") and the £8.274.000 Class E Commercial Monigage Backed Floating Rate Notes due 2009 (the "Class
E Notes" and. together with the Class A Notes. the Class B Notes. the Class C Notes and the Class D Notes.
the "Notes" (as more fully defined below)) of European Loan Conduit No. 3 ple (the "Issuer") are constituted
by a trust deed dated on or about 12th July. 2000 (the "Trust Deed". which expression includes such trust deed
as from time to time modified in accordance with the provisions therein contained and any deed or other
document expressed to be supplemental thereto as from time to time so modified) and made between the Issuer
and Chase Manhattan Trustees Limited (the "Trustee”. which expression includes its successors or any further
or other trustee under the Trust Deed) as trustee for the holders for the time being of the Notes (the
"Noteholders"”. as more fully defined below). Any reference to a "class" of Notes or of Noteholders shall be a
reference to any. or all of, the respective Class A Notes, the Class B Notes. the Class C Notes. the Class D
Notes or the Class E Notes or any or all of their respective holders. as the case may be.

The securitv for the Notes is created pursuant to, and on terms set out in. a deed of charge and assignment
dated on or about 12th July. 2000 (the 'Deed of Charge and Assignment", which expression includes such
Deed of Charge and Assignment as from time to time modified in accordance with the provisions therein
contained and anv deed or other document expressed to be supplemental thereto as from time to time so
modified) and made between. inzer alios. the Issuer and the Trustee. By an agency agreement dated on or
about 11th July. 2000 (the "Agency Agreement”, which expression includes such agency agreement as from
time to time modified in accordance with the provisions therein contained and any agreement. deed or other
document expressed 10 be supplemental thereto as from time to time so modified) and made between, inrer
alios. the Issuer. the Trustee and AIB International Financial Services Ltd. in its separate capacities under the
same agreement as principal paving agent (the "Principal Paying Agent”, which expression shall include any
other principal paving agent appointed in respect of the Notes) agent bank (the "Agent Bank", which
expression shall include anv other agent bank appointed in respect of the Notes) and registrar (the "Registrar”,
which expression shall include any other registrar appointed in respect of the Notes) (the Principal Paying
Agent being. together with any further or other paying agents for the time being appointed in respect of the
Notes. the "Paving Agents" and. together with the Agent Bank and the Registrar, the "Agents”), provision is
made for. inter alia. the pavment of principal and interest in respect of the Notes.

The statements in these Terms and Conditions {the "Conditions” and any reference to a "Conditien"” shail
be construed accordingly} include summanes of, and are subject to, the detailed provisions of the Trust Deed,
the Agency Agreement. the Deed of Charge and Assignment, the Depositorv Agreement, the Exchange Rate
Agency Agreement and the Master Definitions Agreement (each as defined below). Copies of the Trust Deed,
the Agency Agreement and the Deed of Charge and Assignment are available for inspection by the
Noteholders at the principal office for the time being of the Trustee. being at the date hercof at 9 Thomas More
Street, Londen EIW 1YT and at the specified office of each of the Paying Agents. The Noteholders are
entitled to the benefit of. are bound by, and are deemed to have notice of. all the provisions of and definitions
contained in the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement. the Deed of Charge and Assignment, the depository
agreement dated on or about 12th July, 2000 between the Issuer, the Trustee and The Chase Manhattan Bank,
New York Office. in its capacity as Depository (the "Depository Agreement". which expression includes such
depository agreement as from time to time so modified in accordance with the provisions therein contained and
any agreement, deed or other document expressed to be supplemental thereto as from time to time so modified
and the "Depository”. respectively), the exchange rate agency agreement dated on or about 12th July, 2000
berween the Issuer. AIB International Financial Services Ltd, in its capacity as Exchange Rate Agent, the
Trustee and Chase Manhattan Trustees Limited. New York Office, in its capacity as Depository (the
"Exchange Rate Agency Agreement", which expression includes such exchange rate agency agreement as
from time to time so modified in accordance with the provisions therein contained and any agreement, deed or
other document expressed to be supplemental therein as from time to time so modified) and a master
definitions agreement dated on or about 12th July, 2000 made between, inter alios, the Issuer and the Trustee
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{the "Master Definitions Agreement”, which expression includes such master definitions agreement as from
time to time modified in accordance with the provisions therein contained and any agreement. deed or other
document expressed to be supplemental theretol as from time to time s0 modified) and the documents referred

to in each of them.

The issue of the Notes was authorised by resolution of the board of directors of the lssuer passed on or
about 11th July, 2000.

1. Global Notes
fa) Rule 1444 Global Notes

The Class A Notes. the Class B Notes. the Class C Notes. the Class D Notes and the Class E
Notes initially offered and seld in the United States of America (the "United States”) to qualified
institutional buyers (as defined in Rule 144A ("Rule 144A") under the United States Securities
Act of 1933. as amended, (the 'Securities Act”) in reliance on Rule 144A will initially be
represented by two separate global notes in bearer form for each class of Note (the "Class A Rule
144A Global Notes". the "Class B Rule 144A Global Notes", the "Class C Rule 144A Global
Notes". the "Class D Rule 144AGlobal Notes" and the "Class E Rule 144A Global Notes" g
respectively. and together the "Rule 144A Global Notes™). The Rule 144A Global Notes will (
deposited with or to the order of the Depository pursuant to the terms of the Depository
Agreement. The Depository will register (i) a certificateless depository interest in respect of one

of the Rule 144A Global Notes of each class of Notes in the name of The Depository Trust
Corporation ("DTC") or its nominee and (ii} a certificateless depository interest in respect of the
other Rule 144A Global Note in respect of each class of Notes in the name of The Chase
Manhattan Bank. London (the "Commeon Depositary™) for the account of Morgan Guaranty Trust
Company of New York (as operator of the Euroclear System) ("Euroclear” which term shall
include any successor operator of the Euroclear System) and Clearstream Banking, société
anonyme ("Clearstream, Luxembourg"}.

(b} Reg S Global Notes

The Class A Notes. the Class B [Notes. the Class C Notes. the Class D Notes and the Class E
Notes initially offered and sold ;L)utside the United States to non-U.S. persons in reliance on
Regulation S ("Reg S§") under the Securities Act will initially be represented by a separate global
note in bearer form for each class of Note (the "Class A Reg S Global Note", the "Class B Reg
S Global Note". the "Class C Reg S Global Note". the "Class D Reg S Global Note™ and the
"Class E Reg S Global Note". respectively. and together the "Reg § Global Notes", and toget '
with the Rule 144A Global Notek. the "Global Notes”). The Reg S Global Notes will each bt
deposited with or to the order|of the Depository pursuant to the terms of the Depository
Agreement. The Depository willlissue a certificated depository interest in respect of each Reg §
Global Note to the Commeon Depositary for the account of Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg.

{c) Form and Title

Each Global Note shall be issued iin bearer form without coupons or talons.

The Depository or its nominee shill. for so long as it is holder of the Global Notes and, except as
otherwise required by law, be treated as its absolute owner for all purposes (including the making
of any payments), regardless of any notice of ownership. theft or loss thereof, or of any trust or
other interest therein or of any writing thereon.

Ownership of interests in the Rule 144A Global Notes ("Restricted Book-Entry Interests”) will
be limited to persons that have accounts with DTC and/or Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg, or persons that hold interests through such participants. Ownership of interests in
the Regulation S Global Notes (the "Unrestricted Book-Entry Interests" and, together with the
Restricted Book-Entry Interests, the "Book-Entry Interests") will be limited to persons who have
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accounts with Euroclear and-or Clearstream. Luxembourg or persons that hold interests through

such participants. Book-Entry Interests will be show on. and transfers thereof will be effected
onlv through. records maintained in book-entry by DTC. Euroclear and Clearstream. Luxembourg
and their participants. and in accordance with the provisions of the Depository’ Agreement.

2. Definitive Notes

fa)

Issue of Definitive Notes

A Global Note will be exchanged for definitive Notes of the relevant class in registered form
("Definitive Notes") in an aggregate principal amount equal to the Principal Amount Outstanding
(as defined in Condition 6(f)) net of any respective Principal Shortfall (as defined in Condition
6(c)) of the relevant Global Note only if. 40 davs or more after the Closing Date. any of the

following circumstances apply:

{ in the case of a2 Reg S Global Note or a Rule 144A Global Note in respect of which the
Depository has issued a certificated depository interest to. or registered a certificateless
depository interest in the name of. Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear or the
Common Depositary for their account, either Clearstream. Luxembourg or Euroclear is
closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday.
statutory or otherwise) or announces an intention permanently to cease business or.does
in fact do so and no alternative clearing system satisfactory to the Trustee is in existence:
or

(11} in the case of a Rule 144A Note in respect of which the Depository has registered a
certificateless depository interest in the name of DTC or its nominee, DTC has notified
the Issuer that it is unwilling or unable to continue as the holder with respect to such
certificateless depository interest. or is at any time unwilling or unable to continue as. or
ceases 1o be. a clearing agency registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 of
the United States of America (the "Exchange Act") and a successor to DTC registered as
a clearing agency under the Exchange Act is not appointed by the Issuer within 90 days
of such notification or cessation: or

(it} the Depository notifies the Issuer at any time that it is unwilling or unable to continue as
depository and a successor to the Depository previously approved by the Trustee in
writing is not appointed by the Issuer within 90 days of such notification: or

{iv) the owner of a Book-Entry Interest requests such exchange in writing delivered through
either DTC. Euroclear or Clearstream. Luxembourg to the Issuer. following an Event of
Default (as defined in Condition 10{a)): or

{(v) as a result of any amendment to. or change in. the laws or regulations of the United
Kingdom or any other jurisdiction or any political sub-division thereof or of any authority
therein or thereof having the power to tax. or in the interpretation or administratipn of
such laws or regulations, which becomes effective on or after the Closing Date, the Issuer
or any Paying Agent is or will be required to make any deduction or withholding from
any payment in respect of the Notes which would not be required if the Notes were in
definitive registered form.

If Definitive Notes are issued. the Book-Entry Interests represented by the Reg S Global Note of
each class shall be exchanged by the Issuer for Definitive Notes ("Reg S Definitive Notes") of
that class and the Book-Entry Interests represented by each Rule 144A Global Note of each class
shall be exchanged by the Issuer for Definitive Notes ("Rule 144A Definitive Notes") of that
class. The aggregate principal amount of the Reg S Definitive Notes and the Rule 144A
Definitive Notes of each class shall be equal to the Principal Amount Qutstanding. net of any
respective Principal Shortfall, of the Reg S Global Note or. as the case may be, the Rule 144A
Global Notes of the corresponding class, subject to and in accordance with the detailed provisions
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of these Conditions. the Agency Aggreement. the Depository Agreement, the Trust Deed and the
relevant Global Note. !

(b) Title to and Transfer of Definitive :’iw'otes

Title to a Definitive Note shall passi upon registration in the register which the Issuer shall procure
to be kept by the Registrar. A Definitive Note will have an original principal amount of £50.000
or any integral multiple of £1.000! in excess thereof and will be serially numbered. Definitive
Notes may be transferred in whale or in part (provided that any partial transfer relates 10 3
Definitive Note in the original prinicipal amount of £50.000 or any integral muitiple of £1.000 in
excess thereof) upon surrender of the relevant Definitive Note. with the form of transfer endorsed
on it duly completed and executed. at the specified office of the Registrar. In the case of 3
transfer of part only of a Definitive Note, a new Definitive Note in respect of the balance not
transferred will be issued to the transferor. All transfers of Definitive Notes are subject to any
restrictions on transfer set forth in:such Definitive Notes and the detailed regulations concerning

transfers in the Agency Agreement|

Each new Definitive Note to be!issued upon transfer of a Definitive Note will. within five
Business Days (as defined in Condition 5(b)) of receipt at the specified office of the Registrar ofgm
such Definitive Note {duly endorsdd) for transfer. be available for delivery at the specified oﬂicb ‘
of the Registrar or be posted at thei risk of the holder entitled to such new Definitive Note to such
address as may be specified in the form of transfer.

Registration of a Definitive Note on transfer will be effected without charge by or on behalf of the
Issuer or the Registrar, but upon payment of (or the giving of such indemnity as the Registrar may
require in respect of) any tax or other government charges which may be imposed in relation to it.

No transfer of a Definitive Note “:rili be registered in the period beginning fificen Business Days
before. or ending on the fifth Business Day after. each Interest Payment Date (as defined in
Condition 5(4)).

fc) "Noteholders" means (i) in respect of each Global Note. the bearer thereof. and (ii) in respect ofa
Definitive Note issued under Condition 2{@) above. the person in whose name such Definitive
Note is registered, subject as provided in Condition 7(b): and related expressions shall be
construed accordingly.

() References to "Notes" shall includ;e the Global Notes and the Definitive Notes.

3. Status, Security and Priority
(A) Status and relationship between the i\{ores
i

(a) The Class A Notes constitute |direct, secured and unconditional obligations of the Issuer and
are secured by the same security that secures the other classes of Notes. The Class A Notes
rank pari passu without preference or priority among themselves.

b) The Class B Notes constitute |direct, secured and unconditional obligations of the Issuer and
are secured by the same security that secures the other classes of Notes. The Class B Notes
rank pari passu without prefetence or priority among themselves. but the Class A Notes will
rank in priority to the Class B Notes in the event of the Issuer Security (as defined in the
Master Definitions Agreement) being enforced. Save as described in Condition 6, prior t0
enforcement of the Issuer Security, payments of principal of and interest on the Class B Notes
are subordinated to, inter alia; payments of principal of and interest on the Class A Notes, as
provided herein. ;

(c) The Class C Notes constitute: direct, secured and unconditional obligations of the Issuer and
are secured by thg same secufity that secures the other classes of Notes, The Class C Notes
rank pari passu without preference or priority among themselves, but the Class A Notes and
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{d)

(e}

()

the Class B Notes will rank in priority to the Class C Notes in the event of the Issuer Security
being enforced. Save as described in C ondition 6. prior to enforcement of the Issuer Securnty.
payments of principal of and interest on the Class C Notes are subordinated to. imer alia.
pavments of principal of and interest on the Class A Notes and Class B Notes as provided

herein.

The Class D Notes constitute direct, secured and unconditional obligations of the Issuer and
are secured by the same security that secures the other classes of Notes. The Class D Notes
rank pari pussy without preference or priority among themselves. but the Class A Notes. the
Class B Notes and the Class C Notes will rank in priority to the Class D Notes in the event of
the Issuer Security being enforced. Save as described in Condition 6. prior to enforcement of
the Issuer Security. payments of principal of and interest on the Class D Notes are
subordinated to. infer alia. payments of principal of and interest on the Class A Notes, the
Class B Notes and the Class C Notes.

The Class E Notes constitute direct. secured and unconditional obligations of the Issuer and
are secured by the same security that secures the other classes of Notes. The Class E Notes
rank pari passu without preference or priority among themselves. but the Class A Notes, the
Class B Notes. the Class C Notes and the Class D Notes will rank in priority to the Class E
Notes in the event of the Issuer Security being enforced. Save as described in Condition 6,
prior to enforcement of the Issuer Security. payments of principal of and interest on the Class
E Notes are subordinated to. inter alia. payments of principal of and interest on the Class A
Notes. the Class B Notes. the Class C Notes and the Class D Notes.

The Trust Deed and the Deed of Charge and Assignment each contains provisions reguiring
the Trustee to have regard to the interests of the holders of Class A Notes. Class B Notes,
Class C Notes. Class ID Notes and the Class E Notes equally as regards all powers. trusts,
authorities. duties and discretions of the Trustee (except where expressly provided otherwise),
provided that (except in the case of an Extraordinary Resolution relating to the appointment
or termination of the appointment of the Special Servicer. in which case the Controlling
Party. as defined in Condition 4(C). shall prevail):

(1) if. in the Trustee's opinion, there is a conflict between the interests of:

(A} the Class A Noteholders (for so long as the Class A Notes are outstanding):
and

(B) the Class B Noteholders and:or the Class C Noteholders and/or the Class D
Noteholders and:or the Class E Noteholders.

then the Trustee shall have regard only to the interests of the Class A Noteholders:

(i) if. in the Trustee's opinion, there is a conflict between the interests of!
(A) the Class B Noteholders (for so long as the Class B Notes are outstanding);
and

(B) the Class C Noteholders and/or the Class D Noteholders and/or the Class E
Noteholders.

then the Trustee shall. subject to (i) above, have regard only to the interests of the
Class B Noteholders:

(i) if. in the Trustee's opinion, there is a conflict between the interests of:

{A) the Class C Noteholders (for so long as the Class C Notes are outstanding);
and
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(B) the Class D Noteho]ders and or the Class E Noteholders.
then the Trustee shall. subject to (i) and (ii) above, have regard only to the interesis
of the Class C Notehalders: and

(iv) if in the Trustee's opiﬁion. there is a conflict berween the interests of:

(A) the Class D! Noteholders (for so long as there are any Class D Notes
outstanding):'and

(B) the Class E Noteholders.

then the Trustee shall. subject (i). (ii). and (iii) above. have regard only to the
interests of the Class D Noteholders.

Except where expressly provided otherwise, so long as any of the Notes remains outstanding,
the Trustee is not required to have regard to the interests of any other persons entitled to the
benefit of the Issuer Security. :

(g} The Trust Deed contains proxfisions limiting the powers of (i) the Class B Noteholders. t‘m. {
alia. 10 request or direct the Trustee to take any action or to pass an effective Extraordinary
Resolution {as defined in the iTrust Deed) according to the effect thereof on the interests of
the Class A Noteholders. (ii)ithe Class C Noteholders. inter afia. to request or direct the
Trustee to take any action or ito pass an effective Extraordinary Resclution according to the
effect thereof on the interests of the Class A Noteholders or the Class B Noteholders, (iii) the
Class D Noteholders. inrer afia. to request or direct the Trustee to take any action Or to pass
an effective Extraordinary Resolution according to the effect thereof on the interests of the
Class A Noteholders. the Class B Noteholders or the Class C Noteholders, and (iv}) the Class
E Noteholders. inter alia. to request or direct the Trustee to take any action or pass an
effective Extraordinary Resohition according 10 the effect thereof on the interests of the Class
A Noteholders. the Class B Noteholders. the Class C Noteholders or the Class D Noteholders,
Except in certain circumstances. the Trust Deed contains no such limitation on the powers of
the Class A Noteholders. thé exercise of which powers will be binding on the Class B
Noteholders and/or the Class £ Noteholders and-or the Class D Noteholders and/or the Class
E Noteholders. irrespective pf the effect thereof on their interests. Except in certain
circumstances. the exercise of] their powers by (i) the Class B Noteholders will be binding on
the Class C Noteholders. the [Class D Noteholders and the Class E Noteholders, irrespective
of the effect thereof on their|interests, {ii) the Class C Noteholders will be binding on t"‘
Class D Noteholders and the [Class E Noteholders. irrespective of the effect thereof on thef®.
interests. and (iii) the Class |D Noteholders will be binding on the Class E Noteholders,
irrespective of the effect therepf on their interests.

{B) Security and Priority of Payments

The security in respect of the Notes is set dut in the Deed of Charge and Assignment. The Deed of Charge
and Assignment also contains provisions regulating the priority of application of the Available Interest
Receipts (as defined in the Master Definitions| Agreement} and Available Principal {as defined in the Master
Definition Agreement) among the persons entitied thereto prior to the service of a Note Enforcement Notice
(as defined in Condition 10(«a)). and of the |Available Interest Receipts. the Available Principal and the
proceeds of enforcement or realisation of the lIssuer Security by the Trustee after the service of a Note
Enforcement Notice.

The Issuer Security may be enforced following the service of a Note Enforcement Notice provided that, if
the Issuer Security has become enforceable otherwise than by reason of a default in payment of any amount
due on the Notes, the Trustee will not be entitléd to dispose of the assets comprising the Issuer Security or any
part thereof unless (i) a sufficient amount would be realised to allow discharge in full of all amounts owing to
the Noteholders and any amounts required under the Deed of Charge and Assignment to be paid pari passu
with. or in priority to, the Notes, or (ii} the Trustee is of the opinion, which shall be binding on the
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Noteholders. reached after considering at any ume and frum time to iime the advice upen which the Trusta2
shall be entitled to rely of such professional advisers as are selected by the Trustee. that the cash f_‘Iow
prospectively receivable by the Issuer will not (or that there is a significant risk that it will not) pe suﬁﬁment.
having regard to any other actual. contingent or prospective liabilities of the Issuer. to discharge in full in due
course all amounts owing to the Noteholders and any amounts required under the Deed of Charge and
Assignment to be paid pari passu with. or in priority to. the Notes. or (i) the Trustee considers. in ns
discretion. that not to effect such disposal would place the Issuer Security in jeopardy. and. in any event. {iv)
the Trustee has been indemnified to its satisfaction.

If the net proceeds of realisation of. or enforcement with respect to. the Issuer Security are not sufficient to
make all pavments due in respect of the Notes. the other assets (if any) of the Issuer. other than any surplus
arising on the realisation of or enforcement with respect to any remaining security. will not be available for
payment of any shortfall arising therefrom. and any such shortfall shall be bome in accordance with the
provisions of Condition 16 and the Deed of Charge and Assignment. All claims in respect of such shortfall.
after realisation of or enforcement with respect to all of the Issuer Security. shall be extinguished and the
Trustee. the Noteholders and the other Secured Parties shall have no further claim against the Issuer in respect
of such unpaid amounts. Each Noteholder. by subscribing for or purchasing Notes. is deemed to accept and
acknowledge that it is fully aware that (i) in the event of an enforcement of the Issuer Security. its right to
obtain pavment of interest and repayment of principal on the Notes in full is limited to recourse against the
assets of the Issuer comprised in the Issuer Security. (ii) the Issuer will have dulv and entirely fulfilled its
payment obligations by making available to such Noteholder its proportion of the proceeds of realisation or
enforcement of the Issuer Security in accordance with the Deed of Charge and Assignment. and all claims in
respect of any shortfall shall be extinguished. and (iii) in the event that a shortfall in the amount available to
pav interest owing on the Class D Notes or the Class E Notes or principal of the Notes of any class exists on
the Final Interest Pavment Date (as defined in Condition 16(a)) or on any earlier redemption in full of the
Notes or the relevant class of Notes. after pavment on the Final Interest Payment Date or such date of earlier
redemption of all other claims ranking in priority to or pari passu with the Notes or the relevant class of Notes.
and the [ssuer Security has not become enforceable as at the Final Interest Payment Date or such date of earlier
redemption. the liability of the Issuer to make any payment in respect of such shortfall shall cease and all
claims in respect of such shortfall shall be extinguished.

4, Covenants
(4) Restrictions

Save with the prior written consent of the Trustee or unless otherwise provided in or envisaged by these
Conditions or the Relevant Documents (as defined in the Master Definitions Agreement). the Issuer shall not.
so long as any Note remains outstanding:

fa) Negative Pledge
create or permit to subsist any mortgage. sub-mortgage. assignment. standard security. charge.
sub-charge. pledge. lien (unless arising by operation of law), hypothecation. assignation or other

security interest whatsoever over any of its assets. present or future {including any uncalled
capital):
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b) Restrictions on Activities

() engage in any activity whatsoever which is not incidental to or necessary in connection
with any of the activities which the Relevant Documents provide or envisage that the

Issuer will engage in;

(i) have any subsidiaries or any employees or own. rent. lease or be in possession of any
buildings or equipment: Or

(ii) amend, supplement or othdrwise modify its Memorandum or Articles of Association or
other constitutive documents,;

fc) Disposal of Assets

transfer. sell, lend, part with or othérwise dispose of, or deal with, or grant any optio_n or present
or future right to acquire any of its assets or undertaking or any interest, estate, right, title or
benefit therein; '

fd) Dividends or Distributions . a

pay any dividend or make any other distribution to its shareholders or issue any further shares,
other than in accordance with the Dged of Charge and Assignment;

fe) Borrowings . ,
i
incur or permit to subsist any indebtedness in respect of borrowed money whatsoever, except in
respect of the Notes, the Swap Trahsactions (as defined in the Master Definitions Agreement) or
the Liquidity Facility Agreement (s defined in the Master Definitions Agreement) or give any
guarantee or indemnity in respect of any indebtedness or of any obligation of any person:

tf) Merger

consolidate or merge with any c):ther person or convey or transfer its properties or assets
substantially as an entirety to any other person.

fg) Variation

permit the validity or effectiveness of any of the Relevant Documents, or the priority of th

security interests created thereby, to be amended. terminated. postponed or discharged. or consen

to any variation of, or exercise any powers of consent or waiver pursuant to the terms of, the Trust
Deed. these Conditions, the Deed of Charge and Assignment or any of the other Relevant
Documents, or permit any party to|any of the Relevant Documents or the Issuer Security or any
other person whose obligations form part of the I[ssuer Security to be released from such
obligations or dispose of all or any i:an of the Issuer Security:

thi Bank accounts |
|
!
have an interest in any bank accou.[nt other than the Issuer's Accounts (as defined in the Master
Definitions Agreement), unless such account or interest therein is charged to the Trustee on terms
acceptable to it;
!
fi) Assets

own assets other than those represénting its share capital, the funds arising from the issue of the
Notes, the property, rights and asséts secured by the Issuer Security and associated and ancillary
rights and interests thereto, the benefit of the Relevant Documents and any investments and other
rights or interests created or acquired thereunder, as all of the same may vary from time to time;
and :
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() VAT

apply to become part of any group for the purposes of section 43 of the Value Added Tax Act
1994 with any other company or group of companies. or any such act. regulation. order, statutory
instrument or directive which may from time to time re-enact. replace. amend. vary. codify.
consolidate or repeal the Value Added Tax Act 1994.

In giving any consent to the foregoing. the Trustee may require the lssuer to make such modiﬁcgt.ions or
additions to the provisions of any of the Relevant Documents or may impose such 0[hf-3r copdmo‘ns or
requirements as the Trustee may deem expedient (in its absolute discretion) in the interests of the Noteholders,
provided that the Rating Agency (as defined in Condition 15) provides written confinn.anon to the Trustee that
the then applicable ratings of the Notes will not be downgraded. withdrawn or qualified as a result of such

modifications or additions.
(B) Cash Manager and Servicer

So long as any of the Notes remains outstanding. the Issuer will procure that there will at all times be a
cash manager and a servicer in respect of the monies from time to time standing to the credit of the Transaction
Accounts (as defined in the Master Definition Agreement) and any other account of the lssuer from time to
time. Neither the Cash Manager nor the Servicer will be permitted to terminate its appointment unless a
replacement cash manager or servicer, as the case may be, acceptable to the Issuer and the Trustee has been
appointed. The appointment of the Cash Manager and the Servicer may be terminated by the Trustee if. inter
alig. the Cash Manager or the Servicer. as applicable, defaults in any material respect (in the case of the
Servicing Agreement) or in any respect (in the case of the Cash Management Agreement} in the observance
and performance of any obligation imposed on it under the Cash Management Agreement or the Servicing
Agreement. as applicable. which default is not remedied (i) within ten Business Days. in the case of the Cash
Management Agreement, after the earlier of the Cash Manager becoming aware of such default and written
notice of such default shall have been served on the Cash Manager by the Trustee (except in respect of a
failure by the Cash Manager to make when due a payment required to be made by the Cash Manager on behalf
of the Issuer. in which case the appointment of the Cash Manager may be terminated immediately), or (ii)
within thirty Business Days. in the case of the Servicing Agreement, after written notice of such default shall
have been served on the Servicer by the Issuer or the Trustee.

(C) Special Servicer

In certain circumstances set out in the Servicing Agreement. the holders of the most junior class of Notes
outstanding at any time (such class of Noteholders being, for these purposes. the "Controlling Party” ) may
appoint a Special Servicer (as defined in the Master Definitions Agreement) in respect of one or more:Loans
(as defined in the Master Definitions Agreement). Upon any reduction to zero of the aggregate Principal
Amount QOutstanding under the most junior class of Notes outstanding at any time {whether by reason of the
allocation of Principal Shortfalls (as defined in Condition 6(c)). redemption of such Notes or otherwise), the
holders of the next most junior class of Notes then outstanding shall become the Controlling Party and shall be
entitled, by an Extraordinary Resolution passed by the holders of such ciass of Notes. to require the Trustee to
terminate the appointment of the person then acting as Special Servicer and to appoint a successor thereto
acceptable 1o the Controlling Parry.

5. Interest
{a) Period of Accrual

Each Note shall bear interest on its Principal Amount Qutstanding. net of any respective Principal
Shortfall, from (and including) the Closing Date. Each Note (or, in the case of the redemption of
part only of a Note, that part only of such Note) shall cease to bear interest from its due date for
redemption unless. upon due presentation, payment of the relevant amount of principal or any part
thereof is improperly withheld or refused or default is made in putting the relevant Paying Agent
in funds in respect thereof in accordance with the Agency Agreement. In such event, interest will
continue o accrue thereon (before as well as after any judgment) at the rate applicable to such
Note (but subject, in the case of the Class D Notes and the Class E Notes, to the provisions of
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Condition 5¢/)) up to (but exciuding) the date on which. on presentation of such Note. payment in
full of the relevant amount of principal. together with the interest accrued thereon. is made or (if
carlier) the seventh day after notice is duly given to the holder thereof (either in accordance with
Condition 15 or individually) that. upon presentation thereof being duly made.. such pavment wil|
be made. provided that upon presentation thereof being duly made. pavment is in fact made.

Interest Pavment Dates and Interest Periods

Interest on the Notes is pavable quarterly in arrear on the 25th dav of January. April. July and
October in each vear (or. if such day is not a Business Day. the next succeeding Business Day
unless such Business Day falls inithe next succeeding calendar month in which event the
immediately preceding Business Day) {each an ‘nterest Payment Date™) in respect of the
Interest Period ending immediately prior thereto. The first Interest Pavment Date in respect of
each class of Notes will be 25th Octaber. 2000.

In these Conditions, Interest Period” shall mean the period from {and including) an Interest
Pavment Date (or. in respect of the payment of the first Interest Amount (as defined in Condition
s¢d) below). the Closing Date) to {but excluding) the next following Interest Payment Date (or. in
respect of the payment of the first Initerest Amount, the Interest Payment Date falling in October,
2000) and "Business Day” shall in these Conditions (other than Condition 7) mean a day (other
than a Saturday or a Sunday) whi¢h is both a day on which commercial banks and foreign
exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign
exchange and foreign currency depasits) in London and New York and on which the TARGET
Svstem is open. In these Conditions;, "TARGET System" means the Trans-European Automated
Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET) System.

Rate of Inrerest ;

Subject. in the case of the Class D Notes and the Class E Notes. to Condition ¥j) below. the rates
of interest pavable from time to timg in respect of each class of Notes (each a "Rate of Interest")
will be determined by the Agent Barik on a date which is two London Business Days prior to each
Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the first Interest Period. the Closing Date (each an
“Interest Determination Date"). For the purposes of these Conditions. "London Business Day”
shall mean a day. other than a Saturday or a Sunday. on which banks are open for general
business in the City of London.

Each Rate of Interest for the Intereist Period next following the relevant Interest Determination
Date shall be the aggregate of:

the Relevant Margin (as deﬁned! below): and

!
(ii}1) the arithmetic mean of the of]Lered quotations to leading banks (rounded to five decimal

places with the mid-point rounded up) for three month sterling deposits in the London inter-
bank market (or. in the case of the first Interest Determination Date. the linear interpolation of
three and four month sterling deposits) which appear on Telerate Screen Page No. 3750 (the
*Screen Rate") (rounded to five decimal places with the mid-point rounded up} {or (i} such
other page as may replace Telefate Screen Page No. 3750 on that service for the purpose of
displaying such information or| (ii) if that service ceases to display such information, such
page as displays such information on such equivalent service (or. if more than one, that one
which is approved by the Trustde} as may replace the Telerate Monitor) at or about 11.00 a.m.
{London time) on the relevant [hterest Determination Date: or

if the Screen Rate is not then awailable, the arithmetic mean (rounded to five decimal places
with the mid-point rounded up): of the rates notified to the Agent Bank at its request by each
of the Reference Banks (as defined in Condition 5¢4; below) as the rate at which three month
sterling deposits (or, in the case of the first Interest Determination Date, the linear
interpolation of three and four month sterling deposits) in an amount of £10,000,000 are
offered for the same period as that Interest Period by that Reference Bank to leading banks in
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the London inter-bank market at or about 11.00 a.m. (London time) on the relevant Interest
Determination Date. If on any such Interest Determination Date. two or three only of the
Reference Banks provide such offered quotations to the Agent Bank. the relevant rate shall be
determined. as aforesaid. on the basis of the offered quotations of those Reference Banks
providing such quotations. If. on any such Interest Determination Date. _only one or none of
the Reference Banks provide the Agent Bank with such an offered quotation. the Agent Bank
shall forthwith consult with the Trustee and the Issuer for the purposes of agreeing two banks
(or. where one only of the Reference Banks provided such a guotation, one additional bank)
to provide such a quotation or quotations to the Agent Bank (which bank or banks are_in the
opinion of the Trustee suitable for such purpose) and the rate for the Interest Perlf:d n
question shall be determined. as aforesaid. on the basis of the offered quotations of such
banks as so agreed (or. as the case may be. the offered quotations of such bank as so agreed
and the relevant Reference Bank). If no such bank or banks is or are so agreed or such bank
or banks as so agreed does or do not provide such a quotation or quotations. then the rate for
the relevant Interest Period shall be the Screen Rate in effect for the last preceding Interest
Period to which sub-paragraph (1) of the foregoing provisions of this sub-paragraph (11) shall

have applied.

For the purposes of these Conditions the "Relevant Margin" shall be:
(A) in respect of the Class A Notes. 0.40 per cent. per annum.
{B) in respect of the Class B Notes. 0.55 per cent per annum:
(<) m respect‘ of the Class C Notes, 1.15 per cent per annum;
(D) in respect of the Class D Notes. 1.40 per cent. per annum; and
{E) in respect of the Class E Notes, 1.40 per cent. per annunm.
There will be no minimum or maximum Rate of Interest.

Determination of Rates of Interest and Calculation of Interest Amounis for Notes

The Agent Bank shall. on or as soon as practicable after each Interest Determination Date,
determine and notify the Issuer. the Trustee. the Cash Manager and the Paying Agents in writing
of {i) the Rate of Interest applicabie to the Interest Period beginning on and including the
immediately succeeding Interest Payment Date or. as applicable. the Closing Date, in respect of
the Notes of each class, and (ii} the sterling amount (the "Interest Amount") payable in respect of
such Interest Period in respect of the Notes of each class. Each Interest Amount in respect of the
Notes of each class shall be calculated by applving the Rate of Interest to the Principal Amount
Quistanding of the Notes of each class. net of any relevant Principal Shortfall, multiplying such
sum by the actual number of days in the relevant Interest Period divided by 365 and rounding the
resultant figure downward to the nearest penny.

Publication of Rates of Interest for the Notes, Interest Amounts and otirer Notices

As soon as practicable after receiving noufication thereof. the Issuer will cause the Rate of
Interest and Interest Amount applicable to the Notes of each class for each Interest Period and the
Interest Payment Date in respect thereof to be notified in writing to London Stock Exchange plc
(the "London Stock Exchange") (for so long as the Notes are admitted 1o trading on the London
Stock Exchange), to the Company Announcements Qffice (for so long as the Notes are admitted
to the Official List) and will cause notice thereof to be given to the Noteholders in accordance
with Condition 15. The Interest Amounts and Interest Payment Date so notified may
subsequently be amended (or appropriate alterative arrangements made by way of adjustment)
without notice in the event of any extension or shortening of the Interest Period for the Notes,

Determination or Calculation bv the Trustee
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If the Agent Bank does not at any time for anv reason determine the Rate gf Interest and g,
calculate the Interest Amount for ieach class of the Notes in accordance with the foregoing
Conditions. the Trustee shall (i) détermine the Rate of Interest at such rate as. in its absoly,
discretion (having such regard as it shall think fit to the procedure described above). it shall deen,
fair and reasonable in all the circunistances. and/or (as the case may be). (ii) calculate the Intereg
Amount for each class of the Notes in the manner specified in Condition 5td) above. and any such
determination andvor calculation shail be deemed to have been made by the Agent Bank.

Notifications to be Final

All notifications. opinions. deterniinations. certificates. calculations. quotations and decisions
given. expressed. made or obtained for the purposes of this Condition. whether by the Reference
Banks (or any of them) or the Agent Bank or the Trustee shall (in the absence of wilful defaul,
bad faith or manifest error) be bindling on the Issuer. the Reference Banks. the Agent Bank, the
Trustee. the Servicer, the Special Servicer, the Cash Manager. the Paying Agents and all
Noteholders and (in such absence as aforesaid) no liability to the Noteholders shall attach 1o the
Issuer. the Reference Banks. the \gent Bank or the Trustee in connection with the exercise or
non-exetcise by them or any of them of their powers, duties and discretions hereunder.

Reference Banks and Agent Bank . {

The Issuer shall ensure that. so long as any of the Notes remains outstanding. there shall. at all
times. be four Reference Banks and an Agent Bank. The initial Reference Banks shall be the
principal London office of four major banks in the London interbank market (the Reference
Banks"} chosen by the Agent Bank. In the event of the principal London office of any such bank
being unable or unwilling to continue to act as a Reference Bank, the Issuer shall appoint such
other bank as may have been previously approved in writing by the Trustee to act as such in its
place. The Agent Bank may not resign until a successor so approved by the Trustee has been
appuinted. '

Interest on Principal Shortfall

Interest will accrue on the debit balance of the relevant Shortfall Ledger {as defined in the Master
Definitions Agreement) at the Relevant Margin for the applicable class of Notes in the same
manner as on the Principal Amount Outstanding of Notes of such class: provided. however. that
any such interest will be payable only in accordance with Condition 10(a) or upon acceleration of
the Notes and enforcement of the {ssuer Security in accordance with Condition 10. Condition 11,
Condition 16 and the Deed of Chatge and Assignment. .

The interest due and payable on the Class E Notes and. upon reduction to zero of the Principal
Amount Outstanding (net of any Brincipal Shortfall) of the Class E Notes. the Class D Notes, is
subject. on any Interest Payment Diate, to a maximum amount equal to the lesser of (i) the Interest
Amount in respect of such class df Notes. as calculated pursuant to Condition 5{(d). and (ii) the
amount (the "Adjusted Interest|Amount") equal to the result of (x) the Available [Interest
Receipts in respect of such Intergst Payment Date (including, for the avoidance of doubt, the
amount available for drawing by way of an Interest Drawing (as defined in the Master Definitions
Agreement) under the Liquidity Facility Agreement on such Interest Payment Date) minus (y) the
sum of all amounts payable out of Available Interest Receipts on such Interest Payment Date in
priority to the payment of interest|on such class of Notes in accordance with the Deed of Charge
and Assignment. The debt that wiould otherwise be represented by the amount by which, on any
Interest Payment Date, the Interest Amount in respect of the Class D Notes or the Class E Notes,
as applicable, exceeds the Adjusted Interest Amount in respect of such class of Notes, shall be
extinguished on such Interest Payment Date, and the affected Noteholders shall have no claim
against the Issuer in respect thereof.
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6. Redemption and Cancellation

fa)

(b

Final Redemption

Unless previously redeemed in full and cancelled as provided in this Condition 6. the Issuer shgll
redeem the Notes at their Principal Amount Outstanding. net of any relevant Principal Shortfall in
accordance with Condition 16/5). together with accrued interest on the Interest Pavment Date
falling in July 2009.

The Issuer mav not redeem Notes in whole or in part prior to that date except as provided in this
Condition but without prejudice to Condition 10.

Mandatorn Redemption in Part from Available Scheduled Amortisation Funds, Available
Prepavment Redemption Funds and Available Final Redemption Funds

Subject as provided in Conditions &c), 6/d) and 6fej. prior to the service of a Note Enforcement
Nofice and subject as provided below, the most senior class of Notes then outstanding shall be
subject to mandatory redemption in part on each Interest Pavment Date if on the Calculation Date
las defined below) relating thereto there are any Available Scheduled Amortisation Funds,
Available Prepayment Redemption Funds or Available Final Redemption Funds (each as defined
below). after paving any and all amounts payable out of such funds in priority to payments on
such class of Notes as specified below. and if the amount of such Available Scheduled
Amortisation Funds, Available- Prepayment Redemption Funds and Available Final Redemption
Funds. after paying any and all amounts payable out of such funds in priority to payments op such
class of Notes. is not less than £1. If on any Interest Payment Date, the most senior class of Notes
then outstanding is redeemed in full pursuant to the foregoing. any remaining Available
Scheduled Amortisation Funds. Available Prepayment Redemption Funds and Available Final
Redemption Funds shall be applied in mandatory redemption in part of the next most senior class
of Notes then outstanding.

The "Calculation Date" means the second Business Day prior to the relevant Interest Payment
Date.

For the purposes of these Conditions:

(A) "Scheduled Amortisation Funds" on any Calculation Date means the amount which is
the aggregate of all sterling amounts (whether received in sterling or to be exchanged into
sterling pursuant to the Swap Agreement) of (i) all principal received or recovered by or
on behalf of the Issuer in respect of the Loans andior the Mortgages and/or the Related
Security (each as defined in the Master Definitions Agreement) other than any
Prepayment Redemption Funds or Final Redemption Funds {(each as defined below)
during the period from (and including) the preceding Calculation Date (or, if applicable,
in the case of the first Calculation Date. the period from (and including) the Closing Date,
up to (but excluding) such first Calculation Date) (each a "Collection Period"), (ii) all
insurance proceeds relating to principal received by the Issuer during such Collection
Period other than those required to be paid to the relevant Borrower or used to reinstate
the relevant Property (each as defined in the Master Definitions Agreement), and (iii) all
purchase moneys paid to the Issuer (other than in respect of accrued intergst) on
repurchase or purchase of any Loans and Mortgages pursuant to the terms of the
Mortgage Sale Agreement (as defined in the Master Definitions Agreement} during such
Collection Period, and "Available Scheduled Amortisation Funds” means, in respect of
any Calculation Date, the sum of (i) the Scheduled Amortisation Funds in respect of the
Collection Period then ended. plus (ii) the aggregate principal amount available for
drawing by way of a Principal Drawing under the Liguidity Facility Agreement in respect
of principal instalments due under the Loans outstanding during the Collection Period
ended on such Calculation Date and unpaid (to the extent such shortfall exceeds
Prepayment Redemption Funds and Final Redemption Funds received during such
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Collection Period), less {iii} the aggregate amount of Scheduted Amortisation Fungg
applied by the Issuer in respect of any Principal Priority Amounts and Revenue Prioriy
Amounts (each as defined in the Master Definitions Agreement) during that Collection
Period in accordance withf the Deed of Charge and Assignment:

(B) "Prepayment Redempti#n Funds” means the aggregate net sterling amount {whether
received in sterling or to pe exchanged into sterling pursuant to the Swap Agreement) of
principal payments receivied or recovered by or on behalf of the Issuer in respect of the
Loans and/or the Mortgages in any Collection Period as a result of any prepayment in
part or in full made byl the Borrowers pursuant to the terms of the relevant Loans
including any prepayment which results from Principal Recoveries (as defined in the
Master Definitions Agréement), and "Available Prepayment Redemption Funds"
means. in respect of any Calculation Date. the Prepayment Redemption Funds received or
recovered by or on behalf of the Issuer during the Collection Period then ended less the
aggregate amount of Prepayment Redemption Funds applied by the Issuer in respect of
any Principal Priority Amounts and Revenue Priority Amounts during that Collection
Period in accordance with the Deed of Charge and Assignment: and

(C) "Final Redemption Funds" means the net aggregate sterling amount (whether receiv
in sterling or 10 be exchapged into sterling pursuant to the Swap Agreement) of princi §
payments received or recovered by or on behalf of the Issuer in respect of the Loans
and/or the Mortgages in any Collection Period as a result of the repayment in full of the
relevant Loan upon its scheduled final maturity date. and "Available Final Redemption
Funds" means. in respect of any Calculation Date. the Final Redemption Funds received
by or on behalf of the Issuer during the Collection Period then ended less the aggregate
amount of Final Redemption Funds applied by the Issuer in respect of Principal Priority
Amounts and Revenue Priority Amounts during that Collection Period in accordance
with the Deed of Charge and Assignment and any amount to be transferred in accordance
with the Deed of Charge and Assignment to Available Interest Receipts on the Interest
Payment Date immediately following such Calculation Date for the purposes of paying
the Liguidation Fees. if any, payable on that Interest Payment Date.

but. in each case. only to the exient that such moneys have not been taken into account in the
calculation of Available Schedyled Amortisation Funds. Available Prepayment Redemption
Funds or Available Final Redemption Funds. as applicable. on any preceding Calculation Date.
Available Scheduled Amortisation Funds. Available Prepayment Redemption Funds and
Available Final Redemption Fumﬁs determined on each Calculation Date shall be applied. on the
immediately following Interest Padyment Date, first. in respect of each individual Loan. in payige”
any amounts due or overdue in respect of break costs and then in respect of Principal Drawin
texcluding any interest accrued due and unpaid thereon) to the Liquidity Facility Provider under
the Liquidity Facility Agreement (each as defined in the Master Definitions Agreement);
secondly. in paying principal on the Class A Notes until all the Class A Notes have been
redeemed in full and then in payigg any amount outstanding in respect of the A Principal Shortfall
Ledger (as defined in the Master Definitions Agreement); thirdly, in paying principal on the Class
B Notes until all the Class B Ngtes have been redeemed in full and then in paying any amount
outstanding in respect of the B Principal Shortfall Ledger (as defined in the Master Definitions
Agreement); fourthly, in paying principal on the Class C Notes until all the Class C Notes have
been redeemed in full and then [n paying any amount outstanding in respect of the C Principal
Shortfall Ledger (as defined in the Master Definitions Agreement): fifthly. in paying principal on
the Class D Notes until all the Class D Notes have been redeemed in full and then in paying any
amount outstanding in respect of the D Principal Shortfall Ledger (as defined in the Master
Definitions Agreement): sixthly.!in paying principal on the Class E Notes until all the Class E
Notes have been redeemed in full and then in paying any amount outstanding in respect of the E
Principal Shortfall Ledger (as défined in the Master Definitions Agreement); and seventhly, in
paying that portion of the Deferred Consideration that is payable out of the principal receipts
above referred to; provided that if on any Calculation Date the Trustee receives written
confirmation from the Rating Agency that the then applicable ratings of the Class A Notes, the
Class B Notes, the Class C Nbotes, the Class D Notes and the Class E Notes will not be
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the Available Scheduled Amorisation Funds.
lable Final Redemption Funds may. at the
ment Date to redeem in whole or in part the
t would not otherwise be

downgraded. withdrawn or qualified thereby.
Available Prepayment Redemption Funds and Avai

option of the Issuer. be applied on any Interest Pay
Principal Amount Qutstanding of any other class or classes of Notes tha
entitled to redemption on such Interest Payment Date.

In addition to the foregoing. if. on any Interest Payment Date. the Available Interest Receipts
calculated in respect of the Collection Period ended on the Calculation Date immediately
preceding such Interest Payment Date exceeds the Priority Revenue Payments (as defined below)
payable on such Interest Payment Date. the Class E Notes outstanding on such Interest Pavment
Date shall be subject to mandatory redemption in part in an amount equal to sum of (1) the lower
of (a) the excess of such Available Interest Receipts over such Priority Revenue Payvments. and
(b) the amount equal to (i) the product of (x} 0.375 per cent. and (y) the aggregate Principal
Amount Quistanding of the Notes as at the Closing Date minus (ii) the aggregate principal amount
of the Class E Notes redeemed on any preceding Interest Payment Date pursuant 0 this paragraph
plus (2} in the case of the first Interest Payment Date only. £19 (representing the amount by which
the aggregate Principal Amount Qutstanding of the Notes on the Closing Date exceeds the
principal amount outstanding on the Loans as of the Cut-Off Date (as defined in the Master
Definitions Agreement). For these purposes. "Priority Revenue Payments” means those
pavments scheduled to be made on the applicable Interest Payment Date pursuant to sub-clauses
6.2.2.a) to (p) of the Deed of Charge and Assignment save that for the purposes of this
determination the amount of that portion of the Deferred Consideration (as defined in the Master
Definitions Agreement), if any, payable out of Available Interest Receipts will not be taken into

account.
Optional Redemption for Tax or Other Reasons

If the Issuer at any time satisfies the Trustee immediately prior to giving the notice referred to
below that either (i) by virtue of a change in the tax law of the United Kingdom or any other
jurisdiction (or the application or official interpretation thereof) from that in effect on the Closing
Date. on the next Interest Payment Date the Lssuer or any Paying Agent on its behalf would be
required to deduct or withhold from any payment of principal or interest in respect of any Note
(other than where the relevant holder or beneficial owner has some connection with the relevant
jurisdiction other than the holding of Notes) (other than in respect of default interest), any amount
for or on account of any present or future taxes. duties, assessments or governmental charges of
whatever nature imposed, levied. collected, withheld or assessed by the relevamnt jurisdiction {or
any political sub-division thereof or authority thereof or therein having power to tax) and such
requirement cannot be avoided by the Issuer taking reasonable measures available to it, or (ii} by
virtue of a change in law from that in effect on the Closing Date. any amount payable by the
Borrowers in relation to the Loans is reduced or ceases to be receivable (whether or not actually
received) by the Issuer during the Interest Period preceding the next Interest Payment Date and. in
either case. the Issuer has, prior to giving the notice referred to below., certified to the Trustee that
it will have the necessary funds on such Interest Payment Date to discharge all of its liabilities in
respect of the Notes to be redeemed under this Condition 6(c) and any amounts required under the
Deed of Charge and Assignment to be paid in priority to. or pari passu with, the Notes to be so
redeemed, which certificate shall be conclusive and binding, and provided that, on the Interest
Payment Date on which such notice expires, no Note Enforcement Notice has been served, then
the Issuer may. but shall not be obliged to, on any Interest Payment Date on which the relevant
event described above is continuing, having given not more than 60 nor less than 30 days' written
notice ending on such Interest Payment Date to the Trustee, the Paying Agents and to the
Noteholders in accordance with Condition 15, redeem:

(A) all Class A Notes in an amount equal to the then aggregate Principal Amount
Outstanding of the Class A Notes, but net of an amount equal to the then debit balance on
the A Principal Shortfall Ledger (for the purposes of Conditions 6(c). (d) and (e) {the "A
Principal Shortfall"), plus interest accrued and unpaid thereon; and




r

B) all Class B Notes. in an amount equal to the then aggregate Principal  Amouy,
Ourstanding of the Class B{Notes. but net of an amount equal to the then debit balance o
the B Principal Shortfall Ledger (for the purposes of Conditions 6(c). {4} and (e). the g
Principal Shortfall") plus interest accrued and unpaid thereon: and

(€) all Class C Notes in an améunt equal to the then aggregate Principal Amount Outstandin
of the Class C Notes. but riet of an amount equal to the C Principal Shortfall Ledger {for
the purposes of Conditions 6(c). (&) and (¢). the 'C Principal Shortfall”) plus intereg
accrued and unpaid thereon: and

(D) all Class D Notes in anh amount equal to the then aggregate Principal Amougy
Outstanding of the Class D¥ Notes. but net of an amount equal to the then debit balance on
the D Principal Shortfall Ledger (for the purposes of Conditions 6/c). (d) and (e, the "D
Principal Shortfall,") plus interest accrued and unpaid thereon: and

(E) all Class E Notes in an amount equal to the then aggregaie Principal Amount Qutstanding
of the Class E Notes, but net of an amount equal to the then debit balance on the £
Principal Shorfall Ledger (for the purposes of Conditions 6(c), (d) and fe), the "E
Principal Shortfall") plus: interest accrued and unpaid thereon. . ’

The A Principal Shortfall. the B Principal Shortfall. the C Principal Shortfall. the D Principal
Shortfall and the E Principal Shortfall are collectively referred to in these Conditions as the
"Principal Shortfall". :

After giving notice of redemption pursuant to this sub-paragraph, the Issuer shall not make any
further payment of principal on the Notes and no further reduction shall be made to the Principal
Amount Outstanding of any Note: other than by way of redemption pursuant to this Condition
6¢c). Once redeemed to the full extent provided in this Condition &c). the Notes shall cease to
bear interest. 1

fd) Optional redemption in full |
On giving not more than 60 nori less than 30 days' written notice to the Trustee and to the
Noteholders in accordance with Céndition 15 and provided that, on the Interest Payment Date on
which such notice expires, no Noté Enforcement Notice in relation to the Notes has been served,
and further provided that the Issuer has. prior to giving such notice. certified to the Trustee, that it
will have the necessary funds to discharge on such Interest Pavment Date all of its liabilities in
respect of the Notes to be redeemefl under this Condition 6(d) and any amounts required under th’
Deed of Charge and Assignment t¢ be paid on such Interest Payment Date which rank prior to, ore..
pari passu with. the Notes, which gertificate shall be conclusive and binding, and further provided
that the then aggregate Principal Amount Outstanding of all of the Notes. net of the aggregate of
any Principal Shortfall existing on that Interest Payment Date. would be less than 10 per cent. of
their Principal Amount Outstandjng as at the Closing Date. the Issuer may redeem on such
Interest Payment Date: ;
(A) all Class A Notes in an amount equal to the then aggregate Principal Amount
Outstanding of the Clas§y A Notes, but net of the A Principal Shortfall, plus interest
accrued and unpaid thereén: and

(B) all Class B Notes in an at‘i1ount equal to the then aggregate Principal Amount Outstanding
of the Class B Notes, but net of the B Principal Shortfall, plus interest accrued and unpaid
thereon; and 3‘

{C) all Class C Notes in an arhount equal to the then aggregate Principal Amount OQutstanding
of the Class C Notes, but inet of the C Principal Shortfall, plus interest accrued and unpaid
thereon; and ‘
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(D)

{E)

all Class D Notes in an amount equal to the then aggregate Principal Amount
Outstanding of the Class D Notes. but net of the D Principal Shortfall. plus interest

accrued and unpaid thereon: and

all Class E Notes in an amount equal to the then aggregate Principal Amount Ol}tst_anding
of the Class E Notes, but net of the E Principal Shortfall. plus accrued and unpaid mnterest

thereon.

After giving notice of redemption pursuant to this sub-paragraph. the Issuer shall not make any
further payment of principal on the Notes and no further reduction shall be made 1o the Principal
Amount Outstanding of any such Note other than by way of redemption pursuant to this
Condition 6(d). Once redeemed to the full extent provided in this Condition &/d}. the Notes. shall

cease to bear interest.

Optional Redemption in Full — Swap Transactions

If. at any time, one or more of the Swap Transactions is terminated by reason of the
occurrence of a Tax Event (as defined below) under the Swap Agreement (as defined in the
Master Definitions Agreement) and the Issuer is unable to find a replacement swap provider
(the Issuer being obliged to use its best endeavours to find a replacement swap provider) then,
on giving not more than 60 nor less than 30 days' written notice to the Trustee and to the
Noteholders in accordance with Condition 15 and provided that, on the Interest Payment: Date
on which such notice expires, no Note Enforcement Event in relation to the Notes has been
served and further provided that the Issuer has. prior to giving such notice, certified to the
Trustee that it will have the necessary funds to discharge on such Interest Payment Date all of
its liabitities in respect of the Notes to be redeemed under this Condition 6(e} and any
amounts required under the Deed of Charge and Assignment to be paid on such Interest
Payment Date which rank prior to, or pari passu with, the Notes, which certificate shall be
conclusive and binding. the Issuer may. but shall not be obliged to. redeem on such Interest
Payment Date:

(A) all Class A Notes in an amount equal to the then aggregate Principal Amount
Outstanding of the Class A Notes, but net of the A Principal Shortfall, plus interest
accrued and unpaid thereon; and

(B) all Class B Notes mn an amount equal to the then aggregate Principal Amount
QOutstanding of the Class B Notes. but net of the B Principal Shortfall, plus interest
accrued and unpaid thereon; and

(C) all Class C Notes in an amount equal to the then aggregate Principal Amount
Outstanding of the Class C Notes. but net of the C Principal Shortfall, plus interest
accrued and unpaid thereon; and

(D) all Class D Notes in an amount equal to the then aggregate Principal Amount
Outstanding of the Class D Notes, but net of the D Principal Shortfall, plus interest
accrued and unpaid thereon: and

(E) all Classl E Notes in an amount equal to the then aggregate Principal Amount
Outstanding of the Class E Notes. but net of the E Principal Shortfall, plus accrued

and unpaid interest thereon.

After giving notice of redemption pursuant to this sub-paragraph, the Issuer shall not make

~any further payment of principal on the Notes and no further reduction shall be made to the

Princip_al Amount QOutstanding of any Note other than by way of redemption pursuant to this
Condition 6(e). Once redeemed to the full extent provided in this sub-paragraph, the Notes
shall cease to bear interest.

For these purposes, a "Tax Event" shall mean:
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(i any action taken by a taxing authority. or brought in a court of competent jurisdiction
(regardless of whether kuch action is taken or brought with respect to a party to the
Swap Agreement}); Or

(i) the enactment, promulgation, execution or ratification of. or change in or amendmen
to. any law (or in the application or interpretation of any law}.

as a result of which, on account of any present or future taxes. duties. assessments or
governmental charges of whatever nature imposed. levied. collected. withheld or assessed by
any government or taxing authority. either the Issuer or the Swap Provider {as defined in the
Master Definitions Agreement) will, or there is a substantial likelihood that it will. be
required to pay additional amgunts or make an advance in respect of tax under the Swap
Agreement or the Swap Provider will. or there is a substantial likelihood that it will, receivea
payment from the Issuer from which an amount is required to be deducted or withheld for or
on account of tax and no additipnal amount or advance is able to be paid by the Issuer.

Note Principal Pavments, Pringipal Amount Ours’tanding and Pool Factor

The principal amount (if any) ‘to be redeemed in respect of each Note (the ‘Note Principal
Pavment") on any Interest Payment Date under Condition 67h) or Condition 6(c) o
Condition 6(d) or Condition 6(e). as applicable, shall, in relation to the Notes of a particular
class. be a pro rata share of the aggregate amount required to be applied in redemption of the
Notes of that class on such Interest Payment Date under Condition &b) or Condition &)
and/or Condition 6(d) or Condjtion (e}, as applicable, (rounded down to the nearest penny),
provided always that no such Note Principal Payment may exceed the Principal Amount
Outstanding of the reievant Nole.

On each Calculation Date, the Cash Manager shall determine (i} the amount of any Note
Principal Payment due on the next following Interest Payment Date. (ii) the Principal Amount
OQutstanding of each Note on the next following Interest Payment Date {after deducting any
Note Principal Payment to be paid on that Interest Payment Date} as well as any Principal
Shortfall in respect of such Note and (iii) the fraction expressed as a decimal to the sixth place
(the 'Pool Factor"), of which the numerator is the Principal Amount Qutstanding (after
deducting any Note Principal Payment to be paid on that Interest Payment Date and any
Principal Shortfall) of a Note bf the relevant class (calculated on the assumption that the face
amount of such Note on the Hate of issuance thereof was £50.000) and the denominator is

50,000. Each determination| by the Cash Manager of any Note Principal Payment, the

Principal Amount Outstanding of a Note. the Principal Shortfzll and the Pool Factor shall ‘l.

cach case (in the absence of wiilful default. bad faith or manifest error) be final and binding
all persons. i
The 'Principal Amount quFstanding" of a Note of any class on any date shall be the face
amount thereof on the date of issuance thereof less the aggregate amount of all Note Principal
Payments in respect of such Note that have become due and payable since the Closing Date
and on or prior to such date, whether or not paid). Unless otherwise expressly stated in any
notice issued under or pursuant to these Conditions. all calculations in respect of the Principal
Amount Outstanding of a Note shall be made on the assumption that the face amount of such
Note on the date of issuance thereof was £50,000.

The Issuer {or the Cash Manager on its behalf) will cause each determination of a Note
Principal Payment, Principal Amount Outstanding, Principal Shortfall and Pool Factor to be
notified in writing forthwith to the Trustee, the Paying Agents, the Rating Agency, the Agent
Bank and (for so long as the Notes are admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange)
the London Stock Exchange ;and will cause notice of each determination of a Note Principal
Payment, Principal Amount Owistanding, Principal Shortfail and Pool Factor to be given to
the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 15 as soon as reasonably practicable.
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i)

fa)

(b}

I the Issuer or the Cash Manager on behalf of the Issuer does not at any time for any reason
determine a Note Principal ‘f’aymentq the Principal Amount OQutstanding. t.he Principal
Shortfall or the Pool Factor in accordance with the preceding provisions of this paragraph.
such Note Principal Pavment. Principal Amount Outstanding. Principal ShonfaI-l and Pool
Factor may be determined by the Trustee. in accordance with this Condition &/ and each
such determination or calculation shall be conclusive and shall be deemed to have been made
by the Issuer or the Cash Manager. as the case may be.

Notice of Redemption

Anv such notice as is referred to in Condition &), (d). (e} and (f) above shall be irrevocable
and. upon the expiration of such notice, the Issuer shall be bound to redeem the Notes of the
relevant class in the amounts specified in these Conditions.

Cancellation

All Notes redeemed in full pursuant 1o the foregoing provisions will be cancelled forthwith
and may not be resold or re-issued.

7. Pavments

Global Notes

Payments of principal and interest in respect of any Global Note will be made only against
presentation (and in the case of final redemption of a Global Note or in circumstances where the
unpaid principal amount of the relevant Global Note would be reduced to zero (including as a
result of any other pavment of principal due in respect of such Global Note), surrender) of such
Global Note at the specified office of any Paying Agent. A record of each payment so made.
distinguishing. in the case of Global Notes. between pavments of principal and payments of
interest and. in the case of partial payments. of the amount of each partial payment, will be
endorsed on the schedule to the relevant Global Note by or on behalf of the relevant Paying
Agent. which endorsement shall be prima facie evidence that such payment has been made.

Payments in respect of the Rule 144A Global Notes will be paid (i) in sterling to holdérs of
interests in such Notes who hold such interests through Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg (the Rule 144A Euroclear/Clearstream Holders"). and (ii} in U.S. dollars to
holders of interests in such Notes who hold such interests through DTC (the 'DTC Holders").
Payments in respect of the Reg § Global Notes will be paid in sterling to holders of interests in
such Notes (such holders being. together with the Rule 144A Euroclear/Clearstream Holders, the
"Euroclear/Clearstream Heolders").

At present. DTC can only accept payments in U.S. dollars. As a result. DTC Hoiders will réceive
payments in U.S. dollars as described above unless they elect. in accordance with DTC's
customary procedures. to receive payments in sterling.

A Euroclear/Clearstream Holder may receive payments in respect of its interest in any Global
Notes in U.S. dollars in accordance with Euroclear's and Clearstream. Luxembourg's customary
procedures.  All costs of conversion from any such election will be bome by such
Euroclear/Clearstream Holder.

Definirive Notes

Payments of principal and interest (except where, after such payment. the unpaid principal amount
of the relevant Note would be reduced to zero (including as a result of any other payment of
principal due in respect of such Note, in which case the relevant payment of principal or interest,
as the case may be, will be made against surrender of such Note) in respect of Definitive Notes
will be made by sterling cheque drawn on a branch of a bank in London posted to the holder (or to
the first-named of joint holders) of such Definitive Note at the address shown in the Register not
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(d}

fe)

e/]

fg)

fater than the due date for such payment. [f any payment due in respect of any Definitive Note j
not paid in full, the Registrar will annotate the Register with a record of the amount. if any, ¢,
paid. For the purposes of this Condition 7. the holder of a Definitive Note will be dgemed 0 b
the person shown as the holder (or the first-named of joint holders) on the RegiSter on th,
fifteenth day before the due date for such payment (the "Record Date”).

I

Upon application by the holder of a Definitive Note to the specified office of the Registrar no
later than the Record Date for pahent in respect of such Definitive Note. such pavment will be
made by transfer to a sterling accdunt maintained by the pavee with a branch of a bank in Londen,
Any such application for transfer to such account shall be deemed to relate to all future payvments
in respect of such Definitive Note until such time as the Registrar is notified in writing 10 the
contrary by the holder thereof.

Laws and Regulations

Payments of principal, interest aﬁd premium (if any) in respect of the Notes are subject in all
cases to any fiscal or other laws ahd regulations applicable thereto.

Overdue Principal Payments ‘
| L]

If payment of principal is improberly withheld or refused on or in respect of any Note or pan
thereof or default is made in putting the relevant Paying Agent in funds in respect thereof in
accordance with the Agency Agreement. the interest which continues 10 accrue in respect of such
Note or part thereof in accordanée with Condition 5a) will be paid against presentation of sich
Note at the specified office of anly Paying Agent, and in the case of any Definitive Note, will be
paid in accordance with Conditioh 7b).

Change of Agents

The Principal Paying Agent is AIB International Financial Services Lid at its offices at PO Box
2751. AIB International Centre L.F.S.C.. Dublin 1. Ireland. The Issuer reserves the right, subject
to the prior written approval of the Trustee, at any time to vary of terminate the appointment of
the Principal Paving Agent, any' other Paying Agent. the Registrar and the Agent Bank and to
appoint additional or other Agerits. The Issuer will at all times maintain a Paying Agent with a
specified office in London. Theé Issuer will cause at least 30 days' notice of any change in or
addition to the Paying Agents lor the Registrar or their specified offices to be given to the
Noteholders in accordance with tT,ondition 15, .

If any Note is presented (if required) for payment on a day which is not a business day in the
place where it is so presented 3nd (in the case of payment by transfer to a sterling account in
London as referred to in Condition ¥b) above) in London. no further payments of additional
amounts by way of interest. principal or otherwise shall be due in respect of such Note. No
further payments of additional amounts by way of interest. principal or otherwise shall be payable
in respect of the late arrival of any cheque posted to a Noteholder in accordance with the
provisions of Condition 7(b). For the purpose of this Condition 7. "business day" shall mean, in
relation to any place. a day o which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle
payments in that place. :

Presentation on Non-Business Dgv's
|

Accrual of Interest on Late Pavhents

If interest is not paid in respect?of a Note of any class on the date when due and payable (other
than by reason of non-compliance with Condition ¥a} ot (®)). then such unpaid interest shall
itself bear interest at the appli¢able Rate of Interest until such interest and interest thereon is
available for payment and noti¢e thereof has been duly given to the Noteholders in accordance
with Condition 15, provided tha such interest and interest thereon are. in fact, paid.
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th) Redenomination in Enro

(i} If at any time there is a change in the currency of the United Kingdom such that the
Bank of England recognises a different currency or Currency unit or more than one
currency or currency unit as the lawful currency of the United Kingdom. then
references in. and obligations arising under, the Notes outstanding at the time of any
such change and which are expressed in sterling shall be translated into. and-or any
amount becoming pavable under the Notes thereafter as specified in these Conditions
shall be paid in. the currency or currency unit of the United Kingdom. and in the
manner designated by the Principal Paying Agent.

Any such transiation shall be made at the official rate of exchange recognised for that
purpose by the Bank of England.

(ii) Where swch a change in currency occurs, the Global Notes in respect of the Notes
then outstanding and these Conditions shall be amended in the manner agreed by the
Issuer and the Trustee so as to reflect that change and. so far as practicable, to. place
the Issuer. the Trustee and the Noteholders in the same position each would have
been in had no change in currency occurred (such amendments to include. without
limitation. changes required to reflect any modification to business day or other
conventions arising in connection with such change in currency). All amendments
made pursuant to this Condition 7¢4) will be binding upon holders of such Notes.

(i) Notification of the amendments made to Notes pursuant to this Condition Th) will
he made to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 15 which will state, inter
alia. the date on which such amendments are to take or took effect, as the case may
be.

8. Taxation

All pavments in respect of the Notes will be made without withholding or deduction for or on account of
anv present or future taxes. duties or charges of whatsoever nature unless the Issuer or anv Paying Agent is
required by applicable law to make any payment in respect of the Notes subject to any such withholding or
deduction. In that event, the Issuer or such Paying Agent (as the case may be) shall make such payment after
such withholding or deduction has been made and shall account to the relevant authorities for the amount so
required to be withheld or deducted. Neither the Issuer nor any Paying Agent will be obliged to make any
additional payments to holders of Notes in respect of such withholding or deduction.

9. Prescription

Claims for principal in respect of Global Notes shall become void unless the relevant Global Notes are
presented for payment within ten years of the appropriate relevant date. Claims for interest in respect of
Global Notes shall become void unless the relevant Global Notes are presented for payment within five years
of the appropriate relevant date. :

Claims for principal and interest in respect of Definitive Notes shall become void unless made within ten
years. in the case of principal, and five years, in the case of interest, of the appropriate relevant date.

In this Condition 9, the ‘televant date" means the date on which a payment in respect thereof first
becomes due. but if the full amount of the moneys payvable has not been received in London by the Principal
Paying Agent or the Trustee on or prior 1o such date, it means the date on which the full amount of such
moneys shall have been so received, and notice to that effect shall have been duly given to the Noteholders in
accordance with Condition 15.

10. Events of Default

fa) Eligible Noteholders
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If any of the events mentioned in sub-paragraphs (i) to (v) inclusive below shall occur {each such
event being an "Event of Default") the Trustee at its absolute discretion may. and if so requested
in writing by the "Eligible Noteh{olders ", being:

(1)

{2)

(3)

(4)

(5

the holders of not less than 25 per cent. in aggregate Principal Amount Outstanding of the
Class A Notes then outstanding: or

if there are no Class A |Notes outstanding. the holders of not less than 25 per gent. in
aggregate of the Principdl Amount Outstanding of the Class B Notes then outstanding: or

if there are no Class A Notes and Class B Notes outstanding. the holders of not less than
25 per cent. in aggregate of the Principal Amount QOutstanding of the Class C Notes then
outstanding; or =

if there are no Class A lilotes, Class B Notes and Class C Notes outstanding. the holders
of not less than 25 per icent. in aggregate of the Principal Amount Cutstanding of the
Class D Notes then outstanding: or

if there are no Class A Notes, Class B Notes, Class C Notes and Class D N \
outstanding. the holders of not less than 25 per cent. in aggregate of the Principal Am _
Outstanding of the Class E Notes then outstanding.

or if so directed by or pursuant o an Extraordinary Resolution (as defined in the Trust Deed) of
the most senior class of Noteholders, shall. and in any case aforesaid. subject to the Trustee being
indemnified and/or secured to it$ satisfaction, give notice {a "Note Enforcement Notice") to the
Issuer declaring all the Notes to be due and repayable and the lssuer Security enforceable:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

{1iv)

(v)

default is made for a petiod of three days in the payment of the principal of. or default is
made for a period of five days in the pavment of interest on. any Class A Note; or if there
are no Class A Notes outstanding. any Class B Note: or. if there are no Class B Notes
outstanding. any Class ¢ Note: or. if there are no Class C Notes outstanding, any Class D
Note: or. if there are no/Class D Notes outstanding. any Class E Note. in each case when
and as the same becomes due and payable in accordance with these Conditions; or

default is made by the Issuer in the performance or observance of any other obligation
binding upon it under afy of the Notes of any class. the Trust Deed. the Deed of Charge
and Assignment or the lother Relevant Documents to which it is party and. in any such
case (except where the Trustee certifies that. in its opinion, such default is incapab '
remedy when no notice|will be required). such default continues for a period of 14 df¥.. -
following the service the Trustee on the Issuer of notice requiring the same to be

remedied; or

the Issuer, otherwise than for the purposes of such amalgamation or reconstruction as is
referred to in Condition 10(a)(iv) below, ceases or. consequent upon a resolution of the
board of directors of the Issuer. threatens to cease to carry on business or a substantial
part of its business or|the Issuer is or is deemed unable to pay its debts within the
meaning of Section 123(1) and (2) of the Insolvency Act 1986 (as that section may be
amended from time to tjme); or

an order is made or an effective resolution is passed for the winding-up of the Issuer
except a winding-up fot the purposes of or pursuant to an amalgamation or reconstruction
the terms of which have previously been approved by the Trustee in writing or by an
Extraordinary Resolution of the Eligible Noteholders: or

proceedings shall be initiated against the Issuer under any applicable liquidation,
insolvency, composition, reorganisation or other similar laws (including, but not limited
to, presentation of a petition for an administration order) and such proceedings are not, in
the opinion of the Trustee, being disputed in good faith with a reasonable prospect of
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(b)

success. or an administration order shall be granted or an administrative receiver or other
receiver. liquidator or other similar official shall be appointed in relation to the lssuerl or
any part of its undertaking. property or assets. or an encumbrancer shall take possession
of all or any part of the undertaking. property or assets of the [ssue}'. or a distress or
execution or other process shall be Jevied or enforced upon or sued against alt or any part
of the undertaking, property or assets of the Issuer and such possession Or process 15 not
discharged or does not otherwise cease 10 apply within 15 days. or the Is_suer'imtlates or
consents to judicial proceedings relating to itself under applicable liquidation. msqi\'ency.
composition. reorganisation or other similar laws or makes a convevance or assignment
for the benefit of its creditors generally.

provided that, in the case of each of the events described in Condition 10rajtii). the Trustee
shall have certified to the Issuer that such event is. in its opinion, materially prejudicial to the
interests of the Eligible Noteholders.

Effect of Declaration by Trustee

Upon any declaration being made by the Trustee in accordance with Condition 10{a) above,
all classes of the Notes then outstanding shall immediately become due and repayable at their
Principal Amount Outstanding together with accrued interest as provided in the Trust Deed
and the Issuer Security shall become enforceable.

11. Enfercement

Subject to the provisions of Condition 16. the Trustee may, at its discretion and without notice, take such
proceedings against the Issuer or any other person as it may think fit to enforce the provisions of the Notes and
the Relevant Documents and may, at any time after the Issuer Security has become enforceable, at its
discretion and without notice, take such steps as it may think fit to enforce the Issuer Security. but it shall not
be bound to take any such proceedings or steps unless:

(a)

b

subject to the proviso below, it is directed to do so by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Class A
Noteholders. the Class B Noteholders. the Class C Noteholders. the Class D Noteholders or the
Class E Noteholders. or by a notice in writing signed by the holders of at least 25 per cent. in
aggregate Principal Amount Qutstanding of the Class A Notes. the Class B Notes. the Class C
Notes or the Class E Notes, as applicable, then outstanding: and

it shall be indemnified and/or secured to its satisfaction against all actions, proceedings, claims
and demands to which it may thereby render itself liable and all liabilities, losses. costs, charges,
damages and expenses (including any VAT thereon) which it may incur by so doing,

PROVIDED THAT:

(i) the Trustee shall not be bound to act at the direction of the Class B Noteholders unless to
do so would not in the opinion of the Trustee be materially prejudicial to the interests of
the Class A Noteholders or such action is sanctioned by. or the Trustee has also been
directed to take such action by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Class A Noteholders or
by a notice in writing signed by the holders of at least 25 per cent. in aggregate Principal
Amount Cutstanding of the Class A Notes then outstanding;

(it) the Trustee shall not be bound to act at the direction of the Class C Noteholders unless to
do 50 would not in the opinion of the Trustee be materially prejudicial to the respective
interests of the Class A Noteholders and the Class B Noteholders or such action is
sanctioned by, or the Trustee has also been directed to take such action by Extraordinary
Resolutions of each of the Class A Noteholders and the Class B Noteholders or by a
notice in writing signed by the holders of at least 25 per cent. in aggregate Principal

Amount Cutstanding of each of the Class A Notes and the Class B Notes then
outstanding;
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(1ii) the Trustee shall not be bound to act at the direction of the Class D Noteholders unless tg
do so would not in the opinion of the Trustee be materially prejudicial to the respective
interests of the Class A Noteholders. the Class B Noteholders and the Class C
Noteholders or such actior} is sanctioned by. or the Trustee has also been directed to take |
such action by Extraordinary Resolutions of each of the Class A Noteholders. the Class B
Noteholders and the Class:C Noteholders or by a notice in writing signed by the holders
of at least 25 per cent. in e'}ggregate Principal Amount Quistanding of each of the Class A
Notes, the Class B Notes and the Class C Notes then outstanding: and

(iv) the Trustee shall not be bolind to act at the direction of the Class E Noteholders unless to
do so would not in the opinion of the Trustee be materially prejudicial to the respective
interests of the Class A Noteholders, the Class B Noteholders. the Class C Noteholders
and the Class D Noteholders or such action is sanctioned by, or the Trustee has been
directed to take such action by, Extraordinary Resolutions of each of the Class A
Noteholders, the Class B Noteholders, the Class C Noteholders and the Class D
Noteholders, or by a noti¢e in writing signed by the holders of at least 25 per cent. in
aggregate Principal Amount Qutstanding of each of the Class A Notes, the Class B
Notes, the Class C Notes and the Class D Notes.

Enforcement of the Issuer Security will be the only remedy available to the Trustee and th.
Notehoiders for the repayment of: the Notes and any interest thereon. No Noteholder shall be
entitled to proceed directly against the Issuer or any other party to the Relevant Documents or to
enforce the 1ssuer Security unless the Trustee, having become bound to do so. fails to do so within

a reasonable period and such failure shall be continuing provided that no Class B Noteholder, no
Class C Noteholder. no Class D Noteholder and no Class E Noteholder shall be entitled to take
proceedings for the winding up or:administration of the Issuer. The Trustee cannot, while any of
the Notes are outstanding. be required to enforce the Issuer Security at the request of any other
Secured Party under the Deed of Charge and Assignment.

If the net proceeds of realisation of, or enforcement with respect to. the Issuer Security are not
sufficient to make all payments dug in respect of the Notes (if any). the other assets (if any) of the
Issuer. other than any surplus arising on the realisation of or enforcement with respect to any
remaining security. will not be available for payment of any shortfall arising therefrom (which
shall be bome in accordance witk]' the provisions of the Deed of Charge and Assignment). All
claims in respect of such shortfall, after realisation of or enforcement with respect to all of the
Issuer Security. shail be extingui‘t:wd and the Trustee. the Noteholders and the other Secured
Parties shall have no further claifn against the Issuer in respect of such unpaid amounts. Each
Noteholder. by subscribing for or purchasing Notes, is deemed to accept and acknowledge that #llK
is fully aware that. in the event of an enforcement of the Issuer Security. (i) its right to obta/®.
repayment in full is limited to recourse against the assets of the Issuer comprised in the 1ssuer
Security and (ii) the Issuer will have duly and entirely fulfilled its payment obligations by making
available to such Noteholder its proportion of the proceeds of realisation or enforcement of the
[ssuer Security in accordance with the Deed of Charge and Assignment. and all claims in respect
of any shortfall shall be extinguished.
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12. Meetings of Noteholders, Modification and Waiver

(a)

(B

(c)

id)

(e)

The Trust Deed contains provisions for convening meetings of the Noteholders of any class. to
consider any matter affecting their interests including the sanctioning by Extraordinary Resqlunon
of. inter alia, the removal of the Trustee. 2 modification of the Notes (including these Conditions)
or the provisions of any of the Relevant Documents.

An Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of the Class A Noteholders shall be binding
on all Class B Noteholders. Class C Noteholders. Class D Noteholders and Class E Noteholders.
irrespective of the effect upon them, except an Extraordinary Resolution to sanction a
modification of. or a waiver or authorisation of any breach or proposed breach of any of the
provisions of, these Conditions or any of the Relevant Documents, which shall not take effect
unless it shall have been sanctioned by an Extraordinary Resolution of each of the Class B
Noteholders. the Class C Noteholders., the Class D Noteholders and Class E Noteholders. or it
shall not, in the opinion of the Trustee, in its sole discretion. be materially prejudicial to the
respective interests of the Class B Noteholders, the Class C Noteholders, the Class D Noteholders

and the Class E Noteholders.

An Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of Class B Noteholders (other than as referred
to in Condition 12(5)) shall not be effective for any purpose unless either:

{i) the Trustee is of the opinion that it would not be materially prejudicial to the intergsts of
the Class A Noteholders: or

(1i) it is sanctioned by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Class A Noteholders.

An Exuraordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of the Class B Noteholders shall be binding
on all Class C Noteholders. Class D Noteholders and Class E Noteholders, irrespective of the
effect upon them, except an Extraordinary Resolution to sanction a modification of, or a waiver or
authorisation of any breach or proposed breach of any of the provisions of, these Conditions or
any of the Relevant Documents which shall not take effect unless it shall have been sanctioned by
an Extraordinary Resolution of each of the Class C Noteholders. the Class D Noteholders and the
Class E Noteholders or it shall not, in the opinion of the Trustee. in its sole discretion, be
materially prejudicial to the tespective interests of the Class C Noteholders, the Class D
Noteholders and the Class E Noteholders.

An Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of Class C Noteholders (other than as referred
to in Conditions 12(b) or 12 {c)) shall not be effective for any purpose unless either:

(i) the Trustee is of the opinion that it would not be materially prejudicial to the respective
interests of the Class A Noteholders and the Class B Noteholders: or

{ii} it is sanctioned by an Extraordinary Resolution of each of the Class A Noteholders and
the Class B Noteholders.

An Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of the Class C Noteholders shall be binding
on all Class D Noteholders and Class E Noteholders irrespective of the effect upon them, except
an Extraordinary Resolution to sanction a modification of, or 2 waiver or authorisation of any
breach or proposed breach of any of the provisions of, these Conditions or any of the Relevant
Documents which shall not take effect unless it shall have been sanctioned by an Extraordinary
Resolution of each of the Class D Noteholders and the Class E Noteholders or it shall not, in the
opinion of the Trustee, in its sole discretion, be materially prejudicial to the respective interests of
the Class D Noteholders and the Class E Noteholders,

An Extraor_dinary ]_{f:solution passed at any meeting of the Class D Noteholders (other than as
referred to in Conditions 12(b), 12(c) or 12(d)) shall not be effective for any purpose unless either:
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)

(g)

(h

() the Trustee is of the opinion that it would not be materially prejudicial to the respective
interests of the Class A Noteholders, the Class B Noteholders and the Class ¢

Noteholders; or

(i) it is sanctioned by an Exfraordinary Resolution of each of the Class A Noteholders. the
Class B Noteholders and the Class C Noteholders.

An Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of the Class D Noteholders shall be binding
on all Class E Noteholders irrsspective of the effect upon them. except an Extraordinary
Resolution to sanction a modification of. or a waiver or authorisation of any breach or proposeq
breach of any of the provisions of. these Conditions or any of the Relevant Documents. which
shall not take effect unless it shall have been sanctioned by an Extraordinary Resolution of the
Class E Noteholders or it shall not, in the opinion of the Trustee in its sole discretion. be
materially prejudicial to the interests of the Class E Noteholders.

An Extraordinary Resolution passied at any meeting of the Class E Noteholders (other than as
referred to in Conditions 12(b), 12(c), 12(d) or 12(¢)) shall not be effective for any purpose uniess
either: ;

(i) the Trustee is of the opinion that it would not be materially prejudicial to the respecti\. {

interests of the Class A Noteho]ders. the Class B Noteholders, the Class C Noteholders
and the Class D Notehoiders; or

{ii) it is sanctioned by = Extraordinary Resolution of each of the Class A Noteholders, the
Class B Noteholders. the Class C Noteholders and the Class D Noteholders.

Subject as provided below, the quorum at any meeting of the Noteholders of any class for passing
an Extraordinary Resolution shall be two or more persons holding or representing not less than 50
per cent. in Principal Amount Outstanding of the Notes of such class or, at any adjourned
meeting. two or more persons being or representing Noteholders of such class whatever the
Principal Amount Outstanding of éthe Notes of such class so held or represented. For so long as
all the Notes {whether being Definitive Notes or represented by a Global Note} of a class are held
by one person. such person shall ¢onstitute two persons for the purposes of forming a quorum for
meetings. Furthermore. a proxy ifor the holder of a Global Note will be treated as being two
persons for the purposes of any quorum requirements of a meeting of Noteholders.

The quorum at any meeting ofl the Noteholders of any class for passing an Extraordinary
Resolution in respect of a modifidation of, or a waiver or authorisation of any breach or propo"*
breach of any of the provisions of these Conditions or any of the Relevant Documents shall D&
two or more persons holding or rgpresenting not less than 75 per cent. or, at any adjourned such
meeting. 33 1/3 per cent. in Princjpal Amount Qutstanding of the Notes of such class for the time
being outstanding. i

The majority required for an Extraordinary Resolution shall be not less than 75 per cent. of the
votes cast on the resolution. An [Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of Noteholders
of any class shall be binding on 2!l Noteholders of such class whether or not they are present at
such meeting.

i
|

The Trustee may agree, without' the consent of the holders of Notes of any class, (i) to any
modification (except a Basic Terms Modification, as defined in the Trust Deed) of, or to any
waiver or authorisation of any! breach or proposed breach of, the Notes (including these
Conditions) or any of the Releirant Documents which, in the opinion of the Trustee, is not
materially prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders or (ii) to any modification of the Notes
(including these Conditions) or any of the Relevant Documents which, in the opinion of the
Trustee, is to correct a manifest error or is of a formal, minor or technical nature. The Trustee
may also, without the consent of the Noteholders of any class, determine that an Event of Default
shall not, or shall not, subject to specified conditions, be treated as such, provided always that the
Trustee shall not exercise such p?wcrs of waiver, authorisation or determination in contravention
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of any express direction given by the Eligible Noteholders or by an Ezftra()_rdinar}' Resolution of
the most senior class of Noteholders (provided that no such direction shall affect any
authorisation. waiver or determination previously made or given). Any such modification.
waiver. authorisation or determination shall be binding on the Noteholders and. unless the Trustee
agrees otherwise. any such modification shall be notified to the Noteholders as soon as practicable
thereafter in accordance with Condition 15.

{i) Where the Trustee is required. in connection with the exercise of ts powers. trusts._authorities.
duties and discretions. to have regard to the interests of the Noteholders of any class. it shall have
rezard to the interests of such Noteholders as a class and. in particular. but without prejudice to
the generality of the foregoing. the Trustee shall not have regard to. or be in any way liable for.
the Eonsequénces of such exercise for individual Noteholders resulting from their being for any
purpose domiciled or resident in. or otherwise connected with. or subject to the jurisdictipn of.
any particular territory and the Trustee shall not be entitled to require, nor shall any Noteholder be
entitted to claim. from the Issuer or the Trustee or any other person. amy indemnification or
payment in respect of any tax consequence of any such exercise upon individual Noteholders.

{) The Trustee shall be entitled to assume without further enquiry, for the purposes of exercising any
power, trust. authority, duty or discretion under or in relation to these Conditions or any of the
Relevant Documents. that such exercise will not be materially prejudicial to the interests of the
Noteholders or any class of Noteholders if the Rating Agency has provided written confirmation
that the then current ratings of the Notes or. as the case may be. the Notes of such class will not be
downgraded. withdrawn or qualified as a result by such exercise,

13. Indemnification and Exoneration of thé Trustee

The Trust Deed and certain of the Relevant Documents contain provisions governing the responsibility
(and relief from responsibility) of the Trustee and for its indemnification in certain circumstances, including
provisions relieving it from taking enforcement proceedings or enforcing the Issuer Security unless
indemnified to its satisfaction. The Trustee will not be responsible for any loss. expense or liability which may
be suffered as a result of any assets comprised in the Issuer Security. or any deeds or documents of title
thereto, being uninsured or inadequately insured or being held by or to the order of other parties to the
Relevant Documents. clearing organisations or their operators or by intermediaries such as banks, brokers,
depositories. warehousemen or other similar persons whether or not on behalf of the Trustee.

The Trust Deed contains provisions pursuant to which the Trustee or any of its related companies is
entitled. inter alia. (i) to enter into business transactions with the Issuer and-or any other person who is a party
to the Relevant Documents or whose obligations are comprised in the lssuer Security and/or any of their
subsidiary or associated companies and to act as trustee for the holders of any other securities issued by or
relating to the Issuer and/or any other person who is a party to the Relevant Documents or whose obligations
are comprised in the Issuer Security and/or any of their subsidiary or associated companies. (ii) to exercise and
enforce its rights, comply with its obligations and perform its duties, under or in relation to any such
transactions or, as the case may be, any such trusteeship without regard to the interests of the Noteholders, and
(iii) to retain and not be liable to account for any profit made or any other amount or benefit received thereby
or in connection therewith.

The Trust Deed also relieves the Trustee of liability for not having made or not having caused to be made
on its behalf the searches. investigations and enquiries which a prudent chargee would normally have been
likely to make in entering into the Deed of Charge and Assignment. The Trustee has no responsibility in
relation to the validity, sufficiency and enforceability of the Issuer Security. The Trustee will not be obliged to
take any action which might result in its incurring personal liabilities unless indemnified to its satisfaction or to
supervise the performance by the Servicer. the Special Servicer, the Cash Manager, the Liquidity Facility
Provider, the Swap Provider, the Swap Guarantor or any other person of their obligations under the Relevant
Documents and the Trustee shall assume, until it has actual knowledge to the contrary. that all such persons are
properly performing their duties, notwithstanding that the Issuer Security (or any part thereof) may, as a
consequence. be treated as floating rather than fixed security.




14. Replacement of Global Notes and Definitive Notes

If any Global Note or Definitive Note is mutilated. defaced. lost. stolen or destroyed. it may be replaced 4
the specified office of any Paying Agent or the Registrar upon payment by the claimant of the expenses
incurred in connection with such replacement and on such terms as to evidence and indemnity as the Issuer
the Registrar or the Trustee may reasonably require. Mutilated or defaced Global Notes or Definitive Noteg
must be surrendered before replacements will be issued.

15. Notice to Noteholders

(a)

{h)

(c)

(d)

‘such manner as the Trustee shall require.

All notices. other than notices given in accordance with the following paragraphs of thig
Condition 15. 1o Noteholders shall be deemed to have been validly given if published in the
Financial Times or, if such newspaper shall cease to be published or timely publication therein

shall not be practicable, in such EnQ]ish language newspaper or newspapers as the Trustee shal|
approve having a general circulation in Europe. Any such notice published in a newspaper as
aforesaid shall be deemed to have ben given on the date of such publication or, if published more

than once or on different dates. on the first date on which publication shall have been made in the
newspaper or newspapers in which publication is required. For so long as the Notes of any clasg

are represented by Global Notes, notices to Noteholders will be validly given if published as :
described above. for so long as the Notes are admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange .
and the rules of the London Stocki Exchange so require. and. at the option of the Issuer, if
delivered to the Depository for communication by it to Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg andior to DTC for i communication by them to their participants and for
communication by such participants to entitled account holders. Any notice delivered to
Euroclear and/or Clearstream. Luxembourg and/or DTC as aforesaid shall be deemed to have
been given on the day on which it is delivered to the Depository.

Any notice specifying an Interest Payment Date. a Rate of Interest, an Interest Amount, a
Principal Amount Qutstanding or a Principal Shortfall shall be deemed to have been duly given if

the information contained in such nbtice appears on the relevant page of the Reuters Screen or
such other medium for the electronic display of data as may be previously approved in writing by

the Trustee and notified to the Noteholders pursuant to Condition 15¢a). Any such notice shall be
deemed to have been given on the first date on which such information appeared on the relevant
screen. If it is impossible or impractical to give notice in accordance with this paragraph, then
notice of the matters referred to in ‘this paragraph shall be given in accordance with Condition
131a).

A copy of each notice given in accorhance with this Condition 13 shall be provided to {for so long .
as the Notes of any class are admifted to trading on the London Stock Exchange) the London : {
Stock Exchange and to Standard & Poor's Ratings Services - a division of The McGraw-Hill
Companies. Inc. ("S&P" or the Rating Agency". which reference in these Conditions shall
include any additional or replacement rating agency appointed by the Issuer, with the prior written
approval of the Trustee, to provide ',a credit rating in respect of the Notes or any class thereof).

For the avoidance of doubt. and unless the context otherwise requires, all references to "rating”

and "ratings" in these Conditions shhll be deemed to be references to the ratings assigned by the
Rating Agency. For so long as the Notes are admitted to the Official List and the rules of the UK
Listing Authority require, notice t():r' all notices to Noteholders given in accordance with this
Condition 15, shall be given to the ompany Announcement Office.

The Trustee shall be at liberty to sanction some other method of giving notice to the Noteholders
or to a class or category of them if, [in its opinion, such other method is reasonable having regard
to market practice then prevailing and to the requirements of the stock exchange on which the
Notes are then listed and provided that notice of such other method is given to the Noteholders in
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16. Subordination

{a}

(h)

Interest

Subject to Condition 5() and Condition 10. in the event that. on any Interest Payment Date. the
Available Interest Receipts, after deducting the amounts referred to in items (a) to (1) of Clause
6.2.2 of the Deed of Charge and Assignment (in the case of the Class B Notes) (the ‘Class B
Interest Residual Amount”): items {a) to (m) of Clause 6.2.2 of the Deed of Charge and
Assienment {in the case of the Class C Notes) (the "Class C Interest Residual Amount”): items
(a} to {n) of Clause 6.2.2 of the Deed of Charge and Assignment (in the case of the Class D Notes)
(the "Class D Interest Residual Amount”): and jtems (2) to (o) of Clause 6.2.2 of the Deed of
Chargé and Assignment {in the case of the Class E Notes) (the ‘Class E Interest Residual
Amount"). respectively, (each an "Interest Residual Amount") are not sufficient to satisfy in
full the Interest Amount due and, subject to this Condition 16¢a). pavable on the Class B Notes
and the Class C Notes, or the Interest Amount or the Adjusted Interest Amount. as applicable. due
and. subject to this Condition 16 @), payable on the Class D Notes or the Class E Notes,
respectively. on such Interest Payment Date. there shall instead be payable on such Interest
Payment Date, by way of interest on each Class B Note, Class C Note, Class D Note and/or. as the
case may be. Class E Note, only a pro rata share of the Interest Residual Amount attributable to
the relevant class or classes of Notes on such Interest Payment Date, calculated by dividing the
original principal amount of each such Class B. Class C. Class D. Class E Notes. as the cas¢ may
be. by the aggregate principal amount of the Class B. Class C. Class D or Class E Notes as at the
Closing Date. as the case may be. and multiplying the result by the relevant Interest Residual
Amount. and then rounding down to the nearest penny.

In any such event. the Issuer shall create a provision in its accounts for the shortfall equal to the
amount by which the aggregate amount of interest paid on the Class B Notes, Class C Notes,
Class D Notes or Class E Notes. as the case may be. on any Interest Payment Date in accordance
with this Condition 16/a; falls short of the Interest Amount due on the Class B Notes or the Class
C Notes. or the Interest Amount or the Adjusted Interest Amount. as applicable, due on the Class
[ Notes or the Class E Notes as the case may be. on that date pursuant to Condition 5. Such
shortfall and any Principal Shortfall allocated to such class of Notes shall itself accrue interest at
the same rate as that payable in respect of the Class B Notes. the Class C Notes. the Class D Notes
or the Class E Notes. as applicable, and shall be pavable together with such accrued interest on
any succeeding Interest Payment Date and any such unpaid interest and accrued interest thereon
shall be paid in priority to the current interest due on such class or classes of Notes on such
Interest Pavment Date. but only if and to the extent that. on such Interest Payment Date, the
Available Interest Receipts. after deducting the amounts referred to in items (a) to (1) of Clause
6.2.2 of the Deed of Charge and Assignment (in the case of the Class B Notes). items (a) to {m) of
Clause 6.2.2 of the Deed of Charge and Assignment {in the case of the Class C Notes), items (a}
to (n) of Clause 6.2.2 of the Deed of Charge and Assignment (in the case of the Class D Notes)
and items (a) to (o} of Clause 6.2.2 of the Deed of Charge and Assignment (in the case of the
Class E Notes) respectively. are. in any such case. sufficient to make such payment. If, on the
Interest Pavment Date falling in July 2009. (the "Final Interest Payment Date") or on any earlier
redemption in full of the Notes of any class. there remains such a provision for a shortfall of
interest in respect of the Class D Notes or the Class E Notes. such amount will no longer be
payable to the relevant Noteholders.

Principal

Subject to Condition 6¢f), whilst any Class A Notes are outstanding. the Class B Noteholders, the
Class C Noteholders, the Class D Noteholders and the Class E Noteholders will not be entitled to
any repayment of principal in respect of the Class B Notes. the Class C Notes, the Class D/ Notes
or the Class E Notes, respectively. Subject to Condition 6¢5). whilst any Class B Notes are
outstanding, the Class C Noteholders, the Class D Noteholders and the Class E Noteholders will
not be entitled to any repayment of principal in respect of the Class C Notes, the Class D Notes or
the Class E Notes. respectively. Subject to Condition 6¢b), whilst any Class C Notes are
outstanding, the Class D Noteholders and the Class E Noteholders will not be entitled to any
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repayment of principal in respect of the C lass D Notes or the Class E Notes. respectively. Sub;
to Condition 6¢b}. whilst any Class D Notes are outstanding. the Class E Notehoiders will not b,

entitled to any repayment of principail in respect of the Class E Notes.

If. on the Final Interest Payment Date or on any earlier redemption in full of the Notes of ap
class. there is a debit balance on the Class A Principal Shortfall Ledger. the Class B Principy
shortfall Ledger, the Class C Principal Shortfall Ledger. the Class D Principal Shoqfall Ledger o
the Class E Principal Shortfall Ledger. as the case may be. then. notwithstanding any othe
provisions of these Conditions. the principal amount payable on the redemption of each Nlote of
such class shall be its Principal Amolint Outstanding net of its pro rara share of the then Principy
Shortfall applicable to such class. None of the foregoing shall prejudice the obligation of the
Issuer to apply Available Scheduled Amortisation Funds. Available Prepayment Redemption
Funds and Available Final Redemption Funds in redemption in whole or in part of the Notes iy
accordance with Condition 6/3).

(c) General

In the event that the Issuer Security is enforced and the proceeds of such enforcement are
insufficient. afier payment of all other claims ranking in priority thereto or pari passu therewith . |
under the Deed of Charge and Assignment. to pay in full all principal and interest and other ¥ ‘ |
amounts whatsoever due in respect of the Class A Notes, the Class B Notes. the Ciass C Notes,

the Class D Notes and the Class E Notes, then the holders of such Notes shall have no further

claim against the Issuer in respect of any such unpaid amounts. as described in Condition 11, In

the event that a shortfal] in the amount available to pay interest owing on the Class D Notes or the

Class E Notes or principal of the Notes of any class exists on the Final Interest Payment Date or

on the date of any earlier redemption in full of the Notes. or the Notes of any class, after payment

of all other claims ranking in priority to or pari passu with the Notes. or the Notes of such class,

and the Issuer Security has not become enforceable as at such Final Interest Payment Date or such

date of earlier redemption, the liability of the Issuer to make any payment in respect of such

shortfall shall cease and all claims ini respect of such shortfall shall be extinguished.

(d) Notification

As soon as practicable after becoming aware that any part of a payment of interest on the Class B

Notes or the Class C Notes or the Class D Notes or the Class E Notes. as the case may be, will be
deferred or that a payment previous‘ljy deferred will be made in accordance with this Condition 16,

the Issuer will give notice thereof tg the Class B Noteholders. the Class C Noteholders, the Class

D Noteholders or the Class E Noteliolders, as the case may be. in accordance with Condition 15 ‘ {
and. for so long as the Class B Noteb, the Class C Notes, the Class D Notes and the Class E Notes

are admitted to trading on the Londqn Stock Exchange. to the London Stock Exchange.

17. Privity of Contract !

This Note does not confer any right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce any
term of this Note, but this does not affect any right or remedy of a third party which exists or is available apart
from the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act [1999.

18. Governing Law

The Trust Deed. the Deed of Charge and Assignment, the Agency Agreement, the other Relevant
Documents and the Notes are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law other than
the Depository Agreement and the Exchange Riate Agency Agreement, which are governed by and shall be
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York.
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19. U.S. Tax Treatment and Provision of Information

(a) It is the intention of the Issuer. each Noteholder and beneficial owner {("Owner”) of an interest in
the Notes that the Notes will be indebtedness of the Issuer for United States federal. state and
local income and franchise tax purposes and for the purposes of any other United States federal.
state and local tax imposed on or measured by income (the "Intended L.S. Tax Treatment™). To
the extent applicable and absent a fnal determination to the contrary. the Issuer and each
Noteholder and Owner. by acceptance of a Note. or a beneficial interest therein. agree to treat the
Notes. for purposes of United Siates federal. state and local income or franchise taxes and any
other United States federal. state and local taxes imposed on or measured by income. consistent
with the Intended U.S. Tax Treatment and to report the Notes on all applicable tax retumns in a
manner consistent with such treatment.

iy For so long as any Notes remain outstanding and are "restricted securities” (as defined in Rule

{24(a)(3) under the Securities Act). the Issuer shali. during any period in which it is neither

subject to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act nor exempt from reporting pursuant to

rule 12g3-2(b) thereunder. fumish. at its expense. to any holder of. or Owner of an interest in.

: such Notes in connection with any resale thereof and to any prospective purchaser designated by

. : such holder or Owner, in each case upon request. the information specified in. and meeting the
requirements of. Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Securities Act.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the issue of the Notes will be approximately £252.348.326 and this sum will b,
applied by the Issuer towards payment to MSDW Bank of the purchase consideration in respect of the Loang
and MSDW Bank's beneficial interests in the ;Securiry Trusts comprising the Mortgages and the Reknqi :
Security to be purchased on the Closing Date pufsuant to the Mortgage Sale Agreement. See "The Loans, ¢, -
Mortgages and the Related Securty”. Fees. commissions and expenses incurred by the Issuer in connectioy
with the issue of the Notes will be met by MSDW Bank.

-

9
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UNITED KINGDOM TAXATION

The following, which applies oniy to persons who are the beneficial owners of the Notes. is a summary of
the Issuer's understanding of current United Kingdom tax law and Inland Revenue practice as at the
date of this Offering Circular relating to certain aspects of the United Kingdom taxation of the Notes. It

is not a comprehensive analysis of the tax consequences arising in respect of Notes. Some aspects do not
apply to certain classes of taxpaver (such as dealers). Prospective Noteholders who are in any doubt

about their tax position or who may be subject to a tax in 2 jurisdiction other than the United Kingdom

should seek their own professional advice.

Interest on the Notes

!.  Withholding Tax on payments of interest on the Notes

Under current United Kingdom Inland Revenue practice. the Notes will be regarded as bearer securities
for the purposes of section 124 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 ("section .124")
notwithstanding that thev are represented by Giobal Notes and. accordingly. as long as they are and continue to
be listed on (or treated as listed on) a "recognised stock exchange” within the meaning of section 841 of the
Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 (the London Stock Exchange is such a "recognised stock exchange”
for this purpose) interest payments on each of the Notes will be treated as interest paid on a "quoted Eurobond”
within the meaning of section 124. In these circumstances payments of interest on the Notes by the Paving
Agents may be made withour withholding or deduction for or on account of United Kingdom income tax
where:

{(a) payvment is made through a Paying Agent who is not in the United Kingdom: or

(b) the beneficial owner of the Notes and of the related Coupons is not resident in the United
Kingdom: or

(c) the Notes are held in a "recognised clearing svstem”. within the meaning of section 841 A of the
Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 {DTC. Euroclear and Clearstream. Luxembourg have
each been designated as a recognised clearing svstem for this purpose):

and. conditions imposed bv regulations made under the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 (as
amended by the Finance Act 1996) have been satisfied.

In all other cases. and in particular where the Notes are represented by registered Definitive Notes, an
amount must be withheld on account of United Kingdom income tax at the lower rate (currently 20 per cent.),
subject 1o any direction to the contrary from the Inland Revenue in respect of such relief as may be available
pursuant to the provisions of an applicable double taxation treaty.

2. Withholding tax on interest — provisions in the Finance Bill

The Finance Bill published on 29th June. 2000 contains proposed legislation which, if enacted. would
have the effect that. for so long as the Notes are listed on a recognised stock exchange. there will be no
obligation upon any person by or through whom a payvment of interest is made to make a withholding on
account of United Kingdom income tax from that payment of interest. The proposed legislation, if enacted,
would have effect for payments of interest made on or after Ist April, 2001. but it cannot be stated with
certainty whether the tegislation will be enacted and if so in what form.

3. United Kingdom collecting agent rules

Where a Note constitutes a "quoted Eurobond" within the meaning of section 124 and a person in the
United Kingdom in the course of a trade or profession either:

(a) acts as custodian of the Note and receives interest on the Note or directs that interest on the Note be
paid 1o another person or consents to such payment; or
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(b) collects or secures pavment of or receivds interest on a Note for a Noteholdqr or a Couponhoider
(except in any case by means only of clearing a cheque or arranging for the clearing of a cheque).

that person (a "collecting agent”) will be required to withhold on account of United Kingdom income 1ax g

the lower rate (currently 20 per cent.) unless inter dhia:

(i) the relevant Note is held in a "recagnised clearing system” as described in 2(c) above and the
collecting agent either: -

{a)  pays or accounts for the interest directly or indirectly to the “recognised clearing system™
or

(b) is acting as depositary for the “recognised clearing system": or

(i) the person beneficially entitled to the interest is not resident in the United Kingdom and
beneficially owns the Note: or

(iii) the interest arises to trustees not resident in the United Kingdom of certain discretionary or .
accumulation trusts (where, inter alia. none of the beneficiaries of the trust is resident i the
United Kingdom): or . ‘

or

- !
(iv) the person entitled to the interest is eligible for certain reliefs from tax in respect of the interest; l
(v) the interest falls to be treated as the income of. or of the government of, a sovereign power or of t
an international organisation. :
In the case of each of the above exceptigns (except (iX(b)). further administrative conditions imposed i
by the regulations referred to above may have to be satisfied for the relevant exception to be available. '
The Finance Bill published on 29™ June confains proposed legislation which. if enacted. will abolish the
withholding obligations which are imposed on {:ollecting agents as explained in the preceding paragraphs
under this heading and replace those obligations with a requirement to provide information to the Inland
Revenue in relation to interest payments. The proposed legislation. if enacted. will have eftect for payments of
interest made on or after 1st April. 2001. but it is not vet certain whether the proposed legislation will be
enacted and if so in what form. g ;

4. Further United Kingdom income tax issues Ior non-United Kingdom resident Noteholders . ‘
1

Interest on the Notes constitutes United Kingdom source income and. as such. may be subject to income |
tax by direct assessment even where paid without withholding.

However. interest with a United Kingdom sofirce received without deduction or withholding on account of
United Kingdom tax will not be chargeable to United Kingdom tax in the hands of a Noteholder (other than
certain trustees) who is not resident for tax purpoges in the United Kingdom unless that Noteholder carTies on a
trade. profession or vocation in the United Kingdom through a branch or agency in connection with which the
interest is received or to which the Notes are attributable. There are exemptions for interest received by certain
categories of agent {such as some brokers and in\’estmem managers).

United Kingdom corporation tax pavers !
i
In general. Noteholders which are within the charge to United Kingdom corporation tax in respect of
Notes will be charged to tax and obtain relief as income on all retuns on and fluctuations in value of the Notes
broadly in accordance with their statutory accounting treatment.
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Other United Kingdom tax payers

}.  Taxation of chargeable gains

As the notes may be redenominated in euro. it is expected that they will not be regarded by the Inland

Revenue as constituting "qualifying corporate bonds” within the meaning of Section 117 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992. Accordingly, a disposal of any of these Notes may give rise to a chargeable gain
or an allowable loss for the purposes of the United Kingdom taxation of chargeable gains.

2. Accrued income scheme

On a disposal of Notes by a Noteholder, any interest which has accrued since the last Interest Payment
Date may be chargeable to tax as income under the rules of the "accrued income scheme” if that Noteholder is
resident or ordinarily resident in the United Kingdom or carries on a trade in the United Kingdom through

branch or agency to which the Notes are attributable.

Stamp Duty and SDRT

No United Kingdom stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax is payable on the issue of the Global Notes.
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UNITED STF.-\TES TAXATION

The following is a summary of certain Unﬁted States federal income tax considerations for origing)
purchasers of the Notes that use the accrual method of accounting for United States federal'n.mcome tay
purposes and that hold the Notes as capital assets.! This summary does not cﬁiscuss all aspects _of Un_ued Staleg
federal income taxation that might be important 10 particular investors in light of their individual investmeny

circumstances. such as investors subject to special tax rules (¢.g.. financial institutions. iNSUrance companies, :
tax-exempt institutions. non-United States persond engaged in a trade or business within the United Stqtes, or |
persons the functional currency of which is not th¢ United States dollar). In particular. investors not using the
accrual method of accounting for United States federal income tax purposes may be subject to special rules noy
described herein. In addition. this summary does not discuss any non-United States. state. or focal tax
considerations. This summary is based on the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. as amended (the "Code™). angd
administrative and judicial authorities. all as in effect on the date hereof and all of which are subject to change,
possibly on a retroactive basis. Prospective investors should consult their tax advisors regarding the federal,
state. local. and non-United States income and other tax considerations of owning the Notes. No rulings wil}
be sought from the United States Internal Revenue Service (the TRS") with respect to the United States

federal income tax consequences described below:

For purposes of this summary. a "United States holder" means a beneficial owner of a Note who or which
is. for United States federal income tax purposes. {i) a citizen or resident of the United States. (ii) a corporation ‘
or partnership created or organised in or under the laws of the United States or of any political subdivision
thereof. or (iii} an estate or trust described in segtion 7701ta)30) of the Code (taking into account effective
dates. transition rules and elections in connection therewith). A *non-United States holder" means a beneficial
owner of a Note that is not a United States. holder,

Characterisation of the Notes

The lssuer intends to take the position that the Notes are debt for United States federal income tax
purposes. However. the Issuer will not obtain any rulings or opinions of counse} on the characterisation of the
N otes and there can be no assurance that the IRS or the courts will agree with the position of the Issuer. In
particular, because of the subordination and other features of the Class E Notes (and to a lesser extent. a more
senior class of Notes). there is a significant possibility that the IRS could contend that theyv should be treated as
equity. See "Possible Alternative Characterisatidn of the Notes” below. Absent a final determination to the
contrarv. the Issuer and each Noteholder and Owner. by acceptance of a Note or a bencficial interest therein,
agree to treat the Notes as debt for purposes of United States federal. state and loca) income or franchise taxes
and any other United States. federal. state and lodal taxes imposed on or measured by income and to report the
Notes on all applicable tax retums in a manner cdnsistent with such treatment. Unless otherwise indicated. the ‘

¢

discussion in the following paragraphs assumes this characterisation of the Notes ts correct for United States
federal income tax purposes. The following parpgraphs are also based on the assumption that the Issuer will = -
not be engaged in a trade or business within the United States. i

|

Interest Income of United States Holders ,
|

Inn General

Assuming the Notes are not issued with original issue discount ("OID") for United States federal income
tax purposes (as discussed below), interest on surh Notes will be taxable to a United States holder as ordinary
income at the time it is accrued.

A Note will be considered issued with OID/if its “stated redemption price at maturity” exceeds its "issue
price” {i.e.. the price at which a substantial portion of the respective class of Notes is first sold (not including
sales to the Managers)) by an amount equal to br greater than 0.25 percent of such Note's stated redemption
price at maturity multiplied by such Note's weighted average maturity ("WAM?"). In general, a Note's "stated
redemption price at maturity” is the sum of all payments to be made on the Note other than payments of
"qualified stated interest.” The WAM of a Note is computed based on the number of full years each
distribution of principal {or other amount included in the stated redemption price at maturity) is scheduled to
be outstanding. Accordingly, the Class D Notes and the Class E Notes will be considered issued with OID.
Subject 1o the following paragraph, the Class A Notes, Class B Notes and Class C Notes should not be
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considered inured with OID. The schedule of such likely distributions should be determined in accorcllapce
with the assumed rate of prepayment (the "Prepayment Assumption”) used in pricing the Notes. The pricing
of the Notes was calculated on the basis of the scheduled amortisation payments (se¢ "The Loan and Mortgage

Pool") on the assumption that there will be no prepayments.

In seneral. interest on the Notes will constitute "qualified stated interest” only if such intenes_t is
"uncondbitionally payable” at least annually at a single fixed or qualifving variable rate (or permmed
combination of the foregoing) within the meaning of applicable Untted States Treasury Depanment
Reculations. Interest will be considered "unconditionally payabie” for these purposes if legal remedies exist to
c:or;lpel timelyv payment of such interest or if the Notes contain terms and conditions that make the likelihood
of late pavment or non-payment “remote.” Although the Conditions of the Notes provide that a holder ¢annot
compel the timely payment of any interest accrued in respect of the Notes (other than the Class A Notes) and
that interest due on the Class D Notes and Class E Notes is limited to specified amounts. regulations provide
that in determining whether interest is unconditionally payable the possibility of non-payment due to default.
insolvency or similar circumstances is ignored. Accordingly. the Issuer intends to take the position that
interest pavments on the Notes constitute "qualified stated interest.” It is possible that the IRS could -take a

contrary position.

A United States holder of any class of Notes deemed to bear OID generally would be required to accrue
OID on the Note for United States federal income tax purposes for each day on which the United States holder
holds such instrument. Special rules applicable to debt instruments such as the Notes as to which the
repavment of principal may be accelerated as a result of the prepayment of other obligations securing the debt
instruments provide that the periodic inclusion of OID is determined by taking into account the prepayment
assumption used in pricing the debt instrument and actual prepayment experience. Under these rules, the OID
accruing in anv period will likely equal the amount by which (a) the sum of (i} the present value. of all
remaining distributions to be made on the Note as of the end of such period plus (it} the distributions: made
during such period included in the Note's stated redemption price at maturity. exceeds (b) the "adjusted issue
price” of the Note as of the beginning of the period. The present vaiue of the remaining distributions to be
made on a Note is calculated based on (x) the original vield to maturity of such instrument. (y) events
tincluding actual prepavments) that have occurred prior to the end of the period and (z) the Prepayment
Assumption. The "adjusted issue price” of a Note at the beginning of any accrual period generally would be
the sum of its issue price and the amount of OID allocable to all prior accrual periods. less the amount of any
pavments {other than pavments of qualified stated interest) made in all prior accrual periods. The OID
accruing in any period generally will increase if prepayments on the Loans exceeds the Prepayment
Assumption and decrease if prepayments are slower than the Prepavment Assumption. 1f OID computed as
described in this paragraph is negative for any period. the United States holder generally would not be allowed
a current deduction for the negative amount but instead would be entitled to offset such amount only against
future positive OID from such Note.

Senrcing

Interest on a Note will constitute foreign source income for United States federal income tax purposes.
Subject to certain limitations. United Kingdom withholding tax. if any. imposed on payments on the Notes will
generally be treated as foreign tax eligible for credit agamst a United States holder's United States federal
income tax {unless such tax is refundable under the relevant treaty). For foreign tax credit purposes. inierest
will generally be treated as foreign source passive income (or. in the case of certain United States holders,
financial services income).

Foreien Currency Considerations

A United States holder that receives a payment of interest in sterling with respect to the Notes will be
required to include in income the United States dollar value of the amount of interest income that has accrued
and is otherwise required to be taken into account with respect to the Notes during an accrual period. The
United States ‘dollar value of such accrued income will be determined by translating such income at the
average rate of exchange for the accrual period or. with respect to an accrual period that spans two taxable
vears. at the average rate for the partial period within the relevant taxable vear. Such United States holder will
1_'ecognise additional exchange gain or loss. treated as ordinary income or loss, with respect to accrued interest
income on the date such income is actually received or the applicable Note is disposed of. The amount of
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ordinarv income or loss recognised will equal the difference between (i) the United States dollar value of the
sterling' payment received (determined at the spot rate on the date such pavment is received or the applicable
Note is disposed of) in respect of such accrual period and (i) the United States dollar value of interest income
that has accrued during such accrual period (determined at the average rate as described above). A Uniteg
States holder may elect to translate interest income into United States dollars at the spot rate on the last day of
the interest accrual period (or, in the case of a partial accrual period. the spot rate on the last day of the 1axable
year) or, if the last day of the interest accrual period is within five business days of the date of receipt. the spjy
rate on the date of receipt. A United States holder that makes such an election must apply it consistently to a)|
debt instruments from year to year and cannot Qhange the election without the consent of the IRS. :
l ‘
Disposition of Notes by United States Holders

In General

Upon the sale. exchange or retirement of av Note. a United States holder will recognise taxable gain or loss
equal to the difference between the amount realised on the sale, exchange or retirement and the United States
holder's adjusted tax basis in the Note. For these purposes. the amount realised does not include any amount
attributable to accrued qualified stated interest on the Note (which will be treated as interest as described under .
"Interest Income of United States Holders" above). A United States holder's adjusted tax basis in a N i
generally will equal the cost of the Note to the United States holder. decreased by any payments (other th .
pavments of qualified stated interest) received on the Note (and increased in the case of a Note deemed to bear |
OID by an accrued OID. .

in general. except as described below, gaiii or loss realised on the sale. exchange or redemption of a Note
will be capital gain or loss. The distinction betjveen capital gain or loss and ordinary income or loss is relevant
for purposes of. among other things, limitations on the deductibility of capital losses.

Foreign Currency Considerations

A United States holder's tax basis in a Note. and the amount of any subsequent adjustment to such United |
States holder's 1tax basis, will be the United States dollar value of the sterling amount paid for such Note. or of |
the sterling amount of the adjustment. determined at the spot rate on the date of such purchase or adjustment.
A United States holder that purchases a Note with previously owned sterling will recognise ordinary income or
loss in an amount equal to the difference. if any. between such United States holder's tax basis in the sterling
and the United States dollar value of the sterling on the date of purchase.

|

t

Gain or loss realised upon the receipt of 3 principal payment on. or the sale. exchange or retirement of, a
Note that is atributable to fluctuations in curfency exchange rates will be treated as ordinary income or logils '
which will not be treated as interest income or expense. Gain or loss artributable to fluctuations in exchan i
rates will equal the difference between (i) the United States dollar value of the applicable sterling principal 3
amount of such Note. and any payment with tespect to accrued interest. translated at the spot rate on the date l
such payment is received or such Note is disposed of. and (1) the United States dollar value of the applicable
sterling principal amount of such Note. on the date such holder acquired such Note. and the United States l
dollar amounts previously included in income in respect of the accrued interest received. Such foreign
currency gain or loss will be recognised only o the extent of the total gain or loss realised by a United States !
holder on the sale. exchange or retirement of the Note. The source of such sterling gain or loss will be |
determined by reference to the residence of the United States holder or the qualified business unit of the United i
States holder on whose books the Note is properly reflected.

A United States holder will have a tax basis in any sterling received on the receipt of principal on, or the
sale. exchange or retirement of, a Note equal to the United States doliar value of such sterling, determined at
the time of such receipt, sale, exchange or retirement. Any gain or loss realised by a United States hoider on a

subsequent sale or other disposition of sterling (including its exchange for United States dollars) will generally
be ordinary income or loss. ;

|
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Realised Losses

It is likely that the Notes will be treated as a "security” as defined in section 165(g)2) of the Code.
Accordingly. ény loss with respect to the Notes becoming wholly or partially worthless as a .resull of one or
more realised losses on the Loans will be weated as a loss from the sale or exchange of a capital asset at that
time. In addition. no loss will be permitted to be recognised until the Notes are wholly worthless.

Each United States holder will be required to acerue interest and anv OID with respect to a Note has;d on
the assumption that no defaults or delinquencies will occur with respect to _the Loans. Accor_dmgly.
particularly with respect to the more subordinated Notes. the amount of taxable income reported during Fhe
earlv vears of the term of the Notes may exceed the economic income actually realised by the holder during
that p-eriod. Although the United States holder of a Note would eventually recognise a loss or reduction In
income attributable to the previously accrued income that is ultimately not received as a result of such defauhs.
the law is unclear with respect to the timing and character of such loss or reduction in income. Moreover. n
these circumstances. the present value of the tax detriment associated with the inciusion of such income early
in the term of the Notes would generally exceed the present value of the subsequent tax benefit associated with
such eventual loss or reduction in income. assuming no changes in prevailing tax rates.

Possible Alternative Characterisation of the Notes

In General

Although. as described above. the Issuer intends to take the position that the Notes will be treated as debt
for United States federal income tax purposes. such position is not binding on the IRS or the courts and thus no

* assurance can be given that such characterisation will prevail. In particular. because of the subordination and

other features of the Class E Notes (and to a lesser extent. a more senior class of Notes). there is a significant
possibility that the IRS could contend that they should be treated as an equity interest the Issuver. The
following discussion sets forth the United States federal income tax treatment of the Notes if they were treated

as an equity intergst in the lssuer.

If the IRS successfully asserted that all or a portion of the Notes should be treated as equity interests in the
Jssuer {any such Note. a "Recharacterised Note"). a United States holder of a Recharacterised Note would be
required to inciude in income (with no dividends received deduction available to corporate United States
holders) payments of “interest” as dividends to the extent of current or accumulated earnings and profits of the
Issuer. as determined for United States federal income tax purposes. “Interest” payments on the
Recharacterised Nate. to the extent they exceeded current or accumulated eamings and profits of the Issuer,
generallv would reduce the United States hoider's tax basis in the Note and. to the extent they exceeded the
United States holder's basis. would generate capital gain. "Interest” income derived by a United States holder
with respect to a Recharacterised Note generally would constitute foreign source income that would be treated
as passive income for foreign tax credit purposes. Each United States holder should consult its own tax
advisors as to how it would be required 1o treat this income for purposes of its particular United States foreign
tax credit ¢alculation.

Gain or loss recognised on any Recharacterised Notes generally would be capital gain or loss. Some or all
of any gain recognised by a United States holder owning at least 10% of such Notes, either directly or
indirectly under certain constructive ownership rules. might be treated as ordinary income. '

Classification of Issuer as Passive Foreign fnvestment Compuny

The Issuer will likely be treated as a passive foreign investment company ("PFIC") for United States
federal income tax purposes. As a result. a United States holder of any Recharacterised Notes might be subject
to potentially adverse United States federal income tax consequences as the holder of an equity interest in a
PFIC. A United States holder of an equity interest in a PFIC that receives an "excess distribution” must
allocate the excess distribution rateably to each day in the holder's holding period for the stock and must pay a
"deferred tax amount” with respect to each prior year in the holding period. The total excess distribution for
any taxable vear is the excess of (a) the total distributions for the vear over (b) 125 per cent. of the average
amount received in respect of such equity interest by the United States holder during the three preceding years.
In addition. any gain recognised on the sale. retirement or other taxable disposition of such Notes would be
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recharacterised as ordinary income and would further be treated as having been recognised pro raiu OVeT such
United States holder's entire holding period. The amount of gain treated as having been recognised in prigp
taxable vears would be subject to tax at the highest tax rate in effect for such vears. with interest thereon
calculated by reference to the interest rate geneially applicable to underpayments with respect to tax habilities
from such prior taxable vears. Moreover. a transfer by gift or a pledge of the Notes could cause a Uniteg
States holder to recognise taxable income. Algo. if any class of Notes were treated (in whole or in part) a;

equity interests in a PFIC. an individual United IEtates holder of such class would not get a step-up in tax basis
to the fair market vatue of such Note upon the holder's death.

In general. United States shareholders of a!PFIC can mitigate any adverse tax consequences of the PFIC
rules by filing an election to treat the PFIC as|a qualified electing fund ("QEF™) if the PFIC complies with
certain reporting requirements. However, the issuer does not intend to comply with such reporting
requirements necessary to permit United States holders to elect to treat the Issuer as a QEF.

A United States holder that holds "marketable stock” in a PFIC might. in lieu of making a QEF election,
also avoid certain unfavourable consequences of the PFIC rules by electing to mark the Recharacterised Notes
1o market as of the close of each taxable year. ' A United States holder that made the mark-to-market election !
would be required to include in income each yelr as ordinary income an amount equal to the excess, if any, of |
the fair market vaiue of the Recharacterised Notes at the close of the year over the United States holders gy
adjusted tax basis in the Recharacterised Notes. For this purpose. a United States holder's adjusted basib'
generally would be the United States holder's: cost for the Recharacterised Notes, increased by the amoumt ~
previously included in the United States holder's income pursuant to this mark-to-market election and
decreased by any amount previously allowed ‘to the United States holder as a deduction pursuant to such
election (as described below). If. at the close of the year, the United States holder's adjusted tax basis
exceeded the fair market value of the Recharacterised Note. then the United States holder could deduct any
such excess from ordinary income. but only to the extent of net mark-to market gains on such Recharacterised
Notes previously included in income. Any gain from the actual sale of the Recharacterised Notes would be
treated as ordinary income. and to the extent af net mark-to-market gains previously included in income any
loss would be treated as ordinary loss. Recharacterised Notes would be considered "marketable stock” in a
PFIC for these purposes only if they were regularly traded on an exchange which the IRS determines has rules
adequate for these purposes. Application has been made to the Official List of the UK Listing Authority for
listing of the Notes. However, there can be no assurance that the Notes will be listed on the Official List of the

UK Listing Authority. that they will be "regularly traded” or that such exchange would be considered a
qualified exchange for these purposes. ;

s e o p— et

Depending on the percentage of deemed ei‘.luity interests of the Issuer held by United States holders. it is
possible that the Issuer might be treated as a “controlled foreign corporation” or “"foreign personal holding
company” for United States federal incom¢ tax purposes. In such event. United States holders r. !
Recharacterised Notes might be required to include in income their pro rata shares of the earnings and pro
of the Issuer. and generally would not be subject to the rules described above relating to PFICs. Prospective

investors should consult with their tax advisors conceming the potential effect of the controlled foreign
corporation and foreign personal holding company provisions.

tnformation Reporting Requirements

On 5th February 1999, the Treasury Department released final regulations with regard to reporting
requirements relating to the transfer of property (including certain transfers of cash) to a foreign corporation by
United States persons or entities. In general. these rules may require United States holders who acquire Notes
that are characterised (in whole or in part} as equity of the Issuer 1o file a Form 926 with the IRS and to supply
certain additional information to the IRS. Thi regulations are effective for payments made in taxable years
beginning after 5th February 1999. In the event a United States holder fails to file any such required form, the
United States holder could be subject to a penalty equal 1o 10% of the gross amount paid for the Notes.

Non-United States Helders

Interest paid {or accrued) to a non-United States holder will not be subject to withholding of United States
federal income tax.
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If the interest. gain or income on a Note held by a Non-United States holder is effectively connected with
the conduct of a trade or business in the United States. the holder may be subject to United Suates federal
income tax on the interest. gain or income at regular income fax rates.

Any capital gain realised on the sale. exchange or retirement of a Note by a non-United States holder will
be exempt from United States federal income and withholding tax provided that (i) such gain is not attributable
10 an office or other fixed place of business the non-United States holder maintains in the United States and (ii)
in the case of a non-United States holder who is a natural person. the non-United States holder is not present in
the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable vear and certain other conditions are met.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting

Information reporting to the IRS generally will be required with respect to pavments of principal or
interest (including any OID) or to distributions on the Notes and to proceeds of the sale of the Notes that, in
each case. are paid by a United States payor or intermediary to United States holders other than corporations
and other exempt recipients. A 31 percent "backup” withholding tax will apply to those payments if such
United States holder fails to provide certain identifying information (such as such holder's taxpayer
identification number) to such payor or intermediary or such holder is notified by the IRS it has failed to report
all interest and dividends required to be shown on its United States federal income tax returns. Non-United
States holders mav be required 10 comply with applicable certification procedures to establish that they are not
United States holders in order to avoid the application of such information reporting requirements and backup
withholding. Backup withholding tax is not an additional tax and generally may be credited against a holder's
United States federal income tax liability provided that such holder provides the necessary information to the
IRS. .
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US. ERISA CONSIDERATIONS

The United States Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amende_d ("ERISA™. mposg
requirements on employee benefit plans (as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA) subject t0 ERISA and o,
entities. such as collective investment funds and separate accounts whose underlving assets include the assers
of such plans (all of which are hereinafter referred to as "ERISA Plans®). and on persons whq are fiduciarieg
(as defined in Section 3(21) of ERISA) with respect to such ERISA Plans. The C o_de glsq imposes cettain
requirements on ERISA Plans and on other retitement plans and arrangements. including !ndl‘\‘ldual retiremen
accounts and Keogh plans (such ERISA Plans and other plans and arrangements are hercinafter referred to a5
"Plans"). Certain emplovee benefit plans. inkluding governmental plans (as defined in Section' M3 of
ERISA) and certain church plans (as defined in Section 3(33) of ERISA). generally are not subject 10 the
requirements of ERISA. Accordingly. assets of such plans may be invested in the Notes without regard 1o the
ERISA prohibited transaction considerations described below. subject 1o the provisions of other applicable
federal and state law.

Investments by ERISA Plans are subject to ERISA's general fiduciary requirements. including the
requirement of investment prudence and diversification. requirements respecting delegation of investment
authority and the requirement that an ERISA Plan's investments be made in accordance with the documents
governing the ERISA Plan. Each ERISA Plan fiduciary. before deciding to invest in the Notes, must
satisfied that investment in the Notes is a prudent investment for the ERISA Plan. that the investments of th
ERISA Plan. including the investment in the Notes. are diversified so as to minimize the risk of large losses
and that an investment in the Notes complies with the ERISA Plan and related trust documents.

Section 406 of ERISA and/or Section 4975 of the Code prohibits Plans from engaging in cerain
transactions with persons that are "parties in interest” under ERISA or "disqualified persons" under the Code
with respect to such Plans (collectively. "Partjes in Interest"). The types of transactions between Plans and
Parties in Interest that are prohibited include:’ (a) sales. exchanges or leases of property. (b} loans or other
extensions of credit and (c) the furnishing of goods and services. Certain Parties in Interest that participate ina
non-exempt prohibited transaction may be subject to an excise tax under ERISA or the Code. In addition. the
persons involved in the prohibited transaction’may have to rescind the transaction and pay an amount to the
Plan for anv losses realized by the Plan or profits realized by such persons and certain other liabilities could
result that have a significant adverse effect on such persons.

Certain transactions involving the purchas(i:. holding or transfer of the Notes might be deemed to constitute
prohibited transactions under ERISA and Section 4973 of the Code if assets of the lssuer were deemed to be
assets of a Plan. Under regulations issued by {the United States Department of Labor. set forth in 29 C.F.R. §
2510.3-101 (the "Plan Asset Regulations™). thg assets of the Issuer would be treated as plan assets of a Plan for

the purposes of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code only if the Plan acquires an equity interest in the lss’ -

and none of the exceptions contained in the Plan Asset Regulations is applicable. An equity interest is defin
under the Plan Asset Regulations as an intetest in an entity other than an instrument which is treated as
indebtedness under applicable local law and which has no substantial equity features. Although there is no
authority directly on point. it is anticipated that the Class A Notes. Class B Notes. Class C Notes and Class D
Notes should be treated as indebtedness under;local law without any substantial equity features for purposes of
the Plan Asset Regulations. By contrast, the Glass E Notes may be treated as "equity interests” for purposes of
the Plan Asset Regulations. Accordingly. theiClass E Notes may not be purchased by or transferred to a Plan
that is subject to the provisions of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code.

However, without regard to whether the Class A Notes. Class B Notes, Class C Notes and Class D Notes
are treated as an equity interest for such purposes, the acquisition or holding of the Class A Notes, Class B
Notes. Class C Notes or Class D Notes by or on behalf of a Plan could be considered to give rise 1o a
prohibited transaction under ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code if the Issuer. MSDW Bank, the Managers, the
Trustee or any of their respective affiliates' is or becomes a Party in Interest with respect to such Plan.
However. certain exemptions from the prohibited transaction rules could be applicable depending on the type
and circumstances of the fiduciary making the decision to acquire the Class A Notes. Class B Notes, Class C
Notes or Class D Notes. Included among these exemptions are Prohibited Transaction Class Exemption
("PTCE") 84-14, which exempts certain transactions effected on behalf of a Plan by a "qualified professional
asset manager”, PTCE 96-23, which exempts certain transactions effected on behalf of a Plan by an "in-house
asset manager”, PTCE 90-1, which exempts certain transactions between insurance company separate accounts
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and Parties in Interest. PTCE 91-38. which exempts cerain transactions between bank collective investment
funds and Parties in Interest and PTCE 95-60. which exempts certain transactions between insurance company
general accounts and Parties in Interest (collectively. the "Exemptions”). Even 1f the conditions specjﬁed in
one or more of the Exemptions are met. the scope of the relief provided by the Exemptions might or might not
cover all acts which might be construed as prohibited transactions.

Nevertheless. even if an Exemption applies. a Plan generaily should not purchase the Class A Notes. Class
B Notes. Class C Notes or Class D Notes if the 1ssuer. MSDW Bank. MSDWMCL. the Managers. the Trustee.
the Servicer. the Principal Paving Agent. the Cash Manager. the Operating Bank. the Agent Bank. the
Exchange Agent. the Depository. the Swap Provider. the Swap Guarantor. the Liquidity Facility Provider or
any of their respective affiliates either (a) has investment discretion with respect to the investment of assets of
such Plan: (b) has authority or responsibility to give or regularly gives investment advice with respect to assets
of such Plan. for a fee. and pursuant to an agreement or understanding that such advice will serve as a primary
basis for investment decisions with respect to such assets and that such advice will be based on the particular
investment needs of such Plan: or (c) is an employer maintaining or contributing to such Plan. A party that is
described in clause (a) or (b) of the preceding sentence is a fiduciary under ERISA with respect to the Plan and
any such purchase might result in a "prohibited transaction” under ERISA or the Code.

An insurance company proposing to invest assets of its general account in the Notes should consider the
extent to which such investment would be subject to ERISA and Section 4973 of the Code. On January 5.
2000. the DOL issued a final regulation which provides guidance for determining. in cases where insurance
policies supported by an insurer's general account are issued to or for the benefit of a Plan on or before
December 31. 1998, which general account assets are plan assets. That regulation generally provides that. if
certain specified requirements are satisfied with respect to insurance policies issued on or before December 31.
1998. the assets of an insurance company general account will not be plan assets. Nevertheless, certain assets
of an insurance company general account may be considered to be plan assets. Therefore. if an insarance
company acquires Notes using assets of its general account. certamn of the insurance company's assets may be
plan assets and the provisions of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code could apply to such acquisition and the
subsequent holding of the Notes. An insurance company using assets of its general account may not acquire
Class E Notes if anv of such general account assets are considered to be plan assets.

The sale of anyv Class A Notes. Class B Notes. Class C Notes or Class D Notes to a Plan is in no respect a
representation by the Issuer, MSDW Bank. the Manager or the Trustee that such an investment meets all
relevant legal requirements with respect to investments by Plans generally or any particular Plan, or that such
an investment is appropriate for Plans generally or any particular Plan.

Each purchaser of the Class A Notes. Class B Notes, Class C Notes and the Class D Notes will be deemed
to have represented and agreed that (i) either it is not purchasing such Notes with the assets of any Plan or that
one of more exemptions applies such that the use of such assets will not constitute a prohibited transaction
under ERISA or the Code. and (i1) with respect to transfers. it will either not transfer such Notes to a transferee
purchasing such Notes with the assets of any Plan. or one or more exemptions applies such that the use of such
assets will not constitute a prohibited transaction. The Class E Notes may not be purchased by or transferred
to a Plan that is subject to the provisions of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code. Any Plan fiduciary that
proposes to cause a Plan to purchase such instruments shoutd consult with its counsel with respect to the
potential apphcability of ERISA and the Code to such investment and whether any exemption or exemptions
have been satisfied.
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SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE
l
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited. Roval Bank of Canada Europe Limited and Aresia Bank;y,

Corporation NV/SA (together. the "Managers"). pursuant 10 a subscription agreement dated 11th July. 20g;
(the "Subscription Agreement"), between the Managers. the Issuer. MSMS and MSDW' Bank agreed. joinily
and severally. subject to certain conditions. 10 subscribe and pav for the Class A Notes at 100 per cent. of the
principal amount of such Notes. Morgan Stanlgy & Co. [nternational Limited has further agreed. pursuant i
the Subscription Agreement. to subscribe and pay for the Class B Notes at 100 per cent. of their principy
amount. the Class C Notes at 100 per cent. of their principal amount. the Class D Notes at 9553235 per cent of
their principal amount and the Class E Notes at 81.6242 per cent of their principal amount.

The Issuer has agreed to reimburse the Manggers for certain of their expenses in connection with the issue
of the Notes. The Subscription Agreement is subject to 2 number of conditions and may be terminated by the
Managers in certain circumstances prior 1o payment 1o the Issuer. The Issuer has agreed to indemnify the
Managers against certain liabilities in connection with the offer and sale of the Notes.

United States of America

Each of the Managers has represented and agreed with the Issuer that the Notes have not been and will not ge
be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933. as amended (the "Securities Act"). and may no.
be offered or sold within the United States or to; or for the account or benefit of. U.S. Persons except in certain
transactions exempt from the registration requir¢ments of the Securities Act. Each of the Managers has agreed
that. except as permitted by the Subscription Agreement. it will not offer. sell or deliver the Notes (i) as part of
their distribution at any time or (ii) otherwise until 41 days after the later of the commencement of the offering
of the Notes and the Closing Date (for the |purposes only of this section "Subscription and Sale”, the
"Distribution Compliance Period”) within the United States or to. or for the account or benefit of, US,
Persons and that it will have sent to each distributor, dealer or other person to which it sells Notes during the
Distribution Compliance Period a confirmation or other notice setting forth the restrictions on offers and sales
of the Notes within the United States or to. or for the account or benefit of U.S. Persons. Terms used in this
paragraph have the meanings given to them by Regulation S of the Securities Act.

In addition. 40 days after the commencement of the offering of the Notes. an offer or sale of the Notes
within the United States by a dealer, whether dr not participating in the offering. may violate the registration
requirements of the Securities Act. :

The Notes are in bearer form and are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered. sold or
delivered within the United States or its possesgions or to a United States person. except in certain transactions
permitted by U.S. tax regulations. Terms used|in the preceding sentence have the meanings given to them l.
the U.S. Intemal Revenue Code of 1986 and regulations thereunder.

United Kingdom
Each of the Managers has further represented and agreed that:

(a) it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any Notes to persons in the United Kingdom
prior to admission of the Notes to llisting in accordance with Part 1V of the Financial Services Act
1986 (the "Act") except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding,
managing or disposing of investmgnts (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their business or
otherwise in circumstances which have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the public in
the United Kingdom within the njeaning of the Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995 (as
amended) or the Act;

{b it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the Act with respect to anything
done by it in relation to the Notes in. from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom: and

ic) it has only issued or passed onéand will only issue or pass on in the United Kingdom any
document received by it in connection with the issue of the Notes, other than any document which
consists of or any part of listing particulars, supplementary listing particulars or any other
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ublished by listing rules under Part IV of the Act. 10 2
Je 11(3) of the Financial Services Act 1986 (lnvestment

Advertisements) (Exemptions) Order 1996 (as amended) ot is a person to whom such document
may otherwise lawfully be issued or passed on.

document required or perminéd to be p
person who is of a kind described in Artic

General

Except for listing the Notes on the Official List of the UK Listing Authority and dehivery of this document
to the Registrar of Companies in Engiand and Wales. no action is being taken in any jurisdiction that would or
is intended to permit a public offering of the Notes. or the possession. circulation or distribution of this
Offering Circular or any other material relating to the Issuer or the Notes in any jurisdiction where action for
that purpose is required. This Offering Circular does not constitute. and may not be used for the purpose of. an
offer or solicitation in or from any jurisdiction where such an offer or solicitation is not authorised.
Accordingly, the Notes may not be offered or sold. directly or indirectly. and neither this Offering Circular nor
any other offering material or advertisement in connection with the Notes may be distributed or published in or
from any country or jurisdiction. except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable

rules and regulations of any such country or junisdiction.

Each of the Managers has undertaken not to offer or sell any of the Notes. or to distribute this document or
any other material relating to the Notes. in or from any jurisdiction except under circumstances that will result
in compliance with applicable law and regulations.

Attention is drawn to the information set out under "Important Notice".
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mesrjm RESTRICTIONS

Because of the following restrictions. purchasers are advised 1o consult legal counsel prior to making any
offer. resale, pledge or transfer of the Notes.

Each purchaser of an interest in the Notes will be deemed to have acknowledged. represented anc_j agreeq
as follows (terms used in this section that are défined in Rule 144A or Regulation S under the Secunties Ag
are used herein as defined therein). :

(1) The purchaser either (A)i) is a qual-‘iﬁed institutional buyer. (ii) is aware that the sale of interests
in the Notes to it is being made in reliance on Rule 144A and (iii) is acquiring such interest in the Notes for its
own account or for the account of a qualified insiimtional buver, as the case may be. or (B) is not a U.S. person
and is acquiring the Notes outside the United States.

{2) Each purchaser described in subclauke {A) of paragraph (1) above understands that the Notes have
not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and that interests therein may be reoffered. resold,
pledged or otherwise transferred only (AXi) to the Tssuer. {ii} a person whom the purchaser reasonably believes
is a qualified institutional buyer purchasing for its own account or the account of a qualified institutional buyer
in a transaction meeting the requirements of Rule 144A, (iii) in an offshore transaction in accordance with
Rule 903 or Rule 904 of Regulation S or (iv) pursuant to an exemption from registration under the Securities. 1
Act provided by Rule 144 thereunder (if available) and (B) in accordance with all applicable securities laws of
the States of the United States.

(3) The Notes that represent interests sbld to purchasers described in subclause (A) of paragraph (1)
above will bear a legend to the following effect::

THIS NOTE HAS NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT
OF 1933. AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"). OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF
THE UNITED STATES. AND MAY BE OFFERED. SOLD. PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED
ONLY {IXA) TO THE ISSUER. OR (B) TO A PERSON WHOM THE SELLER REASONABLY
BELIEVES IS A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER WITHIN THE MEANING OF RULE 1444
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT PURCHASING FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT OR THE ACCOUNT OF A
QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER IN A TRANSACTION MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF
RULE 144A. OR (C) IN AN OFFSHORE TRANSACTION COMPLYING WITH RULE 903 OR RULE 904
OF REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR (D) PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION PROVIDED BY RULE 144 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT (IF AVAILABLE) AND (2)
IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAWS OF THE STATES OF THE UNITED

STATES. , .

(4) Each purchaser described in subclause (B) of paragraph () above understands that the Notes have
not been and will not be registered under the |Securities Act and that anyv offers. sales or deliveries in the
United States or to U.S. persons of its interest ir} the Notes prior to the date that is 40 days after the later of the
commencement of the offering of the Notes and the original issue date of the Notes may constitute a violation
of United States law.

(5) The Notes that represent interests sold to purchasers described in subclause (B) of paragraph (1)
above will bear a legend to the following effect

THIS NOTE HAS NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT") OR THE SECURITIES LAWS
OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES AND PRIOR TO THE DATE THAT IS 40 DAYS AFTER
THE LATER OF THE COMMENCEMENT (;?F THE OFFERING OF THE NOTES AND THE DATE OF
ORIGINAL 1SSUANCE OF THE NOTES MAY NOT BE OFFERED. SOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED IN THE UNITED STATES OR TO A US. PERSON EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN
EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN

ACCORDANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE® SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED
STATES.
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(6) The purchaser is duly authorised to purchase its interest in the Notes and fts purchase of
investments having the characteristics of the Notes is authorised under. and not directly or indirectly in
contravention of. any law, charter. trust investment or other operative document. investment guidelings or list

of permissible or impermissible investments which is applicable to the purchaser.

(7) (a) Either (i) the purchaser is not an employee benefit plan subject to Titie of the Emplovee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"). or Section 4975 of the Unmited States
Internal Revenue Code of 1986. as amended (the "Code "). or an entity whose underlying assets are considered.
for any purpose of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code. to be assets of any Plan by reason of any Plan's
investment in the entitv (a "Plan Asset Entity”) or (i) the purchaser is acquiring its interest in the Class A
Notes. Class B Notes. Class C Notes or Class D Notes and the acquisition and holding of such interest by the
purchaser is not prohibited by either Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code. by reason of the
application of PTCE 96-23. 95-60. 91-38. 90-1 or 84-14 to such acquisition and holding and (b) it will not
transfer any Notes or interest therein to a Plan or a Plan Asset Entity unless the Notes that are the subject of the
transfer are not Class E Notes and the acquisition and holding of an interest in such Notes by the transferee is
not prohibited by either Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code. by reason of the application of
PTCE 96-23. 95-60. 31-38. 90-1 or 84-14 10 such acquisition and holding.

{(8) The purchaser will furnish the Issuer such information regarding payment and notification
instructions and such tax forms (including. to the extent appropriate. Internal Revenue Service Form W-8. W-9
or 4224) as the Issuer may require.

(9) The purchaser acknowledges that the Issuer. the Arranger. the Co-Armranger and others will rely
upon the truth and accuracy of the foregoing acknowledgements. representations. warranties and agreements.
and agrees that if any of the acknowledgements, representations. warranties or agreements deemed to have
been made by it by its purchase of an interest in the Notes are no longer accurate. it shall promptly notify the
Issuer and the Arranger. If it is acquiring an interest in any Note as fiduciary or agent for one or more investor
accounts. it represents that it has sole investment discretion with respect to each such account and it has full
power to make the foregoing acknowledgements. representations. warranties and agreements on behalf of each
such account.

(10} Each purchaser described in subclause (A} of paragraph 1 above acknowledges that the
Depository will not be required to transfer any interests in Rule 144A Global Notes for interests in Reg S
Global Notes. except upon written certification to the Depository that the restrictions set forth in clause (c) of
the legend contained in paragraph 3 above have been complied with. :
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GENERAL INFORMATION

{. The issue of the Notes was authorised by resolution of the toard of directors of the Issuer passed 11t
July. 2000. :

2. It is expected that listing of the Notes on tlf:e Official List of the UK ITis_!ing Author_it_\' will_ be granted op
or about 12 July. 2000, subject only to the issue| of the Global Notes. The listing of the Notes will be cancelled
if the Global Notes are not issued. Transactions will normally be effected for settlement in sterling and for
delivery on the third working day after the day of the transaction. Prior to official listing. however. dealings in

the Notes will be permitted by the London Stock Exchange in accordance with its rules.

3. The Notes have been accepted for cleara:ice through Euroclear. Clearstream. Luxembourg and DTC as

follows:
Commeon Code ISIN CUSIP Common Code ISIN
(for Reg S Notes) | (for Reg S Notes) | (for Rule 144A | (for Rule 144A | (for Rule 144A
; Notes) Notes) Notes)
Class A | 011330517 X501 l330517(} 29878XAA3 011330681 XS0113306814
Class B | 011330690 XS0113306905 29878XABI 011330703 XS0113307036 '
Class C | 011330754 XS0113307549 29878XACY 011330762 XS0113307622 .
Class D | 011330789 XS011330789% 20878XAD7 011330819 XS0113308190
Class E | 011330835 XS0113308356 20878XAES 011330860 XS0113308604

4. No statutory or non-statutory accounts within the meaning of Section 240(5) of the Companies Act 1985
in respect of any financial year of the Issuer haie been prepared. So long as the Notes are listed on the Official
List of the UK Listing Authority, the most recently published audited annual accounts of the Issuer from time
to time will be available at the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent. The Issuer does not publish
interim accounts.

5 The Issuer is not. and has not been. involved in any legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such
proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the Issuer is aware) which may have. or have had in the
recent past (since the date of its incorporation). a significant effect on the Issuer's financial position.

6. Since the date of its incorporation. the Issuer has entered into a Subscription Agreement and an Agency
Agreement being contracts entered into other than in its ordinary course of business.

7. KPMG Audit plc. auditors of the Issuer. has given and not withdrawn its written consent to the issue of
this Offering Circular with the inclusion of ifs report and references to its name in the form and context
which thev are included and has authorised thg contents of that part of the listing particulars for the purposes 6T

Section 152¢1)(e) of the Financial Services Adt 1986.

8. Emst & Young. auditors of the First Pringipal Borrowers. has given and not withdrawn its written consent
to the inclusion of its reports and references td its name in the form and context in which they are included and
has authorised the contents of that pan of th+ listing particulars for the purposes of Section 152(1)(e) of the
Financial Services Act 1986.

9. Deloitte & Touche. auditors of the Secopd Principal Borrower. has given and not withdrawn its written
consent to the inclusion of its report and references to its name in the form and context in which they are
included and has authorised the contents of|that part of the listing particulars for the purposes of Section
152(1)e) of the Financial Services Act 1986.

10. Save as disclosed herein. since 21st Juné:. 2000 (being the date of incorporation of the lssuer), there has
been (i) no material adverse change in the fihancial position or prospects of the Issuer and (ii) no significant
change in the trading or financial position of the Issuer.

1. Copies of the following documents may be inspected during usual business hours on any week day
(excluding Saturdays. Sundays, and public holidays) at the offices of Denton Wilde Sapte at 1 Fleet Place,
London EC4M 7WS during the period of 14 days from the date of this document:
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() the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer:

(i) the balance sheet of the Issuer as at 11th July, 2000 and the auditors report thereon.

{1ii}) the Subscription Agreement and the Agency Agreement referred to in paragraph 6 above:

{iv) drafts (subject to modification) of the following documents:

(a) the Trust Deed:
(b) the Mortgage Sale Agreement.
tc) the Deed of Charge and Assignment:
{d) the Share Declaration of Trust:
{e) the Servicing Agreement;
{f) the Cash Management Agreement.
{g) the Swap Agreement and the Swap Guarantee:
th) the Issuer Corporate Services Agreement;
(i) the Parent Company C-ofporate Services Agreement;
() the Liquidity Facility Agreement:
k) the Depository Agreement:
(N the Exchange Rate Agency Agreement: and
{m} the Master Definitions Agreement: and
(v) a copy of the 1995 1SDA Credit Support Annex {Bilateral Form —Transfer).

12. Copies of the following documents may be inspected during usual business hours on any week day
{excluding Saturdays. Sundays and public holidays) at the offices of Denton Wilde Sapte at 1 Fleet Place,
London EC4M 7TWS during the period of fourteen days from the date of this document:

(a)

(b)

(<)

the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the First Principal Borrowers and the
Second Principal Borrower:,

copies of the documents referred to as the Four Seasons Documents and the Orb
Documents are set out in Appendix 1: and

copies of the auditors’ reports for the First Principal Borrowers and the Second Principal
Borrowers.
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.JPPENDL\' 1

THE PRINCIPAL BORROWERS

THE FIRST PRINCIPAL BORROWERS

The aggregate amount of the two Loans to the First Principal Borrowers constitutes approximately 33 per
cent. of the Loan and Mortgage Pool. (calculated by reference to the principal balance of the Loan and
Mortgage Pool as of the Cut-Off Date).

1. Constitution and Registered Office

The Loans comprise two separate loans madle to two borrowers. namely a loan of £65.600.000 to Four
Seasons Health Care Properties (Care Homes) Limited ("Care Homes") and a loan of £18.400,000 to Four
Seasons Health Care Properties (Specialisti Lirpited ("Specialist”). Care Homes and Specialist are both
private limited companies registered in England and Wales under the Companies Act 1985 under numbers
3934732 and 3936017 respectively. Both Care Homes and Specialist are ultimate subsidiaries of Four Seasons
Health Care Holdings Ple. -

The obligations of Care Homes and Specialis;t under each of the Loans are fullv cross collateralised in all ’
material respects. Each of Care Homes and Specialist has guaranteed the liabilities of the other to MSDW
Bank (previously MSDWMCI prior to the novation of the Four Seasons Loan to MSDW Bank) and charged all
their respective assets as security for such liabilities in favour of MSMS (in its capacity as Security Trustee).
The mvo Loans are therefore treated as one Loan for the purpose of this Offering Circular and are together
referred to as the "Four Seasons Loan".

Care Homes was incorporated on 28th Febrﬁzaw 2000 and Specialist was incorporated on 29th February
2000. The registered office of both Care Homes 1and Specialist is Emerson Court. Alderley Road. Wilmslow,
Cheshire SK9 INX.

2. Directors

The Directors of both Care Homes and Specialist are Graeme Willis. Hamilton Douglas Anstead and
Geoffrev Michael Crowe. Magdy Ishak is a dnrector of Specialist only. The home address and business
occupation of the directors are:

Name Ag](_l- ress

Principal Activities

Graeme Willis 13 Rockmount Close No significant activities .
Saintfield outside the group of
Belfast which the Borrower is
Nofthern Ireland part

Hamilton Douglas Anstead Begch Acre No significant activities
Nurton Hill Road outside the group of
Pagtingham which the Borrower is
Walverhampton part

Geoffrey Michael Crowe 51 Oakwood Lane No significant activities
Bowden outside the group of
Altringham which the Borrower is
Chgshire part

Magdy ishak-Hanna

Shé)ubra
8a Camstradon Drive
Giasgow
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3. Group Structure

Both Care Homes and Specialist are ultimate subsidiaries of Four Seasons Health Care Holdings Ple
(formerly Carat Secre plc} ("Four Seasons Parent”). Four Seasons Parent is a public hmited company
incorporated in England and Wales under registered number 3806216. Four Seasons Parent and all its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to in this Offering Circular as the "Four Seasons Group".

The Four Seasons Loan was applied towards the purchase (from other compaties within the Four Seasons
Group) of various properties sttuated in England. Scotland. Northern lreland and the Isle of Man (the 'Four
Seasons Properties"). Immediately following acquisition of the Four Seasons Properties. 25 vear leases on
full repairing and insuring bases (the 'Operating Leases") were granted to one of the following operating
companies (together the "Operating Companies") namely Four Seasons Health Care {England) Limited
("FSHC England"). Four Seasons Health Care ( Scotland) Limited {"FSHC Scotland”). Four Seasons Health
Care (Northern Ireland) Limited ("FSHC NI"). Four Seasons Health Care (Isle of Man} Limited
("FSHCIOM") and Huntercombe Manor Limited ("Huntercombe ). The identity of the relevant QOperating
Company was determined by reference to the location of the Four Seasons Properties. The rents payable by the
Operating Companies under the terms of the Operating Leases were agreed berween the First Principal
Borrowers and MSDWMCT and are reviewable at 5 yearly intervals on an upwards only basis.

All the Operating Companies are limited liability companies and are ultimate subsidiaries of the Four
Seasons Parent. Except for Huntercombe. which is incorporated in England and Wales and FSHC Scotland
which js incorporated in Scotland the Operating Companies are all incorporated in the Isle of Man. The
Operating Companies carry out the business of operating nursing. residential and specialist care home facilities
at the Four Seasons Properties. '

The consideration for the purchase of the Four Seasons Properties was provided by the Four Seasons Loan
and from other Four Seasons Group companies (see below "Loan Capital”).

General Information

Financial Statements

Since the date of incorporation. no accounts have been filed or are publicly available in respect of the First
Principal Borrowers. The First Principal Borrowers are required to prepare annually full statutory audited
aceounts.

Since 28 February 2000 and 29 February 2000, being the respective dates of incorporation of Care Homes
and Specialist. there has been no adverse change in the financial position or prospects of the First Principal
Borrowers and there has been no change in their trading or financial position.

Principal Activities

The sole activities of the First Principal Borrowers are those of an investment company and consist of
borrowing money under the Four Seasons Loan and from other Four Seasons Group companies (see below
"Loan Capital") for the purpose for acquiring the Four Seasons Properties. Neither of the First Principal
Borrowers has engaged. since their mcorporation, in any activities other than those incidental to their
Incorporation. entering into the Four Seasons Loan, acquiring the Four Seasons Properties and such matters
which are incidental or ancillary to foregoing.
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Capitalisation/Indebtedness !

The unaudited capitalisation of the First Principal Borrowers as at the date of this Offering Circular is g
follows:

Share Capital _
Company Authorise;d Share Capital Issued Sha{re Capital
.
Care Homes 1.000 1
Specialist 1.000 _ 1
Total 2.000 2

The issued share capital is fully paid up.

Loan Capital .

The outstanding loan capital of the First Principal Borrowers consist of:

(a) £84.000.000 drawn on l4th Aprilf 2000 under the Four Seasons Loan from MSDWMCI secured
on the Four Seasons Properties.

(b the sum of £24.827.204 outstar;ding from Care Homes to FSHCP in respect of deferred
consideration arising from the putchase by Care Homes of certain properties from Four Seasons
Health Care Properties Limited ("FSHCP"): and

(c) the sum of £1.881.662 outstanding from Specialist to Huntercombe in respect of deferred
consideration arising from the purthase by Specialist of certain properties from Huntercombe.

Except as set out in Appendix 1. none ofl the First Principal Borrowers has any outstanding loan capital,
borrowings. indebtedness or contingent liabilitles nor has either created any other mortgages or charges nor has
gither given any guarantees as at the drawdown date.

All the loans and deferred consideration Ereferred to above are fullv subordinated and postponed to all
monies due from the First Principal Borrowers to MSDW Bank under the Four Seasons Loan pursuant to ]
or other of the subordination agreements referted to under "The Four Seasons Documents” below. -

irst Principal Borrowers have covenanted that, save in respect of
liabilities under the loans referred to in (b) and (c) above and the deferred consideration referred 1o in (d) and
(e} above (all of which are subordinated to MSDW Bank under subordination agreements). the First Principal
Borrowers shall not borrow any moneys or injcur any indebtedness of whatever nature from or to any person,
save for normal outgoings directly associated with the ownership and management of the Four Seasons
Properties charged as security. The Issuer isinot aware of any breach of these covenants. There has been no
material change in the capitalisation or indebtedness or contingent liabilities or guarantees of the First
Principal Borrowers since the date of drawdown of the Four Seasons Loan.

Under the Four Seasons Documents. the

Subsidiaries

Neither of the First Principal Borrowers Have any subsidiaries.

!
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Recent Developments

Save as disclosed in this Appendix | under "1k st P
change in the financial position or prospects of the First Principa

"The First Principal Borrowers", there has been no material
| Borrowers and no significant change in their

trading or financial position since the date each was incorporated.

4. Terms of the Four Seasons Loan

The Four Seasons Documents

The following constitute the principal loan and security documents for the Four Seasons Loan and are
referred to collectively as the "Four Seasons Documents”. The documents listed are for ail matenal purposes
consistent with the descriptions set out under "The Loans. The Mortgages and The Related Security” unless

otherwise described in this Appendix 1:

(a)
(b)
{c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

(g)

s

th)

(i)
()
tk)
(h
{tm)
{n)

(0}

(p)

(q)
(r)

(s)

the Loan Agreement dated 14th April 2000 berween MSDWMCT. MSMS and Care Homes:
the Loan Agreement dated 14th April 2000 between MSDWMCI. MSMS and Specialist:
the Debenture dated 14th April 2000 between Care Homes and MSMS.

the Debenture dated 14th April 2000 between Specialist and MSMS:

the Guarantee dated 14th April 2000 from Specialist in favour of MSMS:

the Guarantee dated 14th April 2000 from Care Homes in favour of MSMS:

Scottish Standard Securities dated 14th April 2000 between Care Homes and MSMS;

Iste of Man Deeds of Conditional Bond and Security dated t<th April 2000 between Care Homes
and MSMS;

Northern Irish Mortgages dated 7th July 2000 between Care Homes and MSMS:

the Equipment Morigage dated 14th April 2000 between FSHC England and MSMS:

the Equipment Mortgage dated 14th April 2000 between Huntercombe and MSMS:

the Scottish Floating Charge dated 14th April 2000 between FSHC Scotland and MSMS:

the 1sle of Man Equipment Mortgage dated [4th April 2000 between FSHCIOM and MSMS:
the Northern Irish Equipment Mortgage dated 7th July . 2000 between FSHC NI and MSMS:

the Subordination Agreement dated 14th April 2000 between FSHCP, FSHCIOM. Care Homes,
MSDWMCI and MSMS;

the Subordination Agreement dated 14th April 2000 between Four Seasons Group Limited,
FSHCP. Huntercombe, Specialist, MSDWMCI and MSMS:

the Share Charge dated 14th April 2000 between FSHCP and MSMS:
the Share Charge dated !4th April 2000 between Four Seasons Group Limited and MSMS; and

the Transfer Certificates both dated 28th June 2000 between MSDWMCIT and MSDW Bank.
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Copies of the Four Seasons Documents may bie inspected during usual business hours and any week day
(excluding Saturdays. Sundays and public holidays) at the London offices of Denton Wilde Sapte. 1 Fleey
Place. London EC4M 7WS during the period of 14:days of the date of this Offering Circular.

5. Amount and Term

The aggregate amount of the Four Seasons Ldan is £84.000.000. The final repayment date is 18th April
2007 and interest and certain capital amortisation ipayments are pavable quarterly at a fixed rate on the 18th
day of January. April. July and October. The first such payments fall due on 18th July 2000.

6. Bank Accounts

A bank account was established by each of Care Homes and Specialist (the "Four Seasons Rent
Accounts”) to receive amounts payable by the Opérating Companies under the Operating Leases. Each of the
Four Seasons Rent Accounts is charged by way of first fixed security in favour of MSDW Bank.

Each of Care Homes and Specialist has covenanted to ensure that all Rental Income in respect of the Four
Seasons Propetties is paid into the relevant Fout Seasons Rent Account (see above "The Structure of the
Accounts. the Rent Accounts™). In the event ond or more of the Four Seasons Properties is disposed of by
either Specialist or Care Homes an amount equal to 120 per cent. of the principal amount initially advanced by
MSDWMCT in respect of the relevant Four Seasons Property/Properties is required to be credited to the Sales
Account, :

MSDW Bank is the sole signatory authorised 10 effect withdrawals from the Sales Account.
Purpose

The proceeds of the Four Seasons Loan were hpplied towards the purchase of the Four Seasons Properties
and which are referred to in the table above undet the heading "The Loan and Mongage Pool". Care Homes
and Specialist each granted to MSMS (in its caplacity as security trustee) a first fixed legal charge over the
relevant Four Seasons Properties owned by them ih addition to fixed and floating charges over the other assets.
Each of the Operating Companies (except for FSHC Scottand which for reasons of Scots law has only granted
a floating charge) granted first fixed charges ovel the equipment used in the operation of their business and
located on the Four Seasons Properties. l

The terms of the Four Seasons Documents pi'ovide that substitution of one or more of the Four Seasons
Properties may be made with MSDW Bank’s p:rior written consent. such consent not to be unreasonably

withheld provided that: i

(a) the value or aggregate value of any piropenies released does not exceed £8.210.000 (in the case of
Care Homes) or £2.302.000 (in the c3se of Specialist).

() any additional property is similar in gature and quality 1o that substituted:

(c) the Net Rental Income attributable td any additional property is at least equal to that in respect of
the property substituted: and

(d) no Event of Default would occur unider the Four Seasons Documents and the provisions of such
are not breached as a result of the proposed substitution.

[
In all other cases substitution is in the absoluk discretion of MSDW Bank.
The Four Seasons Properties
Certain characteristics of the Four Seasons Properties are set out in the tables above under the heading

"The Lpan and Mortgage Pool". Each of Caré Homes and Specialist have the right to substitute certain
Properties pursuant to the terms of the Four Seasons Loan, which substitution must comply with the
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" As of the date of this Offering Circular. no

substitution criteria set out above under the heading "Purpose _ s Of
substitution has taken place. and the Issuer has not received notice of anv intended substitution.

Litigation

Neither of the First Principal Borrowers is. and neither has been. involved in any legal or arbl_rral‘lon
proceedings (including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the F:Irst Pr.mc_lpal
Borrowers are aware) which may have. or have had in the recent past (since the date each of the First Principal
Borrowers was incorporated). a significant effect on the First Principal Borrowers tinancial position.

Aunditors Report

The following is the text of two reports received by the directors of Care Homes and Specialist
respectively from Emst & Young who are the registered auditors and reporting accountants to Care Homes and
Specialist. Those reports are in respect of the period from the respective dates of incorporation of each of Care
Homes and Specialist to 14 April. 2000. These have been extracted. without material adjustment, from the
non-statutory accounts of each of Care Homes and Specialist for the period specified. The page numbers
referred to in the following text. are to the page numbers of those non-statutory accounts and not to page
numbers of this Offering Circular. Since the date of their respective incorporation. no accounts have been filed
or are publicly available in respect of either Care Homes or Specialist, Both Care Homes and Specialist are
required to prepare annually full statutory audited accounts.

"REPORT OF THE AUDITORS 7
to the directors of Four Seasons Health Care Properties (Care Homes) Limited.

We have audited the financial statements set out on pages 4 to 8, which have been prepared under the historical
cost convention and the accounting policies set out on page 5.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As described on page 2 the company's directors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts in
accordance with applicable accounting standards. It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion.
based on our audit on those accounts and to report our opinion to vou. Qur responsibilities. as independent
auditors. are established. the Auditing Practices Board and by our profession’s ethical guidance.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An
audit includes examination. on a test basis. of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts.
It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies arc appropriate to the company's
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the
accounts are free from material misstatement. whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error, In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts.

Opinion
In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at 14 April 2000.
Emst & Young

Belfast
11 July 2000
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BALANCE SHEET

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors - amounts owed by parent undertaking

CREDITORS: amounts falling due within one vear
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

CREDITORS: amounts falling due after more than ohe vear

Bank Loan
Amount owed to parent undertaking

TOTAL ASSETS LESS LIABILITIES

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Revenue reserves

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS® FUNDS
G Willis
Director

Ll July 2000
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14 April
2000
£

90.427.204

90.427.205

65.600.000
24.827.204

90.427.204




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1. Accounting Policies

The company’s main accounting policies are as follows.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements are non statutory and have been prepared solely for inclusion in this Oftering

Circular under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

Praperties

Land and buildings

The group's health care facilities are stated at cost or fair value in the case of acquisitions.

Land and buildings under construction

Land and buildings in the course of construction are included at cost together with the finance cost
incurred until the date of registration. Following completion of the period of construction, the assets
are inciuded with other land and buildings.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each

asset evenly over its expected useful life as follows:
Freehold buildings - over 50 vears
Equipment and fixtures -  from 2 to 15 vears

Interest capitalised
Interest on loans and financing cosis relating to assets under construction is capitalised until the date

of registration of the new health care facility. All other interest is written off to the profit and loss
account as incurred.

Taxation
The group’s policy i1s not to charge for group relief,

Cash Flow
As a wholly owned subsidiary of Four Seasons Health Care Holdings Limited which prepares group
accounts. the company is exempt under FRSI1 from preparing a statement of cash flows.

Turnover

Tumover represents the rental income falling due under the terms of the leases to the operating
companies. All tunover arises from continuing operations in the United Kingdom and the Isle of Man
and is attributable 1o the letting out of properties for health care activities.

2. Profit and Loss Account
Thz? company was incorporated on 28 February 2000. On {4 April 2000. it acquired health care
facilities from other group companies at the higher of estimated realisable value and cost. These

accounts are prepared for the period since incorporation to 14 April 2000, the company did not trade
during that period and accordingly no profit and loss account has been prepared.
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3. Tangible Fixed Assets

Land Equipment
and and
buildings | fixtures Toral
£ £ £
COST OR FAIR VALUE:
At 28 February 2000 - - -
Intragroup transfers 04.379.559 . 3.551.749 97.931.308
At 14 April 2000 94,379.559 3.351.749 97.931.308
DEPRECIATION: :
At 28 February 2000 . - -
Intragroup transfers 5.828.667 1.675.437 7.504.104
charged during the period - - -
At 14 April 2000 5.828.667 1.675.437 7.504.104 .
\ET BOOK VALUE:
At 14 April 2000 88.550.892 . 1.876.312 90.427.204

e ————

At 14 April 2000. the group owned all its health' care facilities.
The amount of land. which is not depreciated. amounted to £1.699.000 at 14 April 2000.

Intra-group finance costs included in land and E)uildings. (including buildings under construction) at 14 April
2000 totalled £3.433.000. :

4. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one vear

Bunk Loans :
| 14 Aprit 2000

| £
Bank loans due between one and two ycjs 1.602.900 .
Bank loans due between two and five vears 6.411.600
Bank loans due in five years or more 57.585.500
65.600.000

The bank loans are secured by the charges teferred to in note 9.
5, Amount Owed to fellow subsidiary Undertaking

Under the terms of the £84 million fagility agreement entered into by the company and Four Seasons
Health Care (Specialist) Limited. the| company is party to a subordination deed whereby the intra
group liabilities are sub-ordinated to the liabilities owed 1o Morgan Stanley Bank.
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6. Share Capital

14 Aprit 2000
£

Authorised 1.000

Allotted and fully paid ordinary shares of £1 each

During the period. one share was allotted as a result of the incorporation of the company.

7. Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders Funds

14 April 2000
£

Wew shares issued

SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS AT 14 APRIL 2000 1

8. Capital Commitments
The company had no capital commitments at 14 April 2000.

9. Contingent Liability
Under the terms of the £84 million facility agreement entered into by the company and Four Seasons
Health Care Properties (Specialist) Limited used to acquire the properties and to provide working
capital for the Four Seasons Group Limited sub group of companies. the company granted the

following charges in favour of Morgan Stanley Mortgage Servicing Limited as security trustee:

. a first fixed charge on all the company s right. title and interest from time to time in real
property. tangible moveable property, intellectual property. goodwill. investments and shares.

. a floating charge over the whole of the company’s underaking and assets. present and future.
other than assets assigned by way of fixed security in favour of the security trustee.

. a cross guarantee of the obligations of Four Seasons Health Care Properties (Specialist)
Limited under the above facility agreement.

10. Ultimate Parent Undertaking
The immediate parent company is Four Seasons Health Care Properties Limited. a company
incorporated m the Isle of Man. The ultimate parent undertaking is Four Seasons Health Care
Limited. a company incorporated in England and Wales.

11. Related Party Transactions

The company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 8 from disclosing transactions with those
related parties that are companies within the Four Seasons Health Care Limited group.

155



i
REPORT OF THE AUDITORS
to the directors of Four Seasons Health Care Properties (Specialist) Limited

We have audited the financial statements on pages + to 8. which have been prepared under the historical cog
convention and the accounting policies set out oh page 5.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As described on page 3 the company's diredtors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts ip
accordance with applicable accounting standards. 1t is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit on those accounts and to0 re'pon our opinion to vou. Our responsibilities. as independent
auditors. are established by the Auditing Practicés Board and by our profession’s ethical guidance.

Basis of opinion i

[
We conducted our audit in accordance with Aditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An
audit includes examination. on a test basis. of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts,
It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in th
preparation of the accounts. and of whether! the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s

circumstances. consistentiy applied and adequately disclosed.

I
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficidnt evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the

accounts are free from material misstatement.| whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overdll adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts.

Opinion

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at 14 April 2000.

Emst & Young
Belfast
11 July 2000
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BALANCE SHEET

14 April
2004
Notes £
FIXED ASSETS . e .
Tangible assets 3 20.281.662
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors - amounts owed by parent undertaking i
CREDITORS: amounts fafling due within one year -
NET CURRENT ASSETS 1
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CLRRENT LIABILITIES 20.281.663
CREDITORS: amounts falling due after more than one year
Bank [Loan 4 18.400.000
Amount owed to fellow subsidiary undertaking 5 1.881.662
20.281.662
TOTAL ASSETS LESS LIABILITIES 1
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital & |
Revenue reserves 2 -
EQLITY SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 7 {

G Willis

Director

11 July 2000

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Accounting Policies

The company’s main accounting policies are as follows.
Basis of preparation

The financial statements are non statutory and have been prepared solely for inclusion in this Offering
Circular under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable accounting standards.
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Properties
Land and buildings ! _
The group's health care facilities are stated at costior fair value in the case of acquisitions.

Land and buildings under construction !
Land and buildings in the course of construction! are included at cost together with the finance cost incurred
until the date of registration. Following completibn of the period of construction. the assets are included with
other land and buildings.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assefts at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset evenly
over its expected useful life as foliows: ,

Freehold buildings -  over 50 years
Equipment and fixtures- from 2 to 13 years

Interest capitalised
Interest on loans and financing costs relating tb assets under construction is capitalised until the date of
registration of the new health care facility. All pther interest is written off to the profit and loss account as .

incurred.

Taxation '
The group’s policy is not to charge for group relief.

Cash Flow :
As a wholly owned subsidiary of Four Seasons Health Care Holdings Limited which prepares group accounts,
the company is exempt under FRS1 from preparing a statement of cash flows.

Turnover
Turnover represents the rental income falling duejunder the terms of the leases to the operating companies. All
wmover arises from continuing operations in the United Kingdom and the Isle of Man and is attributable to the
letting out of properties for heaith care activities. ;

2. Profit and Loss Account

The company was incorporated on 29 February 2000. On 14 April 2000. it acquired health care facilities from
other group companies at the higher of estimatefi realisable value and cost. These accounts are prepared fm.
the period since incorporation to 14 April 2000, the company did not trade during that period and accordingly
no profit and loss account has been prepared.

-

3. Tangible Fixed Assets

Group

Land Equipment

and and
huildings Jivtures Total
£ £ £

COSTORFAIR VALLE:

At 29 February 2000 - - -
Intragroup transfers 20.150.645 131.017 20.281.662
At {4 April 2000 20.150.645 131.017 20.281.662
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DEPRECIATION:
At 29 February 2000 - - A
Intragroup transfers -
Charged during the period -

At 14 April 2000 - .

NET BOOK VALLUE:
At 14 Apni 2000 20.150.645 131.017 20.281.662

At 14 April 2000. the group owned all its health care facilities. |

4. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Bank Loans 14 April 2000
£

Bank loans due between one and two vears 452,100
Bank loans due between two and five years 1.808.400
Bank loans due in five vears or more - 16.139.500
18.400.000

The bank loans are secured by the charges referred to in note 9.

5. Amount owed to fellow subsidiary undertaking

Under the terms of the £84 million facility agreement entered into by the company and Four Seasons Health
Care (Care Homes) Limited. the company is party to a subordination deed whereby the intra group liabilities

are sub-ordinated to the liabilities owed 1o Morgan Stanley bank.

6. Share capital

14 Aprit 2000

£
Authorised 1.000
Allotted and fully paid ordinary shares of £1 each ]

During the period. one share was allotted as a result of the incerporation of the company.
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14 April
2000

New shares issued :E

¥
[
{
b
i
‘;
I

The company had no capital commitments at IH April 2000.

SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS AT 14 APRIL 2008

8. Capital commitments

9. Contingent liability ;’

Under the terms of the £84 million facility agreement entered into by the company and Four Seasons Health .

Care Properties (Care Homes) Limited used to acquire the properties and to provide working capital for t’

Four Seasons Group Limited sub group of companies. the company granted the following charges in favour ¢

Morgan Stanley Mortgage Servicing Limited as security trustee:

¢ a first fixed charge on all the company’s right. title and interest from time to time in real property, tangible
moveable property. intellectual property. goodwill, investments and shares.

e a floating charge over the whole of the company’s undertaking and assets. present and future, other than
assets assigned by way of fixed security in favour of the security trustee.

e a cross guarantee of the obhgations of Four Seasons Health Care Properties (Care Homes) Limited under
the above facility agreement.

10. Ultimate parent undertaking

The immediate parent company is Four Seasons Group Limited. a company incorporated in the isle of Man.
The ultimate parent undertaking is Four Seasons Health Care Limited. a company incorporated in England and
Wales. "
11. Related Party Transactions .

The company has taken advantage of the exe!nption in FRS 8§ from disclosing transactions with those related
parties that are companies within the Four Seasons Health Care Limited group.”
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THE SECOND PRINCIPAL BORROWER

The Loan to the Second Principal Borrower, Orb (Lexham) Limited. (the "Orb Loan") constitutes 15 per
cent. of the Loan and Mortgage Pool (calculated by reference to the principal balance of the Loan and

Mortgage Pool as of the Cut-Off Date).

1. Constitution and Registered Office

The Second Principal Borrower is a private limited company incorporated in England and Wales under the
Companies Act 1985 with registered number 3926190. It was previously know as Graphicstem Limited. lts
registered office is situated at Albemarle House. | Albemarle Street. London W1X 3HF. It was incorporated

on 15th February 2000.

2. The Directors

The sole Director of the Second Principal Borrower is Charles Osbome Helvert. whose address is 6
Westwood Close, Esher. Surrey KT10 9UF, His occupation is as an Accountant and he holds directorships in
a number of other companies.

3. General Information
Principal Activities

The sole activities of the Second Principal Borrower consist of borrowing money under the Orb Loan
made available to it by MSDWMCI (and subsequently novated to MSDW Bank) for the purpose of acquiring
the Properties charged as security under the terms of the Orb Loan (the Orb Properties™). The Second
Principal Borrower has not engaged. since its formation or incorporation, in any activities other than those
incidental to its formation or incorporation, entering into the Orb Loan, acquiring the Orb Properties and such
matters which are incidental or ancillary to the foregoing.

Financial Statements

Since the date of incorporation or constitution. no accounts have been filed or are publicly available in
respect of the Second Principal Borrower. The Second Principal Borrower is. however, required to prepare
annuallv full statutory audited accounts.

Save as otherwise disclosed in this Appendix 1, since 15th February 2000, being the date of incorporation
of the Second Principal Borrower, there has been no material adverse change in the financial position or
prospects of the Second Principal Borrower (or any subsidiary) and there has been no change in the trading or
financial position of the Second Principal Borrower.

As at the date of this Offering Circular:

Capitalisation/Indebtedness

Share Capital

Authortsed Share Capital Number of Shares Value of Each Share Issued Share Capital
£ £ £
1.000 1.000 1 1

Issued share capital is fully paid up.

The issued share capital is owned by Orb Estates plc (registered in England and Wales, No. 00552331).
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Loan Capital

The outstanding loan capital of the Seccind Principal Borrower as at the drawdown date _of 3st Mary ?
2000, consists of the sum of £38.591.250 outs&anding under the Orb Loan secured on the Properties.
f

i . . .
Except as set out in Appendix !. the| Second Principal Borrower has no outstanding loan capit) !
borrowings, indebtedness or contingent liabilities and it has not created any other mortgages or charges nor hg |
it given any guaraniees as at the drawdown date.

Under the Orb Loan Documents, the Se¢ond Principal Borrower has covenanted that, save in respect of
anv monies borrowed from its shareholder flom time to time. all of which are to be subordinated to MSDy
Bank under a Subordination Agreement. the Second Principal Borrower shall not borrow any other moniesor
incur any other indebtedness of whatever natire from or to any other persons. The Issuer is not aware of any {
breach of these covenants. ' !

Save as disclosed in this Appendix 1 uni:ler "The Second Principal Borrower" there has been no materiy]
change in the financial position Or prospects pf the Second Principal Borrower and no significant change in its
trading or financial position or prospects sinc{: the date of its incorporation.

There has been no material change in the capitalisation or indebtedness or contingent liabilities.,
guarantees of the Second Principal Borrower since the date of drawdown of the Orb Loan.

Subsidiaries

The Second Principal Borrower has no subsidiaries. The Second Principal Borrower is a wholly owned
subsidiarv of Orb Estates plc (which has entered into a Share Charge in respect of its shares {being the entire
issued share capital of the Second Principal Borrower), see below).

4. Terms of the Orb Loan
Orb Loan Documents

The following constitute the principal loém and securitv documents for the Orb Loan and are referred to as
the "Orb Loan Documents” The documients listed are for all material purposes consistent with the
descriptions set out under "The Loans. The Mongages and The Related Security "uniess otherwise described in
this Appendix 1: 5

(a) the Credit Agreement drawn mii 31st March 2000 dated 31st March 2000 between MSDW‘-‘
MSMS and the Second Principdl Borrower: "

{b) the Debenture dated 31st Marcli 2000 between the Second Principal Borrower and MSMS:
(c) the Share Charge dated 31st Mdrch 2000 between Orb Estates plc and MSMS;
(d) the Transfer Certificate dated 28th June 2000 between MSDWMC] and MSDW Bank: and

(e) the Subordination Agrecment dated 5th July, 2000 between Orb Estates plc, the Second Principal
Borrower. MSDW Bank and MSMS.

Copies of the Orb Loan Documents may be inspected during the usual business hours on any week day
(excluding Saturdays. Sundays and Public Holidays) at the London offices of Denton Wilde Sapte, | Fleet
Place. London EC4M 7WS during the periofl of 14 days from the date of this Offering Circular.

i
i

The amount of the Orb Loan is £38.59i.250. The final repayment date is 8th July 2007 and interest and

certain capital amortisation payments are payable quarterly at a fixed rate on the 18th day of January, April,
July and October. :

Amount and Term

|
¥ 162
|
!
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Bank Accounts

Bank accounts were established for the purpose of receiving/holding monies in respect of the Orb Loan
transaction and each of those accounts is charged by way of first fixed security in favour of MSMS in its

capacity as Security Trustee.

The Second Principal Borrower has covenanted to ensure that all Rental Income in respect of the Orb
Properties is paid into a Rent Account in the name of the Second Principal Borrower (see "The Structure of the
Accounts. the Rent Accounts” above). In the event one or more of the Orb Properties is disposed of. the
Second Principal Borrower is required to credit the net proceeds of sale to a Sales Account kept in its name.
The Borrower will not be required in such circumstances to provide an Additional Charge over a further
property if the net sale proceeds exceed or are equal to 125% of the principal amount initially advanced by
MSDWMCI in respect of the relevant Property or Properties {see "Substitution” below). The Second Principal
Borrower is also required to maintain a Retention Account with a2 minimum balance of £1.538.047 to be used
for meeting any shortfall in monies standing to the credit of the Rent Account on an interest payment date.
Any monies drawn from the Retention Account are to be repienished from subsequent Net Rental Income.

MSDW is the sole signatory authorised to effect withdrawals from each of the Rent Account, Retention
Account and Sales Account referred to above.

Purpose

The proceeds of the Orb Loan were applied towards financing the purchase of the Orb Properties which
are situated in England and which are referred to in the tables above under the heading "The Loan and
Mortgage Pool". The Second Principal Borrower granted to MSMS (in its capacity as Security Trustee) a first
fixed legal charge over the Orb Properties in addition to fixed and floating charges over its other assets.

Substitution of Properties

Substitution of Properties is permitted in line with the Criteria set out under "The Loans, the Mortgages
and the Related Security, Disposals and Substitutions of Properties”.

Provided that there is no subsisting Default. the Interest Cover Percentage is no less than 125 per cent. and
various other tests are met. the Borrower may request the Lender to release a Property from the Debenture {(or
any Additional Charge) and that as alternative security the Lender be given an Additional Charge over
Additional Property.

The consent of the Lender to such substitution shall not be unreasonably withheld provided that the
aggregate value of the Properties already released, and the Property proposed to be released does not exceed
£7.718.250: if the aggregate value exceeds such amount any substitution shall be at the absolute discretion of
the Lender.

As at the date of this Offering Circular, no such substitution has taken place. and the Issuer has not
received notice of any intended substitution.

Litigation

The Second Principal Borrower is not, and has not been, involved in any legal or arbitration proceedings
(including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the Second Principal Borrower is
aware) which may have, or have had in the recent past (since the date of its incorporation), a significant effect
on the Second Principal Borrowers financial position.

Auditors Report

The following is the text of a report, without material adjustment, received by the director of the Second
Principal Borrower from Deloitte & Touche who are the auditors to the Second Principal Borrower. The page
numbers referred to in the following text, are to the page numbers of the report and not to page numbers of this
Offering Circular.
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"AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE DIRECTOR OF ORB (LEXHAM) LIMITED

We have audited the interim accounts on page:i 2 to 6 which have been prepared under the accounting policiey
set out on page 3. i

i
Respective responsibilities of director and anditors
In preparing the interim accounts. the director *15 required to:

e select suitable accounting policie$ and then apply them consistently:

o make judgements and estimates tg'lat are reasonable and prudent:
« state whether applicable accountiihg standards have been followed:

e prepare the interim accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 1o presume that
the company will continue in busiiness.
i
The director is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy atgay
any time the financial position of the company. He is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities. :

t
It is our responsibility to form an independeny opinion. based on our audit. on those accounts and to report our
opinion to you. ;

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with United Kingdom auditing standards issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination. on a test basis. of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the interim accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the directors in the preparation of the interim accounts. and of whether the accounting policies are

appropriate to the company's circumstances. onsistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as td obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufﬁciaint evidence to give reasonable assurance that the intenim accounts
are free from material misstatement. whethet caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our

opinion we also evaluated the overall adequdcy of the presentation of information in the interim accounts. . *

Opinion

In our opinion the interim accounts give a trpe and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31
March 2000 and of the result for the period from incorporation on 15 February 2000 to 31 March 2000.

Deloitte & Touche
Chartered Accountants
Hill House

1 Little New Street
London EC4A 3TR

11 July 2000
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ORB (LEXHAM) LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
At 31 March 2000

Note £
FIXED ASSETS
Investment properties 3 51.835.000
CURRENT ASSETS
Retention bank account 4 1.538.047
CREDITORS: amounts falling due within one vear 3 (13.441.836)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (13.903.789)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 37.931.211
CREDITORS: amounts falling due after more
than one vear 6 (37.931,2100
1
= -
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 7 1
Profit and loss account -
Equity shareholder’s funds 8 |

These interim accounts were approved and signed by the sole director on 11 July 2000.

C O Helvent
Director
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The company was incorporated as Graphicstem Limited on 15 February 2000. and changed its
name to Orb (Lexham) Limited on 17 March 2000. These interim accounts are prepared for the
period since incorporation to 31 March 2000. The company acquired its assets and liabilities on
31 March 2000.

The interim accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with applicable accounting standards in the United Kingdom. The interim accounts are non-
statutory. The significant accounting policies adopted by the company are as set out below:

Loan issue costs

Costs relating to the raising of general corporate loan facilities are amortised over the estimated
life of the loan and charged to the profit and loss account as part of interest expense. The loans
are disclosed net of unamortised loan issue costs.

Investment properties

Investment properties are revalued at each financial year end (30 June) by independent
professional valuers. The aggregate surplus or deficit is transferred to revaluation reserve except
for permanent diminutions in value below cost, which are written off to profit and loss account.
No depreciation is provided in respect of investment properties. The requirement in the
Companies Act 1985 that all properties should be depreciated conflicts with the generally

165




of Standard Accounting Practice No. 19. In the

accepted accounting principle set out in Statement
opinion of the director. to depreciate investment properties would not give a true and fair view and

accordingly investment propertics are included in the annual accounts at open market value. The
effect of depreciation of vatue is already reflected annually in the valuation of properties. and the
amount attributable to this factor cannot reasonably be separately identified or quantified.

Deferred taxation i

Deferred taxation is provided using tﬁe liability method in respect of the taxation effect of all
material timing differences to the extent that it is probable that liabilities will arise in the

foreseeable future.
2. PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

[
The company has not traded during the period since incorporation accordingly no profit and loss
account has been prepared. At 31 Mhrch 2000. Orb {Lexham) Limited had not engaged in any
activities other than those incidental tol its formation or incorporation. entering into the loans with
Morgan Stanley Dean Witter. acquiring investment properties from other Orb Estates PLC group
subsidiaries. and such matters which are| incidental or ancillary to the foregoing. The company had no

employees other than the directors durinft the period. .
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3. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Long
Freehold Jeasehold
investment investment

' properties  properties Total
' £ £ £
Cost
At 15 February 2000 - - -
Additions at cost 31.715.000 120,000 51.835.000
At 31 March 2000 51.715.000 120.000  51.835.000

date.
.. 4. RETENTION BANK ACCOUNT
o
and to which the lender has sole signing rights.

5. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Mortgage loan {see note 0)
Amount due to parent undertaking
Accruals and deferred income

unsecured and interest free.

6. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

The investment properties, which were acquired on 31 March 2000. are recorded at cost to the
company, and in the director’s opinion, this equates to open market value at the balance sheet

The retention bank account holds certain monies as required by the lender of the mortgage loan,

31 March
2000
£

242775
15.044,696
154,365

15.441.836

————F

At 31 March 2000. the amount due to parent undertaking was unsecured and was interest free. On 3

July 2000, a Subordination Deed was executed between the Company. its ultimate parent company.

. the Mortgagor and the Security Trustee. such that the amount due to parent undertaking is
J subordinated to the mortgage loan. is repayable only after the morgage has been repaid. and remains

31 March

2000

£

Mortgage loan repayvable

Within one year 300,000
Between one and two years 415,000
Between two and five years 1.485,000
After five years 36.391.250
38,591,250
Unamortised issue costs (417,265)
38.173.985
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Analysis of mortgage loan

Due within one vear 242,775
Due after more than one year 37.931.210
: 38.173.985
! T T —

|
The mortgage loan bears interest at 1‘4"4L over 3 month LIBOR.
i

The mortgage loan is secured by: _
: i
- first floating charge over all the assets of the company;
. first fixed legal charge over the properties and the rental income:
- charge over the shares of the company;

[
- all rents to be mandated to a charged Rent Account or through the managing agents who
are required to execute a Duty jof Care Deed;

- £400.000 rogether with certain! other amounts to be placed on the retention bank account .
1o be utilised to cover any shottfalls in interest and/or capital repayments.

7. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

31 March
2000
£
Authorised ordinary shares of £1 each ! 1,000
Called up. allotted and fully paid ordinai'y shares of £1 each 1
During the period, one share was alloﬁed on the incorporation of the company.
8. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS
; 31 Marghy
2
£
New shares issued l
Equity shareholder’s funds at 31 March] 2000 1

9, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The company had no capital commitments at 31 March 2000.

10. ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

The ultimate parent company and corftrolling party is Orb Estates PLC, a company incorporated in
Great Britain.”
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APPENDIX 2
THE DUTCH LOANS

Three Loans (the "Dutch Loans") have been made to three Dutch borrowers, namely a loan of El}r
31,743,452 to Mims International bv (the "First Dutch Borrewer”). a loan of Eur 14.244:887 to- Balifi
International Finance (I} bv (the 'Second Dutch Borrower™) and 2 loan of Eur 28..188.183 10 Tempero
International Finance (I) bv (the "Third Dutch Borrower"). The Dutch Loans constitute approximately 8
per cent. (in respect of the First Dutch Borrower). 4 per cent. (in respect of the Second Dutc_h Borrower)
and 7 per cent. tin respect of The Third Dutch Borrower) of the Loan and Mongage Pool tin each case
calculated by reference to the principal balance of the Loan and Mortgage Pool as of the € ut-off Date).
The First Dutch Borrower. the Second Dutch Borrower and the Third Dutch Borrower (together the

"Dutch Borrowers") are incorporated as private fimited companies in the Netherlands.

Each of the Dutch Borrowers has. in turn. on lent substantiaily all {subject to rounding) of the monies
initially borrowed under the Dutch Loans to three individuals. namely Peter Cosgrave. Michael Cosgrave
and Jo-seph Cosgrave who trade as a partnership in Ireland pursuant to the provisions of the Partnership Act
1890 (the "Irish Borrowers"). The lIrish Borrowers are experienced property developers based in Ireland.
The business address of the Irish Borrowers is 13, Wentworth, Eblana Villas. Dublin 2. The business of
the Irish Borrowers focuses upon the investment in and development of residential and commercial
properties primarily in the Dublin area. Each of the Dutch Borrowers has entered into two separate loan
agreements with the lrish Borrowers to facilitate the on-lending to the Irish Borrowers {each such loan
agreement an "Irish Loan" and together the "Irish Loans™). The Irish Borrowers have charged by way of
first legal mortgage to each of the Dutch Borrowers certain (distinct) properties as security for repayment
of each of the Irish Loans. The Irish Borrowers have also assigned by way of security to the relevant
Dutch Borrower, the benefit of all Leases entered into by the Irish Borrowers with tenants of the relevant
properties. Rent payable by those tenants is required to be paid into an account in the name of the Irish
Borrowers. Amounts credited to those accounts have also been charged in favour of the Dutch Borrowers.
The Dutch Borrowers have in turn sub-mortgaged the relevant properties and sub-charged the relevant
Leases and Rent Accounts in favour of MSMS (in its capacity as security trustee) as security for the
repayment of each of the corresponding Dutch Loans.

The amounts. period and other principal terms of the Irish Loans are. in all material respects. the same
as for the relative Dutch Loans. Each of the Dutch Borrowers will only have recourse to the Property and
Rental Income specifically charged to it as security for payments of principal and interest due under the
relevant Irish Loans. There is no cross collateralisation cross default or other connection between the Irish
Loans and there is no other recourse to the Irish Borrowers themselves.

The only connection between the Dutch Loans is that each has been lent to a Dutch Borrower which
has on-lent substantially all the monies borrowed to the Irish Borrowers pursuant to the terms of one or
more separate and distinct Irish Loans. There is no cross-collateralisation. cross default or other
connection between the Dutch Loans.

MSDW Bank followed its legal due diligence procedure (see "The Loans. The Mortgages and The
Related Security") prior to advancing the relevant Loan to each of the Dutch Borrowers. That due
diligence included obtaining confirmation from Irish and Dutch Legal advisers that the legal mortgages
and Related Security created by the Irish Borrowers to secure repayment of the relevant Irish Loans and
the sub-mortgages and Related Security created by each of the Dutch Borrowers to secure repayment of the
relevant Dutch Loans will be enforceable notwithstanding the bankrupicy of the Irish Borrowers in Ireland
or the insolvency of the Dutch Borrowers in The Netherlands.

1. Constitution and Registered Office
Each of the Duich Borrowers is an independent private limited company incorporated in the

Netherlands. None of the Dutch Borrowers is associated or in any way connected with the Irish
Borrowers. The First Dutch Borrower was incorporated on 14th January, 2000, the Second Dutch
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Borrower was incorporated on 13th June 2000 and the Third Dutch Borrower was incorporated on 13th
June 2000.

The registered office of each of the Dutch Borrowers is at Arent Janszoon Emststraat. 595H 1082LD
Amsterdam. The Netherlands.
i
2. Directors
The Directors of each of the Duich Borrow?fers are Antonie M. Schuller and Mark van Santen. The
home address and business occupation of such directors are:

Name Address Business Occupation

Antonie M. Schuller Grat Willem db Ondelaan No principal activities performed
1412 AM Naarden outside the group where these are
The Netherlanfs significant with respect to the group.

Mark van Santen Bloemcamplaén 36 No principal activities performed
2244 EE Wassenaar outside the group where these are
The Netherlands significant with respect to the group.

Principal Activities ‘ i

|
The sole activities of each of the Dutch Bor}owers consist of borrowing monies under the Dutch Loans
to which they are a party. None of the Dutch Borrowers has engaged in any trade or business or entered
into any transactions (other than as described in this Appendix 2) since the date of their respective
incorporations. Each of the Dutch Loans are denominated in Euro. The purpose of each of the Dutch
Loans is to enable each of the Dutch Borrowers to on-lend the monies thereby borrowed to the Insh
Borrowers as described above. '

Financial Statements
Since the date of their respective incorporations, no accounts have been filed or are publicly available
in respect of the Dutch Borrowers. Each of the: Dutch Borrowers will prepare annually an audited balance

sheet and profit and loss account in accordaﬂ:ce with the legal requirements in the Netherlands, with
explanatory notes. 5

Subject to the matters set out in this Appe;hdix 2. there has been no material change in the financial
position or prospects of the Duich Borrowers and no significant change in their trading or financial
position since the dates of their respective incorporations.

Capitalisation/Indebtedness

As at the date of this Offering Circular:

l
Borrower Authorised Number of Value of Issued Share

Share Shares Each Share NLG Capital NLG
Capital NLG
First Dutch 200,000 2.000 100 40,000
Bommower
Second Dutch 200,000 2.0 100 40,000
Borrower :
Third Dutch 200,000 2.01#)0 100 40,000
Borrower :

All of the issued share capital is fully paid up

[
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For each of the Dutch Borrowers. the issued share capital (which is fully paid) comprises 400 shares
all of which are owned by Goodbody Trustees Limited (registered office is North Wall Quay. Intermational
Financial Services Centre, Dublin 1) on trust for a charitable trust. the Arbutus Homeless Persons Trust:

Loan Capital

The outstanding loan capital of the Dutch Borrowers. as at the drawndown date. comprises:-

First Dutch Borrower

Eur 31.743.452 drawn under the relevant secured Dutch Loan:

Second Duich Borrower

Eur 14.244.887 drawn under the relevant secured Dutch Loan;

Third Dutch Borrower

Eur 28.188.185 drawn under the relevant secured Dutch Loan.

Except as set out in Appendix 2. there exists no loan capital. borrowings. indebtedness. guarantees or
contingent liabilities on the part of the Dutch Borrowers as at the date of drawdown. The Dutch Borrowers
have undertaken that they shall not borrow any other monies or incur any indebtedness of whatever nature
from any person other than MSDW Bank. The Issuer is not aware of any breach of these covenants. There
has been no material change in the capitalisation or indebtedness or contingent liabilities or guarantees of
any of the Dutch Borrowers since the date of drawdown of the Dutch Loans.

Subsidiaries

None of the Dutch Borrowers has any subsidiaries.

4. Terms of the Dutch Loans and the corresponding Irish Loans

Loan Documents

The following constitute the principal loan and security documentation in relation to the Irish Loans
and the Dutch Loans (the "Dutch Loan Documents"). The documents listed are for all material purposes
consistent with the descriptions set out under "The Loans. The Mortgages and The Related Security”
unless otherwise described in the is Appendix 2:

(a)

(b)

(c}

(d}

(e)

(f)

a Loan Agreement dated 15th June 2000 in respect of a loan facility of Eur 31,743,452 made
by MSDW Bank with the First Dutch Borrower:

a Loan Agreement dated 15th June 2000 in respect of a loan facility of Eur 14.244 887 made
by MSDW Bank with the Second Dutch Borrower:

a Loan Agreement dated 15th June 2000 in respect of a loan facility of Eur 28,188,185 made
by MSDW Bank with the Third Dutch Borrower,

a Loan Agreement dated 15th June 2000 in respect of a loan facility of Eur 22.220.415 and
Eur 9.523,035 made between the First Dutch Borrower and the Irish Borrowers;

a Loan Agreement dated 15th June 2000 in respect of a loan facility of Eur 12,062,511 and
Eur 2,182.375 made between the Second Dutch Borrower and the Irish Borrowers;

a Loan Agreement dated 15th June 2000 in respect of a loan facility of Eur 14,601,987 and
Eur 13.586,197 made between the Third Dutch Borrower and the Irish Borrowers;




(g) a Debenture dated 15th June 2000 between the Irish Borrowers and the First Dutch Borrower:

{h} a Debenture dated 15th June 2060 between the lrish Borrowers and the Second Dutch
Borrower: :

(i) a Debenture dated 15th June Z(Ii)O between the Insh Borrowers and the Third Dutch
Borrower: i

4! a Debenture dated 15th June 2000 granted by the First Dutch Borrower to MSMS (in its
capacity as security trustee).

(k) a Debenture dated 15th June 2000 granted by the Second Dutch Borrower to MSMS (in its
capacity as security trustee): and

() a Debenture dated 15th June 200¢ granted by the Third Dutch Bomower to MSMS (in its
capacity as security trustee). |
Copies of the Dutch Loan Documents ma\I be inspected during usual office hours on any week day
(excluding Saturdays. Sundays and Public Holidays) at the London offices of Denton Wilde Sapte, 1 Fleet
Place. London EC4M 7WS during the period of fourteen days from the date of this Offering Circular.
|
Amount and Term |

The Duich Loans comprise loan facilities denominated in Euro in the aggregate amount of
Eur 74.176.524. The final repayment dates in respect of the Loans made available to the First Dutch
Borrower. the Second Dutch Borrower and the Third Dutch Borrower is 18th July 2007. Interest and
certain principal amortisation payments are payable on each of the Dutch Loans quarterly at a fixed rate on
the 18th day of January, April. July and October. Principal amortisation begins in July 2002.

[

t
Purpose ;

The proceeds of each of the Dutch Loans {sed by each of the Dutch Borrowers to on-lend to the Irish
Borrowers as described above, Each of the Dujch Borrowers has sub-mortgaged the Property charged to it
by the Irish Borrowers. the rental income and 'the associated rights to MSMS (in its capacity as Security
Trustee) and has also granted in favour of MSMS fixed and floating charges over all their other assets.
None of the Dutch Borrowers are. however, believed by the Issuer to hold any assets of a matenial nature
other than their rights under the initial montgage of the Properties. rental income and associated rights.

5. Bank Accounts

Under the terms of the Loans between gach of the Dutch Borrowers and the Irish Borrowers. all
tenants of each relevant Property charged as security are obliged to pay rental income into a "Rent
Account” in the name of the Irish Borrowers. There is a separate "Rent Account” in respect of each
Property which is subject to a first fixed charge in favour of the relative Dutch Borrower and sub-charged
to MSMS (in its capacity as Security Trustee).

Properties

Certain characteristics of the Properties sefuring the Dutch Loans are set out in the tables above under
the heading "The Loan and Mortgage Pool". [The Properties are located in Ireland. There is no provision
in the Dutch Loan Documents for any substitufion of those Properties.
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Litigation

The Dutch Borrowers are not and h i

ave not been, involved in any legal itrati '
_ ; ; : . : , y legal or arbitration proceedin
[1$§it;d$§ alrg‘:e,: COrp}:aocee:‘EE_S which are pending or threatened of which the Dutch Borrowerg are awarges)
whic y . ve had in the recent past (since the date each Dutch Borrower was incorpo ated
significant effect on the Dutch Borrowers' financial position. porstec. &
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INDEX OF PRINCIPAL DEFINED TERMS

APPENDIX 3

1970 Act ? 53
A Principal Shortfall ; i
Adjusted Interest Amount i 16.82. 108
Agency Agreement § 97
Agent Bank 9,97
Agents 97
Authorised Entity, " 80
Available Final Redemption Funds { 23. 110
Available Interest Receipts ? 20
Available Prepayment Redemption Funds 23.110
Available Scheduled Amortisation Funds : 23,109
B Principal Shortfall L 112
Balloon LTV ' 63
Book-Entry Interest } 2.90,98
Borrower 3
Business Day 106
C Principal Shortfali 112
Calculation Date 109
Care Homes 146
Cash Collateral Account ' 61
Cash Manager 9,77
Cash Manager Quarterly Report : 79
CDI 2
Chargor 51
class 97
Class A Noteholders 14
Class A Notes 1,13,97
Class A Reg § Global Note 98
Class A Rule 144A Global Notes 98
Class B Interest Residual Amount 125
Class B Noteholders 14
Class B Notes 1.13,97
Class B Reg S Global Note . 98
Class B Rule 144A Global Notes . 98
Class C Interest Residual Amount 12§
Class C Noteholders 14
Class C Notes 1,13,97
Class C Reg S Global Note ' 98
Class C Rule 144A Global Notes 98
Class D Interest Residual Amount 1258
Class D Noteholders 14
Class D Notes 1,13,97
Class D Reg S Global Note 98
Class D Rule 144A Global Notes 98
Class E Interest Residual Amount 128
Class E Noteholders 14
Class E Notes 1,13,97
Class E Reg S Global Note 98
Class E Rule 144A Global Notes 98
Clearstream, Luxembourg 2,98
Closing Date 1
Code 132,143
collecting agent 130
Collection Period 109
Common Depeositary 2,90,98
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Condition

Condition Precedent Valuation ; "‘):
Controlling Party ;)
Corporate Services Provider \
Covenants Act KX

Credit Agreement e 49
Currency Swap Transactions 22, 86
Current Principal Balance 63

Cut-Off Date 6, 63

Cut-Off Date LTV 63

D Principal Shortfall 112

Debentures 12

Deed of Charge and Assignment 25,97

Deferred Consideration 54

Definitive Note 2

Definitive Notes 99

Denton Wilde Sapte 47

Depository 2,9,13

Depository Agreement 2,97

Distribution Compliance Period 140

dollars 4

DSCR 63

DTC 2,98
DTC Holders 115
Dutch Borrowers 11,485,169
Duteh Loan Documents 17
Putch Leans 11, 45,169
Duty of Care Agreement 12
E Principal Shortfall 112
Eligible Investments 8s
Eligible Noteholders 118
Enforcement Procedures 72
ERISA 143
Eur 4
euro 4
Euroclear 2,98
Euroclear/Clearstream Holders 115
Event of Default 118
Excess 86
Exchange Act 99
Exchange Agent 9
Exchange Rate Agency Agreement 97
Expense Drawing 10, 85
Final Interest Payment Date 125
Final Redemption Funds 23,110
First Dutch Borrower 169
First Principal Borrowers 11
Four Seasons Group. 147
Four Seasons Loan 146
Four Seasons Parent 147
Four Seasons Properties 147
Four Seasons Rent Accounts 150
FSA 1
FSHC England 147
FSHC NI 147
FSHC SCD‘laﬂd 147
FSHCIOM 147
FSHCP 148
Global Netes 90,98
Huntercombe 147
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90

indirect participants

Intended U.S. Tax Treatment 127
Interest Amount 107

Interest Determination Date 106
Interest Drawing 10, 85
Interest Payment Date 1.14. 106
Interest Period 106

Interest Rate Swap Transactions 86

Interest Residual Amount 1258

1rish Loan 169

Irish Property 33

IRS 132

ISDA 9
Issuer 1.8.97
Issuer Security 25
Issuer's Accounts 62
Last Payvment DSCR 63
legal owner 52

Lending Criteria 46
Letter of Represeniations 90
LIBOR 1

Liquidation Fee 9,74
Liquidity Facility Agreement 10
Liquidity Facility Provider 10,43
Lean and Mortgage Pool 6, 46
Loan Documentation 6
Loan Payment Date 18
Loans 6
Londen Business Day 106
London Stock Exchange 1,107
LTSB 10,43
Managers 140
Managing Agent 61

Master Definitions Agreement 98
Maturity Date 16
Mortgage 6.52
Mortgage Rate 65
Mortgage Sale Agreement 12
mortgagee 52
Mortgagor 6,52
MSCS 9,43
MSDW 9,43
MSDW Bank 1.8,43
MSDWMCI 8.43
MSMS 8,43
MSMS Servicing Procedures kA
New Tenancies 33
Northern Irish Property 33
Note Distribution Compliance Period 94
Note Enforcement Notice 18
Note Principal Payment 114
Noteholders 14,97 100
Notes 13,97 100
OID 132
Operating Bank 9,77
Operating Companies 147
Operating Leases 147
Orb Loan 160
Orb Loan Documents 162
Orb Properties 161
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127

Owner.. 90
participants. 9. 97
Pa}'i“g Agent 138
] 23 { G—
Plan Asset Entity }‘:3
Pool Factor 4
pounds 19
Prepayment Amount . 133
_ Prepayment Assumption 19
Prepayment Fees
Prepayment Redemption Funds 23.110
Principal Amount Outstanding 114
Principal Borrowers 11
Principal Drawing 10,83
Principal Loss 86
Principal Paying Agent 9,97
Principal Priority Amounts 20
Principal Recoveries 86
Principal Shertfail 86,112
Principal Shortfall Ledger 86
Priority Revenue Payments 111
Properties 6
QEF 136
Rate of Interest 106
Rating Agency 124
Recharacterised Note 138
Record Date 116
Reference Banks 108
Reg S 2,98
Reg S Definitive Notes 29
Reg § Global Note 2.98
Registers of Scotland 56
Registrar 9,97
Related Security 12
relevant date 117
Relevant Documents 75
Relevant Margin 107
Remaining Term to Maturity 63
Rent Account 6. 61
Restricted Book-Entry Interests 28
Revenue Priority Amounts 19
Rule 144A 2,98
Rule 144 A Definitive Notes 99
Rule 144A Euroclear/Clearstream Holders 115
Rule 144A Global Note 2,98
S&P i, 124
Scheduled Amortisation Funds 23, 109
Scheduled Interest Receipts 10
Scottish Mortgages 52
Scottish Property. 33
Screen Rate 106
Second Dutch Borrower 169
Second Principal Borrower 11
section 124 129
Secured Parties 5
Securities Act 18, 98, 140
Security Trust ' 8
Security Trustee ]
Servicer ]
Servicing Agreement 8
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Share Charge

Special Servicer 72
Special Servicer Fee 9
Special Servicing Fee 74
Specialist 146
Specially Serviced Loan 72
Stand-by Account 62, 85
Stand-by Drawing 85
sterling 4
Subordinated Lender 54
Subordination Agreement 12
Subscription Agreement 140
Swap Agreement 9
Swap Agreement Credit Support Annex 9,88
Swap Collateral Cash Account. 62
Swap Collateral Custody Account 62
Swap Confirmations 9
Swap Guarantee 9
Swap Guarantor 9
Swap Provider....... 9
Swap Transactions 9
TARGET System. 106
Tax Event 87,113
Third Dutch Borrower 169
Tranche 63
Trust Deed 8.97
Trustee 8,97
UK Listing Authority 1
United States 98
Lnrestricted Book-Entry Interests 98
WAM 132
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The inside cover of this Offering Circular shows photographs of 23 of the 110 Properties included in the Q. :
Loan and Morigage Pool as of the Cut-Off Déte.  The Properties shown in those photographs are as ‘

follows:

West End Retail Park, Blanchardstown,

Dublin 15;

Donaghclonev Nursing Home. I Monree Road, Donaghcloney, Craigavon, BT66 7THA;
The Highlight Retail Park, Marina Way, Hartlepool Marina. Hartlepool:
Huntercombe Manor Hospital, Huntercpmbe Lane South, Taplow. Maidenhead SL6 OPQ;

Lentran House Nursing Home. Broomsifle Lane, Belmont, Durham DHI 20W;

25 Green Street. London W1;

West End Office Park, Blanchardsiown, Dublin 13;
Allen House. 8 Allen Street, London W8 6BH.
Kings Reach Nursing Home & Sheltered Housing. Kings Reach Village. Alkest Way. Ramsey. Isle

of Man IM8 3NX:

Plan:ation Wharf, Bartersea Reach, Batrersea, London SW11.

Whiteabbey Nursing Home, 104 Doagh
33 South Audlev Street, London W1,
West Pier Business Campus, Dun Laog
7-9 Palace Gate, London W8 5LS;

12 Grosvenor Crescent, London SW1;

Road, Newtonabbev, Counny Antrim;

haire, Co. Dublin,

A
Centennial & Charter House, 100 Broad Street, Birmingham, West Midlands: i

21-23 Palace Gate. London W8,
The Thames Brain Injury & Heathside
Hill. London SEI10 84B:

Neuro Disabilin: Rehabilitation Centre, 80-82 Blackheath

Linlathen House Nursing Home. Arbrodgth Road. Broughty Ferry., By Dundee DD5 3NN;

Landsdowne Nursing Home, 41-43 Son
St Oswald's Residential Home, Crowha

erton Road. Belfast BT!5 3LG:
{! Lane, Felling. Gateshead, Tyne & Wear NE10 9PX;

Belmont Grange Nursing Home, Lentrgn, Inverness, Highland. Scotland IV3 6RL: and

Abbevmoor Nursing Home, Market Lar

All relevant consents have been given f|
cover of this Offering Circular.

e, Swalwell, Gateshead NE16 3DF.

br the inclusion of the photographs on the inside

180



